
 ROY CITY  
 
Roy City Council Agenda 
June 7, 2016 – 6:00p.m. 
Roy City Council Chambers 
5051 South 1900 West 

 
Moment of Silence and Pledge of Allegiance: Councilmember Yeoman 
 
1. Approval of May 17, 2016, City Council Minutes  
 
2. 6:00 p.m. Public Hearing on the Proposed Fiscal Year 2017 Budget  
 
3. Consideration of Resolution 16-23 Adopting the Fiscal Year 2017 City Budget 
 
4. 6:00 p.m. Public Hearing to Consider a Request to Amend the Zoning Ordinance to allow 

Chickens/Rabbits within all Single Family Residential Zones 
 
5. Consideration of Ordinance No. 16-3 Amending the Zoning Ordinance to allow Chickens/Rabbits 

within all Single Family Residential Zones 
 
6. Award of Employee of the Month for April 2016 
 
7. Presentation by Envision Utah – Shane Woods 
 
8. Consideration of Resolution No.16-24 Announcing Roy City’s Intent to Annex Unincorporated 

Islands and Peninsulas  
 
9. Consideration of Resolution No. 16-10 Approving a Job Description and Salary Range for 

Engineer Positions in the Fire and Rescue Department  
 
10. Discussion of Council Members Directing / Tasking City Employees 
 
11. Discussion on Non-Compliance to City Zoning Ordinance  
 
12. Discussion of Redesigning the Roy City Flag 
 
13. City Managers Report 
 

14. Public Comments  
 

15. Mayor and Council Report 
 
16. Adjourn 
 
 

Redevelopment Agency Agenda 
 

1. Approval of May 3, 2016 Redevelopment Agency Minutes 
 

2. 6:00 p.m. Public Hearing on the Proposed Fiscal Year 2017 RDA Budget 
 
3. Consideration of Resolution RDA16-1Adopting the Fiscal Year 2017 Redevelopment Agency 

Budget 
 
 



 ROY CITY  
 
Roy City Council Agenda 
June 7, 2016 – 6:00p.m. 
Roy City Council Chambers 
5051 South 1900 West 

 
 In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons needing auxiliary communicative aids and services 

for these meetings should contact the Administration Department at (801) 774-1020 or by email: 
admin@royutah.org at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting. 

 
Certificate of Posting 

The undersigned, duly appointed City Recorder, does hereby certify that the above notice and agenda was posted in 
a public place within the Roy City limits on this 3rd day of June 2016. A copy was also provided to the Standard 
Examiner and posted on the Roy City Website on the 3rd day of June, 2016. 
         AMY MORTENSON, 
         ROY CITY RECORDER 
Visit the Roy City Web Site @ www.royutah.org 
Roy City Council Agenda Information – (801) 774-1020 

mailto:admin@royutah.org
http://www.royutah.org/


MINUTES OF THE MAY 17, 2016, ROY CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 

1. Approval of May 3, 2016, minutes 
 

2. Public hearing regarding adjustments to the Fiscal Year 2016 Budget 
 

3. Consideration of Resolution No. 16-20 approving adjustments to the Fiscal Year 
2016 Budget 
 

4. Consideration of Resolution No. 16-21 approving a Part-time and Seasonal 
Employee Compensation Schedule 
 

5. Presentation by Nicole Daughtery Roy City’s Victim Services Advocate 
 

6. Consideration of an alcoholic beverage license for Roy Sinclair/Lillie Enterprises, 
located at 5608 South 1900 West 
 

7. Consideration of a conditional use and site plan for a multi-family residential 
development located at approximately 5629 South 2700 West 
 

8. Consideration of a preliminary subdivision plan for Ward Estates Subdivision 
Phase 3 Amended, a two (2) lot residential subdivision, located at approximately 
5050 South 3500 West 
 

9. City Manager’s Report 
 

10. Public comments 
 

11. Mayor and Council reports 
 

12. Adjourn 



Minutes of the Roy City Council Meeting held May 17, 2016, at 6:00 p.m. in the City 
Council Room of the Roy City Municipal Building. 
 
The meeting was a regularly scheduled meeting designated by resolution.  Notice of the 
meeting was provided to the Standard Examiner at least 24 hours in advance.  A copy 
of the agenda was posted. 
 
The following members were in attendance: 
 
Mayor Willard Cragun    City Manager Andy Blackburn 
Councilwoman Marge Becraft   Secretary Michelle Drago 
Councilman Bob Dandoy 
Councilman Brad Hilton 
    
Excused: Councilman Dave Tafoya and Councilwoman Karlene Yeoman 
 
Also present were:  Cathy Spencer, Management Services Director; Carl Merino, Police 
Chief; Jason Poulsen, Fire Chief; Ross Oliver, Public Works Director; Travis Flint, Parks 
and Recreation Director; Steve Parkinson, Planner; D. L. Thurman; Greg Sagen; 
Suaney Marchant; Haylee Spencer; Dustin Christensen; Karri-Mae Christensen; Verda 
Baker; Selena Frias; Brooke Perkins; Shae Anderson; Carmen Archuleta; Nate Bybee; 
Spencer Padovich; Emma Combs; Alissa Jacobs; Lorin Parks; Kent Hill; Katie 
Stimpson; and Jennifer Orozco. 
 
Moment of Silence: Councilman Hilton 
 
Pledge of Allegiance: Councilman Hilton 
 
1. APPROVAL OF MAY 3, 2016, MINUTES 

Councilman Hilton moved to approve the minutes of May 3, 2016, as written. 
Councilman Dandoy seconded the motion. Council members Becraft, Dandoy, 
and Hilton voted “aye.” The motion carried. 

2. PUBLIC HEARING REGARDING ADJUSTMENTS TO THE FISCAL YEAR 2016 
BUDGET 

 
Councilwoman Becraft moved to open the public hearing at 6:02 p.m. Councilman 
Dandoy seconded the motion. Council members Becraft, Dandoy, and Hilton 
voted “aye.” The motion carried. 
 
Cathy Spencer, Management Services Director, stated that the following adjustments to 
the General Fund in the FY2016 Budget were being proposed: 
 
 Tax Revenue 
 

• ($30,000) decrease in property tax due to a decrease in personal property taxable values 
• ($20,000) decrease in delinquent prior year taxes due to a higher collection percentage 



Roy City Council Minutes 
May 17, 2016 
Page 2 
 
 

• $140,000 increase in general sales and use tax due to consumer confidence 
• ($79,000) decrease in telecom gross receipts tax due to fewer land lines and lower cell 

phone plan rates 
• ($30,000) decrease in Weber County paramedic contract due to miscalculation 

 
License Revenue 
 

• $40,000 increase in business license fees due to collection work on delinquent accounts 
 
Charges for Services 
 

• ($100,000) decrease in ambulance revenue due to fewer calls for service 
• ($25,000) decrease in transport revenue due to fewer calls for service 
• ($8,000) decrease in parking violation due to fewer tickets written 
• $2,500 increase in zoning and subdivision fees due to construction 

 
Fines and Forfeitures 
 

• $25,000 increase in Justice Court fines due to case load 
 
Grants 
 

• The budget previously included a FEMA grant for $95,345, which was not awarded. The 
grant included a match of $10,604 by the City, which was no longer needed. 

 
Other 
 

• $25,000 increase in interest income due to higher savings rates 
 
Expenditures – Wages and Benefits 
 

• The total adjustment is $12,918. A part-time salary survey had been completed. The 
impact on most departments could be covered by current funding levels, except the 
Aquatic Center. Since nearly half of that department’s part-time wages were expended in 
May and June, an additional allocation would be necessary. 

 
Expenditures – Operations 
 

• ($7,000) Building Maintenance – record contribution from the State of Utah for the school 
crossing on 1900 West 

• $5,100 Community Development – increase funding for engineering costs. More plan 
revenues and services related to subdivision and commercial development. 

• $10,000 Roy Days – start-up costs for the August 2016 activities 
• $1,800 – Aquatic Center – increase in equipment, supplies, and maintenance to replace 

the P A system 
• $4,500 – Parks and Recreation – increase in leased property due to an increase for the 

Union Pacific Railroad lease 
 
Ms. Spencer stated that the budget adjustments to the General Fund would result in an 
increased draw from the fund balance of $79,264. 
 



Roy City Council Minutes 
May 17, 2016 
Page 3 
 
 
Councilman Dandoy felt the adjustments were pretty straight forward. 
 
Mayor Cragun opened the floor for public comments. There were none. 
 
Councilman Dandoy moved to close the public hearing at 6:06 p.m. Councilman 
Hilton seconded the motion. Councilmembers Becraft, Dandoy, and Hilton voted 
“aye.” The motion carried. 
 
3. CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION NO. 16-20 APPROVING ADJUSTMENTS 

TO THE FISCAL YEAR 2016 BUDGET 
 
Councilman Hilton moved to approve Resolution No. 16-20 approving 
adjustments to the Fiscal Year 2016 Budget. Councilwoman Becraft seconded the 
motion. A roll call vote was taken: Council members Dandoy, Becraft, and Hilton 
voted “aye.” The motion carried. (Copy filed for record). 

 
4. CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION NO. 16-21 APPROVING A PART-TIME AND 

SEASONAL EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION SCHEDULE 
 
Cathy Spencer stated that Resolution No. 16-21 had been prepared for the Council’s 
consideration. The staff had completed a part-time and seasonal employee salary 
survey. Roy City’s pay scale was compared to other cities of similar size and revenue. 
Based on the salary survey, the administration was proposing a new part-time and 
seasonal employee compensation schedule. The schedule contained a minimum wage 
and a maximum wage, which would apply to all departments except the Fire 
Department. 
 
Ms. Spencer said the Fire Department’s part-time pay schedule proposed paying all 
part-time employees a flat rate. They would not receive merits or COLA’s. Everyone 
would receive the same rate. It would be a higher rate than they would receive if they 
were on a merit system. The proposed rates were equivalent to the Fire Department’s 
full-time rates. The rates would remain the same until another salary survey showed 
they should be increased. There were other fire districts moving to flat rates, and Chief 
Poulsen decided they would be best for Roy. Any part-time fire fighters paid over the flat 
rate would be frozen until the part-time rates increased to that amount. Any fire fighters 
below the flat rate would move up. 
 
Councilman Dandoy asked when the new part-time pay scale would go into effect. Ms. 
Spencer said it would be retroactive to May 14th. 
 
Councilman Hilton clarified that there was a minimum wage and a maximum wage. He 
asked if the department heads would determine the range of the part-time employee 
based on their performance. Cathy Spencer stated that the Personnel Policy said a 
part-time employee could receive 10% above the minimum wage when they were hired. 



Roy City Council Minutes 
May 17, 2016 
Page 4 
 
 
A permanent part-time employee could receive a merit along with all of the other 
employees, but it would be based on the number of hours they worked. She 
recommended that the Personnel Policy be amended to allow permanent part-time 
employees to receive more of a merit increase. Councilman Hilton agreed. 
 
Councilman Hilton asked if pay schedule would resolve the problem with seasonal 
workers. Ms. Spencer said the salary for the seasonal workers had gone up. All 
seasonal employees would be adjusted to the new rate as of this pay period. 
 
Councilman Hilton asked if the new pay schedule would help Parks and Recreation. 
Travis Flint said it would. 
 
Cathy Spencer stated the seasonal employees would receive a little bit of a bump if they 
came back. Travis Flint stated that Obamacare made it a challenge to bring back 
seasonal employees. 
 
Councilwoman Becraft moved to approve Resolution No. 16-21 approving a part-
time and seasonal employee compensation schedule. Councilman Dandoy 
seconded the motion. Council members Hilton, Becraft, and Dandoy voted “aye.” 
The motion carried. (Copy filed for record). 

 
5. PRESENTATION BY NICOLE DAUGHTERY ROY CITY’S VICTIM SERVICES 

ADVOCATE 
 
Nichole Daughtery, Roy City’s Victim Services Advocate, stated that the City’s Victim 
Advocate Program started in early 2013. Since then over 500 residents had been 
served by the program; over 85% of them were domestic violence victims. The program 
served 70 victims in 2013; 55 were domestic violence. In 2014, 185 victims were 
served; 162 were domestic violence. In 2015, the program served 182 victims; 156 were 
domestic violence. In 2016, there had been 91 new clients so far. Eighty-nine percent 
(89%), or 81, were domestic violence victims. Over one-third of the victims were 
children present at the time of a domestic violence incident. 
 
Ms. Daughtery explained that as a Victim Services Advocate, she worked with the 
prosecutor by contacting victims before court to inform them of their rights and to offer 
additional services like protective orders and safety planning. She shared the victim’s 
wishes and opinions with the Prosecutor and assisted him during court with orders and 
preparing victims if a case went to trial. She followed up after court to let victims know 
the outcome of the proceedings and to inform them if they were eligible for further 
compensation or assistance. She worked with the Police Department by taking phone 
calls from officers at any time to assist with a domestic violence incident. Immediate 
questions about emergency shelter and safety planning were addressed. She was 
available at any time to offer victims of any crime guidance regarding further services 
available in the community through the officers and detectives. She also developed and 



Roy City Council Minutes 
May 17, 2016 
Page 5 
 
 
maintained relationships with other local advocate programs to ensure victims received 
services outside her expertise. She attended the local Domestic Violence Coalition with 
other entities to do outreach and education in the community. She attended City events 
and kept information in the newsletters and on the website to inform the community 
about the advocate program. She worked with Crime Victim Reparations to help victims 
get the emergency financial services they needed. She kept up on annual training and 
worked with other local programs to keep the community in-the-know when it came to 
implementing new and important victim services and protocols. 
 
Ms. Daughtery stated that she had been working with the Police Department to start the 
Lethality Assessment Program. LAP was a two-part intervention process that featured a 
research-based lethality screening tool and a protocol that provided direction for LE, 
and in Roy City’s case, the YCC in Ogden. The goal of LAP was to prevent domestic 
violence homicides, serious injury, and re-assault by encouraging more victims to utilize 
the support and shelter services of domestic violence programs. The questionnaire was 
a tool to help the officer and the victim assess the severity of domestic violence 
situations and gauge what level of support would be best in those situations. She and 
an officer were trained to be LAP trainers for the Roy Police Department. They had a 
lesson plan ready to go and had planned to have the department trained by the end of 
May. However, they had run into a significant barrier that prevented them from 
implementing the program. The only solution that allowed them to implement the LAP 
program while complying with department policy and the Utah Domestic Violence 
Coalition was the issuance of department phones. The UDVC would not allow officers to 
use personal phones to make calls to the YCC on behalf of the victims. 
 
Councilwoman Becraft asked how many domestic violence victims went back into the 
same situation. Nicole Daughtery did not have a percentage, but she had noticed that 
people reoccurred on the court docket. 
 
Councilman Dandoy asked how issuing phones would resolve the problem. Chief 
Merino explained that the phone used to make the call could be used as evidence in a 
case. If a personal phone was used as evidence, everything on the phone would be 
admissible in court. 
 
Mayor Cragun asked if the City could provide a certain number of phones for the 
department that could be used by every shift. Chief Merino said it could.  
 
There was a discussion about possible solutions. 
 
Mayor Cragun asked Nicole Daughtery and Chief Merino to reach a solution and bring it 
back to the City Council. 
 
Councilman Hilton felt the City owed it to the victims to find a resolution to this problem. 
 



Roy City Council Minutes 
May 17, 2016 
Page 6 
 
 
Cathy Spencer asked if the advocate grant could be used to purchase phones. Nicole 
said she would check.  

 
6. CONSIDERATION OF AN ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE LICENSE FOR ROY 

SINCLAIR/LILLIE ENTERPRISES, LOCATED AT 5608 SOUTH 1900 WEST 
 
Cathy Spencer stated that the Sinclair Station at 5608 South 1900 West had a new 
owner who was requesting approval of a Class A Beer license, which was for off-
premise consumption. 
 
Councilman Hilton moved to approve an alcoholic beverage license for Roy 
Sinclair/Lillie Enterprises at 5608 South 1900 West. Councilman Dandoy 
seconded the motion. Council members Becraft, Dandoy, and Hilton voted “aye.” 
The motion carried. 

 
7. CONSIDERATION OF A CONDITIONAL USE AND SITE PLAN FOR A MULTI-

FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT LOCATED AT APPROXIMATELY 5629 
SOUTH 2700 WEST 

 
Steve Parkinson, Planner, stated that the City had received a request for approval of a 
conditional use and site plan for a multi-family development located at 5629 South 2700 
West, which was the southwest corner of the 5600 South 2700 Wes intersection. The 
site was zoned R-3, which allowed multi-family dwellings as a conditional use. The 
owner of the property had submitted at least three different renditions for this site. The 
Planning Commission held a public hearing for the conditional use on September 2015. 
It tabled consideration of the site plan due to unresolved issues. The current plan met 
the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance. On May 10th, the Planning Commission 
reviewed the latest site plan and recommended that it be approved along with the 
conditional use. The staff also recommended approval of both items. 
 
Councilman Dandoy stated that the proposed site plan placed storage units in front of 
the buildings. Mr. Parkinson said the developer planned to have one storage space for 
each dwelling unit. Some would be located next to the trash enclosure. They would 
appear as one building. Due to the site’s topography, some of the storage units would 
be located inside one of the buildings along with the recreational amenities.  
 
Councilman Dandoy asked about the zoning requirement to have architectural relief for 
every 30 feet of building length. Steve Parkinson stated that he had asked the Planning 
Commission to determine if the developer’s proposal to use vertical siding would meet 
the requirement for architectural relief. The developer proposed to alternate the vertical 
siding with one-inch strips along the sides and rear of each building. There would be a 
small undulation, but it would not bump out like the front porch would. The Zoning 
Ordinance did not state that the architectural relief had to be a certain size. The 
Planning Commission felt the vertical siding met the intent of the Zoning Ordinance. 



Roy City Council Minutes 
May 17, 2016 
Page 7 
 
 
 
Councilman Dandoy asked if the sign they were proposing would be permanent. Mr. 
Parkinson said it would. He did not know what it would look like as the developer had 
not submitted sign plans, but it would have to comply with the new Sign Ordinance and 
sight triangle regulations. Councilman Dandoy asked what would happen to the sign 
and development when 5600 South was widened. Mr. Parkinson said the applicant 
planned to retain ownership of the development. The sign would not be like a 
subdivision sign. It would not become a nuisance to the occupants. UDOT had reviewed 
the plans for this development. As UDOT didn’t have any special comments or 
stipulations, he did not feel widening 5600 South was in their immediate plans. When 
5600 was widened, the owner of this property would just be another individual property 
owner UDOT would have to deal with. 
 
Councilman Dandoy stated that the site consisted of three separate parcels that needed 
to be combined. Mr. Parkinson said it did. The property owner was in the process of 
submitting a preliminary subdivision plan to resolve that issue. The conditional use 
could be approved subject to compliance with the property combination. 
 
Councilman Dandoy moved to approve a conditional use and site plan for a multi-
family development located at 5629 South 2700 West based on the staff’s findings 
and subject to the conditions recommended by the staff and Planning 
Commission. Councilwoman Becraft seconded the motion. Council members 
Becraft, Dandoy, and Hilton voted “aye.” The motion carried. 
 
8. CONSIDERATION OF A PRELIMINARY SUBDIVISION PLAN FOR WARD 

ESTATES SUBDIVISION PHASE 3 AMENDED, A TWO (2) LOT RESIDENTIAL 
SUBDIVISION, LOCATED AT APPROXIMATELY 5050 SOUTH 3500 WEST 

 
Steve Parkinson stated that the City had received a request for preliminary approval of 
Ward Estates Subdivision Phase 3, Amended, which was located at 5050 South 3500 
West. The property in question contained over three-quarters of an acre and was zoned 
R-1-8. The existing home was located on the back portion. The owner wanted to create 
a lot in front of the existing home. The Planning Commission held a public hearing on 
September 8, 20l5. It tabled consideration of the subdivision because it did not meet the 
requirements for the shared driveway proposed by the property owner. The new lot 
would have access to 3500 West unless it was denied by UDOT. On April 11th, the City 
did receive a letter from UDOT indicating that they would not allow the new lot to have 
access onto 3500 West. Without access, the new lot met the requirements for a shared 
driveway. It also met the lot width and size requirements for the R-1-8 Zone. The staff 
and Planning Commission recommended that the City Council approve the preliminary 
subdivision plan. 
 
Councilman Dandoy asked who would own the driveway. Mr. Parkinson said the 
ownership would be shared. The front portion would be owned by the front lot; the back 



Roy City Council Minutes 
May 17, 2016 
Page 8 
 
 
half would be owned by the back lot. If there was a dispute about the driveway, it would 
be a civil matter.  
 
Councilman Hilton stated that the subdivision layout was not ideal, but the applicant had 
taken the appropriate steps. 
 
Councilwoman Becraft asked how the front lot would be affected when UDOT widened 
3500 West. Mr. Parkinson said UDOT did have plans to widen 3500 West, but he did 
not know when it would happen. Councilman Dandoy said Representative Schultz had 
indicated UDOT planned widen 3500 West from south to north.  
 
Councilwoman Becraft moved to approve the preliminary plan for Ward Estates 
Subdivision Phase 3, Amended, located at 5050 South 3500 West based on the 
staff’s findings and subject to the conditions recommended by the staff and 
Planning Commission. Councilman Hilton seconded the motion. Council 
members Becraft, Dandoy, and Hilton voted “aye.” The motion carried. 

 
9. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 

 
Andy Blackburn, City Manager, reported that: 
 

• The pump for the 4000 South Reservoir went out on Monday, May 16th. It would 
take about a month for a replacement to arrive. The City was supplementing with 
Weber Basin Water. 

 
• The Aquatic Center would hold the annual elementary swim days on Thursday, 

May 19th; Friday May 20th; Monday May 23rd; and Tuesday, May 24th.  There 
would be two schools per day. 

 
• UDOT was working to install new utilities on 5600 South at night. 

 
• The banners had arrived. They should up within a week. Ross Oliver, Public 

Works Director, said the City was waiting for a permit from UDOT, which they 
hoped to receive in the next few days. 

 
• There had been a fire earlier in the day at Kapp Auto. A shed behind the 

business caught on fire. 
 

• Councilman Tafoya had asked that the temporary speed bump on 2175 West in 
front of North Park Elementary School be taken out. It would be replaced with a 
permanent one. Mayor Cragun directed the City to conduct studies to determine 
if it was appropriate before replacing it. There was a discussion regarding speed 
bumps. Councilman Dandoy asked who installed bumps. Mr. Oliver said it was 
done by the Public Works Department at the request of the Police Department or 



Roy City Council Minutes 
May 17, 2016 
Page 9 
 
 

City Manager. Speed bumps were always temporary. There was quite a history 
regarding the speed bump on 2175 West. Police Chief Merino said speed bumps 
were an old traffic device. The new theory was to do away with them. 
Councilman Dandoy was aware that the public wanted a speed bump on 2175 
West but did not recall that the Council had discussed it.  The City was receiving 
requests from residents asking that the current speed bump be removed. Ross 
Oliver said he was directed by a council member to put the speed bump in. 
Mayor Cragun directed Ross Oliver to remove the speed bump at his 
convenience.  

 
• The City Council had been invited by Louse Eames to attend the Mountain West 

News Street Picnic at Sand Ridge Park on Sunday, June 5th from 11:00 a.m. to 
2:00 p.m. 
 

10. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
There were none. 

 
11. MAYOR AND COUNCIL REPORTS 

 
Mayor Cragun reported that the City Council and staff had worked hard to put together a 
budget. The City had many needs which the City Council was addressing. He 
complimented the staff and department heads. 
 
Councilman Dandoy reported on the survey status. So far about 158 people had 
completed the survey. About 600 people needed to fill out the survey in order for there 
to be a representative sample. He encouraged citizens to fill out the survey, which could 
be found on the City’s website and Facebook page. The survey would help the City 
Council make decisions regarding the City’s five-year plan. 
 
Councilwoman Becraft reported that the Arts Council had found a place to hold the Roy 
Days Art Show – the new library. 
 
Mayor Cragun asked if there were any funds left in the Council Contingency Fund. Ms. 
Spencer said there was. Mayor Cragun asked that the Contingency Fund be used to 
pay for an advertisement about the survey. Councilman Hilton stated that Layton 
received a lot of publicity when it did their survey. 
  



Roy City Council Minutes 
May 17, 2016 
Page 10 
 
 
12. ADJOURN 

 
Councilman Hilton moved to adjourn at 7:02 p.m. Councilman Dandoy seconded 
the motion. Council members Becraft, Dandoy, and Hilton voted “aye”. 

 
       ________________________________ 
       Willard Cragun 
Attest:       Mayor 

 
__________________________________ 
Amy Mortenson 
Recorder 



  

FY 2017 Preliminary Budget 

ROY CITY CORPORATION 

 
 
 

Presented by: Cathy A. Spencer 
Management Services Director 

 



 

ROY CITY BUDGET 
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2017 

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
 
City Government  .........................................................................................................................................  2 
Organizational Chart  ...................................................................................................................................  3 
Budget Calendar  ..........................................................................................................................................  4 
Budget Message  ..........................................................................................................................................  5 
General Fund Budget Summary .................................................................................................................  12 
General Fund: 
  Revenue  ..............................................................................................................................................  31 
  Expenditures  .......................................................................................................................................  37 
      Legislative  ..............................................................................................................................  38 
      Legal  .......................................................................................................................................  39 
      Justice Court  ..........................................................................................................................  40 
      Management Services  ...........................................................................................................  41 
      Transfers  ................................................................................................................................  42 
      Building Maintenance ............................................................................................................  43 
      Police and Animal Services  ....................................................................................................  44 
      Fire and Rescue  .....................................................................................................................  45 
      Community Development  .....................................................................................................  46 
      Streets  ....................................................................................................................................  47 
      Fleet  .......................................................................................................................................  48 
      Public Works Administration  .................................................................................................  49 
      Recreation Complex  ..............................................................................................................  50 
      Aquatic Center  .......................................................................................................................  51 
      Roy Days .................................................................................................................................  52 
      Parks and Recreation  .............................................................................................................  53 
      Debt Service............................................................................................................................  54 
      Class C Roads ..........................................................................................................................  55 
      Transportation Infrastructure ................................................................................................. 56 
Capital Projects Fund  ................................................................................................................................  57 
Water and Sewer Utility Enterprise Fund  .................................................................................................  61 
  Revenue ...............................................................................................................................................  67 
  Expenses:  Operations .........................................................................................................................  68 
           Administration  ..................................................................................................................  70 
Storm Water Utility Enterprise Fund  ........................................................................................................  71 
Solid Waste Utility Enterprise Fund  ..........................................................................................................  76 
Internal Service Funds ................................................................................................................................  82 
  Information Technology Fund  ............................................................................................................  86 
  Risk Management Fund  ......................................................................................................................  89 
Special Revenue Funds ...............................................................................................................................  92 
  Storm Sewer Development  ................................................................................................................  95 
  Park Development Fund  .....................................................................................................................  98 
  Cemetery Perpetual Fund  .................................................................................................................  101



 

ROY CITY GOVERNMENT 

 
 
 
 
 
                                                                          
 
 
 
                                                                                                                          Willard S. Cragun, Mayor  
                                                                                                                                       2014‐2018 
 
 
 
 

Council Members 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
   
 
   
 

  Margie Becraft                Robert Dandoy             Bradley R. Hilton               David E. Tafoya           Karlene Yeoman 
       2014‐2018                      2016‐2020                       2010‐2018                  Mayor Pro‐Tem                 2014‐2020 

                                                                                                                2000‐2020 
 
 

Administrative Personnel 
 
 
Clinton Drake, City Attorney 
Travis J. Flint, Parks & Recreation and Recreational Services Director 
S. Ross Oliver, Public Works Director 
Jason R. Poulsen, Fire Chief 
Cathy A. Spencer, Management Services Director 
Carl G. Merino, Chief of Police 
        

 
 

Andrew H. Blackburn, City Manager  

2



 

 
Organizational Chart 

                             

                             
                             

           
Citizens of Roy 

 

             

            Mayor and City 
Council 

 

             

    Boards and 
Commissions 

 
City Manager  City Attorney 

    Planning 
Commission 

 
Legal 

    Board of 
Adjustments 

 
Risk Management 

             
             

 
Community 
Development 

  Fire & Rescue   
Management

Services 
Justice 
Court 

Public 
Works 

Police 
Parks & 

Recreation 
Services 

 
Planning & 
Zoning 

  Suppression   
Accounting 
and Budget 

      Engineering   
Uniformed 
Services 

 

Park
Maintenance 

& 
Development 

  Permits & 
Inspections 

  Prevention    Audit       
Project

Management 
  Investigations   

Recreation
Programs 

 
Business 
Licensing 

 
Emergency 
Medical 
Services 

  Purchasing       
Facilities 

Management 
 

Animal 
Services 

 
Aquatic 
Center 

  Code 
Enforcement 

     
Human 

Resources 
     

Fleet
Services 

     
Recreation
Complex 

 
       

Utility 
Administration 

     
Public
Utilities 

Management 
       

   

3



 

TENTATIVE BUDGET CALENDAR 

 
 
The  Offices  of  the  City  Manager  and  the  Management  Services  Director  are  responsible  for  the 
development of  the annual budget.   As  the  schedule below details,  the budget process began  in  late 
February with the distribution of budget request forms to all departments.  The Department Directors and 
their staff are responsible for compiling budget figures, which are then reviewed and adjusted by the City 
Manager and Management Services Director during a series of inter‐departmental meetings. 
 

Date  Activity 

February 12, 2016  Distribute budget request forms and instructions to Department Directors 

March 18, 2016  Deadline for submitting budget requests – review and compile requests 

March  29  –  April  1, 
2016 

City Manager and Management Services Director review budget – budget meetings
with Department Directors 

Ongoing  Review and revise budget requests with Department Directors for inclusion in
Tentative FY 2017 Budget 

May 3, 2016  Presentation of Tentative FY 2017 Budget to Mayor and City Council 

June 7, 2016  Public  hearing  on  FY  2017 Budget and  adoption  of  Resolution  unless  direction  is 
received for adjustments to the Budget 

June 21, 2016  City Council  adoption of  FY 2017 Budget  if  changes  recommended  at  June 7, 2016
meeting 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4



 

BUDGET MESSAGE 

 
 
 
To the Honorable Mayor and City Council of Roy City: 
 
The City Administration is pleased to once again present a balanced budget for your consideration. The 
budget covers Fiscal Year 2017 which begins July 1, 2016 and ends June 30, 2017.   Roy City remains  in 
good financial condition and its fund and departmental budgets are in balance.  This document reflects 
the efforts of the City’s Manager, Department Directors, their staffs and each of you.   
 
Governmental Funds 
 
The General Fund is the primary operating fund that accounts for all financial resources of the City not 
required  to  be  accounted  for  by  a  separate,  specialized  fund.    The  General  Fund  is  classified  as  a 
governmental fund along with Capital Projects Funds and Special Revenue Funds which contain funds that 
are raised for a specific purpose.   Money received  in the Special Revenue and Utility Enterprise Funds 
cannot be used for the primary operations of the City. 
 
The following is a summary of budgets for governmental funds for FY 2017: 
 

 

Governmental Funds 

   
General, 

includes Roads 
& 

Transportation 

 
 
 

Capital 
Projects 

 
 

Storm 
Sewer 

Development 

 
 
 

Park 
Development 

 
 
 
 

Cemetery 

Financing sources:           
  Taxes and assessments  $12,146,661    $           0  $         0   $         0    $       0 
  Licenses and permits  306,200      0       0     0      0 
  Intergovernmental  2,007,413     0     0     0      0 
  Charges for services  2,558,800     0  25,000  25,000     0 
  Fines and forfeitures  774,000     0     0     0      0 
  Interest / miscellaneous  146,500     0  1,000  1,000     0 
  Other sources  10,000     0     0     0      0 
  Transfers in  162,300  185,500     0     0      0 
  Contributions – other gvts  393,000     0     0     0     0 
  Use of fund balance  719,004  656,500  143,000     0      0 

    Total financing sources  19,223,878  842,000  169,000  26,000     0 

Financing uses:           
  General government  (3,869,134)  (156,500)     0     0      0 
  Public safety  (8,519,207)     0     0     0      0 
  Public works  (2,851,794)     0  (169,000)     0      0 
  Parks and recreation  (3,025,317)  (500,000)     0  (15,000)     0 
  Debt service  (119,939)      0     0     0      0 
  Transfers out  (695,805)     0     0     0      0 
  Increase in fund balance  (142,682)  (185,500)     0  (11,000)     0 

    Total financing uses  (19,223,878)  (842,000)  (169,000)  (26,000)     0 

Excess (deficiency) of 
     financing sources over 

          financing uses 

 
 

$                  0 

 
 

$            0 

 
 

$            0 

 
 
$          0 

 
 
$        0 

5



 

We expect Fiscal Year 2017 to continue to show improvement over prior years and revenue from sales 
tax  is expected  to show an  increase.   Within  the State of Utah, consumer confidence  in  the economy 
continues to outreach that of national confidence.  Utah’s economic growth continues to outpace national 
averages, while unemployment  rates  trend  lower  than  the nation.   The development of  the FY 2017 
budget was done with the expectation that statewide growth will be moderate and revenue growth will 
continue.  The budget for sales tax has been increased by 3.23%.   
 
Home construction continues to slowly recover, but  is not expected to come back to pre‐recessionary 
numbers.  With less residential land available within the City, residential building is expected to be low.  
Most of the open space is being looked at by developers for multi‐family housing projects.  Congestion on 
City streets causes the City Council concerns when multi‐family housing projects are considered.   
 
Without a tax increase, property tax revenue is expected to show minimal growth due to the low number 
of new home starts and modest commercial construction.    Existing home prices are on the rise locally 
and across the nation.  The property tax rate influences the amount of motor vehicle fees the City receives.  
Motor vehicle fees are allocated based on the City’s portion of property tax on a district’s tax role.  If Roy 
City maintains  its  tax  rate  and  others  entities  raise  theirs,  as  has  happened  in  past  years,  the  City’s 
allocation for motor vehicle fees will decline.  FY 2015 ended with motor vehicle fee revenue of $308,786 
and FY 2016 is trending lower than that level.  FY 2015 was a 6.53% decrease form FY 2014.  With that in 
mind, revenue from motor vehicle fees is expected to remain flat.  Tax increases over the next few months 
for other Districts in the area could cause that number to decline. 
 
Current property tax rates are insufficient to fund the needs of the City.  From 2008 to 2013, employee 
wages were  effectively  frozen  to maintain  a  balance  budget  in  the mist  of  falling  revenues.   As  the 
economy becomes  stronger, other  employers,  including  governments,  are offering higher wages  and 
incentives to well‐trained applicants.  Lagging wages for Roy City employees is causing them to leave for 
higher compensated positions.  In addition to wages, health insurance premiums and retirement rates are 
on the rise.  Finally, replacing capital equipment was also placed on hold during 2008 to 2013.  Equipment 
was maintained  rather  than  replaced and extended beyond normal useful  life.   A capital  replacement 
program must now be implemented to address the age of equipment and safety of those operating the 
equipment.  A property tax increase of $1,156,568, approximately 45.43% is included in the FY 2017 Roy 
City budget to address personnel and equipment needs. 
 
Franchise  tax  revenue  continues  to  increase  slowly.   Some areas are  showing gains, while others are 
dropping.  Telecom gross receipts continue to decline, likely the result of fewer homes having land line 
telephones.  In addition, cell phone carriers are lowering rate on their plan structures.  Franchise taxes on 
electricity continue to show growth, while the tax on natural gas fluctuates due to weather conditions.  
Colder winters bode well  for  income to the City.   The Utility Enterprise Funds within the City also pay 
franchise fees on charges to customers.  The City will see an increase in the franchise fees because of a 
rate increase proposed for water, sewer contractors, and solid waste contractors.   
 
The budget includes grants and assistance from the local, State and Federal agencies.  Incorporated into 
the budget  is assistance from Weber School District for officers  in the secondary schools; State Liquor 
Funds  for DUI enforcement; State  funding  for  the Victim’s Advocate Program; a CDBG grant  for curb, 
gutter, and sidewalk in Halverne subdivision; and RAMP funds for park enhancements. 
 
Ambulance revenue had small declines in FY 2014 and FY 2015 ($5,343 and $3,597, respectively), and is 
trending for a larger decline in FY 2016.  As of March 2016, ambulance revenue is 15.96%, or $180,426, 

6



 

lower than the same period in FY 2015.  Revenue projections for transports as of March 2016 are 9.92% 
below  the  same period  last  year.   Due  to  the  current  revenue  levels,  the budget  for ambulance and 
transport revenue has been lowered for FY 2017. 
 
Revenue from recreational programs and recreational facilities appear to be at maximum levels under the 
present rate structure and participation levels.  A slight increase in revenue is projected as the Department 
looks  to expand  some of  the programs offered.   The  flag  football program  started  in FY 2016 will be 
expanded  to  include a competitive  league.    In addition, the City’s  fields are being rented out  to other 
leagues and cities to try and increase revenue. 
 
Revenue from fines and forfeitures doesn’t trend upward or down, and is based on the cases and fines 
imposed.  A slight increase in fines is projected.  The interest rate paid on City funds has increased over 
the past year and is currently at .8224%, compared to .5294% one year ago.   
 
In  the past  the City has had  revenue  from  the  sale of cemetery plots.   The plots are all  sold, causing 
revenue to cease.  Revenue from grave openings will continue until all sold plots are filled. 
      
The General Fund budgeted revenue of $16,803,874 is 12.46% above FY 2016, yet is $719,004 below what 
is needed to cover the departmental expenditures.  The City Council has determined that the fund balance 
reserves should be reduced to approximately 18% of budgeted revenue.  Fund balance reserves at June 
30, 2015 were 23.03% of budgeted revenue.  It is being proposed to purchase capital assets in order to 
obtain the reduction in the reserve account.   
 
The City’s management  is committed to maintaining existing programs and services and to provide an 
appropriate level of staffing to address increased workloads.   The FY 2017 budget increases staffing by 
five full‐time positions.  The Fire Department increases by four full‐time firefighters, while the Legislative 
and Finance Departments increase by one full‐time position each.  Included are an assistant City Attorney 
and an accounting technician.  All of the full‐time positions being added are conversions from part‐time 
staffing.   The budget also  includes enhanced positions  in  Finance, Building Maintenance, Community 
Development, Fleet, and the Aquatic Center.  These positions are not adding FTE’s.   
 
Wages and benefits make up 69.86% of  the General Fund budget.   Wages alone  total $8,919,878, or 
50.90%.  Merits are applicable to employees under the maximum pay in their grade, while a cost of living 
adjustment (COLA) is paid to all employees.  The budget includes a 2.5% merit and a 2.0% COLA.   Part‐
time  staff will  receive  a  portion  of merits  and  COLA’s  based  upon  the  number  of  hours worked  in 
comparison to their full‐time colleagues.  The budget includes a 5.42% increase in health insurance rates.  
The initial rate increase was reduced by increasing the plan deductibles and adding a $100 deductible on 
prescriptions.  For the first time in a number of years, contribution rates for the Utah State Retirement 
Fund are remaining the same as the prior year.   There  is a slight decrease of  .10% to the Firefighters’ 
Retirement System. 
   
While  the  Department  Directors  were  given  latitude  to  change  individual  line  items,  their  overall 
operations budgets approximate FY 2016 levels.  Individual lines items were increased where necessary 
to reflect actual costs.  There are no across the board increases to any budget.    The City continues to 
receive grants in the areas of public works, public safety and recreation.  Expenditures will vary from year 
to year for grants awarded. 
 

7



 

The Departments requested $3,014,014 in capital for FY 2017 in the General Fund.  Equipment and capital 
improvements of $1,974,645 are  included  in  the proposed budget; $45,000 was  transferred  to other 
funds;  $13,300 moved  to  non‐capital  accounts;  $26,890  removed  to  be  purchased  in  FY  2016;  and 
$954,179 removed to be considered in a five year capital plan. 
 
Capital Projects Fund 
 
A property tax  increase  imposed  in 2005 allowed for the City to set aside funds for parks, recreational 
facilities, and fire apparatus.  These funds are transferred to the Capital Projects Fund for the purchase, 
construction, and maintenance of those  items.   This year, the portion normally set aside for parks and 
recreational facilities will be retained within the General Fund to supplement funding to replace the floor 
at the Recreation Complex.  In addition, $18,000 normally set aside to replace fire apparatus was retained 
in the General Fund to upgrade brush trucks. 
 
Ongoing projects within the Capital Projects Fund  include the  improvements to George Wahlen North 
Park and the Beautification of 1900 West. 
 
Enterprise and Internal Service Funds 
 
Enterprise Funds are used to report activities for which a fee is charged to external users.  Internal Services 
Funds are similar to Enterprise Fund, except the users are the various departments and funds of the City.    
  
The following is a summary of budgets for the enterprise and internal service funds for FY 2017: 
 

 

Utility Enterprise Funds  Internal Service Funds 

   
Water 
and 
Sewer 

 
 

Storm 
Water 

 
 

Solid 
Waste 

 
 

Information 
Technology 

 
 

Risk 
Management 

Revenues:           
  Charges for services  $7,341,705  $840,000  $2,132,000  $383,869  $290,300 
  Interest and miscellaneous  213,000     0  1,000      0       0 

    Total revenues  7,554,705  840,000  2,133,000  383,869  290,300 

Expenses:           
  General government  (516,059)     0     0  (400,586)  (290,300) 
  Public works  (7,022,554)  (626,264)  (1,909,271)     0      0 

    Total expenses  (7,538,613)  (626,264)  (1,909,271)  (400,586)  (290,300) 

       Operating revenue  16,092  213,736  223,729  (16,717)     0 

Non‐operating revenue           
 (expense)           
  Intergovernmental     0     0     0     0      0 
  Debt service  (221,140)     0     0      0      0 
  Contributions     0     0     0     0      0 
  Transfers in     0     0     0     0      0 

    Total non‐operating           
     revenues and expenses  (221,140)     0     0     0      0 

  Change in retained earnings  ($   205,048)  $213,736  $  223,729  ($ 16,717)  $         0  

 
   

8



 

Other cash outlays:           

  Principal payment on debt  ($350,000)         
  Capital assets  ($1,172,640)  ($45,600)    ($57,000)   

 
The City has a contract and receives water from Weber Basin Water Conservancy District.  The District has 
raised its rates the last two years.   As with all utility contractors, Roy City will pass on the rate increase to 
the customers.   
 
In December 2013, North Davis Sewer District implemented a rate structure effective July 1, 2014.  The 
rate structure will  include  increases  in the wholesale rate charged to municipalities over the next four 
years.  For FY 2017 the rate per unit increases from $15.50 to $18.50.  In addition, excess gallons charged 
to commercial customers per 1,000 gallons over 5,500 increases from $1.55 to $1.85.  The budget includes 
restructuring the sewer rates the City charges its customers connected to the North Davis Sewer system 
to account for the wholesale rate  increase.   Customers connected to the Central Weber Sewer system 
saw a rate increase in January 2016, which is included in the FY 2017 budget. 
 
In FY 2014, the City  implemented an “Opt Out” plan  for recycling.   All households were automatically 
enrolled unless they opted out during the initial phase in of the plan.  Annually in June, customers may 
opt out of the program.  The collection company’s rate structure for recycling is tiered.  The higher the 
participation  is  for  recycling,  the  lower  the overall  rates.   The City currently  sits at 75% participation.  
Should  the participation drop below 75%,  rates would  increase  and be passed on  to  the  customers.  
Garbage collection rates for customers without recycling are higher due to tipping fees.   
 
Waste Management is the City’s waste and recycling vendor.  On an annual basis, their fee structure is 
evaluated and when adjusted, passed on  to  the  cities.   The City has  changed  the  curbside dumpster 
program to a semi‐annual cleanup due to storm water regulations which does not allow for open garbage 
containers.  Roy City received a notification of fee changes from Waste Management, and will not increase 
fees to residents due to the reduction in the dumpster program. 
 
The number of employees  in both  the Utility Enterprise Funds and  the  Internal Service Funds has not 
changed for FY 2017.  Wages and benefits will be impacted the same as described for the General Fund 
above for merits, COLA’s, and benefits.   
 
Operating expenditures of the utility funds have not changed significantly.   The process of changing to 
radio read meters and software was approved in FY 2015, but has yet to be undertaken.  Problems have 
come up related to the installation process.  The City expects to get the contract finalized in May 2016, 
with  installation  of  meters  to  begin  shortly  thereafter.    This  will  be  a  four  year  process  costing 
approximately $800,000  for meters, and allow meters  to be  read  from a  vehicle within  range of  the 
transmitters.  
 
Summary 
 
The economic outlook for Roy City, and the State of Utah, continues to improve.  This allows management 
to  look  at  areas  that  had  been  cut  over  the  past  years,  including  number  of  employees,  employee 
compensation, operating expenses and capital.  Implementing a long‐range capital and staffing plan, will 
benefit the Administration is making determinations of funding levels.   
 

9



This budget identifies the financial operations of each of the City’s departments and gives direction to the 
Department Directors in coordinating the services their departments are providing with the goals of the 
City Council.  The administration is pleased to submit a budget that enhances overall operations of the 
City. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Andrew H. Blackburn 
City Manager 

Cathy A. Spencer 
Management Services Director 

10



Roy City Corporation FY 2017 Preliminary Budget 

Tab – G
eneral Fund, Including Class C Roads   

General Fund, Including Class C Roads  

 

 

 

 

 

IN THIS SECTION: 

 Fund Summary 

o Revenues 

o Expenditures

11



 

BUDGET SUMMARY –  
GENERAL FUND, INCLUDING CLASS C ROADS AND TRANSPORTATION INFRASTRUCTURE 

 
 
 
Revenues 
 
The  total  FY  2017 General  Fund  budget  of  $19,223,878,  including  Class  C  Roads  and  Transportation 
Infrastructure  represents  an  increase  of  18.57%  from  last  year’s modified  budget.    There  are  three 
revenue  sources  that  tend  to  skew  the  comparison;  grants,  fund  balance  contributions,  and  private 
donations.  Fund balance contributions do not represent actual funds received by the City in the budget 
year.  It represents money saved in prior years that will be used on current year expenditures.  The draw 
against  fund  balance  in  the General  Fund  increased  $510,110  and  in  Class  C  Roads  down  $400,000 
compared to the prior year.  Fund balance reserves are being used to make needed capital purchases and 
to reduce the reserves to 18% of budgeted revenues.  Grants and private donations are one‐time revenues 
that will not necessarily have comparative figures in future years.  Grant funds rose 632.56%, $492,202, 
from FY 2016.  The City acquired a Community Development Block Grant for $250,000 for improvements 
in Halverne subdivision and a RAMP grant for $263,000 for improvements at George Wahlen North Park. 
 
A breakdown of General Fund revenue by major category is as follows: 
 

General Fund Budgeted Revenue

$774,000

$393,000

$2,558,800

$1,295,000

$712,413
$306,200

$146,500

$12,146,661

$891,304

 Taxes Licenses & Permits Intergovernmental
Class C Roads Charges for Services Transportation
Fines Interest & Misc Contributions & Transfers

 
New construction brings in revenue from building permits and impact fees, as well as fees associated with 
zoning, subdivisions, and plan checks.   The new homes, offices, stores and restaurants add to the base 
from which property taxes, franchise fees, and motor vehicle fees are generated.  While fees from building 
permits are considered one‐time‐money, the revenue generated from the newly constructed homes and 

12



 

businesses for property tax, and franchise fees will be ongoing and assist the City in covering the increase 
in ongoing costs.   
 
Permits  for new home construction, commercial construction and  remodels  should  remain at modest 
levels for FY 2017.  There are some small subdivisions, commercial buildings, and remodels in the planning 
stages, which are included in the budgeted revenue of the City.   
  
Other areas that generate revenue such as the Aquatic Center and Recreation Complex are established 
facilities and their revenue streams are considered to be at maximum levels.  Revenue from participation 
in sports has also reached a maximum and does not vary significantly from year to year. 
 
In the General Fund there are no fee increases.  Revenue estimates for FY 2017 are as follows: 
 

   
FY 2015 
Actual 

Modified 
FY 2016 
Budget 

 
FY 2017 
Proposed 

FY 2017 
Compared to 

FY 2016 

Taxes  $10,570,367  $10,767,579  $12,146,661   12.81% 
Licenses and permits  382,323  360,200  306,200   ‐14.99% 
Intergovernmental  260,101  220,504  712,413   223.08% 
Class C roads  1,105,099  1,050,000  1,295,000  23.33% 
Charges for services  2,634,076  2,533,515  2,558,800   1.00% 
Fines and forfeitures  774,217  754,400  774,000   2.60% 
Miscellaneous  360,411  158,500  146,500   ‐7.57% 
Management fee  132,000  130,000  132,300  1.77% 
Contributions  172,800  90,000  433,000  381.11% 
Fund balance contributions     0  608,894  719,004   18.08% 

  $16,391,394  $16,673,592  $19,223,878    

 
Taxes 
 
The City receives tax revenue from property tax, sales tax, franchise fees on utilities, paramedic aboard 
fees, and motor vehicle fees.  Utah’s economy is strengthening, which indicates some favorable news for 
the City  in  regards  to sales  tax  revenue.   Consumer confidence  in Utah exceeds  the national average, 
which amounts to higher retail sales.  A 3.23% increase in sales tax revenue has been projected.  Sales tax 
revenues  for  FY 2016  are projected  to be 2.76% higher  than  the prior  year, with  FY 2015  ending  at 
$4,689,837.  In addition, Weber County passed the Local Option Sales Tax which took effect in April 2016.  
The City  is estimated  to receive $393,000  from  this new  tax which  is restricted  for spending on roads 
similarly to Class C Road funds.   
 
Most available  land  in Roy has been developed.   Although new home construction  is very  low,  it will 
continue to add value to the property tax rolls and marginal  increases to the City’s tax revenue.   With 
minimal new home construction and no changes in values, an increase in property tax revenue is projected 
to be low.  The collection percentage for FY 2016 was up compared to prior years, which could be a result 
of the strengthening economy.  It is anticipated that the trend will continue into FY 2017.   
 
The property tax system is set up such that an entity will receive the same amount of taxes it did in the 
prior year, if no tax increase is proposed.  With that said, the actual tax rate goes down each year because 
new home are added and total property values  increase.   The City has found the need to  increase the 

13



 

amount  of  revenue  generated  from  property  taxes  to  cover  increases  in wages  and  benefits,  health 
insurance, and capital assets.  
 
Roy City has seen employees leave for similar positions in other cities for higher rates of pay.  This is due 
to the  lack of employees progressing through their wage scale  in the recessionary years, 2008 through 
2013.   The City Council’s  intent  in 2017  is to work towards wages adjustment for employees based on 
years of service.   In addition, funds need to be allotted to replace aging  infrastructure and equipment.  
Capital funding was also cut in 2008 through 2013 to balance the budget with reduced revenues.  The FY 
2017 budget includes a tax increase of $356,568 for wages and benefits associated with the analysis of 
employee years of service and pay.  It is anticipated that pay adjustments will be done over a few years 
to achieve a better alignment of pay rates to years of service. 
 
A capital replacement plan of $800,000 is also included in the tax increase.  Of that amount, $650,000 will 
be allocated annually to replace equipment, while $150,000 will be placed  in a capital projects fund to 
replace infrastructure and large apparatus.   
 
The chart below shows the trend for those revenue sources classified as general taxes and fees: 
 

 
 
Utility companies are charged a 6% franchise fee on services they provide within the City limits.  The City’s 
Utility Enterprise Funds also pay franchise fees.  The increases in water rates and North Davis Sewer will 
add revenue to the Water and Sewer Utility.  The 6% franchise fee will be paid on the increased revenue, 
resulting in increased revenue in the General Fund.   
 

 $‐

 $500,000

 $1,000,000

 $1,500,000

 $2,000,000

 $2,500,000

 $3,000,000

 $3,500,000

 $4,000,000

 $4,500,000

 $5,000,000

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
(budget)

2017
(budget)

Major Categories of General Fund Tax Revenue

Property tax Sales tax Franchise tax Paramedic aboard Motor vehicle

14



 

Paramedic fees are set by Weber County.  The current contract for paramedic fees is $320,000 annually.  
Motor vehicle fees, which are derived from vehicle registrations, are expected to drop slightly.   Motor 
vehicle fees are allocated to all the entities on the property tax roll.  If one entity raises their certified tax 
rate, they will receive a  larger portion of the motor vehicle fee “pie”.   The FY 2017 budget  includes an 
estimate of $310,000 for motor vehicle fees. 
 
For FY 2017, the budgeted expenditures exceed budgeted revenues by $719,004.  This variance is being 
covered by drawing from fund balance.  At the end of the last fiscal year, the unrestricted fund balance 
was  23.03%  of  budgeted  revenue.    This  draw  from  fund  balance  will  lower  the  percentage  to 
approximately 18%, a level determined by the City Council.   
 
Licenses and Permits 
 
The chart below shows a comparison of license and permit revenue with prior years: 
 

 
 
The boundaries for Roy City have been fully established, and new home construction has slowed.  For FY 
2017 there is little residential and commercial construction anticipated, although lots in new subdivisions 
are available.   The budget includes building permits for 20 homes and a few multi‐family and commercial 
projects.  Total revenue from building permits is projected at $75,000. 
   

 $‐

 $25,000

 $50,000

 $75,000

 $100,000

 $125,000

 $150,000

 $175,000

 $200,000

 $225,000

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
(budget)

2017
(budget)

Major Categories of General Fund License and Permits Revenue

Business licenses Fire inspection Building permits Dog licenses Cat licenses

15



 

 
Calendar 
Year 

   
Single Family 

Units 

 
Multi‐family 

Units 

 
Stores and 
Restaurants 

Offices, 
Medical, Banks, 
and Churches 

 
 

Other 

2010 
Valuation  4,454,185  1,580,000  ‐  245,221  28,284 

Number of units  38  27  ‐  1  5 

2011 
Valuation  6,849,559  ‐  1,720,000  196,500  735,925 

Number of units  53  ‐  3  1  5 

2012 
Valuation  5,303,266  ‐  245,000  4,640,956  99,835 

Number of units  40  ‐  1  1  6 

2013 
Valuation  4,256,560  446,773  1,500,000  806,208  116,458 

Number of units  31  9  1  1  8 

2014 
Valuation  1,451,518  ‐  400,000  14,529,405  865,942 

Number of units  11  ‐  1  1  9 

2015 
Valuation  2,950,197  ‐  ‐  701,000  27,694 

Number of units  22  ‐  ‐  2  3 

 
The following charts show new construction and remodel trends in Roy City:   
 

 
 
Iasis Health Care Facility is included in FY 2013 and FY 2015 includes the Weber County Library.   
 
Roy City  implemented a Good Landlord Program  in FY 2012.   Single family homes considered as rental 
property are now required to have a business license.  License fees are higher for landlords who do not 
participate  in  the  program.    The  annual  renewal  process  should  provide  approximately  $166,000  in 
revenues  from  licenses,  late  fees,  and  fire  inspections.    The  skewed  chart  for  2012  is  the  result  of 
recognizing revenue for the fiscal year and allowing for delayed payment into the following fiscal year. 
 

Intergovernmental 
 

 $‐

 $2,500,000

 $5,000,000

 $7,500,000

 $10,000,000

 $12,500,000

 $15,000,000

 $17,500,000

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Valuation of New Units Constructed

Residential Construction Commercial Construction Residential Remodel Commercial Remodel

16



 

Intergovernmental revenue is that which is received from other governmental sources such as the State 
of Utah, the federal government, and local agencies.  The largest intergovernmental revenue stream the 
City  receives  is  Class  C Road  Funds.    The  Class  C  Road  system was  established  in  1937  by  the Utah 
Legislature as a means of providing assistance to municipalities for the improvement of roads and streets.  
The City anticipates receiving $1,295,000 in FY 2017 under this program.  This is based on gasoline sales 
and can fluctuate with a sharp increase in gas prices if consumption is reduced.  
 
A number of factors affect the amount of Class C Road funds the City receives.  Miles of road, gas prices, 
and consumer consumption all have an impact.  Funding was at a high in 2008 with $1,389,000 in revenue, 
dipping to a low of $992,000 in 2009.  Since that time revenue has increased a small amount each year.  
 
In the 2015 general legislative session, HB 362 authorized a county to impose a local option sales and use 
tax for Transportation Infrastructure and changed the method of calculating taxes on gasoline which is 
disbursed  to  cities as Class B and C Road Funds.   The  change  in  the gas  tax  is estimated  to bring an 
additional $245,000 into the City and was implemented on January 1, 2016.  The County option sales tax 
was voted on approved by the citizens of Weber County.  The .25% increase will be disbursed .10% to the 
public transit district; .10% to the cities; and .05% to the county and was implemented on April 1, 2016. 
 
The City receives reimbursement from the Weber School District to assist with the cost of placing resource 
officers in the three secondary schools within Roy City.  This amounts to $101,900 per year.  Allotments 
from the State of Utah under the liquor law will continue.  It provides approximately $41,000 for funding 
public safety campaigns to investigate liquor law violations, including DUI’s.   
 
The Fire Department has also been successful  in receiving funds from federal and state grants.   For FY 
2016 applications have been submitted, but not yet approved.  The federal government has a fiscal year 
that begins on October 1st.  Grants awarded through the federal system are normally done according to 
its fiscal year.  The City will continue to apply for available grants and will make necessary adjustments to 
the budget if and when notices of grant awards are received. 
 
The Weber County RAMP grant provides annual funding based on population, and often provides other 
funding  for  projects  approved  by  the  RAMP  Committee.    Roy  City’s  population  grant  approximates 
$35,000 annually.  This year Roy City received capital grant2 from RAMP totaling $263,000.  Funds will be 
used for field lights and a pavilion cover at George Wahlen North Park. 
 
Charges for Services 
 
Roy  City  charges  fees  for  various  services.    The  services  include  planning  and  zoning;  public  safety; 
recreation;  and  cemetery.    Fees  from  development  activities,  recreational  facilities,  and  recreational 
sports are not expected to fluctuate much from the prior year.  Facility use is thought to be at maximum 
levels.  All of the available plots in the cemetery have been sold, and therefore no revenue is budgeted in 
that area. 
 
Major  components of  revenue  from public  safety  services  consists of  ambulance  fees of $1,350,000, 
patient transports of $210,000, police reports of $15,000, parking violations of $5,000 and traffic school 
fees of $12,000.   Fees from ambulance services are set by the State of Utah and are reviewed annually.  
The budget does not  include any adjustment to the ambulance rates at this time.   The budget will be 
adjusted during the year if new rates are set by the State and approved by the City Council. 
 

17



 

The following is a summary of revenue anticipated from services and a comparison with prior years: 
 

 
 

 
FY 2013 

 
FY 2014 

 
FY 2015 

Modified 
FY 2016 

 
FY 2017 

  Actual  Actual  Actual  Budget  Proposed 

Development  $     48,764  $     28,830  $     76,805  $     39,500  $     34,000 

Public safety  1,403,034  1,395,353  1,611,651  1,585,500  1,593,500 

Recreation  181,431  105,922  122,295  119,015  124,800 

Aquatic center  509,587  482,595  475,518  465,000  469,000 

Recreation complex  343,665  339,029  320,728  305,000  320,000 

Cemetery  29,950  37,986  19,030  15,000  15,000 

Other  45,364  15,138  8,050  7,500  2,500 

  $2,561,795  $2,404,853  $2,634,077  $2,536,515  $2,558,800 

 
The following is a historical graph of revenue compared to prior years: 
 

 
 
Fines and Forfeitures 
 
The Justice Court was established in December 2002 and has jurisdiction over traffic and misdemeanor 
criminal cases.  In April 2010, the Roy City and Weber County Justice Courts were consolidated and now 
operate through Roy City.  Beginning in FY 2010, the number of cases reflects the combined court system.  
The City receives one‐half of the net citation fees from the Weber County jurisdictions.   
 
Budgeted revenue from the consolidated Justice Court is $774,000 for FY 2017.  This includes an estimate 
of $550,000  for Roy City  and $175,000  for Weber County.    In August 2014 Huntsville  terminated  its 
affiliation with the Roy Justice Court. 

 $‐

 $250,000

 $500,000

 $750,000

 $1,000,000

 $1,250,000

 $1,500,000

 $1,750,000

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 Budget 2017 Budget

Development Public Safety Recreation Aquatic Center Complex Cemetery

Charges for Services Revenue Trends

18



 

The Justice Court also hears small claims cases.  The FY 2017 small claims budget is $40,000, which is lower 
than  the  adjusted  FY 2016 budget.   A historical  summary of  revenue derived  from  the  Justice Court 
follows: 
 

 
 
Miscellaneous Revenue 
 
Miscellaneous  revenue  is  comprised  on  interest  income,  proceeds  from  the  sale  of  property  and 
equipment, lease revenue, and other miscellaneous items.  Interest rates have increase over the past year.  
Interest income has been set at $75,000 and $13,000 for the General and Class C Road funds, respectively.  
 
The City rents out portions of the Municipal Building and the Hope Community Center to the community 
for special  functions.   Since  the construction of  the Hope Community Center,  facility  rental  fees have 
increased.   
 
Contributions and Transfers 
 
The Redevelopment Agency of Roy Utah pays a management fee to Roy City for similar types of services.  
For FY 2016, transfers for reimbursement are budgeted $132,300 from the Redevelopment Agency.   In 
addition  to  the management  fee,  the Redevelopment Agency  is  repaying  the City’s Water and Sewer 
Utility Enterprise Fund for improvements made to the Albertson’s City Centre project area.  The FY 2017 
reimbursement is $30,000. 
 
Revenue Summary 
 

$0

$100,000

$200,000

$300,000

$400,000

$500,000

$600,000

$700,000

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Budget

2017
Budget

Justice Court Revenue

Roy Weber County Small Claims

19



 

As less construction occurs within the City, one‐time fees generated from planning and building permits 
are reduced.  This requires the City to rely on fees generated from taxes and charges for services to fund 
operations. Excluding intergovernmental revenues and donations, tax revenue accounts for 75.42% of the 
monies used to operate the General Fund. 
 
For FY 2017, tax revenue continues to grow as the economy strengthens.  In order to become competitive 
with wages and benefits and to provide equipment and infrastructure that operates at a safe and efficient 
level, a property tax increase is necessary.  A robust economy generating increased sales tax revenue will 
assist the City in its ability to fund increased cost of operations.  Also having good, viable businesses for 
our citizens to shop at will increase sales tax revenue.  The City receives a higher percentage of the sales 
tax generated within the City than it does of state‐wide sales tax.    
 
While some areas of revenue are showing modest increase, others show modest decline.  Sales tax is up, 
while ambulance and transports are down, and development, traffic school, recreation, and recreational 
facilities revenues are flat or dropping.  This is important as we look to cover the increased costs of City 
operations, including personnel, supplies, facilities, and machinery. 
 
   

20



 

Expenditures 
 
For FY 2017, personnel costs account for 69.86% of budgeted expenditures of the General Fund.  Included 
in the personnel costs are wages, payroll taxes, insurance, retirement and allowances.   The budgets for 
wages and benefits are $12,242,176 and $11,288,194 for FY 2017 and FY 2016, respectively.  Wages and 
benefits are net of the transfers in from the Utility Enterprise Funds to cover shared employee costs. 
 
The following chart provides a breakdown of expenditures by major category for the General Fund and 
includes the Class C Roads and Transportation Infrastructure funds.   
 

 
 
(Transfers out of the General Fund and transfers in from the Utility Enterprise Funds are netted out for 
the table above.  Transfers out to other funds totaled $695,805, and transfers in totaled $760,124.) 
 
In the General Fund, budget requests exceeded revenue estimates by $1.6 million.   Various cuts were 
made to all areas including personnel, operations, and capital to arrive at the budget that is presented 
herewith.   
 
Personnel 
 
The FY 2016 General Fund budget includes an increase of six new full‐time equivalent employees.  A full‐
time firefighter will bring the three department shifts to equal manning.  Continually scheduling a part‐
time firefighter to fill the daily position has proven difficult, so an additional full‐time position has been 
added to each shift replacing a part‐time slot.  Two part‐time positions are being increased to full‐time to 
meet  the  increased workloads  of  the  departments.    The  City  Prosecutor  position would  become  an 

$13,002,300 
$3,500,313 

$2,522,963 

$119,939 

($64,319)

General Fund and Class C Roads Budgeted Expenditures

Personnel Operations Capital Assets Debt Service Transfers

21



 

assistant city attorney.   The employee would continue  to serve a prosecutor, and  then assist  the City 
Manager and City Attorney with workload.  The part‐time accounting technician in Finance will increase 
to full‐time and assist the Management Services Director and Accountant.   
 
There are six position changes included in the budget that address changes in responsibilities and work 
load.  The changes will occur in Finance, Building Maintenance, Community Development, Fleet Services, 
and the Aquatic Center.  All six positions will be filled from within the cities current workforce and do not 
create any new positions.   
 
The City’s salary structure allows up to a 3.5% merit increase for all full‐time employees until they reach 
the maximum pay rate of their position, as appropriate by the City Council.  The part‐time employees are 
also on the same merit schedule based upon the number of hours worked per year.  When possible, the 
City Council has supplemented  the merit program with a cost of  living adjustment  that all employees 
receive.   
 
In FY 2017, the budget includes a 2.5% merit and a 2.0% cost of living adjustment.  The merit is important 
to  employees  because  it  evaluates  their  performance  and  helps  to  put  a  range  between  individuals 
working in the same position.  There are some employees that are at the top of their pay scales who will 
not be receiving the merit.  The cost of living adjustment helps employees keep up with everyday costs, 
rather than grade performance.  If COLA’s alone are provided to employees, issues arise where employees 
don’t move off entry level pay and an employee with several years of service makes the same as a new 
employee.  This has become an issue within the City and competitively with other cities.   
 
The  City  Council  is  determined  to work  towards  correcting  the  internal  problem  of  correctly  placing 
employees within their pay scales based upon years of service with the City.  The budget includes directing 
that a salary survey be performed, along with an evaluation of employee placement within their pay scale.   
The problem cannot be fully addressed in FY 2017, but is scheduled to be evaluated for the next few years 
until  complete.   A  portion  of  the  proposed  tax  increase will  begin  to  fund  the  proposed  changes  in 
employee wages. 
  
Benefits 
 
The City was very fortunate last year and did not have an increase in health insurance premiums.   This 
year the increase is 5.42%.  In order to achieve drop the increase from the original 10%, modifications had 
to be made.  The individual and family deductible was raised, and a co‐pay was placed on prescriptions.  
The prescription deductible is waived for generic brands. 
 
The Administration has begun to look at options for health insurance and decrease costs in the future.  
One  option  is  to  add  a  high  deductible HSA.   Many  companies  are  switching  to HSA‘s  to  offset  the 
increasing cost of health care premiums.  The City will be looking at these options in FY 2018.  The City is 
not looking to completely switch to the HSA, but rather add it as an option for analysis.    
 
For the first time in a number of years, there are no increases to pension rates paid to the Utah Retirement 
System.  This means that much of the losses incurred by URS over the recession are being recouped.  This 
is due to the rate increase over the last few years and investment earnings being higher.  The rate for the 
Firefighter’s System decreased .10%.   
 
Wage Reimbursement 

22



 

The Water and Sewer, Storm Water, and Solid Waste Utility Enterprise Funds reimburse the General Fund 
for  salaries  and  expenditures  of  employees  that  assist  with  the  respective  operations.    The 
reimbursements are reflected in the individual department budgets.  The total reimbursements budgeted 
for  FY  2017  are  $760,124  and  cover  employees  in  the  Legislative,  Legal,  Finance,  and  Public Works 
departments.   
 
The Police and Fire Departments also receive reimbursements from granting agencies or under ongoing 
service contracts.  The total budget for public safety wage reimbursement is $51,200.   
 
Operations 
 
Operationally, the FY 2017 budget contains no significant changes in approach.  There are five areas that 
can be highlighted: 
 

 The local option sales tax approved by voters in Weber County is estimated to bring $393,000 to 
Roy City.  A new fund known as the Transportation Infrastructure Fund has been created.  Since 
the  revenue will come  through Weber County,  the  revenue  is  reflected as contributions  from 
other governments.  The project is expected to include a road, curb, gutter, and sidewalk on 4975 
South from 1900 W to 1950 W. 

 

 With the change in the dumpster program, employee reimbursement that was received by the 
General Fund will be reduced.   This  is because the amount of time spent by employees on the 
dumpsters will be significantly less with the clean‐up.  The budget for personnel, including over‐
time has been adjusted in the various departments that provide manpower to the program. 
 

 The interdepartmental funding to reimburse the General Fund for employee wages was reviewed.  
It was determined that the Storm Water Utility Enterprise Fund was not providing funding for 
some positions  such as  the Public Works Director, and billing and collections personnel.   This 
additional inflow into the General Fund will offset some of the loss of funding from the dumpster 
program. 
 

 Finally, Roy Days will now be tracked in a separate division.  This will enable the City to see what 
costs and revenues are coming in on the annual event.  Roy Days has been budgeted with $60,000, 
exclusive of over‐time.  The bulk of the funding, $50,000 will be for the final costs of the activities, 
while  $10,000 will  be  used  in  early  summer  to  fund  deposits,  advertising,  and  costs which 
normally occur in May and June for August’s activities.   
 

 Class C Road funding will increase by $245,000.  This is due to the new method of calculating the 
tax, which was  also  approved by  the  2015 Utah  Legislature,  and  implemented  in 2016.    The 
additional funding will be used to expand the maintenance of the City’s road system, and to set 
aside funding for major projects.  At this time, no major projects are being proposed. 

 
Departments 
 
General government: 
   

23



 

Legislative 
FY 2106
Budget  Change 

FY 2017 
Proposed 

Personnel and benefits   $285,077 ($16,278) $268,799 

Operations  175,450 (73,125) 102,325 

Capital    0   0    0 

     Total  $460,527 ($89,403) $371,124 

 
Prior year comparison with proposed budget: 

 One part‐time clerical position was moved  into  the Legal Department  to better  reflect overall 
tasks and supervision 

 No election in FY 2017 

 Roy Days moved to a separate division 
 

Legal 
FY 2106
Budget  Change 

FY 2017 
Proposed 

Personnel and benefits   $183,506 $84,328 $267,834 

Operations  36,625 (4,400) 32,225 

Capital    0   0    0 

     Total  $220,131 $79,928 $300,059 

 
Prior year comparison with proposed budget: 

 One part‐time  clerical position was moved  from  the  Legislative Department  to better  reflect 
overall tasks and supervision 

 Part‐time Prosecutor to full‐time Assistant City Attorney; partial funding being received from the 
Utility Funds 

 

Justice Court 
FY 2106
Budget  Change 

FY 2017 
Proposed 

Personnel and benefits   $335,909 $15,813 $351,722 

Operations  31,000   0 31,000 

Capital    0 13,055 13,055 

     Total  $366,909 $28,868 $395,777 

 
Prior year comparison with proposed budget: 

 Increased over‐time to handle the backlog of old cases 
 

Finance 
FY 2106
Budget  Change 

FY 2017 
Proposed 

Personnel and benefits   $434,151 ($1,416) $432,735 

Operations  34,175 825 35,000 

Capital    0   0    0 

     Total  $468,326 ($   591) $467,735 

 

24



 

Prior year comparison with proposed budget: 

 Personnel costs reduced due to a retirement 

 Part‐time Accounting Technician position  increased  to  full‐time; partial  funding being received 
from the Utility Funds 

 Enhancement of two positions to better reflect overall depth of responsibilities and workload 
 

Building Maintenance 
FY 2106
Budget  Change 

FY 2017 
Proposed 

Personnel and benefits   $248,527 $  16,180 $264,707 

Operations  344,090 2,000 346,090 

Capital  20,300 149,700 170,000 

     Total  $612,917 $167,880 $780,797 

 
Prior year comparison with proposed budget: 

 Enhancement to position to better reflect overall depth of responsibilities and workload 

 Capital requests change annually 
 

Community Development 
FY 2106
Budget  Change 

FY 2017 
Proposed 

Personnel and benefits   $310,643 ($   179) $310,464 

Operations  48,800 7,810 56,610 

Capital  4,000 26,000 30,000 

     Total  $363,443 $33,631 $397,074 

 
Prior year comparison with proposed budget: 

 Enhancement to position to better reflect overall depth or responsibilities and workload 

 Increase in engineering costs 

 Capital requests change annually 
 
Public Safety: 
 

Police & Animal Services 
FY 2106
Budget  Change 

FY 2017 
Proposed 

Personnel and benefits   $3,932,494 $184,606 $4,117,100 

Operations  486,391 (26,718) 459,673 

Capital  223,100 (38,100) 185,000 

     Total  $4,641,985 $119,788 $4,761,773 

 
Prior year comparison with proposed budget: 

 Full  year of  the police officer  salary  structure  change; Roy Days overtime moved  to  separate 
department 

 Changes in grant funding  

 Capital requests change annually 
 

25



 

Fire & Rescue 
FY 2106
Budget  Change 

FY 2017 
Proposed 

Personnel and benefits   $3,098,756 $183,243 $3,281,999 

Operations  469,274 6,161 475,435 

Capital  3,500 (3,500)    0 

     Total  $3,571,530 $185,904 $3,757,434 

 
Prior year comparison with proposed budget: 

 Four full‐time firefighter positions added to replace part‐time slots; engineering positions added 

 Vehicle maintenance include work on pump and foam units on brush trucks 

 Capital requests change annually 
 
Public Works: 
 

Streets Division 
FY 2106
Budget  Change 

FY 2017 
Proposed 

Personnel and benefits   $552,219 $15,867 $568,086 

Operations  112,825 4,450 117,275 

Capital    0 250,000 250,000 

     Total  $665,044 $270,317 $935,361 

 
Prior year comparison with proposed budget: 

 Changes from dumpster program to clean‐up for over‐time and interdepartment reimbursement; 
Roy Days overtime moved to a separate department 

 Enhancement to training 

 Capital requests change annually 
 

Class C Roads 
FY 2106
Budget  Change 

FY 2017 
Proposed 

Operations & maintenance  $1,009,384 $         616 $1,010,000 

Projects  460,000 (420,000) 40,000 

Equipment  53,616 61,702 115,318 

     Total  $1,523,000 ($357,682) $1,165,318 

 
Prior year comparison with proposed budget: 

 Projects and equipment requests change annually 
 

Transportation 
Infrastructure 

FY 2106
Budget  Change 

FY 2017 
Proposed 

Operations & maintenance  $   0 $            0 $            0 

Projects    0 393,000 393,000 

Equipment    0   0    0 

     Total  $   0 $393,000 $393,000 

26



 

Prior year comparison with proposed budget: 

 New fund to track local option sales tax to be received from Weber County  

 Projects and equipment requests change annually 
 

Fleet Division 
FY 2106
Budget  Change 

FY 2017 
Proposed 

Personnel and benefits   $122,318 $23,489 $145,807 

Operations  29,750 1,500 31,250 

Capital  8,000 (8,000)    0 

     Total  $160,068 $16,989 $177,057 

 
Prior year comparison with proposed budget: 

 The Fleet Supervisor was added back in 2016; 2017 has a full year with the position 

 Enhancement of a position to better reflect overall depth of responsibilities and workload 

 Capital requests change annually 
 

Public Works 
Administration 

FY 2106
Budget  Change 

FY 2017 
Proposed 

Personnel and benefits   $106,999 $  5,369 $112,368 

Operations  57,800 5,200 63,000 

Capital    0 5,690 5,690 

     Total  $164,799 $16,259 $181,058 

 
Prior year comparison with proposed budget: 

 Increased interdepartment reimbursement for Director from Storm Water Utility Enterprise Fund 
and from Solid Waste Utility Enterprise Fund for staffing the clean‐up; Roy Days over‐time moved 
to separate department 

 Enhancement to training 

 Capital requests change annually 
 
Parks and Recreation and Recreational Facilities: 
 

Recreation Complex 
FY 2106
Budget  Change 

FY 2017 
Proposed 

Personnel and benefits   $612,355 $37,880 $650,235 

Operations  193,055 (3,655) 189,400 

Capital  114,700 2,600 117,300 

     Total  $920,110 $36,825 $956,935 

 
Prior year comparison with proposed budget: 

 Reduce over‐time 

 Maintenance in men’s and women’s locker rooms 

 Advertising for the facility 

 Enhancement to training 

27



 

 Capital requests change annually 
 

Aquatic Center 
FY 2106
Budget  Change 

FY 2017 
Proposed 

Personnel and benefits   $270,914 $  9,538 $280,452 

Operations  252,030 (12,300) 239,730 

Capital  2,500 (2,500)    0 

     Total  $525,444 ($ 5,262) $520,182 

 
Prior year comparison with proposed budget: 

 Enhancement of a position to better reflect overall depth of responsibilities and workload 

 Larger maintenance items completed 
 

Roy Days 
FY 2106
Budget  Change 

FY 2017 
Proposed 

Personnel and benefits   $   0 $33,493 $33,493 

Operations    0 60,000 60,000 

Event fees    0 (5,000) (5,000) 

     Total  $   0 $88,493 $88,493 

 
Prior year comparison with proposed budget: 

 Roy Days moved to separate division 
 

Parks & Recreation 
FY 2106
Budget  Change 

FY 2017 
Proposed 

Personnel and benefits   $   807,244 ($  2,437) $   804,807 

Operations  245,941 5,359 251,300 

Capital  74,383 329,217 403,600 

     Total  $1,127,568 $332,139 $1,459,707 

 
Prior year comparison with proposed budget: 

 Over‐time for Roy Days moved to separate division 

 One‐time maintenance items completed 

 Increase in railroad property lease 

 Replace/refurbish football helmets 

 Capital requests change annually 
 
Debt Service 
 
The bond on the Municipal Building remodel continues through October 2017.  Total principal and interest 
payments are $118,439.   
 

28



 

The  General  Fund  will  receive  $30,000  from  the  Redevelopment  Agency  for  costs  incurred  from 
improvements to the City Centre Project Area.  The $30,000 will in turn be paid to the Water and Sewer 
Utility Enterprise Fund to repay the loan for the installation work. 
 
Capital Assets 
 
The follow capital assets are  included  in the FY 2017 budget for the General Fund, Class C Roads, and 
Transportation Infrastructure.  Requests were higher than current revenue streams allowed.  As a result, 
a property tax increase is being proposed to help fund necessary capital assets. 
 

Description 
 

Amount 

Repair sound system in Council/Court Room  $    13,055 

Reroof Public Works building  130,000 

Utility truck ‐ Maintenance  40,000 

Police vehicle rotation  185,000 

Truck for Building Official  30,000 

Halverne CDBG project  250,000 

Street project 4975 S 1900‐1950 W  393,000 

Halverne CDBG project match  40,000 

Case backhoe (share w/ Water)  12,800 

12’ snowplow and hitch  19,000 

Spreader/salter  21,000 

Salter/spreader  9,000 

1 ton truck with bed and plow  53,518 

Office copier – Public Works  5,690 

Replace basketball court ‐ Complex  95,000 

Carpet – Complex  6,300 

Pool heater – Complex  16,000 

60” trim mower  10,000 

16’ mower  91,500 

Carpet – Recreation building  4,100 

Field lights for George Wahlen North Park (RAMP)  155,000 

Pavilion cover George Wahlen North Park (RAMP)  108,000 

RAMP grant (population)  35,000 

Set aside for five year capital plan; debt structuring;   

  Infrastructure; large apparatus  800,000 

  $2,522,963 

 
Transfers 
 
The budget includes transferring $188,500 of property tax increment to the Capital Projects Fund.  This is 
the portion of  funds estimated  to have become available by  the 2005  tax  increase  for  fire apparatus.  
$18,000 of the tax increase will remain in the General Fund to pay for maintenance on the pumper trucks.   
In addition to the tax increment, $15,000 of ambulance receipts will be transferred to the Capital Projects 
Fund to allow for replacement of ambulances on a three year rotation rather than a four year rotation.  
This is due to the increased used by the transport contracts.  

29



 

 
This  year,  the $71,525 normally  transferred  for  recreational  facility  improvements will  remain  in  the 
General Fund to replace the floor at the Recreation Complex.  The remainder of the tax increase will stay 
in the General Fund for retirement of debt related to the Municipal Building Remodel.   
 
The  Information  Technology  and  Risk  Management  Funds  provide  services  to  the  various  City 
departments.  The General and Utility Enterprise Funds transfer monies for the cost of operations.  For FY 
2017,  the General Fund will  transfer $307,095 and $203,210  to  the  Information Technology and Risk 
Management Funds, respectively. 
   

30



Roy City Corporation FY 2017 Preliminary Budget 

Tab – G
eneral Fund Revenues   

General Fund – Revenues  

 

 

 

 

 

IN THIS SECTION: 

 Tax 

 Licenses and Permits 

 Intergovernmental 

 Charges for Services 

 Fines and Forfeitures 

 Miscellaneous 

 Contributions and Transfers 

 Class C Roads 

 Transportation Infrastructure

31



ROY CITY CORPORATION ROY CITY CORPORATION FY 2017 PRELIMINARY BUDGET

Period: 00/16

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 Adjustments 2016-17 FY 2017

Prior Year Current Year Requested To Requested Recommended Budget vs.

Acct No Acct Title Actual Modified Budget Budget Budget Budget FY 2016

10-31-100 GENERAL PROPERTY TAXES 2,554,277.32 2,545,000.00 2,600,000.00 1,156,568.00 3,756,568.00 1,211,568.00

10-31-200 DELINQUENT PRIOR YEAR TAXES 83,390.59 50,000.00 75,000.00 .00 75,000.00 25,000.00

10-31-300 GENERAL SALES & USE TAXES 4,689,836.89 4,819,424.00 4,975,000.00 .00 4,975,000.00 155,576.00

10-31-301 LOCAL OPTION SALES TAX .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-31-385 TELECOM GROSS RECEIPTS 4% T 398,043.32 366,000.00 380,000.00 .00 380,000.00 14,000.00

10-31-390 PACIFICORP FRANCHISE TAX 969,470.91 1,050,000.00 1,000,000.00 .00 1,000,000.00 (        50,000.00)

10-31-395 QUESTAR FRANCHISE TAX 517,347.09 550,000.00 530,000.00 .00 530,000.00 (        20,000.00)

10-31-400 QWEST CORP. FRANCHISE TAX .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-31-405 911 TAX .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-31-410 COMCAST (AT&T) FRANCHISE TAX 221,438.22 220,000.00 235,000.00 .00 235,000.00 15,000.00

10-31-411 U.E. FUND FRANCHISE TAX 492,780.81 527,155.00 532,320.00 32,773.00 565,093.00 37,938.00

10-31-415 CELL PHONE TAX .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-31-420 FRANCHISE TAXES - OTHER .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-31-500 WEBER COUNTY PARAMEDIC CON 334,995.99 320,000.00 320,000.00 .00 320,000.00 .00

10-31-700 MOTOR VEHICLE FEES 308,785.64 320,000.00 310,000.00 .00 310,000.00 (        10,000.00)

Total TAXES: 10,570,366.78 10,767,579.00 10,957,320.00 1,189,341.00 12,146,661.00 1,379,082.00

10-32-100 BUSINESS LICENSES 170,131.15 190,000.00 160,000.00 .00 160,000.00 (        30,000.00)

10-32-110 BUSINESS LICENSE - LATE FEE 4,596.75 4,000.00 4,500.00 .00 4,500.00 500.00

10-32-120 FIRE INSPECTION FEE 12,545.00 12,000.00 12,000.00 .00 12,000.00 .00

10-32-200 MECHANICAL FEES 1,063.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .00 1,000.00 .00

10-32-210 BUILDING PERMITS 137,044.60 100,000.00 75,000.00 .00 75,000.00 (        25,000.00)

10-32-211 FENCE PERMITS .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-32-212 SIGN PERMITS .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-32-213 RESTORABLE VEHICLE PERMITS 100.00 .00 100.00 .00 100.00 100.00

10-32-220 STATE TRAINING SURCHARGE - 1 277.77 200.00 100.00 .00 100.00 (             100.00)

10-32-230 ELECTRICAL FEES 820.50 1,000.00 1,000.00 .00 1,000.00 .00

10-32-240 PLUMBING FEES 427.50 500.00 500.00 .00 500.00 .00

10-32-250 ANIMAL LICENSES 53,175.00 50,000.00 50,000.00 .00 50,000.00 .00

10-32-260 IMPOUND FEES - OUTSIDE SHELT .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-32-265 BOARDING & OTHER FEES - CITY 50.00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-32-270 CAT LICENSES 2,092.00 1,500.00 2,000.00 .00 2,000.00 500.00

Total LICENSES AND PERMITS: 382,323.27 360,200.00 306,200.00 .00 306,200.00 (        54,000.00)

10-33-110 FEDERAL GRANT - GENERAL GOV' .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-33-190 C.D.B.G. REVENUE .00 .00 250,000.00 .00 250,000.00 250,000.00

10-33-191 CDBG - PRIOR YEAR .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-33-560 BOYS & GIRLS CLUB flow through .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-33-570 COPS FAST GRANT .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-33-571 FEDERAL BJA BLOCK GRANT .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-33-572 CRIME SCENE INVESTIGATION GR .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-33-573 JUSTICE ASSISTANCE GRANT (JAG) .00 5,812.00 .00 .00 .00 (          5,812.00)

10-33-574 STRATEGIC PLANNING GRANT .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-33-575 W. C. POLICE HIRING SUPPLEMEN 92,062.52 101,937.50 101,900.00 .00 101,900.00 (                37.50)

10-33-576 POLICE RISE-UP GRANT .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-33-579 MISC POLICE GRANTS 7,020.74 10,000.00 .00 .00 .00 (        10,000.00)

10-33-580 STATE LIQUOR LAW ALLOTMENT 40,334.76 40,756.00 40,500.00 .00 40,500.00 (             256.00)

10-33-590 STATE REVENUE - OTHER 17,266.60 19,976.00 15,650.00 .00 15,650.00 (          4,326.00)

10-33-610 EMS GRANT - FIRE DEPT. 6,664.00 5,139.00 .00 .00 .00 (          5,139.00)

32



ROY CITY CORPORATION ROY CITY CORPORATION FY 2017 PRELIMINARY BUDGET

Period: 00/16

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 Adjustments 2016-17 FY 2017

Prior Year Current Year Requested To Requested Recommended Budget vs.

Acct No Acct Title Actual Modified Budget Budget Budget Budget FY 2016

10-33-615 FIRE GRANT - FEMA & FEDERAL 87,867.00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-33-631 FIRE DEPART. GRANTS - MISC. .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-33-701 GRANTS FROM LOCAL SOURCES .00 .00 .00 6,363.00 6,363.00 6,363.00

10-33-702 RAMP GRANT 8,885.77 36,884.00 35,000.00 263,000.00 298,000.00 261,116.00

Total INTERGOVERNMENTAL: 260,101.39 220,504.50 443,050.00 269,363.00 712,413.00 491,908.50

10-34-110 CIRCUIT COURT REIMB TO ROY CIT .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-34-120 LEGAL FEES 1,724.44 2,000.00 2,000.00 .00 2,000.00 .00

10-34-121 COLLECTION FEES 345.29 500.00 500.00 .00 500.00 .00

10-34-130 ZONING AND SUBDIVISION FEE 5,450.00 5,500.00 3,000.00 .00 3,000.00 (          2,500.00)

10-34-140 ANNEXATION/IMPACT FEE .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-34-160 STREET SIGN FEES .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-34-170 PLAN CHECK FEES 62,428.87 25,000.00 25,000.00 .00 25,000.00 .00

10-34-175 INSPECTION/REINSPECTION FEES 5,050.66 5,000.00 5,000.00 .00 5,000.00 .00

10-34-560 AMBULANCE FEES 1,342,577.25 1,350,000.00 1,350,000.00 .00 1,350,000.00 .00

10-34-561 FIRE & RESCUE IASIS TRANSP/HA 231,476.04 200,000.00 210,000.00 .00 210,000.00 10,000.00

10-34-570 FEES TO DEVELOPERS 3,875.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .00 1,000.00 .00

10-34-580 POLICE REPORT FEES 16,745.00 15,000.00 15,000.00 .00 15,000.00 .00

10-34-581 TRAFFIC SCHOOL FEE (gen fund) 5,912.50 6,000.00 6,000.00 .00 6,000.00 .00

10-34-582 TRAFFIC SCHOOL FEE (police) 5,912.50 6,000.00 6,000.00 .00 6,000.00 .00

10-34-583 YOUTH COURT FINES 540.00 500.00 500.00 .00 500.00 .00

10-34-584 PUBLIC SAFETY DISPATCH FEE 70.00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-34-585 CODE ENFORCEMENT FINES 4,100.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .00 1,000.00 .00

10-34-590 PARKING VIOLATIONS 4,317.66 7,000.00 5,000.00 .00 5,000.00 (          2,000.00)

10-34-600 PARKS AND PUBLIC PROPERTY 4,495.00 8,000.00 5,000.00 .00 5,000.00 (          3,000.00)

10-34-601 PARK FEES - SOCCER .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-34-620 AQUATIC CENTER - ADMISSIONS 344,754.50 340,000.00 340,000.00 .00 340,000.00 .00

10-34-630 AQUATIC CENTER - CONCESSIONS 87,133.25 85,000.00 85,000.00 .00 85,000.00 .00

10-34-640 AQUATIC CENTER - SALES TAX .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-34-650 AQUATIC CENTER - PUNCH PASSE 45.00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-34-670 AQUATIC CENTER - RENTAL FEES 43,585.50 40,000.00 44,000.00 .00 44,000.00 4,000.00

10-34-678 APPAREL SALES AND FUND RAISE 395.00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-34-679 RECREATION - ADULT PROGRAM 21,516.00 24,000.00 24,000.00 .00 24,000.00 .00

10-34-680 RECREATION - MISCELLANEOUS .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-34-681 RECREATION - BASEBALL 7,554.21 8,000.00 8,000.00 .00 8,000.00 .00

10-34-682 RECREATION - SOFTBALL 5,216.59 4,000.00 4,000.00 .00 4,000.00 .00

10-34-683 RECREATION - T BALL 16,309.70 15,000.00 15,000.00 .00 15,000.00 .00

10-34-684 RECREATION - FLAG FOOTBALL .00 2,240.00 4,300.00 .00 4,300.00 2,060.00

10-34-685 RECREATION - FOOTBALL 13,938.14 16,000.00 16,000.00 .00 16,000.00 .00

10-34-686 RECREATION - BOYS BASKETBALL 24,653.50 22,000.00 24,000.00 .00 24,000.00 2,000.00

10-34-687 RECREATION - GIRLS BASKETBALL 6,406.50 6,500.00 6,500.00 .00 6,500.00 .00

10-34-688 RECREATION - BLDG & FIELD REN 21,809.93 13,275.00 18,000.00 .00 18,000.00 4,725.00

10-34-689 RECREATION - CONCESSIONS .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-34-690 COMPLEX - ADMISSIONS 99,520.95 100,000.00 100,000.00 .00 100,000.00 .00

10-34-700 COMPLEX - RETAIL SALES 21,307.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 .00 20,000.00 .00

10-34-710 COMPLEX - SALES TAX .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-34-720 COMPLEX - MEMBERSHIP FEES 89,686.05 90,000.00 90,000.00 .00 90,000.00 .00

10-34-730 COMPLEX - CLASSES & LESSONS 101,912.00 85,000.00 100,000.00 .00 100,000.00 15,000.00

10-34-740 COMPLEX - RENTAL FEES 8,301.75 10,000.00 10,000.00 .00 10,000.00 .00

10-34-810 CEMETERY LOTS - 80% 380.00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-34-830 GRAVE OPENING FEES 18,650.00 15,000.00 15,000.00 .00 15,000.00 .00

Total CHARGES FOR SERVICES: 2,628,095.78 2,528,515.00 2,558,800.00 .00 2,558,800.00 30,285.00

33



ROY CITY CORPORATION ROY CITY CORPORATION FY 2017 PRELIMINARY BUDGET

Period: 00/16

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 Adjustments 2016-17 FY 2017

Prior Year Current Year Requested To Requested Recommended Budget vs.

Acct No Acct Title Actual Modified Budget Budget Budget Budget FY 2016

FINES AND FORFEITURES

10-35-100 FINES & FORFEITURES - DISTRICT .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-35-110 W/C FORFEITURE SHARE - SEIZUR .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-35-115 J/C - SMALL CLAIMS 44,954.00 45,000.00 40,000.00 .00 40,000.00 (          5,000.00)

10-35-120 JUSTICE COURT FINES 565,994.38 525,000.00 550,000.00 .00 550,000.00 25,000.00

10-35-121 JUSTICE COURT FINES - WEBER C 158,095.84 175,000.00 175,000.00 .00 175,000.00 .00

10-35-125 J/C - PUBLIC DEFENDER'S ASSMN 5,173.08 4,000.00 4,000.00 .00 4,000.00 .00

10-35-130 J/C - ONLINE FEES .00 5,400.00 5,000.00 .00 5,000.00 (             400.00)

Total FINES AND FORFEITURES: 774,217.30 754,400.00 774,000.00 .00 774,000.00 19,600.00

10-36-100 INTEREST EARNED 66,905.18 85,000.00 75,000.00 .00 75,000.00 (        10,000.00)

10-36-300 FACILITY RENTAL FEE 11,414.34 15,000.00 13,000.00 .00 13,000.00 (          2,000.00)

10-36-310 OTHER LEASE REVENUE 5,435.88 2,500.00 2,500.00 .00 2,500.00 .00

10-36-311 AT&T TOWER LEASE 12,960.00 13,000.00 13,000.00 .00 13,000.00 .00

10-36-400 SALE OF FIXED ASSETS 223,449.70 10,000.00 10,000.00 .00 10,000.00 .00

10-36-410 INVESTMENT EARNINGS .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-36-420 SALE OF REAL PROPERTY .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-36-425 SALE OF POLICE EVIDENCE .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-36-500 SALE OF MATERIAL & SUPPLIES .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-36-800 OTHER FINANCING SOURCES - C/L .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-36-810 PROCEEDS FROM ISSUANCE OF B .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-36-811 PROCEEDS FROM ISSUANCE OF B .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-36-815 PROCEEDS FROM REFUNDING BO .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-36-890 GAIN (LOSS) ON DEBT DEFEASAN .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-36-900 OTHER REVENUE - NOT IDENTIFIE 30,662.64 25,000.00 20,000.00 .00 20,000.00 (          5,000.00)

Total MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE: 350,827.74 150,500.00 133,500.00 .00 133,500.00 (        17,000.00)

10-38-165 TRANSFER - U.E. FUND INTERDEP .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-38-250 RDA MANAGEMENT FEE 132,000.00 130,000.00 132,300.00 .00 132,300.00 2,300.00

10-38-360 CONTRIBUTION FROM PARK DEVE .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-38-410 CONTRIBUTION - OTHER GVT UNIT 455,714.00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-38-420 INSURANCE REVOLVING TRANSFE .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-38-421 CLASS "C" ROAD TRANSFER .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-38-422 CAPITAL PROJECT FUND RES EQ T .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-38-423 DEBT SERVICE TRANSFER .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-38-500 CONTR. CLASS 'C' SURPLUS .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-38-505 TRANSFER FROM RDA 172,700.00 30,000.00 30,000.00 .00 30,000.00 .00

10-38-700 CONTR GENERAL FUND SURPLUS .00 208,894.46 1,616,207.00 (     897,203.00) 719,004.00 510,109.54

10-38-701 PRIVATE CONTRIBUTIONS "DARE" .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-38-702 PRIVATE CONTRIBUTION - ROY DA 100.00 .00 .00 10,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00

10-38-710 NON-EMPLOYER R/P CONTRIBUTI .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

Total CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS: 760,514.00 368,894.46 1,778,507.00 (     887,203.00) 891,304.00 522,409.54

Net Total GENERAL FUND: 15,726,446.26 15,150,592.96 16,951,377.00 571,501.00 17,522,878.00 2,372,285.04

34



ROY CITY CORPORATION ROY CITY CORPORATION FY 2017 PRELIMINARY BUDGET

Period: 00/16

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 Adjustments 2016-17 FY 2017

Prior Year Current Year Requested To Requested Recommended Budget vs.

Acct No Acct Title Actual Modified Budget Budget Budget Budget FY 2016

64-33-100 CLASS C ROAD ALLOTMENT 1,105,099.26 1,050,000.00 1,295,000.00 .00 1,295,000.00 245,000.00

64-33-101 LOCAL OPTION SALES TAX .00 .00 393,000.00 (     393,000.00) .00 .00

Total INTERGOVERNMENTAL: 1,105,099.26 1,050,000.00 1,688,000.00 (     393,000.00) 1,295,000.00 245,000.00

64-34-310 STREET CUT FEES 5,980.25 5,000.00 .00 .00 .00 (          5,000.00)

64-34-320 CHIP & SEAL, RESTRICTED .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

Total CHARGES FOR SERVICES: 5,980.25 5,000.00 .00 .00 .00 (          5,000.00)

64-36-100 INTEREST EARNINGS 9,583.52 8,000.00 13,000.00 .00 13,000.00 5,000.00

64-36-900 OTHER REVENUE - NOT IDENTIFIE .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

Total MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE: 9,583.52 8,000.00 13,000.00 .00 13,000.00 5,000.00

64-38-700 CONTRIBUTION FROM FUND BALA .00 400,000.00 .00 .00 .00 (     400,000.00)

64-38-702 CONTRIBUTION - PROPERTY OWN .00 60,000.00 .00 .00 .00 (        60,000.00)

Total CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS: .00 460,000.00 .00 .00 .00 (     460,000.00)

Net Total CLASS "C" ROADS: 1,120,663.03 1,523,000.00 1,701,000.00 (     393,000.00) 1,308,000.00 (     215,000.00)

35



ROY CITY CORPORATION ROY CITY CORPORATION FY 2017 PRELIMINARY BUDGET

Period: 00/16

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 Adjustments 2016-17 FY 2017

Prior Year Current Year Requested To Requested Recommended Budget vs.

Acct No Acct Title Actual Modified Budget Budget Budget Budget FY 2016

65-33-100 LOCAL OPTION SALES TAX (.25%) .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

Total INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUE: .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

65-36-900 OTHER REVENUE - NOT IDENTIFIE .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

Total MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE: .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

65-38-400 CONTRIB FROM OTHER GOV'T UNI .00 .00 .00 393,000.00 393,000.00 393,000.00

65-38-700 CONTRIBUTION FROM FUND BALA .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

Total CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS: .00 .00 .00 393,000.00 393,000.00 393,000.00

Net Total TRANSPORTATION INFRASTRUCTURE: .00 .00 .00 393,000.00 393,000.00 393,000.00

Net Grand Totals: 16,847,109.29 16,673,592.96 18,652,377.00 571,501.00 19,223,878.00 2,550,285.04

36



General Fund - Expenditures 

Roy City Corporation FY 2017 Preliminary Budget 

Tab – G
eneral Fund Expenditures 

 

 

 

 

 

 

IN THIS SECTION: 

 Legislative 

 Legal 

 Justice Court 

 Finance 

 Transfer to Risk Management, Information Technology,  
  and Capital Projects 

 Building Maintenance 

 Police and Animal Services 

 Fire and Rescue 

 Community Development 

 Streets 

 Fleet 

 Public Works Administration 

 Recreation Complex 

 Aquatic Center 

 Roy Days 

 Parks and Recreation 

 Debt Service 

 Class C Roads 

 Transportation Infrastructure 

37



ROY CITY CORPORATION ROY CITY CORPORATION FY 2017 PRELIMINARY BUDGET

Period: 00/16

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 Adjustments 2016-17 FY 2017

Prior Year Current Year Requested To Requested Recommended Budget vs.

Acct No Acct Title Actual Modified Budget Budget Budget Budget FY 2016

10-41-090 EMPLOYEE WAGE REIMBURSEME (     58,025.00) (        64,016.00) (        59,869.00) (             840.00) (        60,709.00) 3,307.00

10-41-100 OVERTIME 1,043.96 500.00 500.00 .00 500.00 .00

10-41-110 PERMANENT EMPLOYEES WAGES 341,147.12 228,873.00 232,332.00 3,337.00 235,669.00 6,796.00

10-41-120 PART-TIME/TEMPORARY WAGES 24,619.85 27,470.00 .00 .00 .00 (        27,470.00)

10-41-130 F.I.C.A. 21,707.11 19,646.00 17,810.00 255.00 18,065.00 (          1,581.00)

10-41-140 RETIREMENT 46,849.25 52,697.00 53,418.00 752.00 54,170.00 1,473.00

10-41-150 INSURANCE 13,831.55 16,269.00 17,636.00 (             850.00) 16,786.00 517.00

10-41-160 WORKMENS COMPENSATION 5,127.24 3,488.00 4,163.00 55.00 4,218.00 730.00

10-41-170 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION .00 150.00 100.00 .00 100.00 (                50.00)

10-41-190 TRANSPORATION ALLOWANCE .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-41-210 BOOKS, SUBSCRIP., MEMBERSHI 21,772.16 22,850.00 21,850.00 1,000.00 22,850.00 .00

10-41-220 PUBLIC NOTICES 6,150.83 8,000.00 8,000.00 .00 8,000.00 .00

10-41-230 TRAVEL/TRAINING EXPENSE 5,852.31 12,700.00 12,700.00 .00 12,700.00 .00

10-41-240 OFFICE SUPPLIES AND EXPENSE 2,308.52 3,000.00 3,000.00 .00 3,000.00 .00

10-41-250 EQUIPMENT, SUPPLIES & MAINT 5,695.50 1,500.00 2,475.00 .00 2,475.00 975.00

10-41-280 TELEPHONE EXPENSE 2,285.09 2,000.00 2,000.00 .00 2,000.00 .00

10-41-310 PROFESSIONAL & TECHNICAL SVC 5,162.51 18,800.00 6,300.00 1,700.00 8,000.00 (        10,800.00)

10-41-380 ELECTION EXPENSE .00 17,000.00 .00 .00 .00 (        17,000.00)

10-41-420 FUEL 3,141.65 4,000.00 4,000.00 .00 4,000.00 .00

10-41-430 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 1,928.20 2,500.00 2,500.00 .00 2,500.00 .00

10-41-600 COMMUNITY ACTIVITIES 36,942.47 46,000.00 60,000.00 (        59,000.00) 1,000.00 (        45,000.00)

10-41-601 COMMUNITY ACTY - CONTRIBUTIO .00 .00 (        15,000.00) 15,000.00 .00 .00

10-41-605 BOYS & GIRLS CLUB ALLOCATION .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-41-610 EMPLOYEE PROGRAMS 16,040.41 22,100.00 20,800.00 .00 20,800.00 (          1,300.00)

10-41-615 EDUCATIONAL ASSISTANCE .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-41-620 SUNDRY CHARGES .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-41-630 PROMOTION OF CITY .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-41-640 COUNCIL CONTINGENCY 20,356.53 15,000.00 16,000.00 (          1,000.00) 15,000.00 .00

10-41-740 CAPITAL ASSETS 5,297.99 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

Total LEGISLATIVE: 529,235.25 460,527.00 410,715.00 (        39,591.00) 371,124.00 (        89,403.00)

10-46-771 CAPITAL - LEGISLATION .00 .00 .00 800,000.00 800,000.00 800,000.00

Total CAPITAL EXPENDITURES: .00 .00 .00 800,000.00 800,000.00 800,000.00

38



ROY CITY CORPORATION ROY CITY CORPORATION FY 2017 PRELIMINARY BUDGET

Period: 00/16

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 Adjustments 2016-17 FY 2017

Prior Year Current Year Requested To Requested Recommended Budget vs.

Acct No Acct Title Actual Modified Budget Budget Budget Budget FY 2016

10-42-090 EMPLOYEE WAGE REIMBURSEME (     59,107.00) (        50,423.00) (        38,164.00) (          1,936.00) (        40,100.00) 10,323.00

10-42-100 OVERTIME .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-42-110 PERMANENT EMPLOYEES WAGES 90,548.68 100,527.00 167,414.00 9,994.00 177,408.00 76,881.00

10-42-120 PART-TIME/TEMPORARY WAGES 53,702.42 74,024.00 36,605.00 735.00 37,340.00 (        36,684.00)

10-42-130 F.I.C.A. 11,017.37 13,352.00 15,608.00 819.00 16,427.00 3,075.00

10-42-140 RETIREMENT 21,586.39 24,126.00 35,387.00 3,115.00 38,502.00 14,376.00

10-42-150 INSURANCE 12,032.90 14,376.00 31,198.00 (          1,154.00) 30,044.00 15,668.00

10-42-160 WORKMENS COMPENSATION 2,279.63 3,174.00 3,627.00 186.00 3,813.00 639.00

10-42-170 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION .00 150.00 200.00 .00 200.00 50.00

10-42-190 TRANSPORTATION ALLOWANCE 3,500.00 4,200.00 4,200.00 .00 4,200.00 .00

10-42-210 BOOKS, SUBSCRIP., MEMBERSHI 1,702.01 6,400.00 6,800.00 (          4,800.00) 2,000.00 (          4,400.00)

10-42-230 TRAVEL/TRAINING EXPENSE 3,660.31 4,700.00 4,700.00 .00 4,700.00 .00

10-42-240 OFFICE SUPPLIES & EXPENSE 1,768.04 1,715.00 1,715.00 .00 1,715.00 .00

10-42-250 EQUIPMENT, SUPPLIES & MAINT .00 50.00 50.00 .00 50.00 .00

10-42-280 TELEPHONE EXPENSE 1,039.64 1,460.00 1,460.00 .00 1,460.00 .00

10-42-310 PROFESSIONAL & TECHNICAL SVC 21,286.00 21,600.00 21,600.00 .00 21,600.00 .00

10-42-620 SUNDRY CHARGES .00 700.00 700.00 .00 700.00 .00

10-42-740 CAPITAL ASSETS .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-42-780 DEPRECIATION .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

Total LEGAL: 165,016.39 220,131.00 293,100.00 6,959.00 300,059.00 79,928.00

39



ROY CITY CORPORATION ROY CITY CORPORATION FY 2017 PRELIMINARY BUDGET

Period: 00/16

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 Adjustments 2016-17 FY 2017

Prior Year Current Year Requested To Requested Recommended Budget vs.

Acct No Acct Title Actual Modified Budget Budget Budget Budget FY 2016

10-44-100 OVERTIME 2,599.49 2,000.00 1,000.00 6,500.00 7,500.00 5,500.00

10-44-110 PERMANENT EMPLOYEES WAGES 200,446.51 201,822.00 205,333.00 4,110.00 209,443.00 7,621.00

10-44-120 PART-TIME/TEMPORARY WAGES 16,554.05 19,636.00 20,978.00 (          1,726.00) 19,252.00 (             384.00)

10-44-130 F.I.C.A. 15,718.91 17,095.00 17,390.00 679.00 18,069.00 974.00

10-44-140 RETIREMENT 37,484.35 37,462.00 38,110.00 1,959.00 40,069.00 2,607.00

10-44-150 INSURANCE 55,428.10 55,709.00 57,336.00 (          2,254.00) 55,082.00 (             627.00)

10-44-160 WORKMENS COMPENSATION 1,817.80 1,935.00 2,010.00 47.00 2,057.00 122.00

10-44-170 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION .00 250.00 250.00 .00 250.00 .00

10-44-210 BOOKS, SUBSCRIPTIONS, MEMBE 573.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .00 1,000.00 .00

10-44-230 TRAVEL/TRAINING EXPENSE 4,539.16 4,000.00 5,000.00 .00 5,000.00 1,000.00

10-44-240 OFFICE SUPPLIES & EXPENSE 2,698.96 5,000.00 4,000.00 .00 4,000.00 (          1,000.00)

10-44-250 EQUIPMENT, SUPPLIES, & MAINT 4,974.12 1,000.00 1,000.00 .00 1,000.00 .00

10-44-280 TELEPHONE 867.45 600.00 600.00 .00 600.00 .00

10-44-310 PROFESSIONAL & TECHNICAL SVC 12,079.87 19,400.00 19,400.00 .00 19,400.00 .00

10-44-620 SUNDRY CHARGES (                0.36) .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-44-740 CAPITAL ASSETS .00 .00 .00 13,055.00 13,055.00 13,055.00

10-44-780 DEPRECIATION .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

Total JUSTICE COURT: 355,781.41 366,909.00 373,407.00 22,370.00 395,777.00 28,868.00

40



ROY CITY CORPORATION ROY CITY CORPORATION FY 2017 PRELIMINARY BUDGET

Period: 00/16

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 Adjustments 2016-17 FY 2017

Prior Year Current Year Requested To Requested Recommended Budget vs.

Acct No Acct Title Actual Modified Budget Budget Budget Budget FY 2016

10-45-090 EMPLOYEE WAGE REIMBURSEME (   204,145.00) (     224,515.00) (     250,014.00) (          4,833.00) (     254,847.00) (        30,332.00)

10-45-100 OVERTIME .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .00 1,000.00 .00

10-45-110 PERMANENT EMPLOYEES WAGES 374,265.79 407,411.00 414,622.00 8,690.00 423,312.00 15,901.00

10-45-120 PART-TIME/TEMPORARY WAGES 21,134.91 41,097.00 26,095.00 5,404.00 31,499.00 (          9,598.00)

10-45-130 F.I.C.A. 28,915.38 34,389.00 33,791.00 1,081.00 34,872.00 483.00

10-45-140 RETIREMENT 74,761.02 81,464.00 82,134.00 2,243.00 84,377.00 2,913.00

10-45-150 INSURANCE 73,169.62 86,017.00 108,922.00 (          4,264.00) 104,658.00 18,641.00

10-45-160 WORKMENS COMPENSATION 2,422.11 2,588.00 3,093.00 71.00 3,164.00 576.00

10-45-170 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION .00 500.00 500.00 .00 500.00 .00

10-45-190 TRANSPORATION ALLOWANCE 4,200.00 4,200.00 4,200.00 .00 4,200.00 .00

10-45-210 BOOKS, SUBSCRIP., MEMBERSHI 679.45 925.00 925.00 .00 925.00 .00

10-45-220 PUBLIC NOTICES 6,380.52 6,000.00 6,000.00 .00 6,000.00 .00

10-45-230 TRAVEL/TRAINING EXPENSE 1,294.66 3,500.00 3,500.00 .00 3,500.00 .00

10-45-240 OFFICE SUPPLIES AND EXPENSE 6,141.76 7,000.00 7,000.00 .00 7,000.00 .00

10-45-250 EQUIPMENT, SUPPLIES & MAINT 1,486.65 2,000.00 3,375.00 .00 3,375.00 1,375.00

10-45-280 TELEPHONE EXPENSE 646.23 800.00 800.00 .00 800.00 .00

10-45-310 PROFESSIONAL & TECHNICAL SVC 6,664.92 13,200.00 12,650.00 .00 12,650.00 (             550.00)

10-45-370 CENTRAL STORES .00 250.00 250.00 .00 250.00 .00

10-45-620 SUNDRY CHARGES 117.02 500.00 500.00 .00 500.00 .00

10-45-740 CAPITAL ASSETS 2,564.05 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-45-780 DEPRECIATION .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

Total FINANCE: 400,699.09 468,326.00 459,343.00 8,392.00 467,735.00 (             591.00)

41



ROY CITY CORPORATION ROY CITY CORPORATION FY 2017 PRELIMINARY BUDGET

Period: 00/16

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 Adjustments 2016-17 FY 2017

Prior Year Current Year Requested To Requested Recommended Budget vs.

Acct No Acct Title Actual Modified Budget Budget Budget Budget FY 2016

10-43-510 INSURANCE/SURETY BONDS 216,107.00 213,290.00 203,210.00 .00 203,210.00 (        10,080.00)

Total LIABILITY INSURANCE: 216,107.00 213,290.00 203,210.00 .00 203,210.00 (        10,080.00)

10-50-310 TRANSFER TO INFORMATION TEC 299,267.00 281,297.00 232,240.00 74,855.00 307,095.00 25,798.00

10-50-315 TRANSFER TO U. E. FUND .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-50-325 TRANSFER TO CAPITAL PROJECTS 1,787,031.00 257,025.00 275,025.00 (        89,525.00) 185,500.00 (        71,525.00)

10-50-328 TRANSFER TO PARK DEVELOPME .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-50-330 TRANSFER TO BEAUTIFICATION FU .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-50-331 TRANSFER TO FUND BALANCE .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-50-340 TRANSFER TO RDA .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-50-430 SET ASIDE TO FUND NON-CAP PR .00 .00 .00 356,568.00 356,568.00 356,568.00

Total TRANSFERS: 2,086,298.00 538,322.00 507,265.00 341,898.00 849,163.00 310,841.00

42



ROY CITY CORPORATION ROY CITY CORPORATION FY 2017 PRELIMINARY BUDGET

Period: 00/16

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 Adjustments 2016-17 FY 2017

Prior Year Current Year Requested To Requested Recommended Budget vs.

Acct No Acct Title Actual Modified Budget Budget Budget Budget FY 2016

10-51-090 EMPLOYEE WAGE REIMBURSEME (     49,738.62) (        49,414.00) (        55,079.00) 2,432.00 (        52,647.00) (          3,233.00)

10-51-100 OVERTIME 10,590.07 7,000.00 11,000.00 (          4,000.00) 7,000.00 .00

10-51-110 PERMANENT EMPLOYEES WAGES 220,547.60 167,964.00 187,789.00 (          7,322.00) 180,467.00 12,503.00

10-51-120 PART-TIME/TEMPORARY WAGES 5,586.83 15,948.00 15,254.00 101.00 15,355.00 (             593.00)

10-51-130 F.I.C.A. 17,259.40 14,604.00 16,373.00 (             857.00) 15,516.00 912.00

10-51-140 RETIREMENT 42,866.25 30,727.00 35,181.00 (          1,873.00) 33,308.00 2,581.00

10-51-150 INSURANCE 64,910.35 56,427.00 62,284.00 (          2,727.00) 59,557.00 3,130.00

10-51-160 WORKMENS COMPENSATION 3,995.97 3,471.00 4,580.00 (             229.00) 4,351.00 880.00

10-51-170 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION .00 300.00 300.00 .00 300.00 .00

10-51-180 UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 1,762.50 1,500.00 1,500.00 .00 1,500.00 .00

10-51-210 BOOKS, SUBSCRIP., MEMBERSHI .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-51-220 PUBLIC NOTICES .00 500.00 500.00 .00 500.00 .00

10-51-230 TRAVEL/TRAINING EXPENSE .00 200.00 200.00 .00 200.00 .00

10-51-240 OFFICE SUPPLIES & EXPENSE 146.49 200.00 200.00 .00 200.00 .00

10-51-250 EQUIPMENT, SUPPLIES & MAINT 13,173.08 23,600.00 21,600.00 .00 21,600.00 (          2,000.00)

10-51-260 BUILDING & GROUNDS MAINTENA 52,428.25 57,890.00 52,890.00 2,000.00 54,890.00 (          3,000.00)

10-51-270 UTILITIES 161,867.93 151,000.00 151,000.00 .00 151,000.00 .00

10-51-280 TELEPHONE EXPENSE 2,636.14 2,200.00 1,500.00 .00 1,500.00 (             700.00)

10-51-310 PROFESSIONAL & TECHNICAL SVC 1,607.35 5,250.00 5,250.00 .00 5,250.00 .00

10-51-330 MISCELLANEOUS SERVICES .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-51-420 FUEL 5,441.21 5,950.00 5,950.00 .00 5,950.00 .00

10-51-430 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 4,444.48 4,300.00 5,000.00 .00 5,000.00 700.00

10-51-440 POOL OPERATIONS .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-51-450 TRASH COLLECTION SHOP/MUN B .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-51-540 STREET LIGHTS 100,599.85 93,000.00 100,000.00 .00 100,000.00 7,000.00

10-51-740 CAPITAL ASSETS 263,336.94 20,300.00 302,000.00 (     132,000.00) 170,000.00 149,700.00

10-51-780 DEPRECIATION .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

Total BUILDING/GROUND MAINT DIVISION: 923,462.07 612,917.00 925,272.00 (     144,475.00) 780,797.00 167,880.00

43



ROY CITY CORPORATION ROY CITY CORPORATION FY 2017 PRELIMINARY BUDGET

Period: 00/16

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 Adjustments 2016-17 FY 2017

Prior Year Current Year Requested To Requested Recommended Budget vs.

Acct No Acct Title Actual Modified Budget Budget Budget Budget FY 2016

10-54-090 EMPLOYEE WAGE REIMBURSEME (     46,459.00) (        42,100.00) (        51,200.00) .00 (        51,200.00) (          9,100.00)

10-54-100 OVERTIME 130,795.98 146,550.00 166,250.00 (          3,000.00) 163,250.00 16,700.00

10-54-110 PERMANENT EMPLOYEES WAGES 2,336,958.34 2,300,170.00 2,339,988.00 59,118.00 2,399,106.00 98,936.00

10-54-120 PART-TIME WAGES .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-54-121 PART-TIME WAGES - XING GUARD 103,174.94 101,542.00 106,409.00 2,163.00 108,572.00 7,030.00

10-54-122 PART-TIMES WAGES - COMMNTY S .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-54-130 F.I.C.A. 188,959.87 194,942.00 199,868.00 4,460.00 204,328.00 9,386.00

10-54-140 RETIREMENT 703,534.67 699,379.00 736,367.00 6,932.00 743,299.00 43,920.00

10-54-150 INSURANCE 455,459.70 442,394.00 463,884.00 (        14,560.00) 449,324.00 6,930.00

10-54-160 WORKMENS COMPENSATION 40,238.01 43,117.00 52,778.00 1,143.00 53,921.00 10,804.00

10-54-170 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION .00 3,800.00 3,800.00 .00 3,800.00 .00

10-54-180 REGULAR OFFICERS UNIFORMS 31,595.62 33,600.00 33,600.00 .00 33,600.00 .00

10-54-190 TRANSPORATION ALLOWANCE .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-54-191 K-9 STIPEND 9,124.99 9,100.00 9,100.00 .00 9,100.00 .00

10-54-210 BOOKS, SUBSCRIP., MEMBERSHI 1,718.37 5,630.00 6,280.00 .00 6,280.00 650.00

10-54-220 PUBLIC NOTICES 72.50 150.00 150.00 .00 150.00 .00

10-54-230 TRAVEL/TRAINING EXPENSE 23,247.11 26,150.00 26,150.00 .00 26,150.00 .00

10-54-240 OFFICE SUPPLIES & EXPENSE 10,457.88 19,450.00 19,450.00 .00 19,450.00 .00

10-54-250 EQUIPMENT, SUPPLIES & MAINT 13,306.76 19,200.00 19,200.00 .00 19,200.00 .00

10-54-280 TELEPHONE EXPENSE 26,776.40 29,830.00 29,830.00 .00 29,830.00 .00

10-54-310 PROFESSIONAL & TECHNICAL SVC 150,273.91 161,082.00 163,089.00 .00 163,089.00 2,007.00

10-54-410 EVIDENCE SUPPLIES 1,175.35 7,650.00 2,000.00 .00 2,000.00 (          5,650.00)

10-54-420 FUEL 76,374.09 97,600.00 100,000.00 .00 100,000.00 2,400.00

10-54-430 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 22,769.05 29,000.00 29,000.00 .00 29,000.00 .00

10-54-460 BLOOD ALCOHOL TESTS 3,448.51 4,000.00 4,000.00 .00 4,000.00 .00

10-54-500 SPECIAL PUBLIC SAFETY SUPPLIE 21,111.08 46,136.00 37,324.00 .00 37,324.00 (          8,812.00)

10-54-510 RETIREMENT INCENTIVES .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-54-512 YOUTH COURT SUPPLIES, ETC .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-54-513 YOUTH COURT WAGES & BENEFIT .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-54-520 TRAFFIC SCHOOL SUPPLIES 195.56 300.00 300.00 .00 300.00 .00

10-54-525 EQUIPMENT - TRAFFIC SCHOOL FN .00 5,850.00 .00 .00 .00 (          5,850.00)

10-54-530 TRAFFIC SCHOOL WAGES & BENE 1,334.24 2,150.00 2,150.00 .00 2,150.00 .00

10-54-540 "DARE" PROGRAM SUPPLIES 4,772.63 5,000.00 5,000.00 .00 5,000.00 .00

10-54-550 K-9 UNIT EXPENDITURES 3,104.68 3,450.00 3,050.00 .00 3,050.00 (             400.00)

10-54-555 JAG GRANT EXPEN .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-54-556 BEER TAX EXPENDITURES 11,051.74 21,502.96 10,000.00 .00 10,000.00 (        11,502.96)

10-54-557 GEARS/EASY GRANT .00 900.00 1,000.00 .00 1,000.00 100.00

10-54-558 UTAP GRANT EXPENDITURES .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-54-559 BLOCK GRANT EXPENDITURES .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-54-560 RISE-UP GRANT EXPENDITURES .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-54-561 CRIME SCENE INVESTIGATION GR .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-54-569 FORFEITURE FUND EXPENDITURE .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-54-570 OTHER GRANT EXPENDITURES .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-54-610 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES 506.00 1,160.00 1,500.00 .00 1,500.00 340.00

10-54-620 SUNDRY 46.00 200.00 200.00 .00 200.00 .00

10-54-740 CAPITAL ASSETS 46,818.64 223,100.00 210,000.00 (        25,000.00) 185,000.00 (        38,100.00)

10-54-750 CAPITAL ASSETS - SP PUBLIC SAF 6,184.00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-54-760 CAPITAL ASSETS - GRANT FUNDS .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-54-780 DEPRECIATION .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

Total POLICE AND ANIMAL SERVICES: 4,378,127.62 4,641,984.96 4,730,517.00 31,256.00 4,761,773.00 119,788.04

44



ROY CITY CORPORATION ROY CITY CORPORATION FY 2017 PRELIMINARY BUDGET

Period: 00/16

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 Adjustments 2016-17 FY 2017

Prior Year Current Year Requested To Requested Recommended Budget vs.

Acct No Acct Title Actual Modified Budget Budget Budget Budget FY 2016

10-58-090 EMPLOYEE WAGE REIMBURSEME (        6,013.08) .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-58-100 OVERTIME 148,298.36 162,650.00 164,364.00 16,834.00 181,198.00 18,548.00

10-58-110 PERMANENT EMPLOYEES WAGES 1,553,748.98 1,600,840.00 1,639,576.00 171,479.00 1,811,055.00 210,215.00

10-58-120 PART-TIME/TEMPORARY WAGES 406,275.16 419,723.00 439,046.00 (     192,890.00) 246,156.00 (     173,567.00)

10-58-130 F.I.C.A. 156,258.96 167,015.00 171,588.00 (             349.00) 171,239.00 4,224.00

10-58-140 RETIREMENT 276,914.51 290,522.00 296,175.00 30,516.00 326,691.00 36,169.00

10-58-150 INSURANCE 367,662.81 367,713.00 408,758.00 32,550.00 441,308.00 73,595.00

10-58-160 WORKMENS COMPENSATION 51,330.98 64,293.00 75,533.00 (             181.00) 75,352.00 11,059.00

10-58-170 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION .00 3,600.00 3,650.00 150.00 3,800.00 200.00

10-58-180 REGULAR OFFICERS UNIFORMS 21,874.99 22,400.00 23,100.00 2,100.00 25,200.00 2,800.00

10-58-190 TRANSPORTATION ALLOWANCE .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-58-210 BOOKS, SUBSCRIPTIONS, MEMBE 3,656.55 2,650.00 2,950.00 .00 2,950.00 300.00

10-58-220 PUBLIC NOTICES .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-58-230 TRAVEL/TRAINING EXPENSE (FIRE 7,959.76 9,360.00 9,360.00 .00 9,360.00 .00

10-58-231 TRAVEL/TRAINING EXPENSE (EMS 5,931.01 6,000.00 6,000.00 .00 6,000.00 .00

10-58-240 OFFICE SUPPLIES & EXPENSE 5,195.23 5,550.00 7,050.00 (          1,000.00) 6,050.00 500.00

10-58-250 EQUIP, SUPPLIES, MAINT (FIRE) 30,220.61 37,264.25 39,100.00 .00 39,100.00 1,835.75

10-58-251 EQUIP, SUPPLIES, MAINT (EMS) 13,812.83 14,100.00 15,100.00 .00 15,100.00 1,000.00

10-58-252 MEDICAL SUPPLIES (EMS) 45,995.51 56,000.00 56,000.00 .00 56,000.00 .00

10-58-255 FIRE PREVENTION/EDUCATION PR 7,449.69 8,225.00 8,225.00 .00 8,225.00 .00

10-58-256 FIRE EDUCATION - CERT .00 280.00 280.00 .00 280.00 .00

10-58-260 BUILDING,GROUNDS,SUPPLY MAI 14,331.54 14,635.75 7,600.00 (          1,500.00) 6,100.00 (          8,535.75)

10-58-280 TELEPHONE 3,915.89 4,890.00 4,890.00 .00 4,890.00 .00

10-58-310 PROF & TECHNICAL SVCS (FIRE) 13,191.99 14,050.00 15,050.00 .00 15,050.00 1,000.00

10-58-311 PROF & TECHNICAL SVCS (EMS) 22,425.30 19,670.00 17,670.00 .00 17,670.00 (          2,000.00)

10-58-312 FIRST PROFESSIONAL FEES 109,646.17 110,900.00 110,900.00 .00 110,900.00 .00

10-58-320 GRANT - EMS 2,114.24 5,139.00 .00 .00 .00 (          5,139.00)

10-58-321 FIRE GRANT - FRARCFPP .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-58-322 OTHER GRANT EXPENDITURES .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-58-330 OTHER SERVICES 5,394.25 5,700.00 3,900.00 1,000.00 4,900.00 (             800.00)

10-58-340 UTAH STATE AMBULANCE ACCESS .00 50,000.00 50,000.00 .00 50,000.00 .00

10-58-420 FUEL (FIRE) 19,460.51 24,360.00 24,360.00 .00 24,360.00 .00

10-58-421 FUEL (EMS) 28,869.64 30,000.00 30,000.00 .00 30,000.00 .00

10-58-430 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE (FIRE) 31,698.91 39,000.00 57,000.00 .00 57,000.00 18,000.00

10-58-431 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE (EMS) 13,512.07 11,500.00 11,500.00 .00 11,500.00 .00

10-58-510 INSURANCE .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-58-520 E.M.T. TRAINING .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-58-620 SUNDRY .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-58-740 CAPITAL ASSETS 126,790.19 3,500.00 710,690.00 (     710,690.00) .00 (          3,500.00)

10-58-760 CAPITAL ASSETS - GRANT FUNDS 107,230.00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-58-780 DEPRECIATION .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

Total FIRE & RESCUE: 3,595,153.56 3,571,530.00 4,409,415.00 (     651,981.00) 3,757,434.00 185,904.00

45



ROY CITY CORPORATION ROY CITY CORPORATION FY 2017 PRELIMINARY BUDGET

Period: 00/16

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 Adjustments 2016-17 FY 2017

Prior Year Current Year Requested To Requested Recommended Budget vs.

Acct No Acct Title Actual Modified Budget Budget Budget Budget FY 2016

10-59-090 EMPLOYEE WAGE REIMBURSEME (        7,663.00) (          8,033.00) (          8,267.00) (                48.00) (          8,315.00) (             282.00)

10-59-100 OVERTIME 400.50 3,000.00 3,000.00 .00 3,000.00 .00

10-59-110 PERMANENT EMPLOYEES WAGES 195,618.13 200,022.00 202,598.00 5,770.00 208,368.00 8,346.00

10-59-120 PART-TIME/TEMPORARY WAGES 1,029.05 2,563.00 2,665.00 458.00 3,123.00 560.00

10-59-130 F.I.C.A. 13,956.33 15,727.00 15,933.00 477.00 16,410.00 683.00

10-59-140 RETIREMENT 35,962.58 37,498.00 37,974.00 1,065.00 39,039.00 1,541.00

10-59-150 INSURANCE 50,496.30 56,252.00 46,925.00 (          2,321.00) 44,604.00 (        11,648.00)

10-59-160 WORKMENS COMPENSATION 2,503.70 2,814.00 3,372.00 63.00 3,435.00 621.00

10-59-170 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION .00 200.00 200.00 .00 200.00 .00

10-59-180 UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 562.50 600.00 600.00 .00 600.00 .00

10-59-190 TRANSPORTATION ALLOWANCE .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-59-210 BOOKS, SUBSCRIP., MEMBERSHI 1,113.05 1,300.00 1,300.00 .00 1,300.00 .00

10-59-220 PUBLIC NOTICES 566.75 1,000.00 1,000.00 .00 1,000.00 .00

10-59-230 TRAVEL/TRAINING EXPENSE 2,585.89 3,500.00 3,500.00 .00 3,500.00 .00

10-59-240 OFFICE SUPPLIES & EXPENSE 6,692.22 7,000.00 7,000.00 .00 7,000.00 .00

10-59-250 EQUIPMENT SUPPLIES & MAINT 1,288.67 2,450.00 750.00 .00 750.00 (          1,700.00)

10-59-280 TELEPHONE EXPENSE 1,672.48 2,250.00 2,000.00 .00 2,000.00 (             250.00)

10-59-310 PROFESSIONAL & TECHNICAL SVC 18,159.43 21,700.00 22,000.00 7,000.00 29,000.00 7,300.00

10-59-330 EMERGENCY ABATEMENT .00 1,000.00 2,000.00 .00 2,000.00 1,000.00

10-59-340 ADVISORY PLANNING BOARDS 2,331.08 3,600.00 5,160.00 .00 5,160.00 1,560.00

10-59-420 FUEL 2,079.56 3,600.00 3,400.00 .00 3,400.00 (             200.00)

10-59-430 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 821.24 1,500.00 1,500.00 .00 1,500.00 .00

10-59-610 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-59-630 BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT PROM .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-59-740 CAPITAL ASSETS .00 4,000.00 30,000.00 .00 30,000.00 26,000.00

10-59-780 DEPRECIATION .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

Total COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT: 330,176.46 363,543.00 384,610.00 12,464.00 397,074.00 33,531.00

46



ROY CITY CORPORATION ROY CITY CORPORATION FY 2017 PRELIMINARY BUDGET

Period: 00/16

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 Adjustments 2016-17 FY 2017

Prior Year Current Year Requested To Requested Recommended Budget vs.

Acct No Acct Title Actual Modified Budget Budget Budget Budget FY 2016

10-60-090 EMPLOYEE WAGE REIMBURSEME (     69,094.00) (        77,635.00) (        32,734.00) (        11,899.00) (        44,633.00) 33,002.00

10-60-100 OVERTIME 34,732.96 45,000.00 53,500.00 .00 53,500.00 8,500.00

10-60-110 PERMANENT EMPLOYEES WAGES 324,067.05 357,896.00 317,284.00 5,856.00 323,140.00 (        34,756.00)

10-60-120 PART-TIME/TEMPORARY WAGES 1,710.08 26,582.00 35,434.00 725.00 36,159.00 9,577.00

10-60-130 F.I.C.A. 26,767.04 32,859.00 31,075.00 504.00 31,579.00 (          1,280.00)

10-60-140 RETIREMENT 66,077.06 72,761.00 66,793.00 1,046.00 67,839.00 (          4,922.00)

10-60-150 INSURANCE 61,976.89 81,168.00 103,979.00 (        18,475.00) 85,504.00 4,336.00

10-60-160 WORKMENS COMPENSATION 6,713.92 10,338.00 11,900.00 198.00 12,098.00 1,760.00

10-60-170 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION .00 550.00 500.00 .00 500.00 (                50.00)

10-60-180 UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 2,437.50 2,700.00 2,400.00 .00 2,400.00 (             300.00)

10-60-210 BOOKS, SUBSCRIP., MEMBERSHI .00 500.00 500.00 .00 500.00 .00

10-60-220 PUBLIC NOTICES .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-60-230 TRAVEL/TRAINING EXPENSE 2,162.77 3,000.00 9,000.00 (          2,500.00) 6,500.00 3,500.00

10-60-240 OFFICE SUPPLIES 599.52 500.00 500.00 .00 500.00 .00

10-60-250 EQUIPMENT SUPPLIES & MAINT 15,275.37 17,600.00 17,600.00 .00 17,600.00 .00

10-60-280 TELEPHONE EXPENSE 3,793.71 3,600.00 3,600.00 .00 3,600.00 .00

10-60-310 PROFESSIONAL/ENGINEERING 2,133.38 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-60-420 FUEL 33,419.91 43,000.00 43,000.00 .00 43,000.00 .00

10-60-430 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 27,325.25 35,000.00 35,000.00 .00 35,000.00 .00

10-60-500 LEASED PROPERTY 9,350.00 9,400.00 9,350.00 .00 9,350.00 (                50.00)

10-60-540 STREET LIGHTS - UP&L .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-60-550 MISCELLANEOUS SIGNAGE 191.26 225.00 1,225.00 .00 1,225.00 1,000.00

10-60-560 CDBG GRANT EXPENDITURES .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-60-571 ASPHALT & CONCRETE DISPOSAL .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-60-580 ROAD MAINTENANCE 34,134.74 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-60-740 CAPITAL ASSETS 192,525.00 .00 250,000.00 .00 250,000.00 250,000.00

10-60-760 CAPITAL ASSETS/RESTRICTED .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-60-780 DEPRECIATION .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

Total STREETS DIVISION: 776,299.41 665,044.00 959,906.00 (        24,545.00) 935,361.00 270,317.00

47



ROY CITY CORPORATION ROY CITY CORPORATION FY 2017 PRELIMINARY BUDGET

Period: 00/16

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 Adjustments 2016-17 FY 2017

Prior Year Current Year Requested To Requested Recommended Budget vs.

Acct No Acct Title Actual Modified Budget Budget Budget Budget FY 2016

10-62-090 EMPLOYEE WAGE REIMBURSEME (     54,830.00) (        34,398.00) (        51,656.00) 252.00 (        51,404.00) (        17,006.00)

10-62-100 OVERTIME 2,155.36 4,100.00 5,100.00 (          2,000.00) 3,100.00 (          1,000.00)

10-62-110 PERMANENT EMPLOYEES WAGES 119,500.17 90,762.00 113,210.00 2,539.00 115,749.00 24,987.00

10-62-120 PART-TIME/TEMPORARY WAGES .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-62-130 F.I.C.A. 8,600.81 7,257.00 9,051.00 41.00 9,092.00 1,835.00

10-62-140 RETIREMENT 22,469.95 17,216.00 21,851.00 101.00 21,952.00 4,736.00

10-62-150 INSURANCE 39,546.43 34,635.00 45,519.00 (          1,818.00) 43,701.00 9,066.00

10-62-160 WORKMENS COMPENSATION 2,055.47 1,846.00 2,550.00 17.00 2,567.00 721.00

10-62-170 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION .00 150.00 150.00 .00 150.00 .00

10-62-180 UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 900.00 750.00 900.00 .00 900.00 150.00

10-62-210 BOOKS, SUBSCRIP., MEMBERSHI .00 1,850.00 1,850.00 .00 1,850.00 .00

10-62-220 PUBLIC NOTICES .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-62-230 TRAVEL/TRAINING EXPENSE 1,219.69 4,500.00 4,500.00 .00 4,500.00 .00

10-62-240 OFFICE SUPPLIES 296.49 150.00 150.00 .00 150.00 .00

10-62-250 EQUIPMENT, SUPPLIES & MAINT 15,859.07 14,000.00 15,500.00 .00 15,500.00 1,500.00

10-62-280 TELEPHONE EXPENSE 636.42 800.00 800.00 .00 800.00 .00

10-62-310 PROFESSIONAL & TECHNICAL 2,440.00 2,450.00 2,450.00 .00 2,450.00 .00

10-62-370 SHOP EXPENSE, REVOLVING REIM .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-62-420 FUEL 2,387.11 2,005.00 5,000.00 .00 5,000.00 2,995.00

10-62-430 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 954.45 1,000.00 1,000.00 .00 1,000.00 .00

10-62-740 CAPITAL ASSETS .00 10,995.00 6,500.00 (          6,500.00) .00 (        10,995.00)

10-62-780 DEPRECIATION .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

Total FLEET SERVICES DIVISION: 164,191.42 160,068.00 184,425.00 (          7,368.00) 177,057.00 16,989.00

48



ROY CITY CORPORATION ROY CITY CORPORATION FY 2017 PRELIMINARY BUDGET

Period: 00/16

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 Adjustments 2016-17 FY 2017

Prior Year Current Year Requested To Requested Recommended Budget vs.

Acct No Acct Title Actual Modified Budget Budget Budget Budget FY 2016

10-66-090 EMPLOYEE WAGE REIMBURSEME (   208,404.00) (     219,421.00) (     230,331.00) 862.00 (     229,469.00) (        10,048.00)

10-66-100 OVERTIME 1,331.66 3,100.00 8,000.00 (             400.00) 7,600.00 4,500.00

10-66-110 PERMANENT EMPLOYEES WAGES 219,283.91 219,568.00 211,533.00 4,218.00 215,751.00 (          3,817.00)

10-66-120 PART-TIME/TEMPORARY WAGES .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-66-130 F.I.C.A. 16,179.01 17,034.00 16,795.00 291.00 17,086.00 52.00

10-66-140 RETIREMENT 45,211.73 42,305.00 45,280.00 800.00 46,080.00 3,775.00

10-66-150 INSURANCE 40,630.91 40,707.00 54,473.00 (          2,996.00) 51,477.00 10,770.00

10-66-160 WORKMENS COMPENSATION 2,412.31 3,206.00 3,288.00 55.00 3,343.00 137.00

10-66-170 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION .00 200.00 200.00 .00 200.00 .00

10-66-180 UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 300.00 300.00 300.00 .00 300.00 .00

10-66-210 BOOKS, SUBSCRIP., & MEMBERS 350.79 50.00 50.00 .00 50.00 .00

10-66-220 PUBLIC NOTICES .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-66-230 TRAVEL/TRAINING EXPENSE 480.98 1,400.00 5,900.00 .00 5,900.00 4,500.00

10-66-240 OFFICE SUPPLIES & EXPENSE 1,272.78 1,700.00 1,700.00 .00 1,700.00 .00

10-66-250 EQUIPMENT, SUPPLIES & MAINT 6,119.31 3,640.00 3,640.00 .00 3,640.00 .00

10-66-280 TELEPHONE EXPENSE 1,111.97 1,500.00 1,500.00 .00 1,500.00 .00

10-66-310 PROFESSIONAL & TECHNICAL 38,923.68 45,510.00 46,210.00 .00 46,210.00 700.00

10-66-420 FUEL 2,694.91 3,300.00 3,300.00 .00 3,300.00 .00

10-66-430 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 148.45 700.00 700.00 .00 700.00 .00

10-66-440 BEAUTIFICATION PROJECTS .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-66-740 CAPITAL ASSETS .00 .00 35,690.00 (        30,000.00) 5,690.00 5,690.00

10-66-780 DEPRECIATION .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

Total PUBLIC WORKS ADMINISTRATION: 168,048.40 164,799.00 208,228.00 (        27,170.00) 181,058.00 16,259.00

49



ROY CITY CORPORATION ROY CITY CORPORATION FY 2017 PRELIMINARY BUDGET

Period: 00/16

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 Adjustments 2016-17 FY 2017

Prior Year Current Year Requested To Requested Recommended Budget vs.

Acct No Acct Title Actual Modified Budget Budget Budget Budget FY 2016

10-68-090 EMPLOYEE WAGE REIMBURSEME .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-68-100 OVERTIME - OPERATIONS 509.30 1,500.00 1,500.00 .00 1,500.00 .00

10-68-101 OVERTIME - MAINT 1,076.78 8,650.00 3,650.00 .00 3,650.00 (          5,000.00)

10-68-110 PERMANENT EMPLOYEES WAGES  156,475.45 153,225.00 135,192.00 24,584.00 159,776.00 6,551.00

10-68-111 PERMANENT EMPLOYEE WAGES -  55,728.13 128,023.00 129,017.00 2,585.00 131,602.00 3,579.00

10-68-120 PART-TIME/TEMPORARY WAGES 164,614.73 178,087.00 169,268.00 19,023.00 188,291.00 10,204.00

10-68-130 F.I.C.A. 28,448.44 35,916.00 33,556.00 3,532.00 37,088.00 1,172.00

10-68-140 RETIREMENT 40,606.28 56,869.00 51,654.00 6,259.00 57,913.00 1,044.00

10-68-150 INSURANCE 41,239.79 52,178.00 62,776.00 (          2,462.00) 60,314.00 8,136.00

10-68-160 WORKMENS COMPENSATION 5,691.97 7,057.00 7,906.00 945.00 8,851.00 1,794.00

10-68-170 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION .00 350.00 350.00 .00 350.00 .00

10-68-180 UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 600.00 900.00 900.00 .00 900.00 .00

10-68-210 BOOKS, SUBSCRIP., & MEMBERS 107.04 107.00 125.00 .00 125.00 18.00

10-68-220 PUBLIC NOTICES .00 .00 1,500.00 .00 1,500.00 1,500.00

10-68-230 TRAVEL/TRAINING EXPENSE 299.00 300.00 575.00 1,000.00 1,575.00 1,275.00

10-68-240 OFFICE SUPPLIES & EXPENSE 2,420.57 3,500.00 3,500.00 .00 3,500.00 .00

10-68-250 EQUIP, SUPPLIES & MAINT - OPER 2,784.00 4,075.00 4,700.00 .00 4,700.00 625.00

10-68-251 EQUIP, SUPPLIES & MAINT - MT 9,302.05 14,982.00 8,900.00 5,000.00 13,900.00 (          1,082.00)

10-68-260 BUILDING,GROUNDS,SUPPLY MAI 17,961.25 20,000.00 28,000.00 (          2,000.00) 26,000.00 6,000.00

10-68-270 UTILITIES 74,534.08 72,000.00 72,000.00 .00 72,000.00 .00

10-68-280 TELEPHONE EXPENSE -  OPERATIO .00 300.00 300.00 .00 300.00 .00

10-68-281 TELEPHONE EXPENSE - MAINT 161.29 450.00 450.00 .00 450.00 .00

10-68-310 PROFESSIONAL & TECHNICAL SVC 7,992.73 1,800.00 1,800.00 .00 1,800.00 .00

10-68-315 AEROBICS FEES AND INSTRUCTO .00 .00 10,400.00 (        10,400.00) .00 .00

10-68-330 PROGRAM SUPPLIES 2,945.61 7,495.00 7,500.00 .00 7,500.00 5.00

10-68-420 FUEL - OPERATIONS 250.00 505.00 800.00 .00 800.00 295.00

10-68-421 FUEL - MAINT .00 1,450.00 1,450.00 .00 1,450.00 .00

10-68-430 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE - OPER .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-68-431 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE - MAINT .00 500.00 500.00 .00 500.00 .00

10-68-450 TRASH COLLECTION 602.04 800.00 800.00 .00 800.00 .00

10-68-620 SUNDRY CHARGES .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-68-680 POOL OPERATIONS - OPERATIONS 2,248.77 8,773.00 8,800.00 .00 8,800.00 27.00

10-68-681 POOL MAINTENANCE 19,844.39 21,500.00 34,000.00 (        16,000.00) 18,000.00 (          3,500.00)

10-68-740 CAPITAL ASSETS - OPERATIONS 2,620.55 10,200.00 10,200.00 (        10,200.00) .00 (        10,200.00)

10-68-741 CAPITAL ASSETS - MAINT 18,837.74 102,918.00 131,300.00 (        14,000.00) 117,300.00 14,382.00

10-68-780 DEPRECIATION .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-68-880 SALES TAX EXPENSE 13,862.00 15,700.00 15,700.00 .00 15,700.00 .00

10-68-890 COST OF GOODS SOLD 10,073.26 10,000.00 10,000.00 .00 10,000.00 .00

Total RECREATION COMPLEX: 681,837.24 920,110.00 949,069.00 7,866.00 956,935.00 36,825.00

50



ROY CITY CORPORATION ROY CITY CORPORATION FY 2017 PRELIMINARY BUDGET

Period: 00/16

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 Adjustments 2016-17 FY 2017

Prior Year Current Year Requested To Requested Recommended Budget vs.

Acct No Acct Title Actual Modified Budget Budget Budget Budget FY 2016

10-69-090 EMPLOYEE WAGE REIMBURSEME .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-69-100 OVERTIME 3.03 500.00 500.00 .00 500.00 .00

10-69-101 OVERTIME - MAINT 3,133.77 3,200.00 3,200.00 .00 3,200.00 .00

10-69-110 PERMANENT EMPLOYEES WAGES 41,069.93 41,763.00 44,623.00 843.00 45,466.00 3,703.00

10-69-120 PART-TIME WAGES - OPERATIONS 144,315.97 162,150.00 153,102.00 13,582.00 166,684.00 4,534.00

10-69-121 PART-TIME WAGES - MAINT 10,073.52 18,224.00 16,325.00 327.00 16,652.00 (          1,572.00)

10-69-130 F.I.C.A. 14,979.65 18,273.00 17,663.00 1,153.00 18,816.00 543.00

10-69-140 RETIREMENT 8,152.60 7,714.00 8,242.00 156.00 8,398.00 684.00

10-69-150 INSURANCE 13,892.89 14,315.00 15,679.00 (             606.00) 15,073.00 758.00

10-69-160 WORKMENS COMPENSATION 3,281.75 4,125.00 4,695.00 318.00 5,013.00 888.00

10-69-170 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION .00 350.00 350.00 .00 350.00 .00

10-69-180 UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 300.00 300.00 300.00 .00 300.00 .00

10-69-220 PUBLIC NOTICES .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-69-230 TRAVEL/TRAINING EXPENSE .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-69-240 OFFICE SUPPLIES & EXPENSE 288.34 1,000.00 1,000.00 .00 1,000.00 .00

10-69-250 EQUIP, SUPPLIES & MAINT - OPER 868.97 8,925.00 7,125.00 .00 7,125.00 (          1,800.00)

10-69-251 EQUIP, SUPPLIES &MAINT - MAINT 49,085.68 7,875.00 3,875.00 .00 3,875.00 (          4,000.00)

10-69-260 BUILDING,GROUNDS,SUPPLY MAI 7,890.71 13,850.00 8,350.00 .00 8,350.00 (          5,500.00)

10-69-270 UTILITIES 77,145.19 73,000.00 73,000.00 .00 73,000.00 .00

10-69-280 TELEPHONE EXPENSE - OPERATIO 1,685.25 2,200.00 2,200.00 .00 2,200.00 .00

10-69-281 TELEPHONE EXPENSE - MAINT 201.95 250.00 250.00 .00 250.00 .00

10-69-310 PROFESSIONAL & TECHNICAL SVC 5,308.83 4,500.00 4,500.00 .00 4,500.00 .00

10-69-330 PROGRAM SUPPLIES 117.78 4,070.00 4,070.00 .00 4,070.00 .00

10-69-420 FUEL 1,608.55 1,900.00 1,900.00 .00 1,900.00 .00

10-69-430 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 25.00 660.00 660.00 .00 660.00 .00

10-69-450 TRASH COLLECTION .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-69-680 POOL OPERATIONS - OPERATIONS 1,259.02 1,300.00 1,300.00 .00 1,300.00 .00

10-69-681 POOL MAINTENANCE 39,723.39 42,500.00 40,000.00 1,500.00 41,500.00 (          1,000.00)

10-69-740 CAPITAL ASSETS - OPERATIONS 22,255.27 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-69-741 CAPITAL ASSETS - MAINT 39,620.00 2,500.00 .00 .00 .00 (          2,500.00)

10-69-780 DEPRECIATION .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-69-880 SALES TAX EXPENSE 30,892.00 35,000.00 35,000.00 .00 35,000.00 .00

10-69-890 COST OF GOODS SOLD 51,032.70 55,000.00 55,000.00 .00 55,000.00 .00

Total AQUATIC CENTER: 568,211.74 525,444.00 502,909.00 17,273.00 520,182.00 (          5,262.00)

51



ROY CITY CORPORATION ROY CITY CORPORATION FY 2017 PRELIMINARY BUDGET

Period: 00/16

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 Adjustments 2016-17 FY 2017

Prior Year Current Year Requested To Requested Recommended Budget vs.

Acct No Acct Title Actual Modified Budget Budget Budget Budget FY 2016

10-72-091 EVENT FEES .00 .00 .00 (          5,000.00) (          5,000.00) (          5,000.00)

10-72-100 OVERTIME .00 .00 .00 26,555.00 26,555.00 26,555.00

10-72-130 F.I.C.A .00 .00 .00 2,032.00 2,032.00 2,032.00

10-72-140 RETIREMENT .00 .00 .00 4,906.00 4,906.00 4,906.00

10-72-210 PERMITS .00 300.00 .00 300.00 300.00 .00

10-72-220 PUBLIC NOTICES .00 3,500.00 .00 3,500.00 3,500.00 .00

10-72-250 EQUIPMENT, SUPPLIES & MAINT .00 .00 .00 700.00 700.00 700.00

10-72-260 GROUNDS, MAINTENANC & SUPPL .00 .00 .00 4,100.00 4,100.00 4,100.00

10-72-320 VENUE SET-UP .00 958.00 .00 8,200.00 8,200.00 7,242.00

10-72-610 CELEBRATION ACTIVITIES .00 5,242.00 .00 43,200.00 43,200.00 37,958.00

Total ROY DAYS: .00 10,000.00 .00 88,493.00 88,493.00 78,493.00

52



ROY CITY CORPORATION ROY CITY CORPORATION FY 2017 PRELIMINARY BUDGET

Period: 00/16

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 Adjustments 2016-17 FY 2017

Prior Year Current Year Requested To Requested Recommended Budget vs.

Acct No Acct Title Actual Modified Budget Budget Budget Budget FY 2016

10-73-090 EMPLOYEE WAGE REIMBURSEME (     18,001.96) (        18,000.00) (        18,000.00) .00 (        18,000.00) .00

10-73-100 OVERTIME - PARKS 7,898.68 15,500.00 15,500.00 (          5,500.00) 10,000.00 (          5,500.00)

10-73-101 OVERTIME - RECREATION 3,830.45 6,200.00 6,200.00 (          2,800.00) 3,400.00 (          2,800.00)

10-73-110 PERMANENT EMPLOYEE WAGES -  277,348.50 288,027.00 304,699.00 (        24,444.00) 280,255.00 (          7,772.00)

10-73-111 PERMANENT EMPLOYEE WAGES -  81,457.20 84,031.00 85,622.00 1,701.00 87,323.00 3,292.00

10-73-120 PART-TIME WAGE - PARKS 72,214.66 93,788.00 70,438.00 21,936.00 92,374.00 (          1,414.00)

10-73-121 PART-TIME WAGES - RECREATION 107,735.97 118,388.00 119,128.00 2,382.00 121,510.00 3,122.00

10-73-130 F.I.C.A. 40,866.22 46,354.00 46,021.00 (             513.00) 45,508.00 (             846.00)

10-73-140 RETIREMENT 69,787.70 73,977.00 76,150.00 (          5,157.00) 70,993.00 (          2,984.00)

10-73-150 INSURANCE 83,854.13 82,711.00 108,133.00 (        15,371.00) 92,762.00 10,051.00

10-73-160 WORKMENS COMPENSATION 9,256.52 11,018.00 12,977.00 (             145.00) 12,832.00 1,814.00

10-73-170 UNEMPLOY COMPENSATION - PAR 1,242.19 3,450.00 3,500.00 (                50.00) 3,450.00 .00

10-73-171 UNEMPLOY COMPENSATION - REC .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-73-180 UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 1,775.00 1,800.00 2,700.00 (             300.00) 2,400.00 600.00

10-73-190 TRANSPORATION ALLOWANCE .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-73-210 BOOKS, SUBSCRIP., MEMBERSHI 48.17 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-73-211 BOOKS, SUBSCRIPTION & MEMBE 144.51 75.00 75.00 .00 75.00 .00

10-73-220 PUBLIC NOTICES .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-73-230 TRAVEL/TRAINING EXPENSE - PAR 320.00 400.00 400.00 .00 400.00 .00

10-73-231 TRAVEL/TRAINING EXPENSE - REC 1,656.00 2,250.00 2,250.00 .00 2,250.00 .00

10-73-240 OFFICE SUPPLIES - PARK 253.30 250.00 250.00 .00 250.00 .00

10-73-241 OFFICE SUPPLIES - REC 1,640.01 2,000.00 2,000.00 .00 2,000.00 .00

10-73-250 EQUIP, SUPPLIES & MAINT - PARK 12,989.50 12,300.00 12,300.00 .00 12,300.00 .00

10-73-251 EQUIP, SUPPLIES & MAINT - REC 1,357.28 3,000.00 3,000.00 .00 3,000.00 .00

10-73-252 EQUIP, SUPPLIES, & MANT - RAMP 8,885.77 11,801.20 .00 .00 .00 (        11,801.20)

10-73-260 BLDGS & GROUNDS MAINT - PAR 40,114.08 34,016.00 35,000.00 .00 35,000.00 984.00

10-73-261 BLDGS & GROUNDS MAINT - REC 3,105.41 7,000.00 7,000.00 .00 7,000.00 .00

10-73-270 UTILITIES - PARK 20,041.63 21,000.00 21,000.00 .00 21,000.00 .00

10-73-271 UTILITIES - REC .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-73-280 TELEPHONE EXPENSE - PARK 2,486.01 2,500.00 1,600.00 .00 1,600.00 (             900.00)

10-73-281 TELEPHONE EXPENSE - REC 2,246.52 2,000.00 2,800.00 (             800.00) 2,000.00 .00

10-73-310 PROFESSIONAL & TECHNICAL SVC 8,298.65 11,350.00 11,350.00 .00 11,350.00 .00

10-73-320 LEAGUE FEES AND REFEREES 44,225.65 40,100.00 44,100.00 .00 44,100.00 4,000.00

10-73-420 FUEL - PARK 20,429.25 25,500.00 25,500.00 .00 25,500.00 .00

10-73-421 FUEL - REC 2,725.25 3,750.00 3,750.00 .00 3,750.00 .00

10-73-430 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE - PARK 6,357.40 7,500.00 7,500.00 .00 7,500.00 .00

10-73-431 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE - REC 1,294.34 2,000.00 2,000.00 .00 2,000.00 .00

10-73-440 SECONDARY WATER 10,679.99 12,024.00 13,900.00 .00 13,900.00 1,876.00

10-73-460 TREE REPLACEMENT PROGRAM 579.60 2,000.00 2,000.00 .00 2,000.00 .00

10-73-465 ADOPT A TREE .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-73-470 NURSERY STOCK MATERIALS 589.56 1,100.00 1,100.00 .00 1,100.00 .00

10-73-500 LEASED PROPERTY 8,751.99 9,600.00 5,100.00 4,400.00 9,500.00 (             100.00)

10-73-610 PROGRAM SUPPLIES 32,102.71 31,725.00 31,725.00 11,300.00 43,025.00 11,300.00

10-73-620 SUNDRY CHARGES 593.40 700.00 700.00 .00 700.00 .00

10-73-740 CAPITAL ASSETS - PARK .00 44,000.00 191,500.00 (        90,000.00) 101,500.00 57,500.00

10-73-741 CAPITAL ASSETS - REC .00 5,300.00 34,079.00 (        29,979.00) 4,100.00 (          1,200.00)

10-73-742 CAPITAL ASSETS - RAMP .00 25,082.80 35,000.00 263,000.00 298,000.00 272,917.20

10-73-780 DEPRECIATION .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-73-880 SALES TAX EXPENSE .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-73-890 COST OF GOODS SOLD .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

Total PARKS & RECREATION: 971,181.24 1,127,568.00 1,330,047.00 129,660.00 1,459,707.00 332,139.00

53



ROY CITY CORPORATION ROY CITY CORPORATION FY 2017 PRELIMINARY BUDGET

Period: 00/16

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 Adjustments 2016-17 FY 2017

Prior Year Current Year Requested To Requested Recommended Budget vs.

Acct No Acct Title Actual Modified Budget Budget Budget Budget FY 2016

10-80-751 DEBT PRINCIPAL - (Fire) .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-80-752 DEBT INTEREST - (Fire) .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-80-753 DEBT PRINCIPAL - BOND REMODE 111,000.00 113,000.00 115,000.00 .00 115,000.00 2,000.00

10-80-754 DEBT INTEREST - BONDS REMOD 7,390.50 5,580.00 3,439.00 .00 3,439.00 (          2,141.00)

10-80-755 DEBT PRINCIPAL - WATER & SEWE .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-80-756 DEBT INTEREST .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-80-757 DEBT PRINCIPAL - BONDS HOPE C .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-80-758 DEBT INTEREST - BONDS HOPE CT .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-80-763 ISSUANCE & TRUSTEE FEES - MU 1,500.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 .00 1,500.00 .00

10-80-765 ISSUANCE & TRUSTEE FEES RFND .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-80-767 ISSUANCE & TRUSTEE FEES - HOP .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

10-80-790 PMT TO REFUNDED BOND ESCRO .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

Total DEBT SERVICE: 119,890.50 120,080.00 119,939.00 .00 119,939.00 (             141.00)

54



ROY CITY CORPORATION ROY CITY CORPORATION FY 2017 PRELIMINARY BUDGET

Period: 00/16

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 Adjustments 2016-17 FY 2017

Prior Year Current Year Requested To Requested Recommended Budget vs.

Acct No Acct Title Actual Modified Budget Budget Budget Budget FY 2016

64-40-200 ROAD MAINTENANCE 854,785.33 908,384.00 909,000.00 .00 909,000.00 616.00

64-40-220 PUBLIC NOTICES .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

64-40-240 STREET SIGNS 28,017.33 26,000.00 26,000.00 .00 26,000.00 .00

64-40-310 CAPITAL PROJECTS 26,272.65 460,000.00 40,000.00 .00 40,000.00 (     420,000.00)

64-40-320 ENGINEERING & TECHNICAL FEES 9,994.01 75,000.00 75,000.00 .00 75,000.00 .00

64-40-500 TRANSFER TO GENERAL FUND .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

64-40-510 CONTRIBUTION TO FUND BALANC .00 .00 535,682.00 (     393,000.00) 142,682.00 142,682.00

64-40-740 NEW EQUIPMENT 171,648.64 53,616.00 115,318.00 .00 115,318.00 61,702.00

64-40-750 CAPITAL TRANSFER TO GEN FUND .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

64-40-780 DEPRECIATION .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

64-40-799 DEPRECIATION ALLOCATION .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

Total OPERATING EXPENDITURES: 1,090,717.96 1,523,000.00 1,701,000.00 (     393,000.00) 1,308,000.00 (     215,000.00)

55



ROY CITY CORPORATION ROY CITY CORPORATION FY 2017 PRELIMINARY BUDGET

Period: 00/16

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 Adjustments 2016-17 FY 2017

Prior Year Current Year Requested To Requested Recommended Budget vs.

Acct No Acct Title Actual Modified Budget Budget Budget Budget FY 2016

65-40-200 ROAD MAINTENANCE .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

65-40-240 PEDESTRIAN SAFETY .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

65-40-310 CAPITAL PROJECTS .00 .00 .00 393,000.00 393,000.00 393,000.00

65-40-320 ENGINEERING .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

65-40-740 EQUIPMENT .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

Total OPERATING EXPENDITURES: .00 .00 .00 393,000.00 393,000.00 393,000.00

65-48-800 CONTRIBUTION TO FUND BALANC .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

Total TRANSFERS AND OTHER USES: .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

Net Grand Totals: (17,520,434.7 (16,673,592.96) (18,652,377.00) (     571,501.00) (19,223,878.00) (  2,550,285.04)

56



Roy City Corporation FY 2017 Preliminary Budget 

Tab – Capital Projects 

Capital Projects Fund  

 

 

 

 

 

IN THIS SECTION: 

 Fund Summary 
 Revenues 
 Expenditures 

 

57



 

BUDGET SUMMARY – CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 

 
 
 
Revenue 
 
The City will continue to place the additional tax increment from the 2005 tax increase into the Capital 
Projects Fund.  The funds will be set aside as follows: $170,500 for replacing fire apparatus.  In addition, 
$15,000 will be contributed from ambulance receipts for the fire apparatus.  The tax increment normally 
set aside for recreational facility improvements will remain in the General Fund to augment funding for 
the Recreation Complex gymnasium floor. 
 

 
Revenue 

FY 2015
Actual 

FY 2016
Budget 

FY 2017 
Budget 

GF transfer – fire apparatus  $    202,006 $   185,500 $185,500

GF transfer – parks & recreational fac. 840,025 71,525    0

GF transfer – capital improvements 745,000   0    0

Contribution from fund balance    0 1,446,723 656,500

     Total  $1,787,031 $1,703,748 $842,000

 
Expenditures 
 
Funds will be carried forward  into FY 2017 for the construction of George Wahlen North Park and the 
Beautification of 1900 West.   The amounts budgeted are estimates, and will  likely need  to be revised 
when expenditures are summarized at the end of FY 2016. 

 
 

FY 2017
Requested  Change 

FY 2017 
Proposed 

Banners  $    3,500 $   0 $3,500

George Wahlen North Park  500,000   0 500,000

Beautification  153,000   0 153,000

Contribution to fund balance  185,500   0 185,500

     Total  $842,000 $   0 $842,000

 

 

   

58



ROY CITY CORPORATION ROY CITY CORPORATION FY 2017 PRELIMINARY BUDGET

Period: 00/16

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 Adjustments 2016-17 FY 2017

Prior Year Current Year Requested To Requested Recommended Budget vs.

Acct No Acct Title Actual Modified Budget Budget Budget Budget FY 2016

41-38-054 G/F TRANS. - PUBLIC SAFETY .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

41-38-058 G/F TRANS - FIRE EQUIP & FACIL 202,006.00 185,500.00 203,500.00 (        18,000.00) 185,500.00 .00

41-38-064 G/F TRANS - PARKS & RECR FACIL 840,025.00 71,525.00 71,525.00 (        71,525.00) .00 (        71,525.00)

41-38-069 G/F TRANS - AQUATIC CENTER .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

41-38-100 LAND PURCHASE .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

41-38-110 TRANSFER BETWEEN PROJECT FU .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

41-38-200 CONTRIBUTIONS & TRANSFERS .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

41-38-600 G.F. CONTRIB - CAP IMPRV PLAN 745,000.00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

41-38-700 CONTRIBUTION FROM FUND BALA .00 1,446,723.24 .00 656,500.00 656,500.00 (     790,223.24)

Total CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS: 1,787,031.00 1,703,748.24 275,025.00 566,975.00 842,000.00 (     861,748.24)

Net Total CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND: 1,787,031.00 1,703,748.24 275,025.00 566,975.00 842,000.00 (     861,748.24)

59



ROY CITY CORPORATION ROY CITY CORPORATION FY 2017 PRELIMINARY BUDGET

Period: 00/16

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 Adjustments 2016-17 FY 2017

Prior Year Current Year Requested To Requested Recommended Budget vs.

Acct No Acct Title Actual Modified Budget Budget Budget Budget FY 2016

41-40-020 EXPENSES .00 10,000.00 .00 3,500.00 3,500.00 (          6,500.00)

41-40-500 TRANSFER TO GENERAL FUND .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

Total OPERATING EXPENDITURES: .00 10,000.00 .00 3,500.00 3,500.00 (          6,500.00)

41-48-310 TRANSFER WITHIN PROJECT FUN .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

41-48-800 APPROPR. INCREASE IN FUND BA .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

41-48-805 INCREASE IN F/B RES - FIRE .00 185,500.00 203,500.00 (        18,000.00) 185,500.00 .00

41-48-810 INCREASE IN F/B RES - PKS/REC .00 71,525.00 71,525.00 (        71,525.00) .00 (        71,525.00)

41-48-815 INCREASE IN F/B RES - AQ CTR .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

Total TRANSFERS & OTHER USES: .00 257,025.00 275,025.00 (        89,525.00) 185,500.00 (        71,525.00)

41-58-020 FIRE & RESCUE FACILITY & EQUIP 201,505.53 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

41-58-751 L/T LEASE FINANCING - PRINCIPA .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

41-58-752 L/T LEASE FINANCING - INTEREST .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

Total FIRE & RESCUE FACILITY & EQUIP: 201,505.53 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

41-64-020 PARKS & RECREATIONL FACILITIE 13,908.76 854,591.24 .00 500,000.00 500,000.00 (     354,591.24)

Total PARKS & RECREATIONL FACILITIES: 13,908.76 854,591.24 .00 500,000.00 500,000.00 (     354,591.24)

41-74-020 L/T CAPITAL IMPROVEMNT - MUNI .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

41-74-021 L/T CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT - HOP .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

41-74-022 L/T CAP IMPROVE - 1900 W BEAU 152,867.60 582,132.00 .00 153,000.00 153,000.00 (     429,132.00)

Total L/T CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN: 152,867.60 582,132.00 .00 153,000.00 153,000.00 (     429,132.00)

Net Total CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND: (   368,281.89) (  1,703,748.24) (     275,025.00) (     566,975.00) (     842,000.00) 861,748.24

60



Roy City Corporation FY 2017 Preliminary Budget 

Tab – W
ater &

 Sew
er 

Water & Sewer Utility Enterprise Fund  

 

 

 

 
 

IN THIS SECTION: 

 Fund Summary 
 Revenues 
 Operating Expenses 
 Administrative Expenses

61



 

BUDGET SUMMARY – UTILITY FUNDS 

 
 
 
Water and Sewer Utility Enterprise Fund 
 
Revenue 
 
A rate increase will be made for both water and sewer service in FY 2017.  This is a result of increases by 
the contractors which will be passed along to the consumers along with any impact to the utility such as 
franchise fees. 
 

 
Revenue 

FY 2015
Actual 

FY 2016
Budget 

FY 2017 
Budget 

Water   $1,898,608 $2,008,000 $2,016,205

Sewer  3,380,420 3,812,900 4,430,000

Capital improvements  868,649 868,000 872,000

Connection fees  2,470 4,000 3,000

Impact fees  19,100 11,000 20,500

Other  238,132 198,000 23,000

Contribution from reserves    0 288,628 205,048

     Total  $6,407,378 $7,190,528 $7,569,753

 
To cover the increased cost of water, the City proposes increasing rates as follows: 
 

 
Billing Classification per unit 

 
FY 2016 

 
Change 

FY 2017 
Proposed 

Residential – Bi‐monthly   $  13.74  $   0.05  $  13.79 
Residential County – Bi‐monthly    27.48     0.10    27.58 
Commercial – Monthly     6.87     0.03     6.90 
Commercial County ‐ Monthly    13.74     0.05    13.79 
Mobile Homes ‐ Monthly     6.87     0.03     6.90 
Residential water usage‐ Bi‐monthly:       
  First 18,000 gallons (per 1,000 gallons)     0.79     0.01     0.80 
  Next 12,000 gallons (per 1,000 gallons)     1.41     0.01      1.42 
  Next 10,000 gallons (per 1,000 gallons)     1.56     0.01     1.57 
  Gallons over 40,000 (per 1,000 gallons)     1.76     0.01     1.77 
Commercial water usage – Monthly:       
  First 9,000 gallons (per 1,000 gallons)     0.79     0.01     0.80 
  Next 6,000 gallons (per 1,000 gallons)     1.41     0.01     1.42 
  Next 5,000 gallons (per 1,000 gallons)     1.56     0.01     1.57 
  Gallons over 20,000 (per 1,000 gallons)     1.76     0.01     1.77 
Mobile home water usage – Monthly:       
  First 9,000 gallons (per 1,000 gallons)     0.71     0.01     0.72 
  Next 6,000 gallons (per 1,000 gallons)     1.27     0.01     1.28 
  Next 5,000 gallons (per 1,000 gallons)     1.40     0.00     1.40 
  Gallons over 20,000 (per 1,000 gallons)     1.59     0.00     1.59 

 

62



 

Central Weber Sewer raised rates in January 2016, and the new rates are included.  North Davis Sewer 
continues with its five year plan to raise rates.  As a result, the rate structure for customers falling within 
the North Davis Sewer District will be as follows: 
 

 
Billing Classification per unit 

 
FY 2016 

 
Change 

FY 2017 
Proposed 

Residential – Bi‐monthly   $  44.66  $   6.36  $  51.02 
Residential County – Bi‐monthly    89.32    12.72   102.04 
Commercial – Monthly    22.33     3.18    25.51 
Commercial County ‐ Monthly    44.66     6.36    51.02 
Multi‐unit residential ‐ Monthly    22.33     3.18    25.51 
Commercial usage – Monthly:       
  Under 5,500 gallons (per 1,000 gallons)     0.00     0.00     0.00 
  All gallons over 5,500 (per 1,000 gallons)     1.71     0.32     2.03 
Commercial county usage – Monthly:       
  Under 5,500 gallons (per 1,000 gallons)     0.00     0.00     0.00 
  All gallons over 5,500 (per 1,000 gallons)     3.42     0.64     4.06 
       

 
The following chart shows a comparison of revenue sources for the Water and Sewer Utility Fund.  The 
increases in sewer revenue from FY 2010 through FY 2012 are a result of the rate increases from Central 
Weber Sewer.  North Davis Sewer began a series of rate increases in FY 2014, which will continue through 
FY 2018.   
 

 
 
Roy City raised its base rate for water in FY 2013 to fund capital improvements to the infrastructure.   
The upswing in revenue in FY 2013 was a result of the rate increase.   
 

$0

$500,000

$1,000,000

$1,500,000

$2,000,000

$2,500,000

$3,000,000

$3,500,000

$4,000,000

$4,500,000

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Budget

2017
Budget

Water and Sewer Utility Enterprise Fund Revenue

Water Sewer Capital Improvement Impact Fees Other Bond Proceeds

63



 

Revenue from impact fees continues to be low because of less new home construction.   
 
Expenses  
 
There are no major  changes  to  the Water and  Sewer Utility Enterprise  Fund  related  to personnel or 
operations.  Vendor rate increases are the main source of the increase in the expense budget.  
 
A historical look at the expenses for the Water and Sewer Utility Enterprise Funds follows: 
 

 
 
Increases in the operations budget in FY 2010 through FY 2012 can be partially attributed to the increase 
in Central Weber Sewer rates.  Although this is a pass‐through to the user, it shows as an expense on the 
financial statements.   Part of  the  increase  in  the FY 2013 budget  is  the rate  increase  for both Central 
Weber Sewer and North Davis Sewer.   FY 2014  to FY 2017 reflect  the North Davis Sewer District rate 
increase. 
 
Capital projects for FY 2010 to FY 2012 include water system improvements funded by the 2008 water 
bonds. 
 
Personnel and Benefits 
 
As stated above for the General Fund, the budget also  includes a 2.5% merit and a 2.0% cost of  living 
adjustment.  The budget includes a 5.42% increase for health insurance premiums.   
 
Operations 
 

$0

$1,000,000

$2,000,000

$3,000,000

$4,000,000

$5,000,000

$6,000,000

$7,000,000

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Budget

2017
Budget

Water and Sewer Utility Enterprise Fund Expenses

Personnel Operations Depreciation Debt Service Capital

64



 

The interdepartmental transfers to the General Fund have been reevaluated to ensure that an accurate 
time allocation is being presented.  In addition, new employees have been added to the General Fund for 
which reimbursement will be paid.  Both have resulted in an increase to the transfers. 
 
The water meter account remains at a high level due to the change out to radio read meters.  This project 
has been  in  the works  for  two years, but has yet  to be started due  to concerns with  installation, and 
ensuring that the product will interface with our current system.  The contract will likely be signed in May 
2016,  with  installation  to  follow.    The  project  should  take  approximately  four  years  to  complete.    
Approximately 2,500 meters will be done per year.  
 
The expenditure for North Davis Sewer has increased according to their new fee structure, approximately 
$517,000.  The cost of water from Weber Basin Water has increased $10,300 per year.  Franchise fees for 
both services have increased. 
 
Utilities were increased to operate the Hill Air Force Base reservoir.  This will allow for the facility to run 
year round.  Other operating costs have been held consistent with FY 2016 estimates. 
 
Debt Service 
 
Total debt service costs are up slightly from FY 2016.  Principal will increase $10,000 while interest will 
decrease $13,600. 
 
Departments 
 

Operations Division 
FY 2106
Budget  Change 

FY 2017 
Proposed 

Personnel and benefits   $   730,723 ($  2,437) $   708,857 

Operations  5,928,098 5,359 6,534,837 

Capital  417,065 329,217 1,172,640 

     Total  $7,075,886 $332,139 $8,416,334 

 
Prior year comparison with proposed budget: 

 Reevaluation of interdepartment transfers for employee wage reimbursement 

 Leased property increased due to contract change with the railroad 

 Water and sewer service rate changes 

 Utilities for HAFB coming on‐line 

 Franchise fees change with rate increases 

 Capital requests change annually 
 

Operations Division 
FY 2106
Budget  Change 

FY 2017 
Proposed 

Personnel and benefits   $50,070 ($  2,437) $47,484 

Operations  481,637 5,359 468,575 

Capital    0 329,217    0 

     Total  $531,707 $332,139 $516,059 

65



 

Prior year comparison with proposed budget: 

 Changes in staffing 

 Transfer to Information Technology higher 
 
Capital Assets 
 
The capital budget for the Water and Sewer Utility Enterprise Fund  includes water and sewer projects, 
facility improvements, and the replacement of worn equipment.   
 

Description 
 

Amount 

6050 S sewer main rehabilitation  $   108,000 

Halverne sewer line (CDBG)  210,000 

4800 S 16” pressure valve  25,305 

4800 S 2 16” butterfly valves  7,580 

4000 S reservoir VFD  6,640 

5175 S reservoir VFD  6,640 

5175 S reservoir generator transfer switch  5,775 

HAFB 12” electrical butterfly valve  4,800 

Halverne water line (CDBG)  200,000 

SCADA – 5500 S PRV pit  25,000 

PRV pit 5500 S 3500 W  45,000 

5600 S, 5550 S, 4225 W, 3750 S water lines  482,000 

Air compressor  1,600 

Generator to run compressor  4,500 

Tapping machine  2,200 

Case backhoe (shared w/Class C and Storm Water)   25,600 

Backhoe 24” rear bucket  2,000 

Hydraulic tool set w/accessories  0 

Welder generator  0 

GIS software upgrade (shared w/Class C and Storm Water)  10,000 

10 wheel dump truck  0 

  $1,172,640 

 
The revenue for this fund is approximately $7.5 million, with expenses at $6.9 million.  This leaves about 
$600,000 for projects.  It has been determined that most of the projects are urgent and need to future 
date. 
 
Repayment of Advance 

The budget includes receipt of a payment of $30,000 from the Redevelopment Agency of Roy Utah.  This 
payment represents reimbursement on an advance of $550,000 made  in  the early 1990’s  for on‐sight 
improvements of a development within Roy City’s business district.  The balance on the advance after the 
payment will be $317,300.  

   

66



ROY CITY CORPORATION ROY CITY CORPORATION FY 2017 PRELIMINARY BUDGET

Period: 00/16

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 Adjustments 2016-17 FY 2017

Prior Year Current Year Requested To Requested Recommended Budget vs.

Acct No Acct Title Actual Modified Budget Budget Budget Budget FY 2016

50-36-100 INTEREST EARNED 74.40 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

50-36-400 GAIN/(LOSS) ON ASSET DISPOSAL .00 .00 5,000.00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00

50-36-900 OTHER REVENUE - MISCELLANEO 174,420.67 175,000.00 185,000.00 .00 185,000.00 10,000.00

Total MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE: 174,495.07 175,000.00 190,000.00 .00 190,000.00 15,000.00

50-37-110 METERED WATER SALES 1,898,607.92 2,008,000.00 2,000,000.00 16,205.00 2,016,205.00 8,205.00

50-37-120 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FEES 868,649.25 868,000.00 872,000.00 .00 872,000.00 4,000.00

50-37-160 WATER CONNECTION FEES 2,470.00 4,000.00 3,000.00 .00 3,000.00 (          1,000.00)

50-37-180 HOOPER WATER ANNEXATION FEE .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

50-37-190 WATER IMPACT FEE 18,360.00 10,000.00 20,000.00 .00 20,000.00 10,000.00

50-37-310 SEWER SERVICE CHARGES 3,380,419.50 3,812,900.00 4,430,000.00 .00 4,430,000.00 617,100.00

50-37-330 SEWER CONNECTION FEES .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

50-37-340 SPECIAL SEWER LIFT FEE .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

50-37-360 WEST AREA IMPACT FEE .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

50-37-370 WEST SANITARY SEWER IMPACT F 280.00 500.00 .00 .00 .00 (             500.00)

50-37-371 EAST SANITARY SEWER IMPACT F 460.00 500.00 500.00 .00 500.00 .00

50-37-420 RENTAL OF D.W. SHARES 22,837.50 23,000.00 23,000.00 .00 23,000.00 .00

50-37-710 REFUSE COLLECTION .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

50-37-940 USE OF RETAINED EARNINGS .00 288,628.00 260,902.00 (        55,854.00) 205,048.00 (        83,580.00)

Total ENTERPRISE REVENUE: 6,192,084.17 7,015,528.00 7,609,402.00 (        39,649.00) 7,569,753.00 554,225.00

50-38-165 TRANSFER - SOLID WASTE INTRDP .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

50-38-300 CONTRIBUTION - PRIVATE SOURCE 40,800.00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

Total CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS: 40,800.00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

Net Total UTILITY ENTERPRISE FUND: 6,407,379.24 7,190,528.00 7,799,402.00 (        39,649.00) 7,759,753.00 569,225.00

67



ROY CITY CORPORATION ROY CITY CORPORATION FY 2017 PRELIMINARY BUDGET

Period: 00/16

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 Adjustments 2016-17 FY 2017

Prior Year Current Year Requested To Requested Recommended Budget vs.

Acct No Acct Title Actual Modified Budget Budget Budget Budget FY 2016

50-40-090 EMPLOYEE WAGE REIMBURSEME (        2,595.00) (          2,499.00) (          2,814.00) (        15,440.00) (        18,254.00) (        15,755.00)

50-40-100 OVERTIME 62,255.30 60,275.00 58,850.00 9,000.00 67,850.00 7,575.00

50-40-110 PERMANENT EMPLOYEES WAGES 392,282.39 405,787.00 405,371.00 8,133.00 413,504.00 7,717.00

50-40-120 PART-TIME/TEMPORARY WAGES 4,557.33 32,035.00 31,246.00 639.00 31,885.00 (             150.00)

50-40-130 F.I.C.A. 33,694.79 38,103.00 37,902.00 1,360.00 39,262.00 1,159.00

50-40-140 RETIREMENT 62,152.78 84,351.00 84,067.00 3,128.00 87,195.00 2,844.00

50-40-150 INSURANCE 97,560.62 100,213.00 79,673.00 (          3,226.00) 76,447.00 (        23,766.00)

50-40-160 WORKMENS COMPENSATION 7,494.66 8,808.00 9,975.00 343.00 10,318.00 1,510.00

50-40-170 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION .00 650.00 650.00 .00 650.00 .00

50-40-180 UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 2,962.50 3,000.00 3,000.00 .00 3,000.00 .00

50-40-210 BOOKS, SUBSCRIP., MEMBERSHI 6,756.64 8,180.00 8,180.00 .00 8,180.00 .00

50-40-220 PUBLIC NOTICES .00 .00 750.00 .00 750.00 750.00

50-40-230 TRAVEL/TRAINING EXPENSE 6,486.80 14,850.00 9,850.00 .00 9,850.00 (          5,000.00)

50-40-240 OFFICE SUPPLIES & EXPENSE 2,697.11 3,500.00 3,200.00 .00 3,200.00 (             300.00)

50-40-245 PUBLIC EDUCATION 4,213.24 3,000.00 3,000.00 .00 3,000.00 .00

50-40-250 EQUIPMENT SUPPLIES & MAINT 20.00 2,119.88 .00 .00 .00 (          2,119.88)

50-40-260 BUILDING,GROUNDS,SUPPLY MAI 8,352.74 10,000.00 17,500.00 .00 17,500.00 7,500.00

50-40-270 UTILITIES 202,632.26 212,500.00 212,500.00 .00 212,500.00 .00

50-40-280 TELEPHONE EXPENSE 6,217.01 5,700.00 5,700.00 .00 5,700.00 .00

50-40-300 HOMELAND SECURITY GRANT .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

50-40-310 PROFESSIONAL & TECHNICAL SVC 39,364.88 34,000.00 45,000.00 .00 45,000.00 11,000.00

50-40-320 PROF & TECH-INTERDEPARTMENT 267,068.00 254,877.00 293,511.00 (        12,266.00) 281,245.00 26,368.00

50-40-330 COMPUTER PROGRAMMING .00 .00 1,000.00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00

50-40-350 TELEMETERING 11,323.26 13,800.00 13,800.00 .00 13,800.00 .00

50-40-360 COMPUTER SUPPLIES .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

50-40-420 FUEL 24,386.16 20,200.00 35,000.00 .00 35,000.00 14,800.00

50-40-430 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 34,846.42 34,500.00 29,000.00 .00 29,000.00 (          5,500.00)

50-40-440 WATER METERS 18,792.80 234,000.00 234,000.00 .00 234,000.00 .00

50-40-450 STREET SURFACE MAINTENANCE 13,703.47 15,600.00 19,600.00 .00 19,600.00 4,000.00

50-40-460 WATER SYSTEM OPERATIONS EXP 87,087.05 69,000.00 69,000.00 .00 69,000.00 .00

50-40-461 SEWER SYSTEM OPERATIONS EXP 36,899.55 33,000.00 33,000.00 .00 33,000.00 .00

50-40-470 RESERVOIR MAINTENANCE 17,393.04 17,500.00 17,500.00 .00 17,500.00 .00

50-40-471 WATER SYSTEM MAINT (IMPACT) .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

50-40-472 SANITARY SEWER MAINT (IMPACT) .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

50-40-500 LEASED PROPERTY 9,350.00 9,350.00 9,350.00 900.00 10,250.00 900.00

50-40-510 INSURANCE 86,443.00 85,316.00 81,284.00 .00 81,284.00 (          4,032.00)

50-40-520 RIVERDALE CITY SEWER SVC FEES .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

50-40-571 ASPHALT & CONCRETE DISPOSAL .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .00 1,000.00 .00

50-40-580 CENTRAL WEBER SEWER 233,049.42 241,510.00 241,510.00 .00 241,510.00 .00

50-40-600 DAVIS/WEBER CANAL 21,750.00 22,620.00 22,620.00 .00 22,620.00 .00

50-40-610 NORTH DAVIS SEWER 1,881,545.69 2,508,000.00 3,025,000.00 .00 3,025,000.00 517,000.00

50-40-620 SUNDRY CHARGES .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

50-40-630 CROSS CONNECTION CO .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

50-40-640 SANITARY SEWER MAINT. 162,182.80 205,000.00 205,000.00 .00 205,000.00 .00

50-40-670 DEPRECIATION, UTILITY FUND 700,582.90 734,280.12 764,435.00 (        20,000.00) 744,435.00 10,154.88

50-40-680 WEBER BASIN WATER 483,785.01 519,700.00 530,000.00 .00 530,000.00 10,300.00

50-40-690 WATER SAMPLES 20,898.25 31,000.00 24,000.00 .00 24,000.00 (          7,000.00)

50-40-700 STREET CUT REPAIR .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

50-40-701 CONCRETE FEES .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

50-40-820 INTEREST ON LONG-TERM DEBT 242,131.49 233,240.00 219,640.00 .00 219,640.00 (        13,600.00)

50-40-821 BOND ISSUANCE COSTS 4,334.37 1,500.00 1,500.00 .00 1,500.00 .00

50-40-822 BOND INSURANCE & SURETY PRE 2,198.24 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

50-40-920 TRANSFER TO ENGINEERING .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

68



ROY CITY CORPORATION ROY CITY CORPORATION FY 2017 PRELIMINARY BUDGET

Period: 00/16

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 Adjustments 2016-17 FY 2017

Prior Year Current Year Requested To Requested Recommended Budget vs.

Acct No Acct Title Actual Modified Budget Budget Budget Budget FY 2016

50-40-930 FRANCHISE FEE - WATER 113,916.47 120,480.00 120,000.00 973.00 120,973.00 493.00

50-40-931 FRANCHISE FEE - SEWER 202,825.17 228,775.00 265,800.00 .00 265,800.00 37,025.00

50-40-940 RETAINED EARNINGS .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

Total WATER/SEWER UTILITY OPERATIONS: 5,613,598.61 6,658,821.00 7,270,150.00 (        26,456.00) 7,243,694.00 584,873.00

69



ROY CITY CORPORATION ROY CITY CORPORATION FY 2017 PRELIMINARY BUDGET

Period: 00/16

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 Adjustments 2016-17 FY 2017

Prior Year Current Year Requested To Requested Recommended Budget vs.

Acct No Acct Title Actual Modified Budget Budget Budget Budget FY 2016

50-44-090 EMPLOYEE WAGE REIMBURSEME (        5,047.00) (          5,493.00) (          5,996.00) (          2,274.00) (          8,270.00) (          2,777.00)

50-44-100 OVERTIME .00 500.00 500.00 .00 500.00 .00

50-44-110 PERMANENT EMPLOYEES WAGES 31,812.03 32,561.00 31,793.00 853.00 32,646.00 85.00

50-44-120 PART-TIME/TEMPORARY WAGES .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

50-44-130 F.I.C.A. 2,076.39 2,529.00 2,470.00 65.00 2,535.00 6.00

50-44-140 RETIREMENT 4,138.01 6,106.00 5,389.00 143.00 5,532.00 (             574.00)

50-44-150 INSURANCE 13,735.46 13,773.00 338.00 14,098.00 14,436.00 663.00

50-44-160 WORKMENS COMPENSATION 45.13 44.00 53.00 2.00 55.00 11.00

50-44-170 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION .00 50.00 50.00 .00 50.00 .00

50-44-180 UNIFORM ALLOWANCE .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

50-44-190 TRANSPORATION ALLOWANCE .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

50-44-210 BOOKS, SUBSCRIP., MEMBERSHI 420.11 725.00 725.00 .00 725.00 .00

50-44-220 PUBLIC NOTICES 719.80 300.00 300.00 .00 300.00 .00

50-44-230 TRAVEL/TRAINING EXPENSE 966.05 2,800.00 2,700.00 .00 2,700.00 (             100.00)

50-44-240 OFFICE SUPPLIES & EXPENSE 42,223.83 51,000.00 50,000.00 .00 50,000.00 (          1,000.00)

50-44-250 EQUIPMENT SUPPLIES & MAINTE 1,873.27 3,000.00 4,400.00 .00 4,400.00 1,400.00

50-44-280 TELEPHONE EXPENSE 224.70 500.00 500.00 .00 500.00 .00

50-44-310 PROFESSIONAL & TECHNICAL SVC 26,140.96 33,350.00 33,500.00 .00 33,500.00 150.00

50-44-320 PROF & TECH-INTERDEPARTMENT 293,458.00 308,420.00 284,814.00 6,289.00 291,103.00 (        17,317.00)

50-44-360 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 66,862.00 63,292.00 101,466.00 (        32,369.00) 69,097.00 5,805.00

50-44-420 FUEL .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

50-44-430 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

50-44-560 RESIDENTIAL GARBAGE PICK-UP .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

50-44-561 GARBAGE PICKUP - CLEANUP .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

50-44-570 COUNTY LANDFILL EXPENSE .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

50-44-571 COUNTY LANDFILL - CLEANUP .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

50-44-590 UNCOLLECTABLE ACCOUNTS 12,647.68 18,000.00 16,000.00 .00 16,000.00 (          2,000.00)

50-44-620 SUNDRY CHARGES 99.31 250.00 250.00 .00 250.00 .00

50-44-630 PLANNING EXPENSE .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

50-44-930 FRANCHISE FEE -  GARBAGE .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

Total UTILITY ADMINISTRATION: 492,395.73 531,707.00 529,252.00 (        13,193.00) 516,059.00 (        15,648.00)

Net Total UTILITY ENTERPRISE FUND: (6,105,994.34) (  7,190,528.00) (  7,799,402.00) 39,649.00 (  7,759,753.00) (     569,225.00)

70



Roy City Corporation FY 2017 Preliminary Budget 

Tab – Storm
 W

ater 

Storm Water Utility Enterprise Fund  

 

 

 

 
 
IN THIS SECTION: 

 Fund Summary 

 Revenues 

 Expenses

71



 

Storm Water Utility Fund 
 
Revenue 
 
There are no fee changes proposed for the fiscal year.   
 

 
Revenue 

FY 2015
Actual 

FY 2016
Budget 

FY 2017 
Budget 

Storm water  $835,276 $835,000 $840,000

Contribution  17,600   0    0

     Total  $852,876 $835,000 $840,000

 
The rate increase in FY 2015 has allowed for projects to be completed and improve the systems.  Below is 
a historical summary of revenues for the fund: 
 

 
 
Personnel 
 
There are no increases in personnel for this budget year.  As stated above for the General Fund, the budget 
includes a 2.5% merit and a 2.0% cost of living adjustment. 
 
Benefits 
 
As  stated  in  the General  Fund  summary,  the budget  includes  an estimated 5.42%  increase  to health 
insurance premiums and no change in retirement rates.   

$0

$250,000

$500,000

$750,000

$1,000,000

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Budget

2017
Budget

Storm Water Utility Enterprise Fund Revenue

Storm water Contribution from developers

72



 

Operating Expenses 
 
Interdepartmental transfers increased $36,217 from the previous year.  It was found that the fund was 
not covering a portion of  the Public Works administrations and  the billing  clerk  salaries.   Since  these 
individual oversee or perform services for the Fund, it is appropriate to charge for a portion of their time.   
 
Current Year 
 

 
FY 2106
Budget  Change 

FY 2017 
Proposed 

Personnel and benefits   $    130,482 $   14,200 $144,682 

Operations  434,611 46,971 481,582 

Capital  730,393 (684,793) 45,600 

Contributions to reserves  269,907 (56,171) 213,736 

     Total  $1,565,393 ($679,793) $885,600 

 
Prior year comparison with proposed budget: 

 Personnel shifts within funds 

 Increase in interdepartment transfers for employee services 

 Capital requests change annually 
 
Capital Assets 
 
The following storm water projects are included in the FY 2017 budget: 
 

Description 
 

Amount 

Case backhoe  $25,600 

Mini ex trailer  10,000 

GIS software upgrade  10,000 

  $45,600 

 

 
 
   

73



ROY CITY CORPORATION ROY CITY CORPORATION FY 2017 PRELIMINARY BUDGET

Period: 00/16

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 Adjustments 2016-17 FY 2017

Prior Year Current Year Requested To Requested Recommended Budget vs.

Acct No Acct Title Actual Modified Budget Budget Budget Budget FY 2016

51-36-400 GAIN/LOSS ON SALE OF ASSETS .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

51-36-900 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

Total MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE: .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

51-37-310 STORM SEWER UTILITY FEE 835,276.34 835,000.00 840,000.00 .00 840,000.00 5,000.00

51-37-940 USE OF RETAINED EARNINGS .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

Total ENTERPRISE REVENUE: 835,276.34 835,000.00 840,000.00 .00 840,000.00 5,000.00

51-38-300 CONTRIBUTION - PRIVATE SOURCE 17,600.00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

51-38-310 CONTRIBUTION FROM GENERAL F .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

51-38-350 CONTRIBUTION FROM U. E. FUND .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

51-38-700 CONTRB'N FROM RETAINED EARN .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

Total CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS: 17,600.00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

Net Total STORM WATER UTILITY FUND: 852,876.34 835,000.00 840,000.00 .00 840,000.00 5,000.00

74



ROY CITY CORPORATION ROY CITY CORPORATION FY 2017 PRELIMINARY BUDGET

Period: 00/16

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 Adjustments 2016-17 FY 2017

Prior Year Current Year Requested To Requested Recommended Budget vs.

Acct No Acct Title Actual Modified Budget Budget Budget Budget FY 2016

51-40-090 EMPLOYEE WAGE REIMBURSEME .00 .00 .00 (          3,856.00) (          3,856.00) (          3,856.00)

51-40-100 OVERTIME 8,993.69 9,600.00 6,100.00 3,000.00 9,100.00 (             500.00)

51-40-110 PERMANENT EMPLOYEES WAGES 76,154.14 81,652.00 86,547.00 1,732.00 88,279.00 6,627.00

51-40-120 PART-TIME/TEMPORARY WAGES 3,228.77 6,731.00 6,731.00 .00 6,731.00 .00

51-40-130 F.I.C.A. 6,717.87 7,496.00 7,603.00 362.00 7,965.00 469.00

51-40-140 RETIREMENT 11,599.55 16,295.00 16,482.00 861.00 17,343.00 1,048.00

51-40-150 INSURANCE 6,621.32 5,600.00 16,813.00 (             729.00) 16,084.00 10,484.00

51-40-160 WORKMENS COMPENSATION 1,602.22 2,358.00 2,176.00 110.00 2,286.00 (                72.00)

51-40-170 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION .00 150.00 150.00 .00 150.00 .00

51-40-180 UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 550.00 600.00 600.00 .00 600.00 .00

51-40-200 MAINTENANCE 10,406.54 10,000.00 10,000.00 .00 10,000.00 .00

51-40-210 BOOKS, SUBSCRIP., MEMBERSHI 22.25 5,000.00 5,000.00 .00 5,000.00 .00

51-40-220 PUBLIC NOTICES 174.92 500.00 500.00 .00 500.00 .00

51-40-230 TRAVEL/TRAINING EXPENSE 1,557.10 1,850.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 2,000.00 150.00

51-40-240 OFFICE SUPPLIES AND EXPENSE 5,201.36 4,950.00 5,750.00 .00 5,750.00 800.00

51-40-245 PUBLIC EDUCATION 993.53 1,000.00 1,000.00 .00 1,000.00 .00

51-40-250 EQUIPMENT, SUPPLIES & MAINT 6,336.78 6,450.00 6,500.00 .00 6,500.00 50.00

51-40-310 PROFESSIONAL AND TECHNICAL 28,425.59 24,115.00 24,365.00 .00 24,365.00 250.00

51-40-320 PROF & TECHNICAL - INTERDEPAR 59,962.00 59,646.00 92,065.00 1,041.00 93,106.00 33,460.00

51-40-321 PROF & TECHNICAL - INTER W/S .00 .00 7,195.00 (          4,438.00) 2,757.00 2,757.00

51-40-420 FUEL 3,500.50 3,600.00 3,600.00 .00 3,600.00 .00

51-40-430 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 1,746.80 3,000.00 3,000.00 .00 3,000.00 .00

51-40-460 SYSTEMS OPERATIONS EXPENSE 127,248.99 140,000.00 140,000.00 .00 140,000.00 .00

51-40-500 LEASED PROPERTY .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

51-40-571 STREET SWEEPING DISPOSAL .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 4,000.00 5,000.00 4,000.00

51-40-590 UNCOLLECTABLE ACCOUNTS 3,987.52 2,000.00 2,000.00 .00 2,000.00 .00

51-40-620 SUNDRY .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

51-40-670 DEPRECIATION 83,551.06 118,900.00 122,104.00 2,000.00 124,104.00 5,204.00

51-40-690 WATER SAMPLES .00 2,500.00 2,500.00 .00 2,500.00 .00

51-40-930 FRANCHISE FEE 50,116.58 50,100.00 50,400.00 .00 50,400.00 300.00

51-40-940 RETAINED EARNINGS CONTRIBUTI .00 269,907.00 218,819.00 (          5,083.00) 213,736.00 (        56,171.00)

Total OPERATING EXPENDITURES: 498,699.08 835,000.00 840,000.00 .00 840,000.00 5,000.00

75



Roy City Corporation FY 2017 Preliminary Budget 

Tab – Solid W
aste 

Solid Waste Utility Enterprise Fund  

 

 

 

 

 

IN THIS SECTION: 

 Fund Summary 
 Revenues 
 Expenses 

 

76



 

Solid Waste Utility Fund 
 
 
During the spring of FY 2016, the City made a determination to postpone the curb‐side dumpster program.  
This was due to waste water regulations, which would have required substantial changes to the dumpsters 
and the containment area at public works where the containers are stored.   
 
In lieu of that program, the City set up three summer clean‐up periods.  The clean‐ups will occur in April, 
July, and October and run for two weeks, excluding Sundays.  The clean‐up system will be evaluated to 
determine if it is a viable alternative to the dumpster program.   
 
Revenue 
 
Although Waste Management has proposed a small rate  increase, at  this  time we will  leave  the rates 
unchanged as we evaluate the dumpsters and clean‐up program.  A historical summary of fund revenue 
follows: 
 

 
 
The recycling program was implemented in 2014.  Roy City’s contract with Waste Management includes 
a tiered rate schedule which changes with recycling participation.  The City’s policy on recycling includes 
an opt‐out option each June.   
 
Currently  the  recycling  participation  is  at  75%,  which  allows  for  the  lowest  contracted  rate.    It  is 
anticipated that this June, enough customers will opt out of recycling to move the City up to the 50‐75% 
rate tier with Waste Management.  At this time, no rate increase is proposed with the change from the 
dumpster program to a semi‐annual clean‐up. 

$0

$250,000

$500,000

$750,000

$1,000,000

$1,250,000

$1,500,000

$1,750,000

$2,000,000

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Budget

2017
Budget

Water and Sewer Utility Enterprise Fund Revenue

Refuse collection Recycling Other Gain/(loss) on sale

77



 

 

 
Revenue 

FY 2015
Actual 

FY 2016
Budget 

FY 2017 
Budget 

Refuse collection  $1,655,196 $1,675,000 $1,692,000

Recycling  443,514 455,000 440,000

Other  3,985 1,500 1,000

     Total  $2,102,695 $2,131,500 $2,133,000

 
With the changes in the curbside dumpster program, revisiting other aspects of the fund could be done.  
The City survey, which will soon be out, has a question for citizens on whether they would approve a city‐
wide recycling program.  Should the program become city‐wide, there would be a drop in the cost of pick‐
up by Waste Management, and  reduced costs at  the  landfill.   Reduce pricing may make  the program 
desirable to those not currently participating. 
 
Personnel 
 
With  the postponement of  the dumpster program,  there are no employees  in  the Solid Waste Utility 
Enterprise Fund. 
 
Operating Expenditures 
 
Expenses of the fund were cut 1.58% from the prior year.   This  is due to the dumpster program.   Cuts 
included interdepartmental transfer of $8,611; fuel of $5,500; vehicle maintenance of $3,500; and county 
landfill of $30,140.   
 

 

$0

$250,000

$500,000

$750,000

$1,000,000

$1,250,000

$1,500,000

$1,750,000

$2,000,000

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Budget

2017
Budget

Solid Waste Utility Enterprise Fund Expenses

Personnel Operations Depreciation Capital

78



 

The employees used from other departments for the dumpster program, will now be used for the semi‐
annual clean‐ups.   
 
Equipment, supplies, and maintenance  increased by $29,000.   This was done to retrofit the dumpsters 
with  lids and construct a secure sight with a drain at public works, should  the City Council decide the 
dumpster program should continue. 
  
Current Year 
 

 
FY 2106
Budget  Change 

FY 2017 
Proposed 

Personnel and benefits   $     22,918 ($22,918) $               0 

Operations  1,931,120 (21,849) 1,909,271 

Capital    0   0    0 

Contributions to reserves  177,462 46,267 223,729 

     Total  $2,131,500 $    1,500 $2,133,000 

 
Prior year comparison with proposed budget: 

 No personnel hired with discontinuation of dumpster program 

 Interdepartment transfers adjusted for City personnel working the clean‐up 

 Costs included to retrofit dumpsters should the program continue 

 Landfill costs lower with no dumpster program 
 

Capital Assets 
 
No capital purchases are proposed.   

79



ROY CITY CORPORATION ROY CITY CORPORATION FY 2017 PRELIMINARY BUDGET

Period: 00/16

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 Adjustments 2016-17 FY 2017

Prior Year Current Year Requested To Requested Recommended Budget vs.

Acct No Acct Title Actual Modified Budget Budget Budget Budget FY 2016

53-36-400 GAIN/(LOSS) ON SALE OF ASSETS .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

53-36-900 OTHER REVENUE - NOT IDENTIFIE 3,984.83 1,500.00 1,000.00 .00 1,000.00 (             500.00)

Total MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE: 3,984.83 1,500.00 1,000.00 .00 1,000.00 (             500.00)

53-37-710 REFUSE COLLECTION 1,655,195.88 1,675,000.00 1,692,000.00 .00 1,692,000.00 17,000.00

53-37-750 RECYCLING REVENUE 443,513.91 455,000.00 440,000.00 .00 440,000.00 (        15,000.00)

53-37-940 USE OF RETAINED EARNINGS .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

Total ENTERPRISE REVENUE: 2,098,709.79 2,130,000.00 2,132,000.00 .00 2,132,000.00 2,000.00

Net Total SOLID WASTE UTILITY FUND: 2,102,694.62 2,131,500.00 2,133,000.00 .00 2,133,000.00 1,500.00

80



ROY CITY CORPORATION ROY CITY CORPORATION FY 2017 PRELIMINARY BUDGET

Period: 00/16

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 Adjustments 2016-17 FY 2017

Prior Year Current Year Requested To Requested Recommended Budget vs.

Acct No Acct Title Actual Modified Budget Budget Budget Budget FY 2016

53-40-100 OVERTIME 193.21 500.00 .00 .00 .00 (             500.00)

53-40-110 PERMANENT EMPLOYEES WAGES .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

53-40-120 PART-TIME/TEMPORARY WAGES 13,427.88 19,158.00 .00 .00 .00 (        19,158.00)

53-40-130 F.I.C.A. 1,107.42 1,503.00 .00 .00 .00 (          1,503.00)

53-40-140 RETIREMENT .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

53-40-150 INSURANCE .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

53-40-160 WORKMENS COMPENSATION 161.92 257.00 .00 .00 .00 (             257.00)

53-40-170 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION .00 1,500.00 .00 .00 .00 (          1,500.00)

53-40-210 BOOKS, SUBSCRIP., MEMBERSHI 67.53 250.00 225.00 .00 225.00 (                25.00)

53-40-220 PUBLIC NOTICES 179.93 150.00 250.00 .00 250.00 100.00

53-40-230 TRAVEL/TRAINING EXPENSE (             27.96) 900.00 900.00 .00 900.00 .00

53-40-240 OFFICE SUPPLIES 10,128.76 13,000.00 13,000.00 .00 13,000.00 .00

53-40-250 EQUIPMENT SUPPLIES & MAINT 1,422.07 1,800.00 30,800.00 .00 30,800.00 29,000.00

53-40-280 TELEPHONE EXPENSE 0.19 500.00 500.00 .00 500.00 .00

53-40-310 PROFESSIONAL & TECHNICAL SVC 6,492.66 9,200.00 11,500.00 .00 11,500.00 2,300.00

53-40-320 PROF & TECH - INTERDEPARTMEN 107,926.00 122,912.00 73,724.00 20,946.00 94,670.00 (        28,242.00)

53-40-321 PROF & TECH - INTERDEPT W/S U 7,642.00 7,992.00 6,811.00 20,812.00 27,623.00 19,631.00

53-40-360 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 7,429.00 7,032.00 11,274.00 (          3,597.00) 7,677.00 645.00

53-40-420 FUEL 5,286.22 10,000.00 4,500.00 .00 4,500.00 (          5,500.00)

53-40-430 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 1,513.20 9,500.00 6,000.00 .00 6,000.00 (          3,500.00)

53-40-510 INSURANCE 6,175.00 6,094.00 5,806.00 .00 5,806.00 (             288.00)

53-40-560 CONTRACT - RESIDENTIAL PICKUP  643,637.43 690,000.00 689,000.00 .00 689,000.00 (          1,000.00)

53-40-561 CONTRACT - RECYCLING PICK-UP 313,034.60 315,800.00 329,400.00 .00 329,400.00 13,600.00

53-40-570 COUNTY LANDFILL - RESIDENTIAL 464,338.61 478,900.00 459,900.00 .00 459,900.00 (        19,000.00)

53-40-571 COUNTY LANDFILL - DUMPSTER P 50,477.67 41,540.00 11,400.00 .00 11,400.00 (        30,140.00)

53-40-590 UNCOLLECTIBLE ACCOUNTS 3,644.99 10,000.00 5,000.00 .00 5,000.00 (          5,000.00)

53-40-620 SUNDRY CHARGES 21.54 250.00 250.00 .00 250.00 .00

53-40-670 DEPRECIATION 83,993.54 77,500.00 82,950.00 .00 82,950.00 5,450.00

53-40-930 FRANCHISE FEE - SOLID WASTE 125,922.59 127,800.00 127,920.00 .00 127,920.00 120.00

53-40-940 RETAINED EARNINGS .00 177,462.00 261,890.00 (        38,161.00) 223,729.00 46,267.00

Total SOLID WASTE ADMINISTRATION: 1,854,196.00 2,131,500.00 2,133,000.00 .00 2,133,000.00 1,500.00

81



Internal Service Funds 

Roy City Corporation FY 2017 Preliminary Budget 

Tab – Internal Service Funds 

 

 

 

 

 

 

IN THIS SECTION: 

 Fund Summary 

o Information Technology 

o Risk Management 

82



 

BUDGET SUMMARY – INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 

 
 
 
Information Technology Fund 

The Information Technology Fund is an internal service fund that operates for the purpose of providing 
computer hardware, software, and technical support to the various departments of the City.  Funding is 
provided by the General Fund, Water and Sewer Utility Enterprise Fund, and Solid Waste Utility Fund and 
totals $383,869.   
 
Personnel 
 
There are no increases in personnel for this budget year.  As stated above for the General Fund, the budget 
includes a 2.5% merit and a 2.0% cost of living adjustment. 
 
Benefits 
 
As  stated  in  the General  Fund  summary,  the  budget  includes  a  5.42%  increases  to  health  insurance 
premiums and no increase in retirement rates.   
 
Operating Expenses 
 
Some increases occurred in professional and technical fees related to support contracts and subscriptions.   
 
Current Year 
 

 
FY 2106
Budget  Change 

FY 2017 
Proposed 

Personnel and benefits   $169,923 $  4,434 $174,357 

Operations  193,373 32,856 226,229 

Capital  68,925 (11,925) 57,000 

Contributions to reserves    0   0    0 

     Total  $432,221 $25,365 $457,586 

 
Prior year comparison with proposed budget: 

 Equipment and maintenance contract increases 

 Capital request change annually 
 
Capital Assets 
 
Capital outlay includes the following: 
 
 
 
   

83



 

Description 
 

Amount 

Police laptop rotation  $20,000 

Hardware for server repairs  4,500 

Software upgrades  2,500 

Web site design  30,000 

  $57,000 

 
 
 
 
 
 

84



 

Risk Management Fund 

 
The Risk Management Fund is also an internal service fund and is used to account for the cost of insurance 
premiums and claims made against the City.   Money  is accumulated  in  this  fund to pay premiums  for 
liability and property damage insurance and other claims.  The fund is financed by charges made to the 
General Fund, Water and Sewer Utility Enterprise Fund and Solid Waste Utility Fund. 
 
The total operating budget of the Risk Management Fund is $290,300.  The budget request is slightly lower 
than previous years. 
 
The budget includes estimates for claims occurring during the year.  In addition, the City reimburses the 
Utah Risk Management Mutual Association for the settlement of claims.   Large settlements are repaid 
over a five year period.   
 
The  insurance premiums  estimates  approximate  the  amounts  from  the prior  year, with no  increases 
expected.   The budget for claims  is estimated to be  lower than previous years due to the reduction  in 
recaptured losses (the five year payback to URMMA).   
     
Current Year 

 
FY 2106
Budget  Change 

FY 2017 
Proposed 

General risk management  $  22,900 $  4,434 $  22,900 

Insurance premiums  159,700 32,856 159,600 

Claims  122,100   0 107,800 

     Total  $304,700 $25,365 $290,300 

 

 

   

85



Roy City Corporation FY 2017 Preliminary Budget 

Tab – Inform
ation Technology 

Information Technology Fund  

 

 

 

 
 
IN THIS SECTION: 

 Revenues 
 Expenses 

  

86



ROY CITY CORPORATION ROY CITY CORPORATION FY 2017 PRELIMINARY BUDGET

Period: 00/16

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 Adjustments 2016-17 FY 2017

Prior Year Current Year Requested To Requested Recommended Budget vs.

Acct No Acct Title Actual Modified Budget Budget Budget Budget FY 2016

60-38-700 CONTRIBUTION FROM FUND BALA .00 11,675.00 .00 16,717.00 16,717.00 5,042.00

Total CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS: .00 11,675.00 .00 16,717.00 16,717.00 5,042.00

60-39-910 CHARGES FOR DATA PROCESSING 373,558.00 351,621.00 563,701.00 (     179,832.00) 383,869.00 32,248.00

Total SPECIAL FUND REVENUE: 373,558.00 351,621.00 563,701.00 (     179,832.00) 383,869.00 32,248.00

Net Total INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY: 373,558.00 363,296.00 563,701.00 (     163,115.00) 400,586.00 37,290.00

87



ROY CITY CORPORATION ROY CITY CORPORATION FY 2017 PRELIMINARY BUDGET

Period: 00/16

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 Adjustments 2016-17 FY 2017

Prior Year Current Year Requested To Requested Recommended Budget vs.

Acct No Acct Title Actual Modified Budget Budget Budget Budget FY 2016

60-40-090 EMPLOYEE WAGE REIMBURSEME .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

60-40-100 OVERTIME 1,903.40 2,000.00 2,000.00 .00 2,000.00 .00

60-40-110 PERMANENT EMPLOYEES WAGES 106,820.15 108,708.00 115,649.00 (          4,821.00) 110,828.00 2,120.00

60-40-120 PART-TIME/TEMPORARY WAGES .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

60-40-130 F.I.C.A. 7,558.72 8,469.00 9,000.00 (             369.00) 8,631.00 162.00

60-40-140 RETIREMENT 20,081.13 20,447.00 21,730.00 (             891.00) 20,839.00 392.00

60-40-150 INSURANCE 28,111.48 28,186.00 31,055.00 (          1,523.00) 29,532.00 1,346.00

60-40-160 WORKMENS COMPENSATION 1,800.67 2,013.00 2,506.00 (                79.00) 2,427.00 414.00

60-40-170 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION .00 100.00 100.00 .00 100.00 .00

60-40-210 BOOKS, SUBSCRIP., MEMBERSHI 4,400.65 500.00 3,000.00 .00 3,000.00 2,500.00

60-40-220 PUBLIC NOTICES .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

60-40-230 TRAVEL/TRAINING EXPENSE 3,490.00 3,500.00 3,500.00 .00 3,500.00 .00

60-40-240 OFFICE SUPPLIES & EXPENSE 130.89 300.00 300.00 .00 300.00 .00

60-40-280 TELEPHONE EXPENSE 864.08 900.00 1,380.00 .00 1,380.00 480.00

60-40-300 SYSTEM SUPPLIES & MAINTENAN 41,638.62 45,099.00 45,400.00 .00 45,400.00 301.00

60-40-310 PROFESSIONAL & TECHNICAL SVC 76,204.34 75,248.00 94,231.00 3,951.00 98,182.00 22,934.00

60-40-420 FUEL 258.80 500.00 500.00 .00 500.00 .00

60-40-430 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 25.00 551.00 250.00 .00 250.00 (             301.00)

60-40-550 DEPRECIATION 65,105.99 66,775.00 106,717.00 (        33,000.00) 73,717.00 6,942.00

60-40-620 SUNDRY CHARGES .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

Total OPERATING EXPENDITURES: 358,393.92 363,296.00 437,318.00 (        36,732.00) 400,586.00 37,290.00

60-48-800 APPROPR. INCREASE IN FUND BA .00 .00 126,383.00 (     126,383.00) .00 .00

Total TRANSFERS & OTHER USES: .00 .00 126,383.00 (     126,383.00) .00 .00

Net Total INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY: (   358,393.92) (     363,296.00) (     563,701.00) 163,115.00 (     400,586.00) (        37,290.00)

88



Roy City Corporation FY 2017 Preliminary Budget 

Tab – Risk M
anagem

ent 

Risk Management Fund 
 

 

 

 

 
 
IN THIS SECTION: 

 Revenues 
 Expenses 

 

89



ROY CITY CORPORATION ROY CITY CORPORATION FY 2017 PRELIMINARY BUDGET

Period: 00/16

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 Adjustments 2016-17 FY 2017

Prior Year Current Year Requested To Requested Recommended Budget vs.

Acct No Acct Title Actual Modified Budget Budget Budget Budget FY 2016

63-39-920 CHARGES FOR INSURANCE COVER 308,725.00 304,700.00 290,300.00 .00 290,300.00 (        14,400.00)

Total SPECIAL FUND REVENUE: 308,725.00 304,700.00 290,300.00 .00 290,300.00 (        14,400.00)

Net Total RISK MANAGEMENT FUND: 308,725.00 304,700.00 290,300.00 .00 290,300.00 (        14,400.00)

90



ROY CITY CORPORATION ROY CITY CORPORATION FY 2017 PRELIMINARY BUDGET

Period: 00/16

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 Adjustments 2016-17 FY 2017

Prior Year Current Year Requested To Requested Recommended Budget vs.

Acct No Acct Title Actual Modified Budget Budget Budget Budget FY 2016

63-40-210 BOOKS, SUBSCRIP., MEMBERSHI .00 450.00 450.00 .00 450.00 .00

63-40-220 PERSONNEL TRAINING MATERIAL .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

63-40-230 TRAVEL/TRAINING .00 1,650.00 1,650.00 .00 1,650.00 .00

63-40-240 INCENTIVE PROGRAMS - RISK MG 1,536.15 1,800.00 1,800.00 .00 1,800.00 .00

63-40-250 PRE-EMPLOYMENT EXP - ADMIN 9,348.00 8,000.00 8,000.00 .00 8,000.00 .00

63-40-490 GENERAL RISK MANAGEMENT 8,542.96 11,000.00 11,000.00 .00 11,000.00 .00

63-40-500 INSURANCE PREMIUMS 151,418.30 159,700.00 159,600.00 .00 159,600.00 (             100.00)

63-40-510 ADMIN EXPENDITURES .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

63-40-660 REIMBURSEMENT-PRESCIP SAFE .00 100.00 100.00 .00 100.00 .00

63-40-680 RESERVES FOR CLAIMS 87,503.65 122,000.00 107,700.00 .00 107,700.00 (        14,300.00)

Total OPERATING EXPENDITURES: 258,349.06 304,700.00 290,300.00 .00 290,300.00 (        14,400.00)

91



Roy City Corporation FY 2017 Preliminary Budget 

Tab – Special Revenue Funds 

Special Revenue Funds  

 

 

 

 

 

IN THIS SECTION: 

 Fund Summary 

o Storm Sewer Development 

o Park Development 

o Cemetery 

92



 

BUDGET SUMMARY – SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

 
 
 
Storm Sewer Development Fund 
 
Revenue  in  the  Storm  Sewer Development  Fund  is  generated  from  impact  fees  charged  on  building 
permits.  Revenue for FY 2017 is based on the construction of 20 new homes at $750 per home and some 
commercial development.  The commercial development fees are based on the size of the construction 
and exceed the $750 fee.  
 

 
Revenue 

FY 2015
Actual 

FY 2016
Budget 

FY 2017 
Budget 

Storm sewer fees  $74,390 $ 20,000 $ 25,000

Interest  1,030 750 1,000

Contribution from fund balance   0 140,000 143,000

     Total  $75,420 $160,750 $169,000

 
Monies  in  the  fund  are  used  for  constructing  and maintaining  storm  sewer  systems within  the  City.    
Capital outlay includes the following: 
 

Description 
 

Amount 

4800 S 3500 W storm drain  $169,000 

 
 
 
Park Development Fund 
 
Revenue for the Park Development Fund is also generated from impact fees charged on building permits 
and is estimated to be $20,000.  The impact fee is $1,000 per building lot and is not charged to commercial 
development. 
 

 
Revenue 

FY 2015
Actual 

FY 2016
Budget 

FY 2017 
Budget 

Park development fees  $23,000 $20,000 $25,000

Interest  693 600 1,000

     Total  $23,693 $20,600 $26,000

 
Monies in the fund are used to improve or construct park facilities within the City.  Capital projects within 
the Fund include: 
 
 
 

93



 

Description 
 

Amount 

West Park playground   $  5,000 

West Park partition  5,000 

West Park swing set  5,000 

  $15,000 

 
 
Cemetery Perpetual Fund 
 
The Cemetery Fund is used to account for monies held to expand and maintain the City cemetery.  The 
City retains 20% from the sale of each cemetery lot for future use.   All of the plot available in the cemetery 
have been sold, and therefore not budget has been set for the Fund. 
 
There is currently no plan for expansion of the cemetery. 
 
 

94



Roy City Corporation FY 2017 Preliminary Budget 

Tab – Storm
 Sew

er Developm
ent 

Storm Sewer Development Fund 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
IN THIS SECTION: 

 Revenues 
 Expenses

95



ROY CITY CORPORATION ROY CITY CORPORATION FY 2017 PRELIMINARY BUDGET

Period: 00/16

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 Adjustments 2016-17 FY 2017

Prior Year Current Year Requested To Requested Recommended Budget vs.

Acct No Acct Title Actual Modified Budget Budget Budget Budget FY 2016

67-34-100 STORM SEWER DEVELOPMENT FE 74,390.44 20,000.00 25,000.00 .00 25,000.00 5,000.00

67-34-330 SEWER CONNECTION FEE .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

Total CHARGES FOR SERVICES: 74,390.44 20,000.00 25,000.00 .00 25,000.00 5,000.00

67-36-100 INTEREST EARNINGS 1,030.26 750.00 1,000.00 .00 1,000.00 250.00

67-36-900 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

Total MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE: 1,030.26 750.00 1,000.00 .00 1,000.00 250.00

67-38-700 CONTRIBUTION FROM FUND BALA .00 140,000.00 .00 143,000.00 143,000.00 3,000.00

Total CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS: .00 140,000.00 .00 143,000.00 143,000.00 3,000.00

Net Total STORM SEWER DEVELOPMENT: 75,420.70 160,750.00 26,000.00 143,000.00 169,000.00 8,250.00

96



ROY CITY CORPORATION ROY CITY CORPORATION FY 2017 PRELIMINARY BUDGET

Period: 00/16

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 Adjustments 2016-17 FY 2017

Prior Year Current Year Requested To Requested Recommended Budget vs.

Acct No Acct Title Actual Modified Budget Budget Budget Budget FY 2016

67-40-200 MAINTENANCE .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

67-40-310 CAPITAL PROJECTS 65,150.11 140,000.00 .00 169,000.00 169,000.00 29,000.00

67-40-320 CONTRIBUTION TO FUND BALANC .00 20,750.00 26,000.00 (        26,000.00) .00 (        20,750.00)

67-40-740 NEW EQUIPMENT .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

Total OPERATING EXPENDITURES: 65,150.11 160,750.00 26,000.00 143,000.00 169,000.00 8,250.00

97



Roy City Corporation FY 2017 Preliminary Budget 

Tab - Park Developm
ent 

Park Development Fund  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
IN THIS SECTION: 

 Revenues 
 Expenses

98



ROY CITY CORPORATION ROY CITY CORPORATION FY 2017 PRELIMINARY BUDGET

Period: 00/16

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 Adjustments 2016-17 FY 2017

Prior Year Current Year Requested To Requested Recommended Budget vs.

Acct No Acct Title Actual Modified Budget Budget Budget Budget FY 2016

68-34-100 PARK DEVELOPMENT FEES 23,000.00 20,000.00 25,000.00 .00 25,000.00 5,000.00

Total CHARGES FOR SERVICES: 23,000.00 20,000.00 25,000.00 .00 25,000.00 5,000.00

68-36-100 INTEREST EARNINGS 692.58 600.00 1,000.00 .00 1,000.00 400.00

Total MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE: 692.58 600.00 1,000.00 .00 1,000.00 400.00

68-38-110 EQUITY TRANSFER - CAP PROJ FN .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

68-38-130 TRANSFER FROM GENERAL FUND .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

68-38-400 CONTRIBUTION - OTHER GOVT UNI .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

68-38-700 CONTRIBUTION FROM FUND BALA .00 .00 (        26,000.00) 26,000.00 .00 .00

Total CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS: .00 .00 (        26,000.00) 26,000.00 .00 .00

Net Total PARK DEVELOPMENT: 23,692.58 20,600.00 .00 26,000.00 26,000.00 5,400.00

99



ROY CITY CORPORATION ROY CITY CORPORATION FY 2017 PRELIMINARY BUDGET

Period: 00/16

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 Adjustments 2016-17 FY 2017

Prior Year Current Year Requested To Requested Recommended Budget vs.

Acct No Acct Title Actual Modified Budget Budget Budget Budget FY 2016

68-40-200 MAINTENANCE .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

68-40-300 PROFESSIONAL & TECHNICAL SVC .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

68-40-310 CAPITAL PROJECTS 56,077.20 20,000.00 .00 15,000.00 15,000.00 (          5,000.00)

68-40-320 CONTRIBUTION TO FUND BALANC .00 600.00 .00 11,000.00 11,000.00 10,400.00

68-40-710 LAND PURCHASE .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

68-40-740 NEW EQUIPMENT .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

68-40-780 A.D.A. IMPROVEMENTS .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

68-40-920 TRANSFER TO GENERAL FUND .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

68-40-930 TRANSFER TO CAPITAL PROJECTS .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

Total OPERATING EXPENDITURES: 56,077.20 20,600.00 .00 26,000.00 26,000.00 5,400.00

100



Roy City Corporation FY 2017 Preliminary Budget 

Tab - Cem
etery 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
IN THIS SECTION: 

 Revenues 
 Expenses 

 

  

Cemetery Perpetual Fund 

101



ROY CITY CORPORATION ROY CITY CORPORATION FY 2017 PRELIMINARY BUDGET

Period: 00/16

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 Adjustments 2016-17 FY 2017

Prior Year Current Year Requested To Requested Recommended Budget vs.

Acct No Acct Title Actual Modified Budget Budget Budget Budget FY 2016

75-36-100 INTEREST EARNINGS .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

75-36-820 SALES OF LOTS 95.00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

Total MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE: 95.00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

Net Total CEMETERY FUND: 95.00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

102



ROY CITY CORPORATION ROY CITY CORPORATION FY 2017 PRELIMINARY BUDGET

Period: 00/16

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 Adjustments 2016-17 FY 2017

Prior Year Current Year Requested To Requested Recommended Budget vs.

Acct No Acct Title Actual Modified Budget Budget Budget Budget FY 2016

75-40-260 BUILDING,GROUNDS,SUPPLY MAI .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

75-40-740 EQUIPMENT .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

Total OPERATING EXPENDITURES: .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

75-48-800 APPROPR. INCREASE IN FUND BA .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

Total TRANSFERS & OTHER USES: .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

Net Total CEMETERY FUND: .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

103



RESOLUTION NO. 16-23 
A Resolution Providing Tentative Approval of the  

Fiscal Year 2017 City Budget 
 
 
 
Whereas, the Roy City Council on June 7, 2016, held a public hearing to determine the revenue and 

expenditure budgets for all budgetary funds; and 
 
Whereas, the City has followed all procedures required by the Utah State Code for developing an annual 

budget; and 
 
Whereas, the City has not yet received the certified tax rate from the Weber County Auditor and will estimate 

tax revenue for the fiscal year 2017 budget at $3,756,568; 
 
Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved by the Roy City Council that the operating debt service and capital budgets for 

Roy City be hereby adopted for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2017, in the amounts as follows: 
 

 
 

Fund 

 
 

Operations 

 
Debt 

Service 

 
 

Capital 

Increase 
Fund 

Balance 

 
 

Total 
      
General $15,428,294 $119,939 $1,974,645 $               - $17,522,878 

Class C Roads 1,010,000 - 155,318 142,682 1,308,000 

Transportation Infrastructure - - 393,000 - 393,000 

Capital Projects 3,500 - 653,000 185,500 842,000 

Water & Sewer Utility 6,909,800 571,140 1,172,640 - 8,653,580 

Storm Water Utility 626,264 - 45,600 213,736 885,600 

Solid Waste Utility 1,909,271 - - 223,729 2,133,000 

Storm Sewer Development - - 169,000 - 169,000 

Park Development - - 15,000 11,000 26,000 

Cemetery Perpetual  - - - - - 
      
 $25,887,129 $691,079 $4,578,203 $776,647 $31,933,058 

 
 
Be It Further Resolved that the Information Technology and Risk Management Funds, which are Internal 

Service Funds and are budgeted as transfers out of the General and Utility Enterprise Funds be 
allocated $400,586 and $290,300, respectively, and 

 
Be It Further Resolved by the Roy City Council that capital expenditures within the Information Technology 

Fund be established and allocated $57,000, and 
 
Be It Further Resolved that the property tax levy for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2016 is anticipated to be 

$3,756,568, an increase to the prior year tax levy, and 
 
Be It Further Resolved that utility rates for water and sewer will increase as a result of increases from 



contractors providing the services to Roy City, and 
 
Be It Further Resolved that the City reorganize staff structuring in the Legal, Finance, Building Maintenance, 

Fire, Community Development, Fleet Services, and Aquatic Center to better allow for the delivery of  
services provided by those Departments, and 

 
Be It Further Resolved that eligible employees be given up to a 2.5% merit upon passing their annual 

evaluation, and  
 
Be It Further Resolved that employees receive a 2.0% cost of living adjustment effective July 9, 2016, and   
 
Be It Further Resolved that the City Council set the level of General Fund reserves at approximately 18% and 

this is achieved within the budget by the purchase of capital assets, and  
 
Be It Further Resolved that a copy of the budget as herein adopted be attached hereto, and that the budget 

and resolution be certified and filed with the State Auditor, and the required certification of tax rate 
along with a copy of this resolution and budget be filed with the County Auditor in accordance with the 
applicable provisions of State Law. 

 
Approved and adopted by the Roy City Council on the 7th day of June, 2016. 
 

________________________________ 
Willard S. Cragun, Mayor 

 
Attested and Recorded: 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Amy Mortenson, City Recorder 
 
 
 
Council Members Voting “Aye”  Council Members Voting “Nay” 
 
________________________________  ________________________________ 

________________________________  ________________________________ 

________________________________  ________________________________ 

________________________________  ________________________________ 

________________________________  ________________________________ 



 

 

STAFF REPORT 
 City Council 

 

5051 South 1900 West;  Roy, Utah 84067  ║  Telephone (801) 774-1040  ║  Fax (801) 774-1030 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
SYNOPSIS              

 

Application Information     
 

Applicant: Steve Parkinson 
 

Request: To amend the Roy City Municipal Code; Title 10 regarding Chickens and Rabbits 
within all Single-Family Residential Districts. 

 

Staff      
 

Report By: Steve Parkinson; Planning & Zoning Administrator 
 
APPLICABLE ORDINANCES            

 

• Roy City Zoning Code; Title 10 chapter 11 – Supplemental Development Standards 
• Roy City Zoning Code; Title 10 chapter 17 – Table of Uses 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION           
 

The Planning Commission held a Public Hearing during the May 10, 2016 meeting, the hearing was opened for 
public comments, which were as follows: 

 

• Dustin Kurns, 5687 South 2650 West, was pleased that the City was going to allow chickens and rabbits 
in single-family residential zones. Most rabbits had litters that were larger than six. What did homeowners 
do with litters that exceeded the maximum number of six? Commissioner Kirch said the Planning 
Commission had discussed how to handle offspring. The City’s Animal Control Ordinance did not county 
young until they were weaned. At that point, a homeowner would have to make sure to comply with the 
limit of six. 
 

• Greg Sagen, 4027 West 4900 South, thanked and congratulated the Planning Commission. The proposed 
ordinance looked good. However, he was concerned about the need to obtain a permit and what the 
permit fee might be. The permit fee for bees was $10. He felt the permit fee for chickens and rabbits 
should be $5. 
 

• Becky Bluemel, 3877 South 2225 West, stated that she almost didn’t move to Roy because of the chicken 
issue. She used to live in Vancouver, Washington were chickens were allowed. She was concerned about 
the amount of government oversight in the proposed ordinance. She did not see the need for site plans 
or permits. She felt they would be deterrents. Vancouver did not require permits. She asked Vancouver’s 
Animal Control if they received many complaints about chickens. They got some but not many. The 
complaints were usually about roosters. It would be nice to be able to do whatever she wanted in her 
own backyard. She hoped Roy City could lessen the oversight. 
 

• Jeremy Berger, 3477 West 4975 South, was excited about the new regulations. He asked how the 
enclosure standards would apply to commercial coops. Commissioner Kirch said the ordinance listed 
minimum requirements. 

 

With no additional comments the public hearing was closed. 
 
After a small discussion (see Exhibit “B”; for details), the Commission voted of 7-0 to recommend approval of 
the request to amend the Roy City Municipal Code; Title 10 regarding Chickens and Rabbits within all Single-
Family Residential Districts. 
 

ANALYSIS              
 

Background: This item was originally brought to the Planning Commission on July 25, 2012.  The Commission 

June 7, 2016 
 



 

2 

held several meetings (July 25, 2012; August 14, 2012; August 28, 2012; September 11, 2012; September 25, 
2012; October 9, 2012; December 4, 2012; and February 12, 2013) after eight (8) meetings the item was then 
forwarded to the City Council with a recommendation of approval from the Planning Commission.  The 
Council heard this item on February 19, 2013 and denied the request. 
 
Now jump ahead three years, and after several inquiries for the Council to reconsider, and an almost successful 
attempt to put the item on the ballot during the 2015 elections, the Planning Commission has again had a few 
more meetings (February 23, 2016 and April 26, 2016) on the topic of allowing chickens & rabbits in the Single-
family residential zones. 
 
Process:  Text amendments require public hearing at the Planning Commission.  A recommendation will then 
be forwarded to the City Council for review and a final decision.  If the Planning Commission approves language 
to be added or text to be changed, staff will put those recommended changes into a “Proposed Ordinance” 
format to be presented to the Council.  That ordinance, if approved, can then be adopted, officially amending 
the text.   
 
Proposed changes:  It is proposed to add the following language.  Typically the language that is to be removed 
has been struck through and the language to be added is bolded.  Is this case nothing is being removed, and 
everything is being added, therefore the language to be added will not be bolded.  See exhibit “A” for the 
proposed changes. 
 

FINDINGS              
 

• The proposed amendments of Title 9, chapter 4 and title 10, chapter 20 and the creation of Title 13 are 
consistent and in accordance to the discussions of the Planning Commission. 

 
ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS            
 

The City Council can Approve as written, Approve with changes, Table or Deny. 
 
EXHIBITS              
 

A. Originally Proposed Ordinance 
B. Planning Commission minutes of Public Hearing (May 10, 2016) 
C. April 22, 2016 – Memo to Planning Commission 
D. February 19, 2016 – Memo to Planning Commission 
E. Ordinance 16-3 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

3 

EXHIBIT “A” – ORIGINAL PROPOSED ORDINANCE        
 

The purpose of this section is to provide supplementary regulations for the keeping of Chickens/Rabbits in the 
single family zoning districts of the city. It shall be unlawful to keep Chickens/Rabbits in the R-1-6, R-1-7, R-1-8, R-
1-10 and R-1-15 zones except as provided in this section. 
 

1)  Allowance- All single-family residential properties in the R-1-6, R-1-7, R-1-8, R-1-10 and R-1-15 zones that 
have 8,000 square feet on their property, shall be allowed to have up to six (6) Chickens (excluding roosters 
and crowing hens), or six (6) rabbits, or a combination of Chickens or Rabbits not to exceed six (6). This 
would exclude dependent young. 

2)  Permit required- A city permit is required for the keeping of any animal or animals under this section. 
Permits may only be issued to the property owner of record. 
1. Fee. The permit fee shall be set forth in the adopted Fee Schedule of the City. 
2. Renewal. All permits issued under this section are subject to annual inspection and renewal. 
3. Inspection. Inspections related to a permit issued under this section must be permitted as deemed 

necessary by the City. 
4. Revocation. A permit may be revoked by the City for any violation of this section at any time. 
5. Transfer of Permits. Permits under this section are issued to property owners of specific lots and may 

not be transferred or assigned to other persons or properties when ownership or residency changes. 
6. Notice to Adjacent Neighbors. Upon receiving an application under this section, the Zoning 

Administrator shall cause notice of the application to be sent by mail to all owners of property 
immediately adjacent to the subject property. 

7. Site Plan. An application for a permit under this section must be accompanied by a site plan indicating 
the lot, the primary residence, and the proposed placement of the structures in compliance with the 
requirements of this section. 

8. Zoning Administrator. The Zoning Administrator or his or her designee shall be responsible for the 
review of applications, issuance or denial of permits, inspections, renewals, investigation of 
complaints, and revocation of permits when necessary. 

3)  Regulations for the keeping of Hens and Rabbits - The issuance of a permit for the keeping of non-
crowing, egg-laying Hens and/or Rabbits under this section shall be predicated upon compliance with 
the following. 
a. Roosters. Roosters and crowing hens of all kinds are prohibited 
b. Personal Use Only. The keeping of hens or rabbits is intended only for pleasure or family food 

production (eggs/meat). No sale of any kind or slaughter is permitted. 
c. Enclosure Standards. All animals must be contained within an enclosure or fenced area at all times. 

Such an area shall be entirely with the rear yard. No enclosures will be permitted in the front or side 
yards. 
1) Structure- All animals kept under this section shall be housed within a covered, predator proof and 

well ventilated coop or hutch. The structure must provide a minimum of three square feet per 
animal, with a minimum of six (6) square feet of floor area per chicken to allow for free movement 
inside the coop. No coop or hutch may exceed seven (7) feet in height. Coops, hutches and 
enclosures shall have solid walls on all sides, except for opening for access, must have a solid roof, 
and built to prevent intrusion, including burrowing of all types of rodents, vermin, and predatory 
animals. 

2) Location. All structures provided under this section shall be located a minimum of thirty (30) feet 
from any dwelling on an adjacent lot, ten (10) feet from any property line and ten (10) feet from any 
dwelling on the same lot. 

3) Maintenance. . Coops, hutches and enclosures shall be cleaned and maintained as necessary to 
prevent detectable odor at the property line. All coops or hutches must be maintained in good 
repair and painted or stained annually. 

4) Screening. Hens shall not be permitted to roam outside the screened yard area of the coop 
5) Feed. Feed for animals kept under this section must be stored and dispensed in rodent proof, 

predator-proof containers. 
6) Wastewater. Wastewater from the use of the animals or related to the maintenance of the 

structure shall be retained or disposed of entirely on the property. 



 

4 

EXHIBIT “B” – PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES OF PUBLIC HEARING (MAY 10, 2016)   
 

3. PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER A REQUEST TO AMEND THE ZONING CODE (SECTION 1111 
AND TABLE 17-1) REGARDING THE ALLOWANCE OF CHICKENS/RABBITS WITHIN THE 
SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS 

 
Steve Parkinson stated that since February the Planning Commission had discussed an amendment to 
the Zoning Ordinance to allow chickens and rabbits in single-family residential zones as directed by the 
City Council. The proposed regulations would allow a maximum of six chickens or six rabbits, or a 
combination of the two, on lots with at least 8,000 square feet in the R-1-6, R-1-7, R-1-8, R-1-10, and R-
1-15 Zones. Roosters would not be permitted. Anyone that wanted to have chickens or rabbits in single-
family residential zones would be required to obtain a permit. The permit would be renewed annually and 
could not be transferred from one person to another. A site plan showing the location of the coop or 
hutch would be required with the permit application. Adjoining property owners would be notified. 
Chickens or rabbits would only be permitted in fenced back yards. Chickens would be able to roam free 
in fenced yards; rabbits would have to remain in hutches. Mr. Parkinson said the proposed amendment 
would add Section 1111 – Supplementary Regulations allowing for the keeping of chickens/rabbits in the 
Single-Family Residential Zones – to Chapter 11 and the use - Limited Domestic Livestock and Fowl – to 
Table 17-1 in Section 1701 of the Zoning Ordinance.  
 
Commissioner Nandell stated that the word slaughter needed to be removed from Section 2A. 
 
Commissioner Kirch asked why the Use - Limited Domestic Livestock and Fowl was prohibited in the RE-
20 Zone. Mr. Parkinson said the regulations for limited domestic livestock and fowl were different than 
the regulations for animals that already existed in the RE-20 Zone. 
 
Commissioner Kirch felt the wording of the last sentence in the enclosure regulations for rabbits was a 
little odd. It said, “Do not put rabbits together after they are 3 months of age.”  Mr. Parkinson said 
language could be added explaining that rabbits were old enough to breed at three months. She 
suggested wording like rabbits should not be housed in the same cage. 
 
Commissioner Kirch moved to open the public hearing at 6:10 p.m. Commissioner Paul seconded 
the motion. Commissioners Karras, Kirch, Nandell, Ohlin, Paul, Payne, and Sphar voted “aye.” 
The motion carried. 
 
Chairman Ohlin opened the floor for public comments. 
 
Dustin Kurns, 5687 South 2650 West, was pleased that the City was going to allow chickens and rabbits 
in single-family residential zones. Most rabbits had litters that were larger than six. What did homeowners 
do with litters that exceeded the maximum number of six? Commissioner Kirch said the Planning 
Commission had discussed how to handle offspring. The City’s Animal Control Ordinance did not county 
young until they were weaned. At that point, a homeowner would have to make sure to comply with the 
limit of six. 
 
Greg Sagen, 4027 West 4900 South, thanked and congratulated the Planning Commission. The 
proposed ordinance looked good. However, he was concerned about the need to obtain a permit and 
what the permit fee might be. The permit fee for bees was $10. He felt the permit fee for chickens and 
rabbits should be $5. 
 
Becky Bluemel, 3877 South 2225 West, stated that she almost didn’t move to Roy because of the 
chicken issue. She used to live in Vancouver, Washington were chickens were allowed. She was 
concerned about the amount of government oversight in the proposed ordinance. She did not see the 
need for site plans or permits. She felt they would be deterrents. Vancouver did not require permits. She 
asked Vancouver’s Animal Control if they received many complaints about chickens. They got some but 
not many. The complaints were usually about roosters. It would be nice to be able to do whatever she 



 

5 

wanted in her own backyard. She hoped Roy City could lessen the oversight. 
 
Jeremy Berger, 3477 West 4975 South, was excited about the new regulations. He asked how the 
enclosure standards would apply to commercial coops. Commissioner Kirch said the ordinance listed 
minimum requirements. 
 
Commissioner Kirch moved to close the public hearing at 6:17 p.m. Commissioner Karras 
seconded the motion. Commissioners Karras, Kirch, Nandell, Ohlin, Paul, Payne, and Sphar 
voted “aye.” The motion carried. 
 
Commissioner Kirch asked for a clarification about the regulations for young. Steve Parkinson said 
chicks and litters would be similar to dogs and cats. Young were not included in the Zoning Ordinance. 
An animal was not considered an adult until it was weaned. 
 
Commissioner Kirch stated that a site plan could be a simple drawing. She asked if the regulations could 
specify that the site plan could be simple. Mr. Parkinson said the regulations would have to define 
simple. He told people that the site plan did not have to be completed by a professional.  It simply 
needed to show dimensions. 
 
Chairman Ohlin agreed that the proposed ordinance contained too much government oversight. 
Farmington did not require a site plan or permit. Their ordinance simply stated the maximum number 
allowed. She felt a permit was unnecessary. If a permit was required, the fee needed to be a minimal as 
possible. 
 
There was a discussion about permits and fees. 
 
Commissioner Kirch felt the regulations needed some administration or chickens and rabbits would 
become carte blanche. Chickens and rabbits were being allowed in residential areas where housing was 
closer together. Permits would provide citizens with guidance. 
 
Commissioner Paul stated that the City was going from nothing to free range chickens in back yards. He 
felt the Council would have a problem with free range chickens. The ordinance originally proposed by the 
Council allowed chickens in enclosures only. He agreed with all of the proposed regulations but the free 
ranging. Some members of the Council supported chickens and rabbits in single-family residential zones, 
but allowing chickens to roam free was swinging the pendulum too far. 
 
Commissioner Karras was comfortable with the proposed regulations. The City Council could change 
anything they did not like. 
 
Commissioner Kirch moved to recommend that the City Council amend the Roy City Municipal 
Code Title 10 by adding Section 1111 and a use category in Table 17-1 allowing chickens and 
rabbits in single-family residential zones as discussed and based on the staff’s findings and 
recommendations. Commissioner Karras seconded the motion. A roll call vote was taken: 
Commissioners Nandell, Payne, Paul, Kirch, Sphar, Karras, and Ohlin voted “aye.” The motion 
carried. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

6 

EXHIBIT “C” – APRIL 22, 2016 – MEMO TO PLANNING COMMISSION      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Date:  22 April 2016 
 

To:  Planning Commission 
 

From:  Steve Parkinson – Planning & Zoning Administrator 
 

Subject: Agenda Items # 3 
 
 
Discussion on a proposed amendment to the Zoning Code regarding Chickens & Rabbits 
 
I have attached the proposed ordinance that we went over during our last work-session, along with some 
clarification notes (in red).  I have attached research materials that Commissioners Kirch and Karras found online.  
I have also attached the minutes from our last work-session (February 23, 2016) 
 
 
Proposed Ordinance for Chickens/Rabbits in Roy City 
 
The purpose of this section is to provide supplementary regulations for the keeping of Chickens/Rabbits in the 
single family zoning districts of the city. It shall be unlawful to keep Chickens/Rabbits in the R-1-6, R-1-7, R-1-8, R-
1-10 and R-1-15 zones except as provided in this section. 
 
A)  Allowance- All single-family residential properties in the R-1-6, R-1-7, R-1-8, R-1-10 and R-1-15 zones that 

have 8,000 square feet on their property, shall be allowed to have up to six (6) Chickens (excluding roosters 
and crowing hens), or six (6) rabbits, or a combination of Chickens or Rabbits not to exceed six (6). This 
would exclude dependent young. 

B)  Permit required- A city permit is required for the keeping of any animal or animals under this section. 
Permits may only be issued to the property owner of record. 
1. Fee. The permit fee shall be set forth in the adopted Fee Schedule of the City. 
2. Renewal. All permits issued under this section are subject to annual inspection and renewal. 
3. Inspection. Inspections related to a permit issued under this section must be permitted as deemed 

necessary by the City.  (Similarly to Bees, the City inspects upon application, upon renewal of license and 
when there is a compliant) 

4. Revocation. A permit may be revoked by the City for any violation of this section at any time. 
5. Transfer of Permits. Permits under this section are issued to property owners of specific lots and may 

not be transferred or assigned to other persons or properties when ownership or residency changes. 
6. Notice to Adjacent Neighbors. Upon receiving an application under this section, the Zoning 

Administrator shall cause notice of the application to be sent by mail to all owners of property 
immediately adjacent to the subject property.  (Similarly to Bees, the neighbors are notified of the use, they 
may call but cannot supersede the ordinance) 

7. Site Plan. An application for a permit under this section must be accompanied by a site plan indicating 
the lot, the primary residence, and the proposed placement of the structures in compliance with the 
requirements of this section.  (Similarly to Bees, it’s to identify where the coop/run will be located on the 
property) 

8. Zoning Administrator. The Zoning Administrator or his or her designee shall be responsible for the 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
 

MEMO 



 

7 

review of applications, issuance or denial of permits, inspections, renewals, investigation of 
complaints, and revocation of permits when necessary. 

C)  Regulations for the keeping of Chickens and Rabbits –  
1) Chickens: The issuance of a permit for the keeping of non-crowing, egg-laying Hens under this 

section shall be predicated upon compliance with the following. 
d. Roosters. Roosters and crowing hens of all kinds are prohibited 
e. Personal Use Only. The keeping of hens is intended only for pleasure or family food production 

(eggs/meat). No sale of any kind or slaughter is permitted. 
f. Enclosure Standards. All animals must be contained within an enclosure or fenced area at all times. 

Such an area shall be entirely with the rear yard. No enclosures will be permitted in the front or 
side yards. 
1) Structure- All animals kept under this section shall be housed within a covered, predator proof 

and well ventilated coop or hutch. The structure must provide a minimum of three square feet 
per animal, with a minimum of six (6) square feet of floor area per chicken to allow for free 
movement inside the coop. No coop or hutch may exceed seven (7) feet in height. Coops, 
hutches and enclosures shall have solid walls on all sides, except for opening for access, must 
have a solid roof, and built to prevent intrusion, including burrowing of all types of rodents, 
vermin, and predatory animals.  (It was discussed to require the coop to be 2 sq.-ft. per chicken and 
allow a maximum of 150 sq.-ft run) 

2) Location-  All structures provided under this section shall be located a minimum of thirty (30) 
feet from any dwelling on an adjacent lot, ten (10) feet from any property line and ten (10) feet 
from any dwelling on the same lot. 

3) Maintenance- Coops, hutches and enclosures shall be cleaned and maintained as necessary to 
prevent detectable odor at the property line. All coops or hutches must be maintained in good 
repair and painted or stained annually.  

4) Screening- Hens shall not be permitted to roam outside the screened yard area of the coop.  
(If it is required that chickens be within a coop/run then this item isn’t an issue.  It would only be an 
issue if they are allowed to roam around the yard, outside of their coop) 

5) Feed- Feed for animals kept under this section must be stored and dispensed in rodent proof, 
predator-proof containers. 

6) Wastewater- Wastewater from the use of the animals or related to the maintenance of the 
structure shall be retained or disposed of entirely on the property. 

7) Disposal of Animals- 
2) Rabbits: The issuance of a permit for the keeping of Rabbits under this section shall be predicated 

upon compliance with the following. 
a. Personal Use Only. The keeping of rabbits is intended only for pleasure.  No sale of any kind or 

slaughter is permitted. 
b. Enclosure Standards. All animals must be contained within an enclosure or fenced area at all times. 

Such an area shall be entirely with the rear yard. No enclosures will be permitted in the front or 
side yards. 
1) Structure-  
2) Location- 
3) Maintenance- 
4) Screening- 
5) Feed- 
6) Wastewater- 
7) Disposal of Animals- 

 
Rabbit research: 
 
Commissioner Kirch provided the following: 
 

After looking around for information concerning pen size and other requirements, it might be best if we just 
put limitations on where they could be and minimum requirements (not maximum, other than height).   



 

8 

Below is a link to a PDF with great information.  However, according to breed rabbits need more or less 
space.  
 
Also, we need to address litters of rabbits.  Rabbits usually have large litters, so in the ordinance how long will 
they be permitted to keep the young.  And a litter could possibly exceed the number of rabbits allowed.  
They reproduce well.  We might want to limit bucks to does. 
 
I think part of the Proposed Ordinance applies to both chickens and rabbits, but when it gets into the 
Regulation details, they are dynamically different and will probably warrant their own section. 
 
American Rabbit Breeders Association 
 
Here is a link to a pdf document with recommendations for pen size etc.   
 
https://www.arba.net/PDFs/CAW.pdf 
 
After reviewing the information at this website, rabbits might be more interesting to write recommendations 
for.   
 
Found this blurb looking around the net: 
 
Wire cages of at least six square feet in area are preferable for breeding does and weaned litters. Bucks' cages 
should have at least five square feet of floor space. Cage height should be about 18 inches to allow animals to 
stretch upwards. All cages should be cleaned on a regular basis and those kept outside should be well 
protected from the weather. 

 
Commissioner Karras provided the following: 
 

America Rabbit Breeders Association 
 
Cage Requirements 
 
All rabbits should be raised in hutches that have 1/2" x 1/2" or 1/2" x 1" galvanized wire mesh bottoms. 
This will allow their droppings to fall through. If they stay on any other type of surface that allows their 
feces to accumulate, it will cause disease because of the bacterial and possible parasitic build up. It is 
usually best to surround the rabbit with wire or metal because the rabbit will chew threw wood or plastic 
that they can get at. Be sure to protect the rabbit from the sun, wind, rain, and extremely hot or cold 
temperatures. Use an automatic feeder that can be filled without opening the cage. Also, I like to use 
feeder bottles with nipples pointing into the cage. This type prevents contamination and overturning that 
bowls experience. It's also OK to use large tin cans tied with wire to the sides of the hutch. 
 
I find that it's better to purchase cages from a cage maker. They usually do a good job for not much more 
than the materials would cost you. But if you want to make your own cages, allow 0.75 square feet of space 
for each pound of adult weight. For instance, if a rabbit's adult weight is 10 pounds, multiply 0.75 by 10. This 
gives 7.5 sq. ft. This can be attained by building a cage 3 ft. x 2.5 ft. (3 x 2.5 = 7.5). The height should be 18 
Inches. If the adult's weight is 3 pounds, multiply 0.75 by 3. This gives 2.25 sq. ft. You can build the cage 1.5 
ft x 1.5 ft. (18" x 18").  Its height, because it is a small rabbit, can be 15". 
 
Never make the hutch more than 3 ft. deep or the sides more than 3 feet from your grasp. Otherwise„ 
you'll have trouble getting the rabbit out when you need to. 
 
Do not put rabbits together after they are 3 months of age. The ones of the same sex are territorial 
and will fight. The ones of opposite sex will attempt to breed. This can lead to unexpected results. 

 

https://www.arba.net/PDFs/CAW.pdf


 

9 

Suggested Space and Housing Guidelines for Fully Mature Farm Animals 

 

 
5. DISCUSSION REGARDING A PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO THE ZONING CODE TO ALLOW 

CHICKENS AND RABBITS 
 
Commissioner Nandell asked about the history behind this issue. Commissioner Kirch stated that the 
Planning Commission originally considered a request to amend the Zoning Ordinance to allow chickens 
and bees in residential zones on October 26, 2010. At that time the Planning Commission recommended 
that the request be denied. The Planning Commission was asked to consider the issue again in 2012. 
The Planning Commission spent more time on the chicken issue than it had on the Sign Ordinance. 
 
Steve Parkinson stated that on February 2nd the City Council directed the staff to prepare an amendment 
to the Zoning Ordinance to allow chickens and rabbits in residential zones. The ordinance proposed by 
Councilman Hilton was similar to the one the Commission prepared in 2012, except for the point system. 
It allowed six chickens or six rabbits or a combination of the two regardless of zone or lot size. The staff 
had researched and provided copies of ordinances regulating chickens from the cities surrounding Roy. 
Some allowed chickens; some did not. Clinton City provided an information packet to anyone who 
applied for a chicken permit. A copy of that packet was provided as well. If the Planning Commission 
liked the amendment prepared in 2012, it could direct the staff to place it on an agenda and schedule a 
public hearing. 
 
Commissioner Kirch asked if the Planning Commission would have to hold a public hearing. Mr. 
Parkinson said it would. This time the applicant was the City itself. 
 
Commissioner Kirch stated that when the Planning Commission received the first request to allow 
chickens in residential zones in 2010, there weren’t a lot of cities that had similar uses. There wasn’t 
anything like it. The Planning Commission was asked to write an ordinance about something so new 



 

10 

other cities didn’t have anything like it. In a chance with Roy’s Code Enforcement Officer last year, she 
asked about problems with chickens. The Code Enforcement Officer said the problems with chickens 
were minimal compared to cats and dogs.  
 
Commissioner Kirch didn’t have a problem with the proposed amendment. With all of the information now 
available she felt comfortable moving forward. She said Item 1 of the proposed amendment was different 
from the 2012 version. It removed the point system and set the maximum number of chickens at six. The 
Planning Commission had spent a lot of time on the point system, but the proposed amendment was 
simple. It would be easier to enforce. She felt the Planning Commission needed to consider the size of 
the structure stipulated in 3-C-1; whether chickens should be free roaming; how to dispose of dead 
animals; and how far a heated coop should be from an adjoining structure. 
 
Chairman Ohlin felt the language about inspections in 2-C was vague. She was uneasy about an 
inspection that would be conducted when the City ‘deemed it necessary.’ Steve Parkinson said an 
applicant would be required to submit a simple site plan with their application. If the City received a 
complaint about the chickens, an inspection would be conducted to determine if a change was needed. 
Chairman Ohlin felt 2-C should be clarified. 
 
Chairman Ohlin asked about 2-F – Notice adjacent neighbors. Was the City notifying the neighbors for 
their information only? Mr. Parkinson said it was. Commissioner Kirch said the notification would simply 
notify neighboring property owners about what was going on. Mr. Parkinson said the bee regulations had 
the same requirement. 
 
Chairman Ohlin felt the site plan required in 2-G was unnecessary as long as the regulations were clear. 
Mr. Parkinson said the site plan did not have to be to scale. It would have to have dimensions, and it 
could be hand-drawn. It was easier to erase a line on paper than to move a coop after a violation was 
discovered. 
 
Chairman Kirch said the Planning Commission felt a site plan was needed to make sure the applicant did 
not put a coop in the wrong place. The requirement was meant to help the applicants, not hinder them. 
Commissioner Karras stated that the intent of the site plan requirement was to make sure applicants 
knew what they could and could not do. Chairman Ohlin felt that could be handled with a clearly written 
permit. 
 
Commissioner Paul asked who would review and approve the site plan. Mr. Parkinson said as the Zoning 
Administrator he would. 
 
Chairman Ohlin asked where the size requirement for the coop came from. Commissioner Kirch said the 
Planning Commission had looked at size requirements for different cities and made a composite. 
 
Chairman Ohlin asked if a coop could be attached to a detached garage. Mr. Parkinson said it could as 
long as it was ten feet away from a property line. 
 
Chairman Ohlin asked about the square footage of the coop. Commissioner Kirch said it was three 
square feet per animal, which was what Utah State and the Department of Agriculture recommended. 
 
Commissioner Paul asked if an applicant could apply for a variance. Steve Parkinson said an applicant 
would have to prove something about his land prevented him from complying with the requirements of 
the ordinance. He felt it would be difficult for an applicant to prove such a hardship. 
 
Chairman Ohlin stated that 3-C-1 required a coop to have solid walls on all sides. Most coops had sides 
made of chicken wire. Commissioner Karras said the coop itself had to have solid walls. A run would be 
constructed of chicken wire. 
 



 

11 

Chairman Ohlin questioned the use of the word ‘screening’ in 3-C-4. In other places in the Zoning 
Ordinance ‘screening’ meant making something non visible. She felt different wording should be used. 
She asked if a run had to be covered. 
 
Commissioner Paul felt the maximum size of a coop should be stipulated. It if wasn’t, a homeowner could 
make his entire backyard a chicken run. Clinton City stated that the maximum size of a coop and run 
combined could not be larger than 150 square feet. 
 
Chairman Ohlin felt the requirement in 3-C-3 to paint or stain the coop annually should be removed. A lot 
of coops were constructed of material besides wood. Mr. Parkinson felt the first sentence about 
maintenance should be retained. He would take out the sentence about annual staining. 
 
Commissioner Sphar stated that chicks could be sold according to sex. A homeowner might purchase all 
hens, but occasionally one ended up being a rooster. How would a homeowner dispose of an unwanted 
animal, such as a rooster or older hen? The chicken regulations prohibited sales or slaughter. 
Commissioner Kirch pointed out that the City did not tell a homeowner how to dispose of dogs or cats. 
Why should the chickens be any different? It would be up to the homeowner. Commissioner Nandell said 
small animals were considered waste and could be placed in garbage cans. 
 
Chairman Ohlin asked about fees. Steve Parkinson said fees would be determined by the City Council. 
The Planning Commission could make recommendations if it wanted to. 
 
Chairman Ohlin asked about a onetime application. Was there really a need for a permit to be renewed 
annually? Commissioner Kirch said the Planning Commission felt the annual renewal fee should be less 
than the original permit fee. Commissioner Paul felt renewing the permit would help the City know who 
still had coops and who did not. He felt it was important for the City to have current information. 
Consistent information was beneficial. It wouldn’t be any different than renewing a dog or cat license. 
 
Commissioner Kirch stated that raising chickens wasn’t cheap. Those who wanted to have chickens 
were dedicated to the lifestyle and the finances involved. It wasn’t fair to those who wanted to have 
chickens to have others who purchased chicks for Easter, put them out, and did not follow the rules. 
 
Commissioner Sphar felt an annual renewal would give both the applicant and the City the opportunity to 
update numbers and site plans. 
 
Commissioner Kirch stated that the staff and Planning Commission spent a lot of time on this issue 
several years ago. Circumstances had changed since then. The use was more common. There was a lot 
of data available. Some of the Planning Commission’s original concerns had been mitigated by evidence. 
Would this ordinance be fair to citizens who wanted to have fowl and those who did not wanted to be 
bothered? She felt the proposed ordinance would allow both to co-exist. 
 
There was a discussion about what size the coop and run should be. 
 
Chairman Ohlin asked members of the audience about the size of a typical run. 
 
David Wells, 6074 South 2900 West, stated that homeowners wanted their chickens to be free to roam 
all over their back yards. The run was only for use when a homeowner was not at home. Chickens 
reduced the amount of insects and field mice in a yard. He did not feel 150 square feet was large 
enough. 
 
Greg Sagen, 4027 West 4900 South, agreed that the run was for keeping chickens in when a 
homeowner wasn’t home. Keeping chickens in a run was not normal for the animal. When chickens were 
cooped up, they became mean with each other. 
 



 

12 

Jason Kunzler, 5446 South 4125 West, stated that he had been in contact with Utah State Department of 
Agriculture. They recommended eight square feet per bird for a healthy bird. Six chickens would mean 
48 square feet of run. They recommended 1.5 square feet of coop space per bird, or a total of 9 square 
feet. 
 
Steve Parkinson stated that chickens did fly, which was the reason behind the requirement for a coop 
and covered run. Chairman Ohlin felt the chicken ordinance should require wings to be clipped. 
 
David Wells stated that more space was needed in the run than in the coop. If a coop as too large, 
chickens could not keep themselves warm. 
 
Commissioner Kirch felt the staff should research how much square footage was needed per bird.  
 
Steve Parkinson pointed out that the regulations needed to address rabbits as well. He did not know how 
much room a rabbit needed. He would have to do some research. He suggested that the regulations 
break out the requirements for chickens and rabbits. 
 
Steve Parkinson stated that he would make the changes discussed and bring the proposed ordinance 
back for the Planning Commission to review. Commissioner Kirch said the Commission had concerns 
about 2-C, 2-G, 3-C-1, 3-C-3, and 3-C-4.  She felt it would be easier to lessen restrictions once the 
ordinance was adopted rather than try to make it more restrictive. She said the Planning Commission 
would have to discuss whether to allow chickens to roam free. She proposed that the square footage in 
the coop be changed to 2 square feet per animals. More research was needed to determine if that 
number was definitive. 
 
Commissioner Kirch asked if a coop needed to be ten feet away from another structure if it was heated. 
Mr. Parkinson said he would ask the building inspector. 
 
Commissioner Kirch felt Roy’s proposed ordinance was simple and to the point. At the time it was written 
she wasn’t sure about it. After reading ordinances from other cities, she realized that Roy’s was well 
written. 
 
Commissioner Kirch knew that members of the audience had a special interest in this issue. It was 
uncommon for the public to be invited to make comments outside of a public hearing. The minutes of 
February 2013 reflected that the Planning Commission forwarded a proposed ordinance regulating 
chickens and bees to the City Council without a recommendation. At that time allowing fowl in residential 
areas had many unknowns. She felt it behooved the Commission members to conduct research to see if 
any municipalities had experienced negative impacts from fowl in residential areas. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

13 

EXHIBIT “D” – FEBRUARY 19, 2016 – MEMO TO PLANNING COMMISSION     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Date:  19 February 2016 
 

To:  Planning Commissioners 
 

From:  Steve Parkinson – Planning & Zoning Administrator 
 

Subject:  Item # 5 – Discussion of a proposed Chicken Ordinance 
 
 
I mentioned last meeting that we would be discussing a proposed Chicken ordinance.  The Commission had asked 
for me to also provide a copy of the previous ordinance as was forwarded to the City Council for approval three 
years ago. 
 
I have attached the following 

• 2016 Proposed Chicken/Rabbit ordinance 
• Point Paper 
• Surrounding Cities Ordinances regarding Chickens 

o Riverdale 
o West Haven 
o Ogden 
o Sunset 
o Hooper 
o Clinton 
 Permit packet 

• 2013 PC Final Chicken Ordinance 
• Planning Commission Minutes 

o July 25, 2015 
o August 14, 2012 
o August 28, 2012 
o September 11, 2012 
o September 25, 2012 
o October 9, 2012 
 

 
 
Again this is a discussion, please take a moment and look over all of the information that has been 
provided.  Come ready to discuss the pros & cons of the proposed ordinance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
 

MEMO 



 

14 

Proposed Ordinance for Chickens/Rabbits in Roy City 
 
The purpose of this section is to provide supplementary regulations for the keeping of Chickens/Rabbits in the 
single family zoning districts of the city. It shall be unlawful to keep Chickens/Rabbits in the R-1-6, R-1-7, R-1-8, 
R-1-10 and R-1-15 zones except as provided in this section. 
 
1)  Allowance- All single-family residential properties in the R-1-6, R-1-7, R-1-8, R-1-10 and R-1-15 zones that 

have 8,000 square feet on their property, shall be allowed to have up to six (6) Chickens (excluding roosters 
and crowing hens), or six (6) rabbits, or a combination of Chickens or Rabbits not to exceed six (6). This 
would exclude dependent young. 

2)  Permit required- A city permit is required for the keeping of any animal or animals under this section. Permits 
may only be issued to the property owner of record. 
9. Fee. The permit fee shall be set forth in the adopted Fee Schedule of the City. 
10. Renewal. All permits issued under this section are subject to annual inspection and renewal. 
11. Inspection. Inspections related to a permit issued under this section must be permitted as deemed 

necessary by the City. 
12. Revocation. A permit may be revoked by the City for any violation of this section at any time. 
13. Transfer of Permits. Permits under this section are issued to property owners of specific lots and may 

not be transferred or assigned to other persons or properties when ownership or residency changes. 
14. Notice to Adjacent Neighbors. Upon receiving an application under this section, the Zoning 

Administrator shall cause notice of the application to be sent by mail to all owners of property 
immediately adjacent to the subject property. 

15. Site Plan. An application for a permit under this section must be accompanied by a site plan indicating 
the lot, the primary residence, and the proposed placement of the structures in compliance with the 
requirements of this section. 

16. Zoning Administrator. The Zoning Administrator or his or her designee shall be responsible for the 
review of applications, issuance or denial of permits, inspections, renewals, investigation of 
complaints, and revocation of permits when necessary. 

3)  Regulations for the keeping of Hens and Rabbits - The issuance of a permit for the keeping of non-
crowing, egg-laying Hens and/or Rabbits under this section shall be predicated upon compliance with the 
following. 
g. Roosters. Roosters and crowing hens of all kinds are prohibited 
h. Personal Use Only. The keeping of hens or rabbits is intended only for pleasure or family food 

production (eggs/meat). No sale of any kind or slaughter is permitted. 
i. Enclosure Standards. All animals must be contained within an enclosure or fenced area at all times. 

Such an area shall be entirely with the rear yard. No enclosures will be permitted in the front or side 
yards. 
8) Structure- All animals kept under this section shall be housed within a covered, predator proof and 

well ventilated coop or hutch. The structure must provide a minimum of three square feet per animal, 
with a minimum of six (6) square feet of floor area per chicken to allow for free movement inside the 
coop. No coop or hutch may exceed seven (7) feet in height. Coops, hutches and enclosures shall 
have solid walls on all sides, except for opening for access, must have a solid roof, and built to 
prevent intrusion, including burrowing of all types of rodents, vermin, and predatory animals. 

9) Location. All structures provided under this section shall be located a minimum of thirty (30) feet 
from any dwelling on an adjacent lot, ten (10) feet from any property line and ten (10) feet from any 
dwelling on the same lot. 

10) Maintenance. . Coops, hutches and enclosures shall be cleaned and maintained as necessary to 
prevent detectable odor at the property line. All coops or hutches must be maintained in good repair 
and painted or stained annually. 

11) Screening. Hens shall not be permitted to roam outside the screened yard area of the coop 
12) Feed. Feed for animals kept under this section must be stored and dispensed in rodent proof, 

predator-proof containers. 
13) Wastewater. Wastewater from the use of the animals or related to the maintenance of the structure 

shall be retained or disposed of entirely on the property. 



 

15 

POINT PAPER  
Raising Chickens in Roy City  

 
ISSUE: 

Roy City needs to address and bring to closure the increasing demands from residents in their desire 
to raise chickens within single-family residential zones. 

 
BACKGROUND: 

• Chicken hens do not need a rooster to lay eggs. 
• Since 2012 through 2015 there has been repeated requests by numerous Roy City residents for 

the city to change the current zoning ordinance and authorize the raising of chickens on single 
residential properties 10,000 square feet or less. 
o Current ordinance only authorizes raising chicken in RE-20 zones. 

• A number of cities along the Wasatch front have answered their resident's requests to allow 
chickens in residential areas that include, Centerville, Clinton, Draper, Farmington, Maysville, 
Layton, Lehi, Lindon, Orem, Provo, Salt Lake City, Sandy, South Weber, Syracuse, St. 
George, Bountiful, West Point, West Jordan, West Valley City, Pleasant Grove, Taylorsville, 
and Woods Cross. (source Deseret News article) 

• Throughout the last couple years the city has tried to address this issue. In 2013 the Roy City 
Planning Commission had forwarded a proposed, some said complicated, draft ordinance to 
the City Council without giving a recommendation for approval or denial. in part because of 
the commission's inability to render a recommendation, the Roy City Council on Feb 19, 2013 
moved to deny the ordinance change by a vote of 4 to 1. 

• During the Aug 2014 Roy City Council meeting a number of residents voiced their interest 
again for the city to change the ordinance. It was stated then, that a petition would be started 
to collect the necessary signatures to get it on the ballot. 

• In 2015 Roy City resident's gathered approximately 1783 signatures in attempt to place on the 
2015 ballot an ordinance change allowing Roy City resident's a choice to raise chickens on their 
single family home residence. The organizers missed getting it on the ballot by about 30 qualified 
voters. The following table outlines the problems and numbers. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DISCUSSION: 

• There is no question that each year there are more people in Roy City pushing for the right to raise 
chickens. Each of the last 3 years there has been a continual increasing interest from Roy City residents for 
the City Council to authorize a change in the ordinance in raising chickens. 
o In 2012 – 50 signatures on a petition 
o In 2014 – 142 signature signatures on a petition 
o In 2015 – 1,783 signatures on a petition   
 In 2015 had the persons handling the initiative petition provided a series of quality control 

questions to individuals as they signed the document, they might have prevented the problems 
thereby allowing the initiative to be on the ballot. 

• The surprising component to the increasing interest to raising chicken is the age of supporters. According to 
the 2013 USDA study on urban chickens, most of the people in favor of laws allowing chickens in their 
community are 34 years old and younger, and the majority of the younger generation are pro-chicken. This 
appears to go against conventional witness where one would concluded that the older generation want 
chickens to rekindle childhood memories. 

• Not everyone who signs the petitions are necessarily going to actually raise chickens. One of the few 

Unreadable Not Registered Bad Address Not Matching Other Duplicate Valid 
6 179 100 61 50 7 1380 
Petition Issues: Overall, signatures problems were the main issue for the petition were invalidated because the voter was 
not a registered voter or not registered in Roy City (failure to update voter registration). In some cases a voter may have 
listed a Roy address on the petition but was registered in another Weber County city. Signatures invalidated based on the 
signature were due largely to discrepancies in the surname (maiden/married name). Again, a voter has failed to update 
their voter registration. 



 

16 

national urban poultry studies, conducted by the U.S. Department of Agriculture in 2013, looked at 
backyard chickens in four cities - Los Angeles, New York, Miami and Denver. It found that only between 
0.2 and 1.7 percent of urban households have chickens. These numbers are in-line with the estimated 
percent found in Bountiful City. 
o Bountiful has a chicken ordinance allowing individuals to raise chicken in residential areas. The 

table below outlines the demographics elements of both cities, Roy and Bountiful. 
 

2013 Data Roy City Bountiful City 

Population 37,733 
(100% urban, 0% rural) 

43,023 
(99% urban, 1% rural 

Median resident age 31.9 years 34.5 years 
Est. median household income $58, 909 $65,636 
Est. per capita income $21,803 $28,111 
Est. median house or condo value $157,426 $247,118 

In a recent conversation with the Bountiful City Manager on Dec 3, 2015, Mr. Gary Hill provided the 
following information: 
o He personally heard from many that they appreciated that there is a way to keep chickens legally 

and most are okay with the limit of 8 chickens and no roosters. 
o Of the estimated 43,000 residents they have only 82 active Chicken Licenses in the city, about 

0.68 percent (based on approximately 12,000 homes). 
o He stated that his city received 5 complaints related to chickens (out of 196 total formal 

complaints to date). Most cases are resolved fairly quickly and about half arise from roosters being 
kept. 

o Chicken complaints made up only 3 percent of our code enforcement cases this year and 
did not place more of a burden on the code enforcement officer. 

o Since there is a way to legally keep chickens, most people will voluntarily comply by getting 
rid of roosters and extra chickens and when necessary bringing coops and pens into compliance with 
Code. 

• It appears one of the many reasons for the increasing demand to raise chickens for their eggs in 
communities, centers on the organic food movement, specifically less pesticides, no antibiotics, and other 
environmental contaminants. The urban chicken supporters seem less interested in experiencing "farm 
life". 
o A USDA study, reported on trends in local and regional food in the nation. By 2012, 7.8 percent 

of the nation's farms sold their food through local channels like farmers' markets and fruit stands. 
Suggesting that more people are looking to purchase food outside the conventional grocery stores. 

The local religious culture might also be driving the increase interest in raising chickens by encouraging 
members to be self-reliant. 

• Issues that homeowner must face when raising chickens (source Deseret News article): 
o Noise - Noisy roosters top the list of problems, and in many areas ordinances prohibit 

keeping adult male birds. 
o Expense - Store-bought eggs are a bargain when compared to the possible total cost of keeping 

a backyard flock. Setting up a coop with all the equipment can easily cost a few hundred dollars. Then 
an aspiring chicken rancher must feed and maintain the chicks for five or six months. Only then will he 
be able to start collecting eggs. According to www.poultrykeeper.com, in the first 18 months of its life, 
an exceptional hen could lay up to 250 eggs. At a price of $2 a dozen, that is $42 worth. Multiplied by 
five chickens, that amounts to about $210. However, if the owner has all of the equipment, the cost of 
raising chickens is about the same as buying them. 
 

Breaking Even 
The cost of eggs from the backyard versus the supermarket are roughly the same, according to information provided by 

Intermountain Farmers Association 
The average hen eats about 91 lbs of feed 
per year. At $0.36 per pound, annual feed 

The average hen lays about 259 eggs per year, 
or 22 dozen. If each dozen eggs cost $1.48 then 



 

17 

cost comes to $32.76 the total comes to $32.76 
 

o Garden damage - Chickens are living cultivators and rototillers. That can be a good thing 
when they are eating bugs and weeds. Unfortunately, chickens can't distinguish between weeds and 
newly emerging garden vegetables. 

o Smell and mess - Anyone who has been near a commercial chicken operation has undoubtedly 
experienced some unpleasant scents. Fortunately, keeping a few chickens at home is not comparable. 
One benefit of Utah's dry climate is that there is little smell or mess with properly maintained backyard 
chickens. Six chickens produce about the same waste as a medium-sized dog. 

o Predators - Even in urban areas, chickens could attract predators. In Utah, specifically Roy City 
the list could include raccoons, skunks, hawks, magpies, dogs and cats. Some are primarily interested in 
eggs or young chickens. A sturdy enclosure and regular maintenance are necessary. 

o Constant care - Chickens need daily attention. They must have food and fresh water. Eggs must be 
collected daily. Coops must be cleaned regularly (at least a couple times each month). Nesting and 
bedding materials must be provided and changed. Ignoring any of these tasks for even a day or 
two is irresponsible. 

• Issues that Roy City must face if allowing residents to raise chickens in areas other than RE-20 
zones. 
o Development of an ordinance that allowed chickens, no roosters, on single family 

residential homes with property 10,000 square feet or less, only for personal consumption. 
 With so many cities along the Wasatch front who are currently authorizing the raising 

of chickens, the Roy City Planning Commission could plagiarize on existing 
ordinances and easily develop a simple to use and enforceable document (see 
attachments). 

 The Planning Commission could encourage public input to the process. 
o Compliance and enforcement would be an important part of this effort. However, there is 

no evidence to suggest additional manpower would be necessary. There already exist 
ordinances that deal with important elements of the enforcement process that the proposed 
chicken raising ordinance could reference. 
  Roy City Code / Title 5 - Law Enforcement I Chapter 1 - Animal Control 

 
5-1-1 
Definitions 

LIVESTOCK: Any normally domesticated animal that is not a dog or a cat, such as cattle, 
sheep, goats, mules, burros, swine, horses, geese, ducks, turkeys, etc. 

5-1-9  
Control of 
Animals by 
Owners 

C. Livestock: It shall be unlawful for any person owning or having custody, possession or 
control of any livestock to allow, either negligently or with specific intent, the 
livestock to run at large in or about public property or a roadway, where such is not 
permitted by law, or otherwise permit the animal to be herded, pastured or to go upon 
the ground of another without permission. 

D. Domestic Fowl: It shall be unlawful for the owner of any domestic fowl, such as 
turkeys, ducks, geese, chickens, peacocks, or any other variety of fowl, to permit such 
fowl to trespass or go upon the premises of another or to run at large on any public 
property or roadway. (Ord. 975, 11-21-2006) 

5-1-14 
Public 
Nuisance 
Animals 

No person shall fail to exercise proper care and control of animals within their custody to 
prevent them from becoming a public nuisance. Any animal which engages in the 
following conduct or the existence of any of the following conditions is an infraction, and 
is hereby declared a public nuisance: 
E. Animal entering upon public or private property in such a manner as to annoy or 

interfere with the public's or owner's enjoyment or use of the property, or causes 
damage to that property; 

F. Harboring, keeping or maintaining more animals on premises than authorized by law 
after a written notice or citation for violation has been given. 

G. Failure to remove animal waste as required by law 
 

 It had been suggested, and the Planning Commission could consider, that an applicant be 
made aware that the City would notify all adjacent property owners about the domestic 
livestock. It was felt the some problems could be alleviated by notifying neighbors up 



 

18 

front. 
 

o The Planning Commission could also address whether or not a fee would be 
necessary when applicants apply to the City for a permit to raise chickens. 

 
CONCLUSION 

All the information provided clearly indicates that authorizing Roy City residents, living in single family 
homes with properties 15,000 square feet or smaller, to raise chickens is low risk to the city. 

• There is no indication that the city would need additional personal for enforcement. 
• There is no indication that there would be any more complaints then what the city would receive normally 

for animals already authorized within the city. 
• There is no indication that hundreds of residents would even want to take on the responsibility of raising 

chickens. Good chance somewhere between 50 to 150 households would request a permit. 
• If the applicant would properly maintain the coops, not raise roosters, and perform routine 

housekeeping; issues like predators and neighbor complaints would be mitigated. 
 
The important features in changing the ordinance are: 

 
• It gives the residents a right to choose for themselves, whether or not they want to raise chickens. Many 

cities around Roy give their residents that right, why not ours. 
• It gives individuals / families the opportunity to have control over what they choose to consume and to 

them supports a healthier life style. 
• It reduces the stigma of governmental control over the simplest elements in people's lives. 
• Finally, it brings to closure a subject that has consumed numerous city agendas for many years. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 

Recommend that the Roy City Council move and direct the Roy City Planning Commission to develop 1 
recommend an ordinance that allows residents, living in single family homes with properties size 15,000 
sq. ft. and smaller, to raise chickens (no roosters) for personal consumption and not sale. With new 
members on the current Planning Commission, they should be able to provide a fresh look at the ordinance. 
With public input, the city could have a comprehensive ordinance. 
 

Attached Documents 
1. Bountiful Chicken Ordinance 
2. Layton City Chicken Ordinance 
3. Kaysville City Animal Ordinance 

 
(Sources used to develop this Point Paper provided by Ogden Standard Examiner articles, Deseret News articles, numerous 
Roy City Council and Planning Committee meeting minutes, Weber County Clerk Office, Bountiful City Offices, Roy City 
Ordinances, numerous website sources) 
 
 
Bountiful City Chicken Ordinance  
 
CHAPTER 22 - CHICKENS IN SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL ZONES 
 
14-22-101 OWNERSHIP AND MAINTENANCE 

A.  The keeping and maintenance of residential chickens is allowed within the City only as provided in 
this Title. 

B.  Any chicken kept as provided by this Title shall not be deemed a household pet. 



 

19 

C.  A City license is required for the keeping of chickens allowed by this Title. 
1. A license shall be a one-time application and shall be signed by the property owner. 
2. A license does not run with the land. 
3. There shall be a one-time license fee of five dollars ($5.00). 
4. Application for, and acceptance of a license is prima fascia evidence that a person agrees to abide by all 

the conditions and regulations of this Title. 
5. A license may be revoked for any violation of this Title. 

D.  It shall be unlawful for any person to keep any chicken in a manner contrary to the 
provisions of this Title. Any such violation shall be a class B misdemeanor. 

E.  A chicken shall be kept strictly for familial gain from the production and consumption of eggs, and 
there shall be no sale or income resulting from the keeping of a chicken. 

F. Up to eight (8) hens may be kept on a residential lot in accordance with the following: 
1. A chicken shall only be kept on a property containing a single-family detached dwelling unit. 
2. A chicken shall be kept in a coop or enclosed area at all times. 
3. No chicken shall be permitted to roam outside a coop or enclosed area. 
4. A coop shall be covered, ventilated, and rodent- and predator-resistant. 
5. A coop shall not be constructed of scrap or dilapidated materials. 
6. The exterior of any coop shall be painted or treated with a similar product. 
7. It is unlawful to keep a rooster or crowing hen. 
8. Any coop or enclosure shall be located in the rear yard of the main dwelling. 
9. Any coop or enclosure shall be located at least twenty (20) feet from any primary residential dwelling 

on an adjoining property, and at least five (5) feet from any property line. 
10. Any time a heating device is employed in a pen or coop, such pen or coop must be separated at 

least ten (10) feet from any dwelling structure. 
11. Any coop and any roaming area shall be maintained in a neat and sanitary condition and shall be 

cleaned as necessary to prevent a detectable odor at the property line. 
12. Chicken feed shall be stored and dispensed in a rodent-proof and predator-proof container. 
13. No growth or vegetation other than sod grass is permitted within five (5) feet of any coop. 
14. The area within five (5) feet of the perimeter of any coop shall be unobstructed, except that the rear 

of a coop may be attached to another structure. 
15. A chicken may not be kept, and a coop may not be constructed, on any property that is in violation of 

a City Ordinance or where the owner or resident is being prosecuted for a violation. 
G.  Any chicken that is outside of an approved coop or enclosed area may be confiscated by any agent of the 

City. 
 
 
Layton City Ordinance on Chickens 

 
19.06.080. Farm animals 
 
(2) Residential chickens. The purpose of this Section is to provide regulations for the keeping of chickens in 

residential zoning districts. For the purpose of this Subsection, the term "chicken" refers only to the female, or 
hen, of the species. Chickens in residential zoning districts may be kept in a way which will ensure the 
continued health and welfare of Layton residents and maintaining the residential character of Layton City 
neighborhoods while permitting a more sustainable way of living. Any resident with the intent of keeping 
chickens within a residential neighborhood on lots with a minimum often thousand (10,000) square feet shall 
comply with the following provisions: 
(a) Chickens in residential subdivisions shall be allowed in the R-1-6, R-1-8, R-l-10, and R-S zoning 

districts. All other fowl associated with being kept outdoors are prohibited in R-l -6, R-1-8, and R-1-10 
zones. In R-S (residential suburban) and A (agriculture) zoning districts additional chickens are allowed 
as outlined in Section 19.06.080 of this Code. 

(b) Lots in residential subdivisions shall have no more than six (6) hens on a property with a 
minimum overall lot area of ten thousand (10,000) square feet. 

(c) A City permit is required for all chicken coops together with a Thirty Dollar ($30.00) annual permit 



 

20 

fee. The permit application shall include a plot plan based on the following guidelines: 
(i) The coop, pen, cage, or similar structure shall be restricted to the rear or backyard of a 

residential use, and shall be located not less than five feet (5') from any property line. 
(ii) No coop, pen, cage, or similar structure shall exceed one hundred twenty (120) square feet 

(includes coop space and chicken run) and shall be no taller than seven feet (7') at the highest 
point of the roof. 

(iii) All animals must be kept in an area enclosed by a fence sufficient to prohibit escape; this is in 
addition to the coop, pen, cage, or other similar structure. 

(d) All pens, coops, and cages shall be kept clean and free from objectionable odor and waste. 
Waste and debris must be kept from becoming offensive or a health hazard. 

(e) Roosters are not permitted in R-1-6, R-1-8, R-1-10, and R-S zoning districts. 
(f) No slaughter is allowed. 
(g) A permit may be revoked upon the conviction of the permit holder of a violation of this Section. 

 

Kaysville Farm Animal Ordinance 
 
CHAPTER 24 
FARM ANIMALS 
17-24-1 Purpose 
17-24.2 Animal Allowance 
17-24-3 Yard and Structure Regulations  
17-24-4 Other Requirements 
 
17-24-1. Purpose. This chapter establishes the standards by which farm animals may be kept within 
Kaysville City in a manner that will protect the public health and minimize the potential for nuisance. 
 
17-24-2 Animal Allowance. Rooster chickens are not permitted in R-T. R-l, R-D, R-2, R-4 and R-M zones. 
The minimum residential lot size for the keeping of farm animals within any zone district shall be 8,000 
square feet. The kind and number of animals that may be kept on a lot in any zone district (not including 
suckling offspring) is as follows: 

Animals Minimum Lot Size in 
Square Feet 

Lot Area In Square Feet 
Required For Each Animal 

Fowl, rabbits or similar animals 8,000 1,600 
 14,000 1,400 
 20,000 800 
 21,780 435 
Sheep, goats; llamas or similar animals 20,000 10,000 

 2l 780 5,445 
Horses, cattle or similar animals 21,780 10,890 
Swine, including pot belly pigs 43,560 43,560 

17-24-3 Yard and Structure Regulations. 
(1)  Structures for the care and keeping of fowl, rabbits or similar animals may be permitted in all districts where 

fowl, rabbits or similar animals are permitted, provided that all such structures are located at least fifteen 
feet (15') from all buildings on adjacent lots predominantly used or occupied by humans. Other structures for 
the care and keeping of farm animals except swine, may be permitted in all districts where farm animals are 
permitted, provided that all such structures are located at least fifty feet (50') from all buildings on adjacent 
lots predominantly used or occupied by humans. Structures for the care and keeping of swine shall be located 
at least two hundred feet (200') from all buildings on adjacent lots predominantly used or occupied by 



 

21 

humans. 
(2)  Applicant shall show that odor, dust, noise, or drainage will be so controlled as lo not constitute a nuisance or 

hazard to adjoining property or uses. 
 
17-24-4 Other Requirements. In zoning districts where farm animals are allowed as a conditional use, the 
provisions of this chapter shall be the minimum requirements. The Planning Commission may add additional 
conditions as provided in Chapter 17-30. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

22 

RIVERDALE CITY 
 
Chapter 8 - AGRICULTURAL ZONES (A-1, A-2) 
 

10-8-2: PERMITTED USES IN THE A-1 ZONE: 
• Animals or fowl kept for family food production. 

 
10-8-3: A-2 ZONE PERMITTED USES REQUIRING TWO ACRES MINIMUM LOT AREA: 

• All permitted uses allowed in the A-1 zone are allowed in the A-2 zone. 
 
Chapter 9 - RESIDENTIAL ZONES 
 

ARTICLE A.  RESIDENTIAL ESTATE ZONES (RE-15, RE-20) 
 

10-9A-2: PERMITTED USES: 
• Accessory building and use that is incidental to a dwelling on the same lot or property and in 

compliance with all Riverdale City ordinances that regulate the use of accessory buildings. 
• Agriculture. 
• Church, synagogue or similar building used for regular religious worship. 
• Cluster subdivision, in accordance with chapter 23 of this title. 
• Educational institution. 
• Golf course, except miniature golf. 
• Greenhouse and nursery, limited to sale of material produced on premises and with no retail shop 

operation. 
• Household pets. 
• Parking lot accessory to use permitted in this zone. 
• Public building, Public Park, recreation grounds and associated buildings. 
• Single-family dwelling. 
• Temporary building or use incidental to construction work. Such building shall be removed upon the 

completion or abandonment of the construction work. (1985 Code § 19-16-2; amd. 2001 Code; Ord. 
784, 4-19-2011) 

 
10-9A-3: PERMITTED USES REQUIRING FORTY THOUSAND SQUARE FEET MINIMUM 
LOT AREA:  

• Animals and fowl kept for family food production. 
• Private stables; horses for private use only; and provided, that no more than two (2) horses may be 

kept for each one acre within any lot. (1985 Code § 19-16-3; amd. 2001 Code) 
 

ARTICLE B.  SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL ZONES (R-1-10, R-1-8, R-1-6, R-1-4.5 
 

10-9B-2: PERMITTED USES: 
• Accessory building and use that is incidental to a dwelling on the same lot or property and in 

compliance with all Riverdale City ordinances that regulate the use of accessory buildings. 
• Agriculture, nurseries and greenhouses, provided the sale of goods is limited to material produced on 

the premises. 
• Church, synagogue or similar permanent building used for regular religious worship. 
• Cluster subdivision, in accordance with chapter 23 of this title. 
• Educational institution, public schools, private with similar curriculum, daycare/preschool centers. 
• Golf course, except miniature golf. 
• Household pets. 
• Parking lot accessory to uses permitted in this zone. 
• Planned residential unit development, in accordance with chapter 22 of this title. 



 

23 

• Public building, Public Park, public recreation grounds and associated buildings. 
• Single-family dwellings. 
• Temporary building for use incidental to construction work. Such building shall be removed upon the 

completion or abandonment of the construction work. (1985 Code § 19-17-2; amd. Ord. 784, 4-19-
2011; Ord. 802, 4-3-2012) 
 

10-9B-3: CONDITIONAL USES: 
• The following uses shall be permitted only when authorized by a conditional use permit as provided in 

chapter 19 of this title: 
• Home occupation. 
• Private Park, playground or recreation area, but not including privately owned commercial amusement 

business. 
• Public utility substation or water storage reservoir developed by a public agency. 
• Zero lot line single-family dwelling. (1985 Code § 19-17-3) 

 
 
 

WEST HAVEN 
 
CHAPTER 3 
 
RESIDENTIAL ZONES RE-15, RE-20  
 
SECTION 2 - PERMITTED USES:  

1. Accessory building or use customarily incidental to a permitted or condition use. 
2. Agriculture and agricultural experiment station. 
3. Animals and fowl kept for family food production as an incidental and accessory use to the residential use 

of the lot. 
4. Church, synagogue or similar building used for regular religious worship. 
5. Cluster subdivision, in accordance with Zoning Ordinances of the City of West Haven. 
6. Corral, stable or building for keeping of animals or fowl, provided such building shall be located not less 

than one hundred (100) feet from a public street, and not less than twenty-five (25) feet from any side or 
rear lot line. 

7. Golf course, except miniature golf. 
8. Green house and nursery limited to sale of material produced on premises and with no retail shop 

operation. 
9. Home occupation. 
10. Household pets. 
11. Parking lot accessory to use permitted in this zone. 
12. Planned Residential Unit Development in accordance with Chapter 12 of this Zoning Ordinance.  
13. Private stables; horses for" private use only, and provided that not more than one (1) horse may' be kept 

for each, one-half (1/2) acre within any lot and no horses shall be kept on any lot of less than one-half 
(1/2) acre in area. 

14. Public building; public park, recreation grounds and associated buildings, public schools; private 
educational institutions having a curriculum similar to that ordinarily given in public schools. 

15. Single family dwelling. 
16. Temporary building or use incidental to construction work. Such building shall be removed upon the 

completion or abandonment of the construction work.  
 

SECTION 3 - PERMITTED USES REQUIRING 40,000 SQ FT MINIMUM LOT AREA:  
• None Included 

 
SECTION 4 - PERMITTED USES REQUIRING FIVE ACRES MINIMUM LOT AREA: 



 

24 

1. Farms devoted to the hatching, raising (including fattening as incident to raising) of chickens, turkeys or 
other fowl, rabbit, fish, frogs or beaver hatched or raised on the premises. 

2. Raising and grazing of horses, cattle, sheep or goats, including the supplementary feeding of such animals, 
provided that such raising or grazing is not a part of, nor conducted in conjunction with any livestock feed 
yard, livestock sales yard, slaughterhouse, animal by-products business or commercial riding academy  

 
SECTION 5 - CONDITIONAL USES:  
The following uses shall be permitted only when authorized by a Conditional Use Permit as provided in Chapter -
11- of this Zoning Ordinance.  

1. Child Day Care or Nursery.  
2. Private Park, playground or recreation grounds and buildings not open to the general public and to which 

no admission is made but not including privately owned commercial amusement business.  
3. Public utility substation or water storage reservoir developed by a public agency and meeting 

requirements of Chapter ~ of this Zoning Ordinance. 
4. Residential Facilities for Handicapped Persons meeting the requirements of Chapter ~ of this Ordinance 

 
R-2 ZONE A RESIDENTIAL LOW-MODERATE DENSITY ZONE (2 UNITS PER ACRE) 
 
1.2 PERMITTED USES:  

1. Accessory uses and buildings. 
2. Agriculture. 
3. Dwellings, one-family. 
4. Animal keeping on lots of one (1) acre or more. 
5. Home occupations, except preschools and daycare. 
6. Pets, the keeping of household pets. 

 
 
R-2.5 ZONE - A RESIDENTIAL MODERATE DENSITY ZONE (2.5 UNITS PER ACRE) 
 
1.2 PERMITTED USES:  

1. Accessory uses and buildings. 
2. Agriculture.  
3. Dwellings, one-family. 
4. Animal keeping on lots of one (1) acre or more. 
5. Home occupations, except preschools and daycare. 
6. Pets, the keeping of household pets. 

 
 
CHAPTER 5 
 
AGRICULTURAL ZONE A-1 
 
SECTION 3 PERMITTED USES  

1. Accessory building or use customarily incidental to any permitted or conditional use. 
2. Agriculture, agricultural experiment station; apiary; aviary; aquarium. 
3. Animals or fowl kept for family food production as an accessory use. 
4. Cemetery; chinchilla raising, child day care, convalescent or rest home. 
5. Church, synagogue or similar building used for regular religious worship. 
6. Cluster subdivision in accordance with Zoning Ordinances of the City of West Haven. 
7. Corral stable or building for keeping animals or fowl, provided, such structure shall be located not less 

than one hundred (100) feet from a public street and not less than twenty-five (25) feet from any side or 
rear lot line. 

8. Fruit or vegetable stand for produce grown on the premises only. 
9. Golf course, except miniature golf course 



 

25 

10. Home occupation 
11. Greenhouse, and nursery limited to sale of materials produced on premises and with no retail shop 

operation. 
12. Household pets. 
13. Parking lot accessory to uses allowed in this zone. 
14. Planned Residential Unit Development in accordance with Chapter 12 of this Zoning Ordinance. 
15. Private park, playground or recreation area but not including privately owned commercial amusement 

business.  
16. Private stables; horses for private use only, provided that not more than two (2) horses may be kept for 

each one-half (1/2) acres within any lot 
17. Public building; public park, recreation grounds and associated buildings; public school; private educational 

institution having a curriculum similar to that ordinarily given in public schools. 
18.  Residential Facility for Handicapped Persons meeting the requirements of Chapter 15 of this Ordinance.  
19. Single family dwelling. 
20. Sugar beet loading or collection station. 
21. Temporary buildings or use incidental to construction work. Such building shall be removed upon 

completion or abandonment of the construction work. 
 
SECTION 5 PERMITTED USES REQUIRING FIVE (5) ACRES MINIMUM LOT AREA  

1. Dairy farm and milk processing and sale provided at least fifty (50) percent of milk processed and sold is 
produced on the premises. 

2. Farms devoted to the hatching, raising (including fattening as an incident to raising) of chickens, turkeys, 
or other fowl, rabbits, fish, frogs or beaver. 

3. Fruit and vegetable storage and packing plant for produce grown on premises. Zoning Ordinance of the 
City of West Haven Page 38 Chapter 5 Agriculture Zone A-1 

4. The keeping and raising of not more than ten (10) hogs, more than sixteen weeks (16) old, provided that 
no person shall feed any such hog any market refuse, house refuse, garbage or offal other than that 
produced on the premises. 

5. The raising and grazing of horses, cattle, sheep or goats as part of a farming operation including the 
supplementary or full feeding of such animals provided that such raising and grazing when conducted by a 
farmer in conjunction with any livestock feed yard, livestock sales or slaughter house shall:  
a. not exceed a density of twenty-five(25) head per acre of used land; 
b. be carried on during the period of September 15 through April 15 only. 
c. be not closer than three hundred (300) feet to any dwelling, public or semipublic building on an 

adjoining parcel or land; and 
d. not include the erection of any permanent fences, corrals, chutes, structures or other buildings 

normally associated with a feeding operation. 
6. The use of farm equipment by a farm operator for off-farm contracting work to supplement farm income 

 
CHAPTER 6  
 
AGRICULTURAL ZONE A-2 
 
SECTION 3 PERMITTED USES  

1. Accessory building or use customarily incidental to any permitted or conditional use. 
2. Agriculture, agricultural experiment station; apiary; aviary; aquarium. 
3. Animals or fowl kept for family food production as an accessory use. 
4. Cemetery; child day care; convalescent or rest home. 
5. Church, synagogue or similar building used for regular religious worship. 
6. Cluster subdivision in accordance with Zoning Ordinances of the City of West Haven. 
7. Corral, stable or building for keeping animals or fowl, provided such structure shall be located not less 

than one hundred (100) feet from a public street and not less than twenty-five (25) feet from any rear or 
side lot line. 

8. Fruit or vegetable stand for produce grown on the premises only. 



 

26 

9. Golf course, except miniature golf course. 
10. Greenhouse and nursery limited to sale of materials produced on premises and with no retail shop 

operation. 
11. Home occupation. 
12. Household pets. 
13. Parking lot accessory to uses allowed in this zone.  
14. Planned Residential Unit Development in accordance with Chapter 11 of this Zoning Ordinance. 
15. Private Park, playground or recreation area, but not including privately owned commercial amusement 

business.  
16. Private stables, horses for private use only and provided that not more than two (2) horses may be kept 

for each one-half (1/2) acre within any lot.  
17. Public building; Public Park, recreation grounds and associated buildings; public school; private education 

institution having a curriculum similar to that ordinarily given in public schools.  
18. Single family dwelling.  
19. Sugar beet loading or collection station and dump sites. 
20. Temporary buildings for use incidental to construction work. Such building shall be removed upon 

completion or abandonment of the construction work 
21.  Chinchilla raising. 

 
 

SUNSET 
 
Chapter 5 - ZONE REGULATIONS 
 
10-5A-1: PERMITTED USES:  

In residential zone R-1, no building or land shall be used and no building shall be erected which is arranged, 
intended or designed to be used for other than one or more of the following uses: 
Accessory uses and buildings customarily incidental to those listed below. 
• Churches, except temporary revival tents or buildings. 
• Greenhouse, noncommercial only. 
• Home occupation. 
• Household pets. (See section 10-5A-6 of this article for regulations on household pets.) 
• Libraries, museums, art galleries. 
• Limited agricultural uses. 
• Public parks, public recreational grounds and buildings; public buildings, public utilities. 
• Public schools; private educational institutions having a curriculum similar to that ordinarily given in public 

schools; child daycare or nursery. 
• Signboard, one unlighted, not exceeding eight (8) square feet in area, appertaining to the lease or sale of 

the property, also a bulletin board not exceeding eighteen (18) square feet in area erected upon the 
premises of a church or other institution for the purpose of displaying the name and activities of services 
therein; provided, that such signboard must be set within ten feet (10') of the building lines; one 
identification sign not exceeding twelve (12) square feet in area for buildings other than dwellings. 

• Single-family dwellings. 
• Temporary buildings for uses incidental to construction work, which buildings must be removed upon the 

completion or abandonment of the construction. (Ord., 10-17-1988) 
 
10-5A-2: CONDITIONAL USES: 

The following uses shall be permitted only when authorized by a conditional use permit, as provided in chapter 
6 of this title: 
• Private park, playground or recreation area, but not including privately owned commercial amusement 

business. (Ord. 16-18-78, 6-22-1978) 
 
10-5A-6: HOUSEHOLD PETS: 

http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?ft=3&find=10-5A-6
http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?ft=2&find=6
http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?ft=2&find=6


 

27 

The city of Sunset hereby adopts by reference, the Davis County comprehensive animal control ordinance, as 
amended, with the following exceptions: 

 
A.  In addition to the number of dogs and cats allowed in the Davis County comprehensive animal control 

ordinance, one seeing eye, search and rescue or other aid dog may be allowed under the following 
circumstances: 
1.  A conditional use permit is issued by the planning commission. In addition to the typical items 

considered by the planning commission for a conditional use, the following shall also be reviewed: 
a.  The location and size of any outdoor pens, runs or enclosures; 
b.  The owner's demonstrated ability to keep the additional animal in a clean and healthy 

environment, and in a manner that is not contrary to the general health and welfare of the 
citizenry; 

c.  The animals will be kept in accordance to all Davis County health and Davis County animal 
control requirements; and 

d.  The premises shall be subject to inspection annually by the community development department. 
2.  The aid dog is certified to serve in the capacity intended by the independent and qualified agency. Aid 

dogs that are in the process of being trained shall have not more than six (6) months to become 
certified unless a longer period is granted by the planning commission. The certification of the aid dog 
is subject to inspection annually by the community development department. Failure to obtain the 
certification in the prescribed time period, and maintenance of it thereafter, shall result in the 
revocation of the conditional use permit. 

 
B.  A dwelling may have a total of six (6) animals (not including animals listed in subsection A of this section) 

or fowl customarily kept within the home including, but not limited to, hamsters, guinea pigs, parakeets, 
canaries, etc. Said animals shall be for family use only and not raised for commercial purposes. (Ord. 
2012-01, 4-17-2012) 

 
 
ARTICLE B.  RESIDENTIAL ZONE R-3 
 
10-5B-1: PERMITTED USES: 

In residential zone R-3, no building or land shall be used and no building shall be erected which is arranged, 
intended or designed to be used for other than one or more of the following uses: 
• Any use permitted in residential zone R-1. (Zoning Ord.; amd. Ord. 16-18-78, 6-22-1978; 1997 Code) 

 
10-5B-2: CONDITIONAL USES: 

The following uses shall be permitted only when authorized by a conditional use permit as provided in chapter 
6 of this title: 
• Multiple-family dwellings. 
• Private park, playground or recreation area, but not including privately owned commercial amusement 

business. 
• Two-three- and four-family dwellings. (Ord. 16-18-78, 6-22-1978; amd. 1997 Code) 

 
 
 

OGDEN 
 
Chapter 2 
 
DEFINITIONS - 15-2-9: "H" DEFINITIONS: 

• HOUSEHOLD PETS: Animals or fowl ordinarily permitted in the house and kept for company or 
pleasure, such as dogs, cats, or canaries, but not including a sufficient number of dogs or cats to constitute 
a "kennel", as defined in this chapter.   

http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?ft=2&find=6
http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?ft=2&find=6


 

28 

 
(Ord. 2012-10, 2-28-2012) 

 
 
Chapter 15 - SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL ZONES R-1-5, R-1-6, R-1-8, R-1-10 
 
15-15-1: PURPOSE AND INTENT: 

 
The purpose of the R-1-10, R-1-8, R-1-6, and R-1-5 zone classifications is to provide regulated areas for single-
family residential uses at four (4) different low density levels. The R-1-5 zone located in the East Central 
Community, defined for the purposes of this chapter as the area between Harrison Boulevard and Washington 
Boulevard and between 30th Street and 1850 South, includes additional site standards and design guidelines to 
ensure context design with the historic character of that specific area of R-1-5 zone.   
 
(Ord. 2011-4, 1-18-2011) 

 
15-15-2: PERMITTED USES: 

• Accessory buildings and uses customarily incidental to any permitted use. 
• Agriculture. 
• Church, synagogue or similar permanent building used for regular religious worship. 
• Cluster subdivision, in accordance with chapter 9 of this title. 
• Daycare centers, provided the facility is located on the same site as an educational institution. 
• Educational institution. 
• Golf course, except miniature golf course. 
• Greenhouse, noncommercial only. 
• Home occupation. 
• Household pets. 
• Pigeon loft for the housing of racing pigeons (only allowed on single-family residential lots), in accordance 

with the standards contained in section 15-13-19 of this title. 
• Public building, public park, recreation grounds and associated buildings. 
• Residential facilities for persons with a disability (see section 15-13-15 of this title for facility 

requirements). 
• Residential garage sales or yard sales. 
• Single-family dwelling. 
• Temporary building for use incidental to construction work. Such building shall be removed upon the 

completion or abandonment of the construction work. 
 
(Ord. 2011-4, 1-18-2011) 

 

15-15-3: CONDITIONAL USES:  
The following uses shall be permitted only when authorized by a conditional use permit as provided in chapter 
7 of this title: 
• Planned residential unit development (PRUD), in accordance with chapter 8 of this title. 
• Private park, playground, or recreation area, but not including privately owned commercial amusement 

business. 
• Privately operated concession or amusement business in a public park. 
• Public school bus terminal, subject to the following standards: 

A. School buses are owned and operated by the school district; 
B. Facility is located in conjunction with school administrative offices; and 
C. Accessory maintenance and fuel operations must be specifically applied for and approved. 

http://sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?ft=2&find=9
http://sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?ft=3&find=15-13-19
http://sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?ft=3&find=15-13-15
http://sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?ft=2&find=7
http://sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?ft=2&find=7
http://sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?ft=2&find=8
http://sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?chapter_id=29367#780104
mailto:?subject=Ogden%20City%20Code%20Regulations&body=Below%20is%20a%20link%20to%20the%20City%20code%20which%20contains%20the%20information%20you%20requested.%0D%0Ahttp://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/index.php?book_id%3D515%26chapter_id%3D29367#s780104


 

29 

• Public utility substation or water storage reservoir developed by a public agency. 
 
(Ord. 2011-4, 1-18-2011) 

 
 

HOOPER CITY 
 

10-4A-16.1 KEEPING OF LIVESTOCK: Where allowed by the applicable base district. the keeping of 
livestock as an accessory use within the City of Hooper shall conform to the following standards. 

A. Purpose. To set forth reasonable standards for the keeping and care of livestock that promote 
responsible animal husbandry; protect private property rights; help maintain neighborhood 
compatibility; and protect the health, safety, and welfare of the general public. 
 

B. Standards for the Keeping of Livestock 
 

1. A minimum of 20,000 square feet is required to qualify for the keeping of livestock unless a 
conditional use permit is granted by the City.  Any lot of 20.000 square feet or more shall be 
eligible for one (1) animal unit for each 10,000 square feet of property within the lot.  A 
conditional use permit must be approved by the City in order to keep livestock on any lot less 
than 20,000 square feet in size. All livestock must be confined on the owner's property. 
 
a. Exception - Any owner of a residential property, which is less than 20,000 square feet, 

may keep a maximum of ten (10) chicken hens so long as the chickens are kept in a coop 
or run and all other requirements for keeping livestock are met. 
 

2. Any structure used for the keeping of livestock including, but not limited to barns, stables, 
sheds and corrals shall be located a minimum of 50 feet (35 feet for chicken coops and runs) 
from a dwelling owned by another person. 
 

3. Property owners keeping livestock in accordance with the above standards must maintain 
such animals in a manner that does not create an unreasonable impact on neighboring 
properties. Potential negative impacts include; but are not limited to odors. Noise, drainage, 
erosion and flies. Any person keeping livestock is responsible for the regular removal and 
disposal of animal waste, and the control of insects, erosion and odor. Failure to maintain 
the property in accordance with these requirements shall be considered a violation of this 
ordinance. 
 

4. Keeping of livestock in greater numbers than outlined herein will be allowed on a 
conditional use basis. Any livestock in excess of the limits set herein, already being kept on 
the date of this ordinance, will require an application for a conditional use be filed. All such 
applications will be acted upon as set out in Chapter 5 of this title. 

 
5. The offspring of animals legally kept pursuant to this section may be maintained on the 

property until maturity without being counted toward the animal units allowed for the 
property. (Maturity to be determined by qualified authority to be selected by the City 
Administration.) 

 
 

CLINTON CITY 
 

CHAPTER 3 – REGULATIONS TO ALL ZONES 
 



30 

28-3-9 - Special Provisions Relating to the Keeping of Animals and Fowl. 148,17°,2°8

(2) Residential Chickens170

(a) All coops, and enclosed areas (chicken run) shall be located in the rear yard and shall be located
not less than fifteen (15) from property line and not less than thirty five (35) feet from all dwellings
on adjoining lots.

(i) Coops shall be a minimum of 2 sq.-ft per chicken
(A) Coops shall be constructed of materials that are typically associated with the use and

shall be predator-resistant, covered & ventilated.
(ii) Chickens shall be confined within a secure outdoor enclosed area. The enclosed area shall be no

larger than 150 sq.-ft.
(iii) Chickens shall not be permitted to roam outside the coop or enclosed area.

(b) Chickens shall be rendered flightless, or the enclosed area shall be covered.
(c) Coops & Enclosed areas shall be maintained in a neat and sanitary condition and shall be cleaned

as necessary to prevent any odor detectable at a property line.
(d) Feed shall be stored in and dispensed from rodent and predator-proof containers.
(e) Chickens shall be hens (female) no roosters (males) are allowed.
(f) Chickens shall not be kept on a residential lot or parcel unless the person keeping chickens first

registers with the City.
(i) The registrant shall acknowledge the rules set forth in this section and shall, as a condition of

filing the registration, agree to comply with such rules.
(ii) The cost of filing a registration shall be as shown on the consolidated Fee Schedule adopted

by the Municipal Council.
(iii) The registration shall be good for one (1) year and SHALL be renewed annually. Registration

is due by April 15th.
(g) Violations are subject to provisions within this title.
(h) Chickens kept as provided in this section shall not be deemed to be household pets as defined in

Section 2.02 of this title.
(i) Compliance with UCA 4-4 as well as rule R58-6.

CHAPTER 14 – RESIDENTIAL, SINGLE FAMILY 

28-14-2 – Uses. 169, 170, 181, 182, 199

(1) Permitted and conditional uses for each zone are outlined in Table 14.2.
(2) All Conditional Uses shall be processed as outlined in Chapter 5 of this ordinance

TABLE 14.2 118,198,208 RESIDENTIAL ZONES 

USES 

R
-1

-6

R
-1

-8

R
-1

-8
a

R
-1

-9

R
-1

-1
0

R
-1

-1
5

P = Permitted   C = Conditional   N = Not Permitted   A = Accessory 134 
7 Residential Chickens (see § 2.02) Permitted only on lots 

10,000 square feet and larger. (All chickens are 
registered at City) 170, 208 

P P P P P P 



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
Planning Department

2267 North 1500 West 
Clinton City, UT  84015 

Phone: (801) 614-0740 
Fax: (801) 614-0752 

e-mail: sparkinson@clintoncity.com

Residential (Backyard) Chickens

NAME: 

ADDRESS: 

PHONE# E-MAIL:

PROVIDED INFORMATION :
The following can be found within this packet: (please initial each item, indicating that you have read them) 

Site Plan, showing the following: (in relationship to property lines, Home on parcel & neighbors home)
Coop location & size  (2 sq.-ft minimum per chicken)
Run location & size (150 sq.-ft maximum)

I live in  zone. 

There will be  number of chickens 

Ordinance 10-01Z;

UCA 4-4

UCA 4-29

UCA Rule R58-6

Payment of appropriate fees, if any.  (Check with the Community Development Department)

The following are reference only and are not endorsed by the city:

Backyard Chickens.com (Coop designs)

Utah State University Extension Articles
Housing Backyard Chickens
Molting and Determining Production of Laying Hens
Principles of Feeding Small Flocks of Chickens at Home
Consideration in Raising Small backyard Flock of Poultry in Population-dense Communities.

Coming Home to Roost (Magazine Article)

Hands Off! (Magazine Article)

I HAVE READ THE INFORMAITON PROVIDED AND HEREBY CERTIFY THAT I 
UNDERSTAND ALL OF THE REQUIREMENTS OF RESIDENTIAL CHICKENS.

Signature of owner or applicant

31



ORDINANCE NO.  10-01Z 

CHANGE 

AN ORDINANCE OF CLINTON CITY AMENDING THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF 
CLINTON AS OUTLINED AND UPON FINDING AN EMERGENCY AND DECLARING THAT THIS 
ORDINANCE SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY UPON PUBLICATION AFTER FINAL 
PASSAGE AND POSTING. 

WHEREAS,  Clinton City has established an ordinance regulating zoning within the City, and 

WHEREAS, Has determined that changes are needed in this ordinance to promote the health, safety, and 
general welfare of the citizens, 

NOW THEREFORE,  the City Council of Clinton City, Utah hereby adopts the following.  

THE COUNCIL OF CLINTON CITY HEREBY ORDAINS.

SECTION 1. 

ADD 
2.02 Animal Unit (Agricultural & Residential) means the keeping of not more than the below-stated number of domestic 

animals: 
1. One (1) head of:  horse or cow; or
2. Three (3) head of:  pig or sheep; or
3. Five (5) head of the following small, non-carnivorous animals:  rabbits, hamsters, or other similar small

animals.
[Pertains to Agricultural zones & residential lots larger than one (1) acre]

2.02 Fowl Unit (Agricultural) means the keeping of not more than the below-stated number of fowl: 

1. Fifty (50) each of the following classes of fowl:  chickens, pheasants, and pigeons provided that there may be
a combination of said fowl but not to exceed 200 on residential lots of one acre or more.  An additional 200
may be allowed on the lot provided they are under five months old.  Or

2. Ten  (10) each of the following classes of fowl:  ducks, geese, and turkeys provided that there may be a
combination of said fowl but not to exceed 20 on any lot of one acre or more, regardless of number of fowl
units permitted thereon.
[Pertains to Agricultural zones & residential lots larger than one (1) acre]

2.02 Fowl Unit (Residential chickens) means the keeping of not more than six (6) chickens (hens only) 

ADD 
3.09 Special provisions relating to the keeping of animals and fowl 

1. Animals and Agricultural fowl
A. All corrals, pens, feeding troughs, barns, stables and other similar buildings or enclosing structures

shall be located not less than one hundred and fifty (150) feet from Public Street except on corner
lots the setback from one street may be reduced to not less than seventy five (75) feet.
i. These types of building or structures shall be constructed of materials that are typically

associated with the use.  The architecture of these buildings shall be similar to the typically
found throughout the state.

B. Temporary feeding troughs, i.e. those moved at least ten (10) feet from one location to another at
not more that ten-day intervals may be located not closer that an fifty (50) from public street.

32



C. All such buildings, enclosing structures, pens, corrals, troughs and permanent concentrated feeding
areas shall be located not less than one hundred (100) feet from all dwellings on adjoining lots and
not less than thirty (30) feet from dwellings on the same lot.
[Pertains to Agricultural zones & residential lots larger than one (1) acre]

2. Residential Chickens
A. All coops, and enclosed areas (chicken run) shall be located in the rear yard and shall be located not

less than fifteen (15) from property line and not less than thirty five (35) feet from all dwellings on
adjoining lots.
i. Coops shall be a minimum of 2 sq.-ft per chicken

(1) Coops shall be constructed of materials that are typically associated with the use
and shall be predator-resistant, covered & ventilated.

ii. Chickens shall be confined within a secure outdoor enclosed area.  The enclosed area shall
be no larger than 150 sq.-ft.

iii. Chickens shall not be permitted to roam outside the coop or enclosed area.
B. Chickens shall be rendered flightless, or the enclosed area shall be covered.
C. Coops & Enclosed areas shall be maintained in a neat and sanitary condition and shall be cleaned as

necessary to prevent any odor detectable at a property line.
D. Feed shall be stored in and dispensed from rodent and predator-proof containers.
E. Chickens shall be hens (female) no roosters (males) are allowed.
F. Chickens shall not be kept on a residential lot or parcel unless the person keeping chickens first

registers with the City.
i. The registrant shall acknowledge the rules set forth in this section and shall, as a condition

of filing the registration, agree to comply with such rules.
ii. The cost of filing a registration shall be as shown on the consolidated Fee Schedule

adopted by the Municipal Council
iii. The registration shall be good for one (1) year and SHALL be renewed annually.

Registration is due by April 15th.
G. Violations are subject to provisions within this title.
H. Chickens kept as provided in this section shall not be deemed to be household pets as defined in

Section 2.02 of this title.
I. Compliance with UCA 4-29 as well as rule R58-6.

AMEND 
Table 14.2.7/8 

Uses

R
-1

-6

R
-1

-8

R
-1

-8
a

R
-1

-9

R
-1

-1
0

R
-1

-1
5

Raising, pasturing, and maintaining of not more than the following animal and fowl 
units for family food production or pleasure:  1 animal unit and 1 fowl unit for each 
one (1) acre in the lot up to a maximum of 5 animal and 2 fowl units.  

P P P P P P

Residential Chickens (see section 2.02) N N N N P P

FORMATTING OF SECTION AND SUB-SECTION DESIGNATIONS SHALL BE ADJUSTED TO MATCH 
THE EXISTING FORMAT OF THE ZONING ORDINANCE  

SECTION 2. Severability.  In the event that any provision of this Chapter is declared invalid for any reason, the 
remaining provisions shall remain in effect. 

SECTION 3.  Emergency clause. The council of Clinton City hereby declares that this ordinance is 
necessary for the immediate preservation of the peace, health or safety of Clinton City.  

33



34



Utah Code
Title 4 Utah Agricultural Code 
Chapter 4 Eggs 

Section 1  Department to establish egg grades and standards.

4-4-1. Department to establish egg grades and standards.

The department shall establish grades and standards of quality, size, and weight governing 
the sale of eggs. 

Section 2  Authority to make and enforce rules.  

4-4-2. Authority to make and enforce rules.

The department is authorized, subject to Title 63G, Chapter 3, Utah Administrative 
Rulemaking Act, to make and enforce such rules as in its judgment are necessary to 
administer and enforce this chapter. 

Section 3  Definitions.  

4-4-2. Definitions.

As used in this chapter: 
(1) "Addled" or "white rot" means putrid or rotten.
(2) "Adherent yolk" means the yolk has settled to one side and become fastened to the

shell.
(3) "Black rot" means the egg has deteriorated to such an extent that the whole interior

presents a blackened appearance.
(4) "Black spot" means mould or bacteria have developed in isolated areas inside the

shell.
(5) "Blood ring" means bacteria have developed to such an extent that blood is formed.
(6) "Candling" means the act of determining the condition of an egg by holding it

before a strong light in such a way that it shines through the egg and reveals its
contents.

(7) "Mouldy" means mould spores have formed within the shell.

Section 4  Unlawful acts specified.  

4-4-4. Unlawful acts specified.

(1) It is unlawful for any person to sell, offer, or expose any egg for sale for human
consumption:
(a) that is addled or mouldy or that contains black spot, black rot, white rot,

blood ring, adherent yolk, or a bloody or green white, also called albumen;
or

(b) without a sign or label that conforms to the standards for display and grade
adopted by the department.

(2) Nothing in this section shall prohibit the sale of denatured eggs.

35



Section 5  Maintenance of candling records -- Inspection of records.  

4-4-5. Maintenance of candling records -- Inspection of records.

Every person who sells, offers, or exposes eggs for sale or exchange shall maintain 
candling records as prescribed by the department. All candling records shall be open for 
examination by accredited inspectors or representatives of the department at reasonable 
times. 

Section 6 Retailers exempt from prosecution -- Conditions for exemption.  

4-4-6. Retailers exempt from prosecution -- Conditions for exemption.

No retailer is subject to prosecution under this chapter if the retailer can establish that at 
the time the eggs were purchased the seller guaranteed that the eggs conformed to the 
grade and quality and size and weight stated in the purchase invoice and that the eggs were 
labeled for sale by the retailer in accordance with the purchase invoice; provided, that such 
guaranty by the seller does not exempt a retailer from prosecution if the eggs covered by 
the guaranty deteriorated to a lower grade or standard through some action or inaction of 
the retailer. 

36



Utah Code
Title 4 Utah Agricultural Code 
Chapter 29 Diseases of Poultry 

Section 1  Department authorized to make and enforce rules.  

4-29-1. Department authorized to make and enforce rules.

The department is authorized, subject to Title 63G, Chapter 3, Utah Administrative 
Rulemaking Act, to make and enforce such rules as it considers necessary for the 
administration and enforcement of this chapter. 

Section 2  Restrictions on importation of chickens, turkeys, chicks, turkey poults, and hatching eggs -
- Certificate to accompany shipment -- Disposition of nonconforming shipments.  

4-29-2. Restrictions on importation of chickens, turkeys, chicks, turkey poults, and
hatching eggs -- Certificate to accompany shipment -- Disposition of 
nonconforming shipments.

(1) No chickens, turkeys, chicks, turkey poults, or hatching eggs to be used for
breeding purposes shall be imported to this state, or sold by hatcheries or others
within this state unless they originate from flocks participating in the pullorum
control and eradication phase of the National Poultry Improvement Plan, or the
National Turkey Improvement Plan, or have passed a negative agglutination blood
test for pullorum disease administered under the supervision of the department
within 12 months prior to the date of sale.

(2) Baby chicks, turkey poults, or hatching eggs to be used for purposes other than
breeding shall not be imported to this state, or sold by hatcheries or others within
this state unless they originate from flocks participating in the pullorum control and
eradication phase of the National Poultry Improvement Plan, or the National
Turkey Improvement Plan, or have passed a negative agglutination blood test for
pullorum disease administered under supervision of the department within 12
months prior to the date of sale.

(3) A certificate issued by the appropriate authority of the "state of origin" shall
accompany each shipment of hatching eggs, baby chicks, poults, started chicks,
started poults, or chicken or turkey breed stock imported to this state. The
certificate shall specify that the contents of the shipment is free of pullorum or
other poultry disease, the name and address of the consignee in this state, the name
and address of the person who consigned the poultry for shipment, the name of the
certifying authority in the state of origin, and the date the test or inspection for
pullorum was performed by such authority.

(4) The department may seize and destroy any shipment of chickens, chicks, turkeys,
poults, or hatching eggs transported into this state in contravention of this section
without notice to the person who consigned the poultry for shipment to this state, or
it may return the contents of the shipment to such person at the latter's expense.

Section 3  Results of negative agglutination blood test filed with department.  

4-29-3. Results of negative agglutination blood test filed with department.

37



The results of each negative agglutination blood test for pullorum disease performed at a 
hatchery in Utah shall be certified and a copy of the test results filed with the department. 

Section 4  Hatchery -- License required to operate.  

4-29-4. Hatchery -- License required to operate.

No person shall operate a hatchery or offer any chicks, poults, or hatching eggs for sale in 
this state without a license issued by the department. 

Section 5  License -- Application -- Fee -- Expiration -- Renewal.

4-29-5. License -- Application -- Fee -- Expiration -- Renewal.

Application to operate a hatchery or to engage in the business of selling chicks, poults, or 
hatching eggs shall be made to the department upon forms prescribed and furnished by it. 
Upon receipt of a proper application and payment of a license fee in an amount determined 
by the department pursuant to Subsection 4-2-2(2), the commissioner, if satisfied that the 
convenience and necessity of the industry and the public will be served, shall issue a 
license entitling the applicant to engage in the otherwise proscribed activity through 
December 31 of the year in which the license is issued. A hatchery license is annually 
renewable on or before December 31 of each year upon the payment of an annual license 
renewal fee in an amount determined by the department pursuant to Subsection 4-2-2(2).

Section 6  Enforcement -- Inspection of premises where poultry raised.  

4-29-6. Enforcement -- Inspection of premises where poultry raised.

(1) The department shall have access to all hatcheries or other places in the state where
poultry is raised for the purpose of inspecting the premises for conditions related to
the control of pullorum or other poultry disease.

(2) If admittance is refused, the department may proceed immediately to obtain an ex
parte warrant from the nearest court of competent jurisdiction to allow entry upon
the premises for the purpose of making the inspection.

38



Utah Administrative Code 
The Utah Administrative Code is the body of all effective administrative rules as compiled and organized by the 
Division of Administrative Rules (Subsection 63G-3-102 (5); see also Sections 63G-3-701 and 702).

Rule R58-6. Poultry. 
As in effect on March 1, 2010 
Table of Contents 

R58-6-1. Authority.
R58-6-2. Definition of Poultry.
R58-6-3. Certificate of Veterinary Inspection.
R58-6-4. Pullorum-Typhoid Rating for Imported Poultry.
R58-6-5. Boxes, Crates and Containers.
R58-6-6. Import Permit.
R58-6-7. Quarantine of Diseased Poultry.
R58-6-8. Cleaning and Disinfecting Feed Bags, Crates, etc.
R58-6-9. Handling or Disposal of Poultry Droppings and Litter.

R58-6-1.  Authority.
Promulgated under authority of Section 4-29-1. 

R58-6-2.  Definition of Poultry.
Domesticated fowl, including chickens, turkeys, waterfowl, ratites, and game birds, except doves and 
pigeons, which are bred for the primary purpose of producing eggs or meat. 

R58-6-3.  Certificate of Veterinary Inspection.
All poultry and hatching eggs entering Utah must have a Certificate of Veterinary Inspection or a 
National Poultry Improvement Plan Certificate and an entry permit; except birds for immediate 
slaughter consigned directly to a licensed slaughtering establishment. For an entry permit, this number 
may be called during business hours: (801) 538- 7164. 

R58-6-4. Pullorum-Typhoid Rating for Imported Poultry.
A. No poultry, hatching eggs or baby chicks shall be brought, shipped, or otherwise introduced into

the State of Utah by any person, individual or corporation that does not originate from flocks or
hatcheries that have a Pullorum-Typhoid Clean rating given by the official state agency of the
National Poultry Improvement Plan (NPIP) of the state or country of origin, or

B. Poultry entering Utah from a flock or hatchery which does not have a clean rating through NPIP
certification must have been tested negative for Salmonella Pullorum, Mycoplasma gallisepticum
(MG),M. synoviae (MS), M. meleagridis (MM), within the last 30 days.

R58-6-5.  Boxes, Crates and Containers.
Poultry or chicken boxes, crates and containers shall be new or disinfected before being used to move 
replacement birds into the State of Utah, except birds of the same and known health status as the 
previous shipment, and identified with a label cooperating in National Poultry Improvement Plan. 

R58-6-6.  Import Permit.
No permit shall be issued for importation until the Utah Department of Agriculture and Food receives 
responsible and complete information from the consignor that the birds to be imported would not 
present a disease hazard to Utah flocks. 

R58-6-7.  Quarantine of Diseased Poultry.
The Commissioner may quarantine diseased poultry, whenever any infectious or contagious diseases 
have been identified. The quarantine notice shall be posted in a conspicuous place on the outside of the 
coops and premises. 

39



A. The coops and surroundings must be maintained in a sanitary condition.
B. No live poultry shall under any circumstances be removed from the quarantined coop or

premises, except under permit from the State Department of Agriculture and Food or its
authorized representative.

C. All dead birds shall be destroyed by burning or by being placed in a pit properly constructed for
disposal of dead birds.

D. The attendant shall wear rubber footwear which shall be disinfected in a disinfectant recognized
by U.S. Department of Agriculture each time before leaving the infected coops.

E. All crates, utensils or other paraphernalia used around the infected coops shall be thoroughly
cleaned and disinfected before being removed from the infected premises; except egg cases and
those are to be handled in such manner as may be designated by the attending veterinarian.

F. Truck drivers are forbidden to enter quarantined premises personally or with trucks.
G. No visitors will be allowed on infected premises.
H. All droppings and litter shall be buried or burned or thoroughly disinfected before being removed

from the premises.
I. Vaccination shall be done by or under the direction of an accredited veterinarian only.
J. The quarantine shall be in effect until withdrawn by the Commissioner of Agriculture and Food

or his designated agent.

R58-6-8. Cleaning and Disinfecting Feed Bags, Crates, etc.
A. Bags used for poultry feeds, mashes, etc., shall, before being filled at the mill or mixing plant, be

cleaned and disinfected. All filth or litter shall be removed from them and the bags then
disinfected with a disinfectant recognized by United States Department of Agriculture 9 CFR 1,
147.23, 24, and 25, January 1, 2001, edition.

B. Crates or other containers used for the transportation of poultry by any poultry producer or
anyone buying and selling or otherwise transporting poultry shall be properly scraped, cleaned
and disinfected with a disinfectant recognized by United States Department of Agriculture, 9
CFR 1, 147.23, 24, 25, January 1, 2001, edition, each time after being used.

R58-6-9. Handling or Disposal of Poultry Droppings and Litter.
A. Poultry houses and yards shall be maintained in a sanitary condition. All droppings and litter

shall be cleaned regularly and disposed of either by hauling away and scattering over farm lands,
or by burying or burning.

B. In case it is not practical to dispose of the droppings and litter regularly in the above manner, they
shall be placed outside the coops and properly screened with fine mesh wire which will protect it
from flies until it can be disposed of as provided in this rule.

40



41



June 2008     AG/Poultry/2008-01pr 

Housing Backyard Chickens 
David D. Frame, DVM, Extension Poultry Specialist 

Owning a small flock of chickens is increasing in 
popularity, particularly in areas where local ordinances 
prohibit larger domestic animals, but allow for birds 
and/or small animals. Chickens not only furnish a ready 
source of home-grown meat and eggs, but also provide 
great pleasure as exhibition stock and even as pets. The 
purpose of this fact sheet is to give an overview of basic 
housing principles for small flocks of chickens. 

Objectives
Reasons for providing proper housing facilities for 

chickens include: 
Protection from predators; 
Protection from rain, snow, and other 
inclement weather; 
Protection from excessive heat and cold 
(i.e,. moderation of extreme temperature 
changes); and 
Provision of feed and water space and 
nesting facilities. 

General Considerations 
Chickens are very adaptable and no single best way 

exists to house them. Creative architectural construction 
may even be considered in building a “designer” chicken 
house in order to enhance the backyard landscape. 
Regardless of ultimate design, the following practical 
considerations should be observed. The building must: 

Be large enough for proper air circulation 
(i.e. ventilation) but small enough to keep 
from getting too cold and drafty in winter; 
Allow 1.5 to 2.0 ft2 (0.14 to 0.19 m2) floor 
space per adult chicken; 
Provide easy access to feed and water; and 
Provide nesting areas for hens in egg 
production. 

Building Design 
As previously mentioned, workable designs of 

chicken houses are highly variable and may even be 
extremely decorative in some cases. Many sites are 
available on the Web and in reference books that may 
help you in designing your facility. A few selected 
resources are listed here. 

House design:
o “How to Raise Chickens” by Christine

Heinrichs. Voyageur Press. 2007.
o ISBN-13: 978-0-7603-2828-6
o Virginia Cooperative Extension:

http://www.ext.vt.edu/pubs/poultry/facts
heets/designs.html

o University of Minnesota:
http://www.ansci.umn.edu/poultry/resou
rces/housing_small-scale.htm

o Appropriate Technology Transfer for
Rural Areas (Range poultry housing):
http://ceplacer.ucdavis.edu/files/46820.p
df

o The Bantam Roost, “A Small Hen
House”:
http://www.geocities.com/Heartland/Pla
ins/4175/henhouse.html

Energy management and solar heating 
concepts:

o http://www.ces.purdue.edu/extmedia/AE
/AE-99.html

Ventilation Basics 
In order to provide a comfortable building for 

chickens, it is necessary to keep in mind a few basic 
concepts regarding ventilation: 

42



Warm air rises and cooler air, being 
heavier, settles to the floor. Adequate air 
circulation and exchange is necessary to 
keep different air temperatures from 
stratifying and air from becoming stale. 
Warm air holds more moisture than cold 
air. For every 18°F (10°C) increase in air 
temperature, its water-holding capacity 
doubles. This concept is important in 
managing potential moisture buildup, 
particularly in well-insulated, tightly-sealed 
chicken houses. 
Ventilation needs in summer are different 
than in winter. During summer, warm stale 
air must be removed, allowing fresh air to 

enter and circulate. During cold seasons, 
only enough cold outside air should be 
allowed in for adequate air exchange. It is 
preferred to bring this air in from near the 
roof of the building which allows it to 
warm as it drops towards the floor. This 
colder air will warm (by the birds’ own 
body heat and/or with additional heaters) 
and pick up moisture. A method must be 
available to vent this air from the building 
allowing the cycle to continue. (Refer to 
Figures 1 and 2 for summer and winter 
ventilation concepts.) 

Figure 1. Concept of summertime ventilation. 

Figure 2. Concept of wintertime ventilation. 

In small chicken houses, these factors can generally 
be sufficiently controlled without employing power 
ventilation (i.e. fans). The judicious and well-placed use 
of windows and vents will usually suffice. During 
summer, natural convection and/or gentle breezes will 
usually be adequate to drive air out the upper vents, or 
cupola, and bring in fresh air through windows or lower 
vent openings. Place upper vent openings on the side 
opposite of wind direction (i.e. leeward side). 

Perches
Although not mandatory, it is usually a good idea to 

provide perches for your chickens. Perches will allow 

birds to stay off the floor – particularly as they roost at 
night. Most breeds seem to enjoy spending time on 
perches. Manure will tend to accumulate in greatest 
concentration under the roost area, thereby helping to 
keep the rest of the bedding material in the house 
cleaner. A good rule of thumb is to allow 6 to 10 inches 
(15 to 25 cm) of linear perch space for each chicken 
housed.

Perches should be located in an area of the house 
that will not interfere with daily chores such as feeding, 
watering, and egg gathering. Construct the perches so 
they are removable or are hinged for lifting out of the 
way for easier cleanout of manure. It is worth the extra 
effort to build them right in the beginning – it will save 

43



you a lot of time and effort during house cleanup. 
Perches should not be more than about 3 feet (0.9 m) off 
the ground; otherwise, there may be an increased 
tendency to bruise feet or cause egg rupture as the hens 
mount the roost. Plan at least 12 inches (30 cm) 
clearance under the perches; final height and dimensions 
will depend on individual building design and 
convenience of being able to clean out the manure 
underneath them. 

Any suitable building material may be used to 
construct perches: 2 x 2 inch (5 x 5 cm) material with 
rounded tops is ideal. Space the perch bars 14 inches (36 
cm) apart.

Nest Boxes 
 Nest boxes are essential furnishings of any hen 
house because she will seek a secluded place to lay her 
eggs. Properly constructed and maintained nest boxes 
provide a clean environment for laid eggs and facilitate 
gathering them. Also, nests make it easier to identify and 
remove “broody” hens. (A broody hen is one that has 
ceased laying eggs and desires to raise a clutch of chicks. 
She will remain in the nest box for prolonged periods, 
become territorial, and not allow entry of other hens 
needing to lay eggs.) 

Again, there are no hard and fast rules for nest box 
construction. Commercial boxes are available from 
various retail sources or you may wish to construct your 
own. Nest box height and width should be 12 to 15 
inches (30 to 38 cm); depth should be least 12 inches (30 
cm). Figure 3 illustrates a generic nest box design that is 
functional for most applications. 

One next box is required for each four to five 
hens.
Place nest boxes no less than 18 inches (46 cm) 
off the floor. 
A front panel, 4 to 6 inches (10 to 15 cm) high, 
is necessary to provide seclusion and keep eggs 
from rolling out of the nest. 
A perch may be attached to each box, running 
parallel to the front of the box and located 6 to 8 
inches out, to facilitate access. 

Figure 3. Generic nest box design. 

Predator Control 
Maintain a rodent control program around 
the poultry house. An excellent fact sheet 
on rodent control is found at 
http://osuextra.okstate.edu/pdfs/F-
8207web.pdf
When building the floor, integrate heavy-
gauge wire mesh beneath the subflooring to 
discourage entrance of predators. 
Cover windows and vent openings with 
good quality poultry wire to keep out birds. 
Make sure doors and windows fit tight. 
Caulk and seal all cracks and crevices. 
Small rodents can gain entry through holes 
the size of a nickel or quarter. 
 Keep the poultry house locked to 
discourage theft and uninvited visitors.  

Additional Housing Considerations 
Allow adequate space within the structure 
for feeders and waterers. (Feeding and 
watering equipment not discussed in this 
fact sheet.) 
Position equipment for ease of cleaning, 
egg gathering, and general upkeep. 
Before beginning to build, consider 
anticipated high/low temperatures, potential 
snow load, other environmental conditions, 
and local ordinances. 
For specific recommendations in your area, 
contact your local county agent or 
Extension poultry specialist.  

Utah State University is committed to providing an environment free from harassment and other forms of illegal discrimination based on race, color, religion, sex, 
national origin, age (40 and older), disability, and veteran’s status. USU’s policy also prohibits discrimination on the basis of sexual orientation in employment and 
academic related practices and decisions. 

Utah State University employees and students cannot, because of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, disability, or veteran’s status, refuse to hire; 
discharge; promote; demote; terminate; discriminate in compensation; or discriminate regarding terms, privileges, or conditions of employment, against any person 
otherwise qualified. Employees and students also cannot discriminate in the classroom, residence halls, or in on/off campus, USU-sponsored events and activities. 

This publication is issued in furtherance of Cooperative Extension work, acts of May 8 and June 30, 1914, in cooperation with the U.S. Department of 
Agriculture, Noelle E. Cockett, Vice President for Extension and Agriculture, Utah State University. 

44



February 2009     AG/Poultry/2009-01pr 

Molting and Determining Production of
Laying Hens 

David D. Frame, DVM, Extension Poultry Specialist 

EVALUATION OF HENS IN PRODUCTION 
A frequently asked question from agricultural 

Extension agents is, “How can I tell if hens are in egg 
production?” Although there are numerous publications 
treating this question in profound depth, the purpose of 
this fact sheet is to provide agricultural agents as well as 
the inquisitive small flock owner with a brief synopsis 
that will serve as a helpful guide. Besides the obvious 
presence or absence of eggs in the nest, the status and 
duration of egg production in chickens can be evaluated 
by: 

Pigmentation  
Body condition 
Condition and state of feathering 

Each of these criteria will be discussed in subsequent 
sections. 

Pigmentation
Genetically predisposed yellow-skinned chicken 

breeds (e.g., Mediterranean and Continental) fed a diet 
containing xanthophyll will exhibit a yellow color to fat, 
skin, beak, legs, and feet. Xanthophyll, a carotenoid 
pigment, is found in feed ingredients such as corn, 
alfalfa, and corn gluten meal. When consumed, this 
pigment is transferred to the tissues, thus imparting the 
yellow color. This same pigment is also responsible for 
the yellow color of egg yolk. When in egg production, 
the hen will preferentially deposit the pigment into the 
yolk rather than transferring it to other parts of the body. 
As production progresses, the yellow areas of the body 
will gradually be replaced by non-pigmented tissues. 
This gain and loss of body tissue pigmentation is a 
valuable tool in assessing the lay status of these hens. 
(The following pigmentation guidelines do not apply to 
genetically white-skinned breeds, such as Dorking, 

Sussex, and Orpington, because no yellow pigment is 
deposited in the tissues.) 

Laying hens will lose their yellow pigmentation in 
the following order as egg production progresses: 

 Vent (orifice from which eggs are deposited) 
. . .fades soon after egg production begins. 

 Eye ring (inner edges of eyelids)  
. . .loses pigment a little slower than vent. 

 Beak (starts fading at base first) 
. . .totally faded beak indicates approximately 4 to 6 
weeks into production. 

  Bottom of feet 
. . . fades sometime between about 8 to 12 weeks 
into production. 

 Shanks 
. . . a totally depigmented shank is usually a sign 
that the hen has been in sustained egg production 
for at least 15 to 20 weeks. 

 Hocks and upper side of toes 
. . . these areas are the last to lose yellow 
pigmentation. 

Approximate time in lay can be estimated by 
observing the successive loss of pigment in body parts. 
For example, a hen with an entirely bleached beak but 
pigment still on the feet and legs will have been in egg 
production for about 4 to 6 weeks. After the hen has 
ceased laying, pigment will reappear in the same order 
(i.e., vent first, then eye ring, base of beak, etc.). 
Consequently, length of time since cessation of egg 

45



production can be estimated by the location of 
reappearing pigment. Note that pigment will come back 
about twice as fast as it bleaches out. 

Body condition 
High producing hens will have a tendency to lose 

body weight as sustained egg production progresses. 
Formation of the egg takes priority over fat deposition. 
During the rest period between clutches of eggs, the 
body will be rejuvenated by the loss and replacement of 
feathers (i.e. molting) and by gaining back optimal body 
weight. This is dependent, of course, on the birds 
receiving proper nutrition. 

Other body indications of egg production status: 

 Comb and wattles (red appendages on head and 
neck) 
. . . bright red and turgid in hens in production; 
shrunken and pale in non-producers. 

 Vent 
. . . soft and pliable in hens in production; shrunken 
and dry in non-producers. 

 Area between pelvic bones just below the vent* 
. . .In a non-producer, it is only possible to insert 
one or two fingers between the bones; a mature hen 
in production will generally allow sufficient room 
for the insertion of three to four fingers.  

*Guideline for standard-sized fowl.

Figure 1. Non-layer (left) vs. hen in production (right). 
Compare eye ring and beak color, and comb and wattle size. 

Figure 2. Hen early in the egg production cycle. Note 
extensive yellow pigmented shanks and toes. 

Figure 3. Shanks and toes of a hen that has been in egg 
production greater than 20 weeks. Note the extensive loss of 
pigment. 

Figure 4. Pelvic spread in a non-layer (two fingers in width).  

46



Figure 5. Pelvic spread in a hen in production (four fingers in 
width). 

Feather condition 
Molting refers to the orderly loss and replacement 

of feathers. This generally occurs once per year 
(normally in the fall) in mature chickens. Feathers are 
molted in the following order: 

Head 
Neck 
Body (includes breast, back, and abdomen) 
Wings (Primary wing feathers will begin to 
be shed before secondaries. Primaries will 
be lost sequentially from innermost #1 to 
outermost #10.) (See Figure 1.) 
Tail 

Figure 6. Upper side of left wing 

Condition of the feathers can reveal a lot about the 
production status of a hen. As the season progresses, 
feathers will become worn and ragged. High-producing 

hens will often have an unkempt appearance late into the 
fall after the normal time when molting should take 
place. Feathers become worn because they have not yet 
been replaced. This is caused by persistent egg 
production, which takes priority over feather 
replacement.  

Keep in mind that the shedding and growing of 
feathers is a dynamic process. Feathers in some areas 
will be growing back as others are being lost in other 
parts of the body. As a general rule, hens will not molt 
until they have ended their egg-laying cycle (i.e., 
“clutch”). However, high-producing strains, and even 
certain individual hens, may tend to continue to lay and 
molt at the same time, but only if they can maintain their 
body weight. Both laying eggs and molting require a 
huge amount of energy, which is the reason it is difficult 
to do both at the same time. If egg production continues 
as molting proceeds, the molting process will take 
longer. 

SUMMARY
The ability to determine the lay status would be 

helpful in small flocks where the owner might be 
interested in assessing and culling individual hens. 

The importance of feather loss and regrowth is to be 
aware that 1) feather condition is often an indicator of 
egg-laying status and 2) the molting process requires 
focused energy. Hens must periodically replace their 
plumage and regain adequate body weight in order to 
keep healthy and prepare for the following egg 
producing season. A properly rejuvenated hen will 
produce eggs at her optimum rate once she comes back 
into production. 

Although there is variation between breeds and 
strains of chickens, and even in individual hens of the 
same breed, the information in this fact sheet serves as a 
guide to better understand and evaluate the status of egg 
production in the domestic fowl. 

Photos courtesy of Mark C. Bland, DVM 

 Utah State University is committed to providing an 
environment free from harassment and other forms of illegal 
discrimination based on race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age 
(40 and older), disability, and veteran’s status. USU’s policy also 
prohibits discrimination on the basis of sexual orientation in 
employment and academic related practices and decisions. 

Utah State University employees and students cannot, because 
of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, disability, or 
veteran’s status, refuse to hire; discharge; promote; demote; 
terminate; discriminate in compensation; or discriminate regarding 
terms, privileges, or conditions of employment, against any person 
otherwise qualified. Employees and students also cannot discriminate 
in the classroom, residence halls, or in on/off campus, USU-
sponsored events and activities. 

This publication is issued in furtherance of Cooperative 
Extension work, acts of May 8 and June 30, 1914, in cooperation 
with the U.S. Department of Agriculture, Noelle E. Cockett, Vice 
President for Extension and Agriculture, Utah State University.

47



August 2008     AG/Poultry/2008-02pr 

Principles of Feeding Small Flocks of
Chickens at Home 

David D. Frame, DVM, Extension Poultry Specialist 

 Owning a small flock of chickens is increasing 
in popularity, particularly in areas prohibiting the 
raising of larger domestic animals. Chickens not 
only furnish a ready source of home-grown meat 
and eggs, but also provide great pleasure as 
exhibition stock and even as pets. Additionally, 
helping to raise a small flock of chickens gives 
children an opportunity to develop a sense of 
responsibility and learn basic management skills.  
The purpose of this fact sheet is to give an overview 
of feeding and nutrition principles for chicken 
owners.

Growth ability and performance of chickens is 
determined by genetics. Environment dictates 
whether they reach their full genetic potential and 
proper nutrition plays a critical role. It is important 
to remember two things when feeding chickens:

A chicken will only grow and perform to 
the extent it receives proper nutrition. 
A chicken cannot grow beyond its 
maximum genetic potential.  

Develop an Optimal Nutritional Program 

Don’t forget the water. . . . 
It must be kept in mind that the nutrient 

consumed in the greatest quantity by a chicken is 
water. A direct relationship exists between the 
amount of water a chicken drinks and the amount of 
feed consumed. If inadequate water is available, not 
only will chickens cease eating, but there will also 
be a negative effect on egg production and growth.

Although types and designs of drinkers vary, 
the fact that fresh clean water must be present at all 
times should never be forgotten. 

A popular fountain-type drinker is shown in 
Figure 1. Fountain drinkers have the advantage of 
being affordable and can easily be moved around; 
however, because the reservoir holds only a finite 
quantity of water, it is necessary to watch carefully 
that they don’t become empty. Water should be 
changed frequently in order to prevent bacterial 
growth, over-warming (in summer), or freezing (in 
winter). 

Figure 1. Fountain-type drinker. This particular 
model holds 1 gallon of water. Each drinker will 
provide enough daily water for 12 to 15 adult 
chickens during cool weather and 6 to 12 during hot 
weather. 

48



Always provide at least two or three additional 
drinkers in excess of the estimated water 
consumption capacity for the number of birds in the 
chicken house. This provides a buffer for a short 
term water supply in the event of spillage or 
leakage. Also, it offers an opportunity for the more 
timid birds in the flock to satisfy their water needs 
without having to compete with more aggressive 
individuals for drinker space. When planning 
number of drinkers to place in the chicken house, 
consider that in cool weather each adult chicken 
will consume about 0.05 to 0.08 gallon per day; in 
hot weather, about 0.08 to 0.16 gallon. 

Other types of watering systems include 
continuous flow troughs and reduced water pressure 
bell-type drinkers suspended from the ceiling that 
are hooked up to a pressurized water line. 

The advantages of a continuous flow water 
system are that it won’t freeze and there is a 
continual supply of fresh water. Acquiring such a 
system may be difficult, however, and because there 
is a continual flow of water, the cost and waste will 
usually be prohibitive for small flocks. Some sort of 
drainage system for the unused water would also be 
necessary.

A properly constructed bell-type drinker system 
provides a continual source of water, but is usually 
more appropriate for larger operations (Figure 2). A 
dedicated water line with a pressure regulator is 
needed, and the initial equipment cost is much 
greater than the stand-alone fountain-type drinkers. 

Figure 2. Bell-type drinker supplied by a low 
pressure water line. 

Quality of Feed Is Important  
Feed quality will affect feed consumption. 

Ensure that the feed is not stale, rancid, or moldy. 
Immediately remove obviously moldy, rancid-
smelling or any other questionable feed. Such feed 
will, at best, not be eaten; and at worst, cause 
disease or nutritional deficiencies if consumed. 
Always store feed away from heat, moisture, and 
direct sunlight. Purchase feed as fresh as possible. 
Vitamins will start to degrade if finished feed is 
stored for prolonged periods. Plan your schedule so 
that new feed is purchased at least every two 
months and check for a recent manufacturing date 
on the bag before buying. 

No one feed ingredient contains all the 
nutrients required for a complete diet. Some 
ingredients are rich in one nutrient, but may lack in 
another. For example, soybean meal is rich in 
protein but contains relatively little energy from 
carbohydrates, while corn is high in carbohydrates 
(i.e. energy) but is a poorer source of protein. 
Together they complement each other in the 
complete feed. Each feedstuff has a place in a 
balanced diet.

There are five basic classes of nutrients needed. 
Table 1 lists the nutrients and gives examples of 
common feedstuffs supplying them. 

Table 1. Classes of nutrients necessary for poultry 
and examples of feed ingredients in which each is 
found.
Nutrient Feed ingredients
Carbohydrates (supply 
energy)

Corn, sorghum, wheat, 
other grains 

Protein sources (supply 
amino acids)

Soybean meal, meat 
products, canola meal, 
fish meal

Fats (supply energy) Vegetable oil, tallow, 
blended fat products 

Minerals Salt, limestone, calcium 
carbonate, calcium 
phosphate, oyster shell, 
commercial trace 
mineral mix 

Vitamins Commercial vitamin 
mixes, feedstuffs

These ingredients are mixed in different 
proportions and sold in the form of a mash, pellet, 
or crumble. Mash feed consists of all ingredients 
ground into particles and mixed loosely together. 

49



Pelletized feed is mash that is held together with a 
binder and then heat-treated, extruded, and cut into 
various lengths and diameters depending on the 
type of feed produced. Crumbled feed consists of 
pelletized feed broken down into smaller pieces. 

A chicken will stop eating once a certain 
quantity of energy has been consumed in a day. 
This will happen even if the bird has not ingested 
enough protein or vitamins. Therefore, the energy 
concentration needs to be in balance with the other 
nutrients in the diet. Commercial diet formulations 
take this into account. Because of the complex 
nature and expense involved in properly 
formulating and mixing poultry diets, it is highly 
recommended that feed be purchased from a 
reputable manufacturer and not attempted to be 
made at home. Even with increasing feedstuff 
prices, it is much more productive in the long run to 
feed your chickens high quality commercial feeds 
rather than skimping on cost or concocting 
homemade recipes. 

Practical Styles of Feeding Systems
Feeders come in a wide array of sizes and 

designs from egg carton lids for starting newly 
hatched chicks to sophisticated automatic adult 
feeding systems. A practical trough feeder for 
starting off young chicks is shown in Figure 3. 
Bucket feeders (Figure 4) of various sizes are 
popular and appropriate for both growing and adult 
chickens. The advantage of bucket feeders is that 
they can store a few days’ worth of feed, thereby 
alleviating daily hand feeding; however, care must 
be taken not to let old feed accumulate in them and 
become stale and moldy. Clean and brush out often. 
Use the appropriate size of bucket feeder for the 
class of poultry being raised. Using too large 
feeders with chicks will prevent them from being 
able to reach the feed. Also chicks might get inside 
the lip of the feeder and not be able to get back out. 
Using feeders with too narrow of a lip for adults 
birds will cause excessive waste of spilled feed into 
the litter (see Figure 4). Feeders should be raised off 
the ground, and generally positioned level to the 
mid to upper breast region of the chickens being 
fed.

A good rule of thumb is to allow 1 linear inch 
of feeder space per chick and 2 to 3 linear inches 
per adult chicken. 
 Always keep feeders in an area – preferably 
inside the chicken house – where the feed is 

protected from moisture, wild animals, and free-
flying birds. 

Figure 3. Small trough feeder sized for feeding 
young chicks. 

Figure 4. Example of a bucket-type feeder of a 
suitable size for chicks and smaller adolescent-age 
chickens.

It is counterproductive to “unbalance” a 
balanced diet by including questionable 
supplements.

Commercial feed purchased from a reliable 
dealer, has all the nutrients chickens need to grow 
and thrive. If you have a good diet that fulfills all of 
the dietary needs, do not alter it. Usually a little 
more of a good thing will upset a balanced diet. A 
balanced approach to nutrition is the key to optimal 
growth and performance.  

50



Common mistakes made with supplements:  
Giving vitamins and electrolyte supplements 
for more that 10 days. 
Supplementing complete feeds with cracked 
corn, oats, or other grains. 
Regularly adding green chops, lettuce, or 
other low nutrient ingredients to the diet. 
Administration of inappropriate or 
unnecessary medication. 

It’s OK to let your chickens forage around for bugs 
and greens, but always provide them access to the 
appropriate type of formulated balanced feed as 
well. Totally “free-ranged” poultry will rarely be 
able to consume a proper balance and quantity of 
nutrients necessary for maximum capable rate of 
meat and egg production. 

Table 2. General feeding schedule for various 
classes of chickens*. 

Meat-type strains (Commercial-type broilers, 
roasters, “Cornish-Rock” crosses) 
0-2 weeks. . . . . . . . .  22-24% protein chick starter 
2-4 weeks. . . . . . . . . . 20-21% protein grower
4 weeks to market . . . 18-20% protein finisher

Layer strains (Commercial-type leghorns, brown 
egg layers) 
0 to 6 weeks. . . . . . . . 20-21% protein chick starter 
6 to 10 weeks. . . . . . . 16-19% protein pullet grower 
10 weeks to prior to
Egg production. . . . . . 5-17% protein pullet 
developer
At onset of egg
production. . . . . . . . .  16-18% protein layer diet** 

Dual-purpose breeds (Plymouth Rock, Rhode 
Island Red, New Hampshire, etc.)
0 to 6 weeks. . . . . . . . 20-21% protein chick starter 
6 weeks to prior to   
egg production. . . .  .  15-19% protein pullet 

grower/developer 
At onset of egg
production . . . . . . . . . 16-18% protein layer diet** 

*These recommendations are based on common
protein levels for feeds available in most local feed 
stores. It is assumed that the finished feed is balanced for 
energy, vitamins, and minerals in relation to specific 
protein content. 

**Do not feed a layer diet to chickens not in egg 
production (too high in calcium). 

Feed Consumption Guidelines 
 There is great variation in feed consumption 
patterns of chickens depending on breed, feed 
source, and environmental conditions. The 
following information, however, serves as a guide 
in estimating feed consumption for large fowl 
breeds of poultry. 

Commercial egg-type 
Feed/pullet – hatch to ready-to-lay (18 to 21 
weeks): 13 to 15 lbs
Layer – daily intake/hen: 98 to 107g (22 to 
24 lbs/100 hens)
Plan on higher consumption than this for 
non-commercial strains and non egg-type 
breeds.

Commercial meat-type 
Feed/bird – hatch to market age (about 7 
weeks). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12.5 to 18 lbs
Feed conversion (lbs feed/lb gain) 2.5 to 2.7
Heavy standard-bred breeds will eat more 
feed than this guideline because of a 
tendency toward less efficient feed 
conversion.

As these basic nutritional principles are 
followed, your chickens will thrive and provide you 
with great enjoyment. For specific recommend-
dations, contact your local county agent or 
Extension poultry specialist. 

Utah State University is committed to providing an 
environment free from harassment and other forms of illegal 
discrimination based on race, color, religion, sex, national 
origin, age (40 and older), disability, and veteran’s status. 
USU’s policy also prohibits discrimination on the basis of 
sexual orientation in employment and academic related 
practices and decisions. 

Utah State University employees and students cannot, 
because of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, 
disability, or veteran’s status, refuse to hire; discharge; 
promote; demote; terminate; discriminate in compensation; or 
discriminate regarding terms, privileges, or conditions of 
employment, against any person otherwise qualified. 
Employees and students also cannot discriminate in the 
classroom, residence halls, or in on/off campus, USU-
sponsored events and activities. 

This publication is issued in furtherance of 
Cooperative Extension work, acts of May 8 and June 30, 1914, 
in cooperation with the U.S. Department of Agriculture, 
Noelle E. Cockett, Vice President for Extension and 
Agriculture, Utah State University. 

51



July 2009      AG/Poultry/2009-02pr 

Considerations in Raising Small
Backyard Flocks of Poultry in Population-dense 

Communities
David D. Frame, DVM, Diplomate ACPV 

Extension Poultry Specialist 

During these times of economic challenge many 
people are considering raising a few chickens in the 
backyard to augment their food supply. This has 
raised numerous questions ranging from how to feed 
chickens to addressing local animal-keeping 
ordinances. Often, the answers are a work in progress 
for many communities. The following considerations 
should be taken into account. 

Science-based Education Is Critical 

Be cautious of advice from self-proclaimed “experts” 
or people with informal training who attempt to fill a 
perceived educational niche. Many would-be poultry 
raisers are novices or first time owners. Learning how 
to do things correctly from qualified science-based 
sources is paramount in order to be successful. 
Optimal decision-making must be based on facts – not 
hearsay or folktales. Utah State University 
Cooperative Extension offers research-based 
education in small flock poultry raising. County 
agents and an Extension poultry specialist are 
available to educate groups and community leaders in 
poultry health and management issues. Fact sheets are 
also available on line: 
http://extension.usu.edu/files/publications/publication/
AG_Poultry_2008-01pr.pdf
http://extension.usu.edu/files/publications/publication/
AG_Poultry_2008-02pr.pdf
http://extension.usu.edu/files/publications/publication/
AG_Poultry_Health_Biosecurity_01.pdf

Effects on the Economy 

The commercial poultry industry contributes a 
significant and vital part to the agricultural economy 
of the U.S. Anything that jeopardizes the viability of 
this industry also jeopardizes the economic health of 
Utah. It is important that these commercial flocks be 
protected from serious diseases that would decimate 
this sector of Utah’s economy. An upsurge in number 
of small backyard flocks, particularly if not properly 
managed, might significantly increase the probability 
of disease exposure to the commercial industry. Past 
history has shown that diseases such as exotic 
Newcastle disease (END) can become present in the 
small flock poultry community. Exotic Newcastle 
disease can cause tremendous poultry death in both 
the small backyard flocks and in large commercial 
poultry operations. The discovery of END, for 
example, will have devastating economic 
consequences from death loss as well as the loss of 
trade with other countries.

Community Impacts 

The local community may experience unanticipated 
impacts from an abrupt unregulated increase in 
backyard poultry keeping. Any potential undesirable 
repercussions can be minimized through recognition 
and well thought out planning to ensure that all remain 
good neighbors. 

52



Noise: Hens are quieter than roosters. There are no 
practical or humane methods to “de-crow” a male 
fowl. It takes experience and knowledge to properly 
identify the gender of young chicks. Your local farm 
implement store may not be able to provide this 
service reliably when chicks are purchased. Be 
prepared to cull roosters as the chicks mature. Hens do 
not need a rooster present in order to lay eggs. 

Mixing of species. It is extremely risky to raise 
multiple species of poultry and waterfowl on the same 
premises – particularly if there is chance of exposure 
to wild birds. This is how many deadly poultry 
diseases get started, such as END or avian influenza 
(“bird flu”). 

Zoning. Some municipalities do not allow the raising 
of poultry or have strict ordinances that restrict this 
activity. Check with your city or county office to 
determine if there are specific regulations or 
restrictions that might preclude keeping poultry on 
your property. Along with city or county ordinances, 
some communities or subdivisions have rules or 
“covenants” that restrict the raising of poultry. Be sure 
to check if your domicile is in one of these.  

Animal control. Chickens are no respecters of 
property lines. They are prone to wander at will into 
neighbors’ yards and gardens. Remember chickens 
can also fly. To minimize the impact on neighbors, 
enclosures should be considered that properly restrain 
poultry and confine them to your property.  

Animal waste. In many instances, used chicken litter 
can be incorporated into the garden soil or composted; 
however, improper composting or storage may create 
excessive odor and fly problems. Proper composting 
requires careful management of moisture, aeration, 
and temperature. Allowing chickens to superficially 
scratch through a pile of manure is not sufficient for 
optimal composting to occur for a number of reasons. 
There are many Extension publications from various 
universities addressing the issue of general 
composting techniques. These should be thoroughly 
perused during any decision-making process. 

Disposal of deceased and spent fowl. It is important 
to realize that chickens have a relatively short life 
span. The productive life of a hen is about three to 
five years. Baby chicks soon grow up to be adult 
chickens and adult chickens end up as old chickens. 
Community leaders need to seriously address the issue 
of bird disposal. Do local ordinances allow birds to be 

buried on the premises or composted on-site or taken 
to the landfill? 

Human health. Although in most circumstances 
chickens pose a relatively low risk of giving disease to 
humans, there are a few that can be transmitted back 
and forth. Proper care and handling of eggs and 
processing of poultry carcasses are critical to avoid 
problems. Appropriate disposal of dead birds and used 
litter are also important. 

 Mice thrive in areas where chicken feed is improperly 
stored and excessive spillage occurs. Rats could 
become a problem in excessively wet areas or where 
water leaks occur. Feed should never be sprinkled into 
the litter or floor of poultry houses. This only 
encourages rodents to hang around the coops. Feed is 
to be properly dispensed in hanging hoppers that limit 
access to marauding rodents. Also, unused feed should 
be stored in closed containers in a cool area. A rodent 
control program of bait feeding and/or trapping should 
be mandatory in addition to all other precautions. 

Animal Welfare 

Proper care and feeding. It is imperative that poultry 
owners learn and implement proper care of their birds. 
Inhumane practices such as denying poultry access to 
water or a protected coop during hot days or during 
inclement and cold weather are intolerable. Many 
would-be poultry owners may never have raised 
chickens or farm animals before. They may not realize 
what the proper care and feeding of poultry entails. 
Birds are to be provided with a proper diet at all times 
and not left to fend for themselves. Enough space 
must be provided to adequately accommodate the 
number of birds kept. This is where appropriate 
science-based education becomes indispensible. 

Enforcement of noncompliance. If some type of 
local poultry permitting program is practiced, will 
there be sufficient funds and personnel to carry out the 
program? Does the community have the adequate 
resources and personnel to deal with people who 
break the rules or handle poultry in cruel or inhumane 
ways? 

Protection from predators and disease. Chickens 
are to be enclosed in a coop at night to protect them 
from predators. Although the debate could go on ad
infinitum as to what the optimal construction should 
be, common sense is usually adequate. Doors should 
tightly close, glass or strong plastic windows should 
be used, and a solid floor should be in place. Periodic 

53



inspection around the coop will indicate if varmints 
are trying to enter. Then take care of the varmint 
problem. 

Outside runs need to be covered with good quality 
wire or roofing that will keep out wild birds and keep 
the chickens inside. Many people might find this a 
serious inconvenience, but it is imperative! Wild birds 
can carry diseases that could kill their birds or set up a 
reservoir of infection that could get into the area’s 
commercial poultry industry with devastating 
consequences. This is a risk that any responsible 
community governing body should not take. The 
satisfactory demonstration of properly enclosed and 
restrained chickens should be a mandatory 
requirement in any permitting process. 

Disease transmission. Chicks must be purchased 
from sources certifying that they are free from specific 
diseases. Certain species of poultry can carry 

organisms that may do little harm to them but could 
cause devastating disease in another species. Mixing 
of species, such as ducks and chickens or chickens 
and turkeys increases the potential infection and 
spread of avian influenza (bird flu). Raising chickens 
and turkeys together could cause devastating disease 
in the turkeys. It is important to understand the nature 
of poultry diseases and how to deal with them. 
Contact your local veterinarian or Extension poultry 
specialist for further information on disease 
transmission and optimal biosecurity practices. 

Visit these Web sites for other important information: 
http://extension.usu.edu/files/publications/factsheet/A
G_poultry_2005-01.pdf
http://www.aphis.usda.gov/animal_health/birdbiosecu
rity/
http://ag.utah.gov/divisions/animal/health/index.html#
avianHealth

Utah State University is committed to providing an environment free from harassment and other forms of illegal discrimination based on 
race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age (40 and older), disability, and veteran’s status. USU’s policy also prohibits discrimination on the basis 
of sexual orientation in employment and academic related practices and decisions. 

Utah State University employees and students cannot, because of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, disability, or veteran’s 
status, refuse to hire; discharge; promote; demote; terminate; discriminate in compensation; or discriminate regarding terms, privileges, or conditions 
of employment, against any person otherwise qualified. Employees and students also cannot discriminate in the classroom, residence halls, or in 
on/off campus, USU-sponsored events and activities. 

This publication is issued in furtherance of Cooperative Extension work, acts of May 8 and June 30, 1914, in cooperation with the U.S. 
Department of Agriculture, Noelle E. Cockett, Vice President for Extension and Agriculture, Utah State University. 

54



55



56



57



58



59



60 

Draft, 2-11-13 
Proposed Section 1111: Domestic Livestock and Fowl in Single-Family Residential Zones 

Section 1111  
The purpose of this section is to provide supplementary regulations for the keeping of limited domestic livestock 
and fowl in the single-family zoning districts of the city.  It shall be unlawful to keep domestic livestock and fowl in 
the R-1-6, R-1-7, R-1-8, R-1-10 and R-1-15 zones except as provided in this section.   

1) Allowance - All single-family residential properties in the R-1-6, R-1-7, R-1-8, R-1-10 and R-1-15 zones shall
be allowed points for domestic livestock and fowl as defined by this section according the following:
a) Points by Lot Size – Lots shall be assigned points by lot area, according to the following table.

15,000 square feet and larger 30 points 
10,000 – 14,999 square feet 20 points 
8,000 – 9,999 square feet 10 points 
Less than 8,000 square feet No points 

b) Allowance by Points – domestic livestock and fowl shall be permitted by type and points
according to the following table.

Small livestock and fowl (rabbits and 
non-crowing, egg-laying hens) 

5 points each 
animal 

2) Permit Required – A city permit is required for the keeping of any animal or animals under this section.
Permits may only be issued to the property owner of record.
a) Fee.  The permit fee shall be set forth in the adopted Fee Schedule of the City.
b) Renewal.  All permits issued under this section are subject to annual inspection and renewal.
c) Inspection.  Inspections related to a permit issued under this section must be permitted as deemed

necessary by the City.
d) Revocation.  A permit may be revoked by the City for any violation of this section at any time.
e) Transfer of Permits.  Permits under this section are issued to property owners of specific lots and may

not be transferred or assigned to other persons or properties when ownership or residency changes.
f) Notice to Adjacent Neighbors.  Upon receiving an application under this section, the Zoning

Administrator shall cause notice of the application to be sent by mail to all owners of property
immediately adjacent to the subject property.

g) Site Plan.  An application for a permit under this section must be accompanied by a site plan
indicating the lot, the primary residence, and the proposed placement of the structures or hives in
compliance with the requirements of this section required by this section.

h) Zoning Administrator - The Zoning Administrator or his or her designee shall be responsible for the
review of applications, issuance or denial of permits, inspections, renewals, investigation of
complaints, and revocation of permits when necessary.

3) Regulations for the Keeping of Hens and Rabbits – The issuance of a permit for the keeping of non-
crowing, egg-laying Hens and/or Rabbits under this section shall be predicated upon compliance with the
following.
a) Roosters.  Roosters and crowing hens of all kinds are prohibited.



61 

b) Personal Use Only.  The keeping of hens or rabbits is intended only for pleasure or family food
production (eggs).   No sale of any kind or slaughter is permitted.

c) Enclosure Standards.  All animals must be contained within an enclosure or fenced area at all times.
Such an area shall be entirely within the rear yard.  No enclosures will be permitted in front or side
yards.
1. Structure.  All animals kept under this section shall be housed within a covered, predator proof

and well ventilated coop or hutch.  The structure must provide a minimum of three square feet
per animal and be of sufficient size to allow free movement.  No coop or hutch may exceed 7 feet
in height.

2. Location.  All structures provided under this section shall be located a minimum of 30 feet from
any dwelling on an adjacent lot, 10 feet from any property line and 10 feet from any dwelling on
the same lot.

3. Maintenance.  Coops, hutches and enclosures shall be cleaned and maintained as necessary to
prevent detectable odor at the property line.  All coops or hutches must be maintained in good
repair and painted or stained annually.

4. Feed.  Feed for animals kept under this section must be stored and dispensed in rodent-proof,
predator-proof containers.

5. Disposal of Animals.  Dead animals and unused eggs must be removed within 24 hours and
properly disposed of.

6. Wastewater.  Wastewater from the use of the animals or related to the maintenance of the
structure shall be retained or disposed of entirely on the property.



62 

ROY CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 
Regarding Chicken/Rabbit and Bee’s 

July 25, 2012 
2. PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER A REQUEST TO AMEND THE TEXT OF THE ZONING

ORDINANCE REGARDING THE KEEPING OF DOMESTIC LIVESTOCK AND FOWL IN
RESIDENTIAL ZONES

Commissioner Kirch moved to open the public hearing at 6:11 p.m.  Commissioner Holt seconded 
the motion.  Commission members Hamilton, Holt, Kirch, and Stonehocker.  The motion carried. 

Jared Hall stated that this was a public hearing to consider a proposal from Melissa Warwood to amend 
the text of the Zoning Ordinance regarding the prohibition of keeping domestic livestock in residential zones 
other than RE-20.  It appeared there was a lot of interest from the public on this topic.  Mr. Hall explained 
that a text amendment was a request to change the way the Zoning Ordinance read.  Roy City currently 
allowed domestic livestock and fowl in RE-20 Zones.  The current regulations had been in effect since 
2005.  Several attempts to amend the livestock regulations had failed.  There were other cities in the area 
that had adopted ordinances allowing some animals in residential zones.  Melissa Warwood proposed that 
hens and bees be allowed in other residential zones based on a point system similar to the one used by 
West Point.  West Point’s lot sizes were considerably larger than Roy City’s.  The point system used by 
West Point would not work in Roy City.  A point system would have to be tailored to fit Roy City.  

Mr. Hall said the staff was not prepared to offer an alternative version of the point system.  The staff 
recommended that the Commission listen to the public comments and continue the public hearing to the 
next scheduled meeting on August 14th pending more research and possible draft work.  It appeared more 
suburban areas were prepared to regulate domestic livestock.  He felt the problems would come with 
enforcement, which would require further research.  Mr. Hall reminded the audience that the Planning 
Commission dealt with Land Use ordinances.  Anything dealing with land use regulations was heard by 
the Planning Commission.  The Commission would listen to staff and public input then forward a 
recommendation to the City Council. 

Mr. Hall stated that the City had received a letter from Christee Kyte in support of the text amendment.  He 
asked that the letter be entered into the record (see attached copy).  The Mayor had received a email from 
Mr. Hawthorn in opposition to the amendment.  He read the email into the record.  (See attached copy). 
The staff had taken half a dozen calls in support of the application. 

Chairman Stonehocker opened the floor for public comments. 

Melissa Warwood, 2590 West 4800 South, stated that her reasoning for the text amendment was self-
sufficiency.  She grew a large garden and canned.  She worked at  the jail where she taught inmates how 
to garden and work with beehives.  She had never had any issues with the hives.  She had found that bees 
were very beneficial for her garden.  She grew up with chickens.  If they were kept as pets, they got used 
to their caretakers.  Chickens ate the grubs that destroyed gardens.  Chicken manure was high in nitrogen 
and made great compost, which was very good for gardens.  She asked that the Planning Commission 
consider her request. 

Allen Brown, Slaterville, stated that he was representing the Weber County Bee Keepers’ Association. 
There was a huge difference between bees and wasps.  Wasps would sting.  Honey bees would die if they 
stung. They only stung if they were threatened.  Washington Terrace and South Ogden recently changed 
their ordinances to allow bees in residential zones.  Bees were also allowed in Brigham City.  The State of 
Utah required all bee keepers to have a state license.  They were subject to all the State regulations.  The 
application gave State inspectors the right to inspect the hives at any time.  There was a licensing fee. 
The license had to be renewed annually.  Bees were endangered.  Bee keepers lost 30% to 40% of their 



63 

bees every year.  A honey bee was 15 feet in the air by the time it was 10 feet from the hive.  Bees ranged 
from three to five miles.  He kept hives within 15 feet of the trampoline his grandchildren used.  In the five 
years they had been there, he had never had a problem. 

Commissioner Kirch stated that there were three registered bee keepers in Roy City.  One was inactive. 
A lot of states were changing their regulations because bees were dying.  Honey bees drive wasps away. 

Sean Ercanbrack, 5743 South 3950 West, supported the text amendment.  As a youth, his grandparents 
kept bees on their urban lot in Murray.  He played within five feet of the hive and never had a problem. 
The bees went straight up when they left the hive.  His grandmother was allergic to bees, but never had a 
problem with them.  He was interested in having other fowl besides chickens.  With the canal near his 
home, he had some ducks.  They were very educational for his children.  The ducks didn’t make a lot of 
noise and stayed in the yard.  They had not flow away.  His brother lived in West Haven and had chickens. 
The fence for the chickens was lower than the standard fence height in Roy.  His brother never had 
problems with chickens getting out.  He felt the proposed amendment was a positive thing. 

Joseph Herrera, 2182 West 5600 South, stated that he moved to Utah about 18 months ago.  He found it 
ironic that the State symbol was a beehive; yet he could not have a hive in his own yard.  He requested a 
variance but was told that was not an option under Roy City’s Zoning Ordinance.  He would have to pursue 
a text amendment.  He felt bees were a good thing.  There were four beehives at the White House.  Bees 
were essential to gardens.  Gardens were part of having things on hand in case of an earthquake.  Bees 
were dying. 

Brian Jenkins, 2046 West 3775 South, was in favor of changing the Zoning Ordinance to allow chickens 
and bees and possibly other fowl.  He felt both would help people be self-sufficient.  He had fourteen 
children and would really like the opportunity to have animals in his yard.  His kids could have an 
agricultural project.  His yard was too small for a dog.  His neighbors had dogs that were cooped up and 
barked all the time.  He didn’t feel the City was doing a good job enforcing its dog ordinance.  If the 
regulations for chickens and bees were reasonable and people wanted to participate, he felt they would 
do so honestly.  As long as the number of chickens was small, he didn’t feel the manure would be a 
problem. 

Rebecca Rodriguez, 2577 West 4400 South, didn’t realize she couldn’t have chickens in Roy.  She got her 
chickens when they were little.  When the weather warmed up, she moved them outside.  A few weeks 
later, she received a citation.  Her hens were just ready to start laying.  The chickens had been a joy.  They 
were sweet and, unless they were disturbed, they were very quiet.  She supported the text amendment. 
She understood that if the ordinance was not changed, her birds would have to go away.  She felt her 
family would benefit from having fresh eggs.  People who wanted chickens in their backyard were not trying 
to make a profit.  Dogs and cats could be a nuisance to neighbors.  Chickens were quiet and kept to 
themselves.  A small yard could support a small flock of backyard chickens.  Fresh eggs kept longer than 
those purchased in a store.  People were concerned about food storage and emergency preparedness. 
She was not interested in profiting financially from her birds, and she didn’t want to be a nuisance to her 
neighbors. 

Lanis Ogilvie, Ogden, stated that she had been looking forward to her daughter’s fresh eggs.  Her 
grandmother raised chickens and bees in Bountiful, which was wonderful for her as a child.  Eggs tasted 
better when they were fresh.  Another daughter lived in Clinton.  She had a neighbor with chickens and 
didn’t even know it.  She never heard them.  She was concerned about bees disappearing.  She was 
interested in seeing Roy pass this text amendment because she wanted Ogden to follow suit. 

Lil Ackley, 5839 South 3260 West, stated that chickens did produce good, nitrogen-rich manure, which 
was a fertilizer free of pesticides and chemicals.  A hen could lay up to 200 eggs a year.  She did not feel 
a few chickens were a problem but believed there should be a limit on the number allowed.  Eggs from 



64 

roaming chickens were higher in nutrients and vitamins.  She felt the chickens should be kept within a 
yard, and that no roosters should be allowed. 

Christee Kyte, 6058 South 2050 West, stated that she had lived in Roy for 21 years and had not been in 
compliance.  She had a rabbit in her backyard, as well as hens.  She asked for the Planning Commission’s 
mercy.  Chicken dung did attract flies.  However, if it was swept up, the flies went away.  The City asked 
dog owners to clean up after their dogs.  Chickens were no different.  Another concern about chickens was 
noise.  Hens were not totally quiet.  They cackled when they laid eggs.  Usually that was about once a day. 
Her neighbors had never complained.  Roosters crowed and looked after the hens.  She felt Roy City could 
be a model city by allowing 6 to 8 hens.  Bees and chickens went together.  Chickens ate the grubs in the 
ground that caused gardening problems; they didn’t bother flying insects.  She hoped the Planning 
Commission recommended that the Zoning Ordinance be changed soon.  She thanked Melissa Warwood 
for submitting the application for a text amendment. 

Myron Perry, 1975 West 6000 South, stated that he had lived in Roy since 1943.  When he first moved to 
Roy it was difficult to find anyone without animals.  He still had one; an old pet goose.  He wanted to 
continue to have some animals.  He taught his children and grandchildren how to take care of animals 
through chores.  Roy was always a rural area.  The only noise from the chickens was cackling when eggs 
were laid.  No one had complained about his chickens. 

Barbara Perry, 1994 West 4250 South, said she was really happy to hear from so many like-minded people. 
She felt everyone should have the opportunity to have chickens.  She was in favor of changing the 
ordinance.  Someone in her neighborhood had chickens.  She could hear them cackling.  It didn’t bother 
her.  However, her neighbor’s dog barking through the night did.  She enjoyed her garden.  She liked to 
can because she knew where her food came from.  There were not a lot of children who knew where 
tomatoes came from or that eggs didn’t come from a store. 

Doug Fowers, 5826 South 3325 West, said his yard was half an acre.  When they moved to Roy their 
builder told them they could have chickens.  They built a coop.  A short time later they received a citation. 
Everyone around them had animals.  It was hard getting rid of their chickens.  He felt it was great for 
children to have the responsibilities when keeping chickens.  He would like to see the ordinance changed 
so he could have some hens. 

Chris Lovewell, 2242 West 5300 South, wanted to have chickens.  Too many of the current generation 
spent all their time inside day playing video games.  He had about one-third of an acre.  He would like to 
make his land produce more and have chickens for fresh eggs.  He would like to teach his children how to 
take care of them.  He also liked to know where his food came from.  He had been around chickens.  They 
did cackle at times, but their noise level was nothing compared to rowdy dogs. 

Adrienne Robinson, 4644 South 3750 West, appreciated all of the comments.  She agreed with everything 
that had been said.  She wanted to be self-sufficient.  She felt that was the type of people Roy wanted to 
attract.  It would if it had the right ordinance.  She had heard that Idaho Falls, Idaho allowed four chickens. 
She didn’t feel four chickens would hurt anybody. 

Bruce Perry, 1994 West 4250 South, hoped all of the comments were making an impression about how 
important this issue was to people in the City.  He wanted to know where his food came from.  There was 
a difference between home-grown eggs and eggs from the store.  There was a difference in produce as 
well.  As a gardener, he needed help from bees.  He suggested that all those in attendance follow up by 
contacting the elected officials. 

Chris Hadley, 3820 West 4900 South, wanted his children to have real work to do.  Living in the city made 
it difficult to find enough real work for his seven children.  He sat in a Council meeting a year ago when 
there was a discussion about raising taxes to purchase a ladder fire truck, which was a great expenditure. 
However, there was also a discussion about a swimming pool with a yearly deficit.  It was mentioned that 



65 

the children needed a place to go.  He felt that children needed real work more than they needed a skate 
park or a swimming pool.  Those were pursuits that should be left to the private industry, not the 
government.  This text amendment would allow him to give his children real, living work at home in Roy. 
He asked the Planning Commission to remember that this country was founded on the idea of a 
government for the people by the people.  The government needed to trust the people a lot more. 

Dan Medell, 5821 South 4175 West, said he was representing Clark Roberts, his neighbor.  Mr. Roberts 
lived on a small swatch of unincorporated Weber County within Roy City and kept both chickens and bees. 
Mr. Medell felt approval of the text amendment was a slam dunk.  He didn’t see why the Planning 
Commission would recommend denial of beehives.  The Commission would have to work on restrictions 
for the chickens.  Maintaining chickens was part of being a responsible citizen.  He felt there should be 
something in the regulations about landlords because most landlords were hands off. 

James Mackley, Pleasant View, stated that he was also representing Clark and Abby Roberts.  They didn’t 
want to be restricted from keeping chickens and bees.  Amending the Zoning Ordinance would be a good 
example of a community that wanted its citizens to be self-reliant. 

Dax Barney, 2017 West 5500 South, stated that he had half an acre and planned to grow more fruit trees.  
He wanted to have bees to pollinate his trees.  He supported changing the ordinance to allow bees. 

Cary Jenkins, 2046 West 3775 South, stated that a friend tried to get a text amendment passed in a city 
to the south.  The City Council was considering approving the amendment until the enforcement officer 
expressed opposition and concern about loose, rogue chickens.  Ms. Jenkins preferred to be attacked by 
something with a bill rather than something with teeth.  If the City was going to pass an ordinance to keep 
animals out, she would much prefer to get rid of dogs.  Dogs were significantly more scary than a rogue 
chicken, duck , or goose.  She was in favor of the text amendment. 

Brad Johnson, 5308 South 2300 West, stated that he raised chickens when he lived in Taylor.  His children 
and grandchildren loved them.  They were very educational.  He moved to Roy because it was a family-
oriented town.  With a common sense approach, allowing chickens and bees would make Roy more a 
community than an asphalt city.  Citizens would have the benefit of raising their own food and learning 
about agriculture and farming.  With a logical approach, he didn’t feel animals would bother anybody. 

Andrew Warwood, 2590 West 4800 South, stated that at first he was opposed to chickens and bees in his 
yard.  He grew up in Hooper and knew how smelly animals could be.  However, they were not talking about 
a cow on a quarter acre.  He understood the point system would have to be adjusted to fit Roy City.  He 
felt this text amendment was a good thing.  The email the City received in opposition cited concerns about 
noise and cleanliness.  He felt those were the exception to the rule.  He hoped the Planning Commission 
would forward a positive recommendation to the City Council. 

Chairman Stonehocker closed the floor to public comments. 

At approximately 7:30 p.m., Commissioner Holt moved to continue the public hearing to the next 
scheduled Planning Commission meeting on August 14th, at which time the Planning Commission 
would discuss the amendment and possibly make a recommendation to the City Council. 
Commissioner Kirch seconded the motion.  Commission members Hamilton, Holt, Kirch, Merx, and 
Stonehocker voted “aye.”  The motion carried. 

Commissioner Hamilton said it was refreshing to see so many people at a Planning Commission meeting.  
He appreciated all of the comments.  It was important for the Planning Commission to receive feedback. 
He had heard several comments that Roy City did not allow animals.  Roy City did allow animals in the 
RE-20 Zone.  Some positives about allowing animals in residential zones had been brought up.  The 
Planning Commission now had to consider whether animals could be allowed and still allow all property 
owners to enjoy their yards.  He recently had the unfortunate experience of having a neighbor with 



66 

chickens.  He knew the chickens were not in compliance, but his neighbors were there temporarily so he 
didn’t say anything.  However, they placed their coop next to his fence, which made it so he could not enjoy 
his backyard.  He asked that the staff provide information to the Planning Commission on August 14th 
about how to control concerns about noise and smell and how a point system could work in Roy. 

Commissioner Holt asked that the City Attorney review any of the staff’s proposals.  He felt it was critical 
that animals and bees only be permitted for a homeowner, not a tenant.   

Jared Hall said the staff had already started discussions with the City Attorney.  One suggestion had been 
issuance of a license for this type of use.  Commissioner Kirch pointed out that the State already required 
beekeepers to be licensed. 

Commissioner Kirch suggested requiring those who wanted animals in residential zones to fill out an 
application so the City knew where the animals were located.  She felt any regulations should address 
disposal of deceased animals.  She wasn’t sure if a point system would work.  It might be better to just set 
certain numbers based on graduated lot sizes.  In the ordinances she had read, there were a lot of rules 
and regulations about where animals could be kept in yards relative to neighboring properties.  Was that 
something that could be duplicated in Roy?  She suggested finding an existing ordinance that could be 
tweaked to fit Roy. 

Chairman Stonehocker felt any regulations should include language prohibiting retail or commercial sales 
from the animals.  He asked about getting approval from adjoining property owners.   

Commissioner Hamilton asked the staff to look for ordinances with setback requirements. 

Commissioner Kirch felt regulations should prohibit roosters and should limit fowl to those involved in egg 
production.  She didn’t feel a turkey in a backyard would be appropriate.   They were too noisy.  Regulations 
should address cleanliness.  Manure should be kept on your own property.  It should not enter the City’s 
water system. 

Jared Hall stated that the Zoning Ordinance contained language regulating domestic livestock in RE-20 
Zones.  He felt that language should be left alone.  He suggested that any proposal would involve the 
creation of a new category regulating certain livestock in residential zones.  He wanted to have a ‘stand 
alone’ ordinance.  The text amendment was likely to be lengthy. 

Commissioner Hamilton felt any amendment should be very specific about what animals could and could 
not be allowed.  Based on the public comments, he felt the text amendment would be limited to about four 
types of animals - rabbits, chickens, bees, and ducks. 

Jared Hall stated that the staff would begin looking at drafting a proposed amendment for the Commission 
to review on August 14th.  He would try to pass along research as he received it. 

August 14, 2012 

3. CONTINUATION OF PUBLIC HEARING FROM 7/25/12 TO CONSIDER A REQUEST TO AMEND
THE TEXT OF THE ZONING ORDINANCE REGARDING THE KEEPING OF DOMESTIC
LIVESTOCK AND FOWL IN RESIDENTIAL ZONES

At 6:09 p.m., Commissioner Kirch moved to continue the public hearing from July 25, 2012. 
Commissioner Hamilton seconded the motion.  Commission members Hamilton, Holt, Kirch, and 
Stonehocker voted “aye.”  The motion carried. 



67 

Jared Hall stated that this hearing was the continuation of one held on July 25th to consider a request to 
amend the text of the Zoning Ordinance regarding the keeping of domestic livestock and fowl.  The hearing 
was continued to allow for further discussion and time for the staff to conduct further research.  The staff 
had provided some of the ordinances from other cities in the area.  Layton City was holding a hearing this 
evening to consider allowing animals on 10,000 square foot lots.  Mr. Hall read an email from Julian Green 
into the record (see attached copy).  Mr. Green asked that the Planning Commission deny the request to 
amend the Zoning Ordinance. 

Chairman Stonehocker opened the floor for public comments. 

Rebeka Rodriguez, 2577 West 4400 South, stated that the email from Julian Green asked that the petition 
be denied due to irresponsibility.  People could be irresponsible with dogs, cats, and even children.  She 
asked the Planning Commission to not base its decision on someone who was irresponsible.  She 
reminded the Planning Commission about all of the positive comments it received two weeks ago.  Only 
two negative comments had been received.  Both of them were received via email. 

Gary Davis, 5214 South 2700 West, was in favor the text amendment.  He had raised birds since he was 
a small child.  It all depended on whoever cared for them.  Birds were bug eating machines.  He had a lot 
of Box Elder trees growing along the north side of his property.  He would like to have birds to eat the bugs 
rather spraying pesticides. 

Forrest Young, 2428 West 5075 South, was also in favor of having chickens.  He asked the Planning 
Commission to consider all of the positive comments. 

Sean Ercanbrack, 5743 South 3950 West, stated that those who were opposed to the text amendment 
had written in.  Those in attendance out numbered those who were vocally opposed. 

Commissioner Kirch asked how large Mr. Ercanbrack’s lot was.  Mr. Ercanbrack was not sure.  Michelle 
Drago asked if he lived in the Aland of Honey Subdivision.  Mr. Ercanbrack said he did.  Ms. Drago said 
Aland of Honey was zoned R-1-8, but the lots were actually 7,000 square feet in size. 
Brian Jenkins, 2046 West 3775 South, stated that since July 25th he had spoken with his neighbors.  Some 
were against allowing chickens.  One had a bad experience with a neighbor keeping only roosters who 
crowed all night.  Another was opposed because of cleanliness concerns.  Mr. Jenkins asked the Planning 
Commission to include regulations requiring people to talk to their neighbors.  There were ordinances on 
the books which allowed citizens the recourse of speaking with the police rather than their neighbors. 
Those ordinances made Roy an isolated community.  When neighbors could reach an agreement there 
would be less problems with irresponsibility. 

Joseph Herrera, 2182 West 5600 South, didn’t feel the Planning Commission should base its decision on 
the problems people had had in their lives or on one person’s bad experience.  He was in favor of bees 
and chickens, as long as roosters weren’t allowed. 

Vic Bachman, Ogden, stated that he was part owner of Deseret Hive Supply, a new business which 
provided supplies for beekeepers.  He had been asked to attend in support of the text amendment.  He 
had been keeping bees for several years.  He had spoken with many people from the Roy area who wanted 
to know if Roy allowed bees.  He had five hives at his home in North Ogden.  When he first put the hives 
in, his neighbors were worried, but most had forgotten the hives were there. 

Commissioner Kirch asked how many bees were in a hive.  Mr. Bachman said there could be 25,000 to 
50,000 bees in one hive.  It was usually good to have two hives so they could help each other.  He had not 
been stung by his own bees, but he had been stung many times removing feral hives.  The bee population 
had dwindled.  Most commercial beekeepers lost 70% of their bees in the first year. 



68 

Clark Roberts, 3581 West 5350 South, stated that he lived in an unincorporated island in the middle of 
Roy City.  He had kept hives for the last 12 years.  He agreed with what had been said.  Bees were pretty 
docile.  Their single focus was to find food.  It was hard to upset a honey bee.  He felt it was important for 
the City to write an ordinance with regulations to help people be responsible.  Bees did need a water 
source.  He was very much in favor of bees and chickens.  Bees would be a lot easier to manage. 
Beekeepers should be required to register and have a County inspector look at them once a year.  There 
were good ways to set up a hive and places to put them to cause less disturbance for others. 

Nate Hall, owner of Deseret Hive Supply, stated that it was important for people to know that a bee sting 
would swell.  Swelling didn’t mean you were allergic.  The pros for bee keeping far outnumbered the cons. 
He didn’t feel it was a good idea for someone with half an acre to have 50 to 100 hives.  People needed 
to be educated and became certified.  Half of every bite you ate was the result of bee pollenation. 

Bruce Perry, 1994 West 4250 South, was incredibly impressed by the number of people who had showed 
up at the meeting two weeks ago and tonight to support the request for a text amendment.  It was important 
for him to know where the food he put on his table came from and what it had been fed.  It was an important 
thing on people’s minds.  They wanted to have some control over their lives.  There was a difference 
between fresh eggs and those from the grocery store.  The difference was what most people were 
concerned about.  A garden was an important part of his lifestyle.  Bees were part of the system he needed 
to maintain a garden.  People in Roy needed more control over what they put on their tables and more 
control over their lifestyles.  He supported this change.  He looked forward to making some progress. 

Brad Christiansen, 3036 West 4375 South, hated to think he was the silent majority.  He had talked to a 
lot of people in the past two weeks.  Many thought this was just a west Roy issue which they didn’t have 
to worry about.  He also sent an email which was read into the record at the last meeting.  However, this 
was City wide.  There were positives about bees and chickens, but there were a lot of negatives.  A lot of 
people were allergic to bees; his wife was one.  He used to have chickens and ducks.  They were a lot of 
work.  They smelled as well as their droppings.   They attracted rodents.  He was opposed to the idea of 
putting them on such small lots.  He didn’t like the thought of having a chicken coop 20 feet from his 
bedroom window.  On his farm, the coop was 100 feet from the house, and it was still too close.  Chicken 
poop smelled.  He moved to this area because it was residential; because he didn’t want to put up with 
farming.  He read the codes and knew there were limits on cats and dogs.  He moved here on purpose.  If 
people wanted to have animals, they needed to move where they could have them.   

Mr. Christiansen said that allowing chickens brought a lot of potential problems.  The City couldn’t handle 
the code enforcement issues now.  He didn’t feel it was fair to burden all of the citizens for a few people’s 
hobby.  There was a lot of open acreage in the City that people could keep chickens on.  There were other 
options for those who wanted chickens, such as a co-op.  Then they would not encumber people who did 
not want them.  Even if there were 300 people in favor of this text amendment, they were still a very small 
percentage of the populace of Roy City.  He encouraged the Planning Commission to look at all of the 
ramifications.  A text amendment would affect many people who didn’t want to be encumbered.  He felt 
having a chicken coop right next to his home would make it difficult for him to sell his home.  There were 
already many yards in the City that were not cared for.  He didn’t feel the City was financially able to handle 
the problems that would come from a text amendment.  Once that happened, there would be a lot more 
citizens trying to change the ordinance back. 

Joseph Herrerra rebutted Mr. Christiansen’s statement.  Just because someone was allergic to something 
didn’t mean it should be banned from the rest of the population.  Those in favor of the text amendment 
were in the majority.  He lived in a condominium with a dumpster 50 feet away. 

Elizabeth Brown, 4997 South 1950 West, stated that she was extremely allergic to bees, and her daughter 
had environmental allergies.  She asked the Planning Commission to consider everyone’s health. 



69 

Dax Barney, 2017 West 5500 South, stated that he had a lot of wasps in his yard.  Bees were the natural 
enemy of wasps.  He was in favor of bees.  There was a difference between bees and chickens.  He felt 
bees should be allowed even if chickens were ruled out.  Bees and chickens should be considered 
separately. 

Melissa Warwood, 2590 West 4800 South, stated that she had four chickens.  She also had a rabbit.  Five 
different families had visited with her since she brought them out of her house a week ago.  They wanted 
to learn how to take care of them.  Her daughter was obsessed with feeding the chickens.  She understood 
that she might have to get rid of the them.  She loved the produce she was able to harvest from her garden 
with the help of bees.  Almost all of the cities were changing their regulations to allow chickens in residential 
areas.  She wanted to stay in Roy, but if she could not have animals she would be discouraged from 
staying.  She hoped the Planning Commission did not allow the negative comments to outweigh the 
positives. 

Rebeka Rodriguez, 2577 West 4400 South, appreciated Mr. Christiansen’s perspective.  She felt his 
concerns could be addressed.  She didn’t feel smell would be a problem because of the small number. 
She had six chickens, which she knew she might have to let go if the decision went against them.  The 
concerns about smell and roosters could be addressed in the text.  Clinton required chickens to be kept a 
minimum of 30 feet from residents.  Roy City would receive revenue from those who wanted to keep 
animals to help cover enforcement costs.  People wanted to have some control over their property. 

Forrest Young felt concerns could be addressed by educating the public, limits, and certification.  Times 
were changing.  The City needed to address this situation. 

Janet Ercanbrack, 5743 South 3950 West, was surprised at how many people came to the last meeting 
and this one.  She found out a lot of people had animals.  No one had complained about them because 
they weren’t a problem.  She didn’t know what they would do if the Planning Commission didn’t allow 
animals.  Their pets were part of their lives and family.  She felt there needed to be a compromise between 
those who wanted to have animals and those who did not. 

Chairman Stonehocker closed the floor for public comments. 

Commissioner Kirch moved to close the public hearing at 7:05 p.m.  Commissioner Holt seconded 
the motion.  Commission members Hamilton, Holt, Kirch, and Stonehocker, and Zito voted “aye.” 
The motion carried. 

Jared Hall said the proposed test amendment started with an application.  It was the nature of the beast 
that its supporters would be a more vocal group and gain momentum through publicity.  That was one 
reason why the public hearing had been continued from July 25th.  It was surprisingly complex trying to 
analyze this type of request from a zoning perspective.  Allowing animals was easy in agricultural zones. 
Standard zoning methods had worked to separate agricultural, residential, and commercial areas.  Zoning 
livestock and other agricultural uses out of residential and commercial areas over the course of many years 
had created expectations.  In suburbia, a resident didn’t expect to look out the back door and see a chicken 
coop.  The Planning Commission needed to be cognizant of that expectation.  Mr. Hall said the minutes 
he read from other cities were surprisingly similar to the public hearing which had just closed. 

Mr. Hall said that one way livestock could be allowed in residential zoning would be by conditional use 
permit, which would require a public process.  In that public process, adjoining property owners would be 
notified.  There wasn’t a method of renewal or periodic inspection.  The current fee for a conditional use 
permit was $250.00.  An alternative method would be allowing some livestock by permit or registration. 
This would allow for tracking and periodic inspections and an annual renewal.  Permits would be 
administered by the staff; but there would not be a public process.  The cost of the permit could be set by 
the adopting ordinance. 



70 

Commissioner Hamilton was concerned about using conditional use permits.  He wasn’t sure the Planning 
Commission needed to hold a public hearing for everyone who wanted to have chickens.  Mr. Hall said a 
permit would be simpler in many ways, but it was important to not that there wouldn’t be a public process.  
A conditional use permit was one time, and then remained in effect unless it was revoked by action of the 
City.  Permits on the other hand, could be renewed (and therefore reviewed) annually for a smaller fee. 

Commissioner Kirch asked if a permit could become ‘grand-fathered’ since a conditional use permit 
became attached to the property.  A permit seemed easier to review and deny if necessary.  Mr. Hall 
agreed and pointed out that a permit would be issued to an individual, not attached to the property. 

Commissioner Hamilton felt there needed to be a data record kept so the City would know who had 
animals. 

Commissioner Holt felt the conditional use permit or permit needed to be filed by a homeowner, not a 
renter. 

Chairman Stonehocker felt a state license should be required for bees.  Education about fowl was also 
important.  People would need to know what their responsibilities would be.  Mr. Hall said the City gave 
out information packets for a lot of things.  A packet regarding animals could be put together. 
Commissioner Kirch felt permits should be renewed annually, and that nothing should be grand fathered.  

Commissioner Hamilton reminded the audience that the Commission was still in the discussion process. 
When Salt Lake amended its ordinance to allow bees, the process took months.  If the City was going to 
do this, he wanted to make sure the change had been discussed and considered thoroughly. 

Commission Kirch stated that the Planning Commission was cognizant of both sides of this issue.  It had 
to consider the citizens of the entire community. 

Commissioner Hamilton agreed that everyone needed to be able to enjoy their property.  If citizens wanted 
to have animals, they shouldn’t affect their neighbors who didn’t want them. 

Jared Hall said the numbers allowed could be tied to zoning, lot area, or by simple allowance. 

Commissioner Hamilton felt the number should to the size of the lot, not the zone. 

Commissioner Kirch agreed.  The footprint of the house should be taken into consideration as well. 

Commissioner Kirch stated that research indicated poultry needed three square feet of space per animal. 
Mr. Hall said that his reading suggested that poultry not allowed to roam required at least six square feet 
per animal. 

Chairman Stonehocker asked if an open space requirement needed to be included with lot area.  Mr. Hall 
said regardless of lot size or house footprint, setbacks for coops would limit numbers. 

Commissioner Kirch felt part of the permit process should be a submission of a site plan indicating where 
the coop or bees would be located.  Mr. Hall agreed a site plan was vital 

Commissioner Kirch felt the City should reconsider a point system.  She was concerned about a property 
owner keeping chickens, rabbits, and bees on an 8,000 square foot lot.  A point system would limit numbers 
and over population.  Points could be allotted.  An owner could use points as he wanted, but he would be 
restricted to the number allowed by the points. 

Commissioner Hamilton asked if the animals could be written into the City’s livestock ordinance, like 
Syracuse.  Mr. Hall said Syracuse had a separate livestock section; Roy City did not.  Animals were 



71 

currently only allowed in Roy City’s RE-20 Zone.  In order to have an ordinance like Syracuse, the City 
would have to redraft the RE-20 Zone as well.  Redrafting the RE-20 Zone would require another public 
hearing.  A separate section for livestock generally would have to be written as well. 

Commissioner Kirch liked the wording in Syracuse’s ordinance.  She felt an owner should be responsible 
to control waste and keep it on his own property.  Mr. Hall agreed that language regarding waste should 
be included. 

Jared Hall stated that many of the restrictions in the different cities were almost uniform.  He suggested 
that coops or hives be 20 to 25 feet from any dwelling.  Commissioner Kirch preferred 25 feet.  Mr. Hall 
said the distance from a property line was 5 to 10 feet.  Commissioner Kirch felt it should be 10 feet to 
ensure all waste remained on the property.  Mr. Hall said 10 feet would lessen the physical impact to 
adjoining properties.  One ordinance talked about heaters in chicken coops needing to be kept a certain 
distance from any dwelling or home.  Commissioner Holt felt that needed further research.  If the City didn’t 
have it in writing, people would do it anyway.  Mr. Hall recommended that no slaughtering be allowed.   

Jared Hall said another issue was food storage.  It needed to be secured.  Some cities allowed chickens 
to roam; some did not.  Roy City’s RE-20 Zone did not require chickens to be in runs.  Commissioner Kirch 
believed animals should be restricted to an owner’s lot.  If they roamed, there should be fencing to keep 
them 10 feet from property lines.  The City needed to look at was required for the creature to flourish. 

Commissioner Kirch felt a permit should be revoked if the City had to come out.  If there was a problem, 
an owner would have 30 days to remove the animals. 

Jared Hall said the staff’s biggest concern was enforcement.  If a permit was pulled, what did that mean? 
It was difficult to remove animals from someone’s property.  Would the City confiscate the animals?  If an 
owner didn’t remove the animals, did the issue become an animal control issue? 

Commissioner Kirch felt those who were currently keeping animals without a license should be required to 
have one.  Mr. Hall agreed and said that while it could be complicated to impose a rule for existing 
situations, new regulations would have to apply to those currently keeping animals in residential zoning.  

Jared Hall stated that many of the requirements for bees would the same as those discussed by the 
Commission previously, and would largely mirror the requirements being discussed for chickens. 

Commissioner Holt stated that an owner would have to comply with the State regulations as well. 

Commissioner Hamilton asked that Mr. Hall prepare an outline for bees similar to the one for chickens and 
circulate it to the Commission. 

Commissioner Hamilton moved to table discussion regarding a proposed text amendment for 
domestic livestock and fowl in residential zones until the next Planning Commission meeting. 
Commissioner Holt seconded the motion.  Commission members Hamilton, Holt, Kirch, and 
Stonehocker voted “aye.”  The motion carried. 

Jared Hall reminded the public that this item would again be on the next agenda for more discussion, but 
that it would no longer be a public hearing. 

August 28, 2012 

2. CONSIDERATION OF A REQUEST TO AMEND THE TEXT OF THE ZONING ORDINANCE
REGARDING THE KEEPING OF DOMESTIC LIVESTOCK AND FOWL IN RESIDENTIAL ZONES
(CONTINUED FROM 8/14/12 MEETING)



72 

Jared Hall proposed that the requested text amendment be included in Chapter 11 of the Zoning Ordinance 
as Section 1130 - Domestic Livestock and Fowl in Single-Family Residential Zones (see attached copy). 
He looked at whether the text could be added to Table 17-2 - Table of Uses - in Chapter 17 where animals 
currently allowed in RE-20 Zones were listed.  However, the table only listed numbers allowed.  The 
proposed draft needed to cover additional regulations.  He felt it was better for the text to stand alone. 

Mr. Hall said the proposed draft did not include multi-family zones.  The only zones considered were single-
family residential zones and only lots used for single family residences – vacant and non-conforming lots 
would not qualify.   

Chairman Holt felt permits for animals in single-family residential zones should only be issued if a property 
was ‘owner occupied.’  Jared Hall thought the intent was to only issue a permit to a property owner.  The 
introduction for Item 2 included the sentence, “Permits may only be issued with the consent of the property 
owner of record.”  

Commissioner Hamilton asked about other types of fowl.  The proposed draft only listed  hens and rabbits. 
Jared Hall said that during the public hearing there was discussion about chickens, ducks, bees, rabbits, 
and geese.  All those types of animals and fowl were allowed in the RE-20 Zone.  Researching and drafting 
the ordinance language it became clear that no effective regulations could be put into place for water-fowl 
like ducks, etc.  Their nature and needs differ significantly from those of hens and could not be 
accommodated without impacts on smaller lots as this draft ordinance was considering.  In RE-20 Zones, 
lots were large enough to accommodate the needs of ducks and geese.  There simply wasn’t enough 
space on the smaller single-family residential lots. 
Commissioner Hamilton did not want there to be any confusion about hens.  The text needed to be clear 
that hens had to be ‘non-crowing.’  He understood there were certain types of hens that crowed.  He 
suggested the addition of ‘non-crowing, egg laying hens’ in the introduction of Item 3. 

Commissioner Kirch suggested that including language in the introduction of 1130 that regulations animals 
in RE-20 Zones could be found in Table 17-2 in Chapter 17.  Mr. Hall said he had not included the RE-20 
Zone in the table in 1130.  He didn’t want someone with a 20,000 square foot lot in a single-family 
residential zone to think they could have the numbers allowed in the RE-20 Zone. 

Jared Hall reviewed the points by lot size in the proposed draft 

15,000 square feet and larger 30 points 
8,000 - 14,999 square feet  20 points 
6,000 - 7,999 square feet 10 points 
less than 6,000 square feet  No points 

Allowance by points 

Small livestock and fowl (rabbits and hens) 5 points each animal 
Beekeeping 10 points each hive 

Commissioner Kirch was uncomfortable with beehives on lots with less than 8,000 square feet.  Mr. Hall 
expressed that he wasn’t entirely comfortable with the idea of animals in single-family residential zones of 
any size.  He was not comfortable at all with any animals on lots with less than 6,000 square feet.  Salt 
Lake and several other cities allowed hives on lots with less than 8,000 square feet.  If the City was going 
to allow beehives, he was comfortable starting at 6,000 square feet. 



73 

Commissioner Kirch asked how animals in single-family residential zones were working in other cities.  Mr. 
Hall said there was some indication that cities were starting to reconsider the allowances they had made 
due to code compliance issues.  But he was not aware of any cities rescinding . 

Commissioner Hamilton was concerned about code enforcement.  He was disturbed that the majority of 
people who spoke out during the public hearing in favor of having ducks, chickens, and rabbits in single-
family residential zones already had them.  There had been no enforcement with respect to these people.  
They were already in violation and had not been cited.  There seemed to be a need for this type of use 
because so many people wanted it.  However, the current situation made him pause to consider the City’s 
ability to enforce this type of use in the future. 

Jared Hall stated that one group of property owners supporting the requested text amendment had been 
cited.  There was also a group at the hearings that had not been cited.  A probable reason for the lack of 
citations was that those property owners had not had problems with their neighbor, which was encouraging. 

Commissioner Kirch asked what the attitude of the Council was toward this issue.  Mr. Hall did not know. 

Jared Hall said he liked the point system.  Chairman Holt felt it was very straight forward. 

Jared Hall reviewed Item 2 - Permit Required. 

Commissioner Kirch suggested that 2 a) and 2 b) be switched.  During the public hearing one of the 
property owners suggested that an applicant be required to discuss the animal use with his neighbors. 
One advantage of a conditional use permit was notification to adjoining property owners.  Mr. Hall said a 
conditional use required notification of all property owners within 300 feet.  If this was going to be a 
permitted use, Commissioner Kirch felt some type of notification should be required to adjoining property 
owners. 

Jared Hall felt the City should do the notice, if one was required, so that it would be standardized.  He 
didn’t feel it was a good idea to tie approval of a permit to approval from the neighbors.  An applicant could 
be told that as part of the permit process, their adjoining property owners would be notified. 

Commissioner Kirch felt the initial permit fee should be greater than the annual renewal to cover the cost 
of the notice. 

Commissioner Kirch asked if it would be more difficult to revoke a conditional use permit or a permitted 
use.  Mr. Hall said a conditional use permit would be more difficult because revocation of a conditional use 
permit would require review and recommendation from the Planning Commission and action by the City 
Council.  A permit could be revoked by the Zoning Administrator.  

Jared Hall reviewed Item 3 - Regulations for the Keeping of Hens and Rabbits.  He would add language 
that hens must be non-crowing and egg laying to the introduction of Item 3.  Item 3 indicated that hens and 
rabbits had to be contained in an enclosure in a rear yard.   
Commissioner Kirch stated that at the last the Planning Commission recommended that all coops, hutches, 
or hives be 10 feet from any property line; 3 c) 1 needed to be amended to reflect that recommendation. 

Commissioner Kirch felt language should be added to make it clear that a use would not be ‘grandfathered.’ 
A permit was issued to a property owner, not the property.  A new owner would have to file a new 
application.  Mr. Hall said he would include that in Item 2.   

Commissioner Kirch liked the way the draft was written. 

Jared Hall stated that the word ‘objectionable’ in 3 c) 3 was not quantifiable.  He asked if the Commission 
members had any suggestions for better wording.  Commissioner Hamilton liked ‘perceptible at the 



74 

property line.’  He felt that would provide an adjoining property owner with a tool of measurement.  Adjoining 
property owners needed to be able to enjoy their property as well.  Salt Lake’s Noise Ordinance referred 
to ‘audible noise’ at the property line.  Mr. Hall said he would look at Salt Lake’s ordinance to see if it could 
be reworded to work for odor. 

Michelle Drago asked how owners would dispose of deceased animals.  Mr. Hall said there was language 
in some of the other ordinances about removing dead animals, and he could talk to Animal Control to see 
how property owners should properly dispose of dead animals. 

Jared Hall reviewed Item 4 - Regulations for Beekeeping.  The language for flyways in 4 e) was taken from 
standard best management practices, except the distance from a public access had been reduced from 
25 feet to 15 as single family residential lots were smaller in size. 

Commissioner Hamilton felt the City’s language should be the same as the best management practices. 
The distance should be 25 feet.  Commissioner Kirch asked why the dates of March 1 to October 31 were 
included in the fresh water requirement.  Mr. Hall said that the dates came from best management 
practices, and it was apparently when bees were most active.  Commissioner Kirch was concerned that a 
warm February could bring bees out early.  A warm fall could mean bees would be active longer.  She 
suggested that the dates be taken out.  Chairman Holt suggested that Mr. Hall ask the bee keepers what 
dates would be best. 

Commissioner Kirch asked if there should be a discussion about whether domestic livestock in single family 
residential zones should be a conditional use rather than a permitted use.  A conditional use permit had 
the perk of notifying adjoining property owners.  It would allow the public to have a voice.  The cost of a 
conditional use permit would weed out those who weren’t really serious. 

Chairman Holt felt the conditional use permit process was too arduous. 

Commissioner Hamilton agreed.  Revoking a conditional use permit would be difficult, and he didn’t think 
the Commission wanted to review every request to keep chickens and bees that came in.  He felt after the 
last two meetings he had had enough chicken talk. 

Jared Hall stated that the nuisance abatement ordinance was written so that the City Council did not need 
to be involved in every issue.  Revoking a conditional use permit was just the opposite; it was done through 
the Planning Commission and City Council with court as an appeal.   

Commissioner Hamilton felt adding language requiring notification of adjoining property owners with a 
permit application was enough. 

Commissioner Kirch asked if the Planning Commission had to hold another public hearing to consider 
the proposed draft.  Mr. Hall said it did not.  The Planning Commission had held the public hearing, and 
had taken a lot of public comment.  The next step was to revise the proposed draft.  It would be on the 
next agenda for discussion or action.  If the Planning Commission made a recommendation, the staff 
would prepare an adoption ordinance for the City Council’s consideration.  The City Council would not 
hold a public hearing.  Discussion of the adoption ordinance would be held in a public meeting. 

Commissioner Kirch said Item 3 needed to include regulations for storage of food.  Should there be a fine 
for an infraction?  Jared Hall said if an inspection revealed a problem, the permit would be revoked if the 
situation weren’t corrected.  Commissioner Kirch suggested that the permit state that non-compliance 
would result in revocation of the permit. 

Commissioner Kirch asked how owners would handle an unexpected rooster.  If an owner purchased 
chicks, it was difficult to tell between hens and roosters until they were a little older.  Mr. Hall said it would 
fall under enforcement.  The staff was sensitive and could give a property owner time to find a place for 



75 

the rooster.  Commissioner Kirch asked if language needed to be added about how to deal with young.  
Mr. Hall said that if an owner was following the ordinance as it is drafted here there wouldn’t be young to 
deal with; the ordinance was to allow keeping animals, not breeding them. 

September 11, 2012 

4. CONSIDERATION OF A REQUEST TO AMEND THE TEXT OF THE ZONING ORDINANCE
REGARDING THE KEEPING OF DOMESTIC LIVESTOCK AND FOWL IN RESIDENTIAL ZONES
(CONTINUED FROM 7/25/12, 8/14/12, AND 8/28/12)

Jared Hall submitted the revised draft of Section 1111 - Domestic Livestock and Fowl on Lots in Single-
Family Residential Zones (see attached copy).  Revisions were made based on the Planning Commission’s 
discussion on August 28th.  He planned to add language about ‘non crowing, egg laying hens’ to the table 
in 1(b).  Language also needed to be added to 4(d) prohibiting beehives in front and side yards. 

Commissioner Hamilton was still concerned about allowing this type of use in residential areas. 

Jared Hall agreed.  He wasn’t sure this was the best thing for the City.  If the public officials wanted it, he 
felt that a proposed draft should mitigate the impacts. 

Commissioner Kirch suggested that the words ‘or residents’ should be stricken from 2(e).  Permits should 
only be issued to property owners.  She asked about the price of the permits.  Mr. Hall said the City’s fee 
structure would have to be amended to include the permit prices.  Commissioner Kirch suggested that the 
initial permit be $75, and that the annual renewal be $35.  She felt those willing to pay those fees would 
be willing to abide by the ordinance.  She wasn’t sure that this type of use belonged on 6,000 and 7,000 
square foot lots. 

Jared Hall said the benchmark could be set at 8,000 square feet.  There was very little data to indicate one 
lot size was better than another.  When he wrote the draft he set the benchmark at the smallest legal 
single-family residential lot size. 

Commissioner Kirch felt the proposed draft was an excellent composite of all of the ordinances around. 
Jared Hall felt it would function, but he had misgivings about the entire use. 

Jared Hall said that the draft indicated that enforcement would be done by the Zoning Administrator.  This 
was in order to lessen any new burdens on Code Compliance. 

Commissioner Stonehocker asked if the benchmark could be lowered from 8,000 square feet in the future. 
Mr. Hall said it could.  The benchmark could be set by raising the point values or by eliminating the 6,000 
and 7,000 square foot lots. 

Chairman Holt felt the benchmark should start at 8,000 square feet. 

Commissioner Hamilton asked if Mr. Hall had looked at the benchmark in the other ordinances.  Mr. Hall 
said he had not looked at them in that way.  Commissioner Hamilton asked that he look specifically at the 
benchmark for other cities. 

Commissioner Kirch asked that Mr. Hall provide the Commission with a zoning map so they could see 
where the R-1-8, R-1-7, and R-1-6 Zones were. 

Commissioner Hamilton felt it would be easier to add 6,000 and 7,000 square foot lots later rather than 
eliminate them. 



76 

Commissioner Kirch asked if there were other cities comparable to Roy.  Salt Lake allowed domestic 
livestock, but its demographics were not similar to Roy’s. 

Commissioner Kirch moved to table this item until the next meeting pending further research by 
the staff.  Commissioner Stonehocker seconded the motion.  Commission members Hamilton, Holt, 
Kirch, and Stonehocker voted “aye.”  The motion carried. 

September 25, 2012 

3. CONSIDERATION OF A REQUEST TO AMEND THE TEXT OF THE ZONING ORDINANCE
REGARDING THE KEEPING OF DOMESTIC LIVESTOCK AND FOWL IN RESIDENTIAL ZONES
(CONTINUED FROM 7/25/12, 8/14/12, 8/28/12, AND 9/11/12)

Jared Hall presented the Planning Commission with a list of the major cities used in the staff’s ordinance 
research and the smallest residential lot size upon which they allowed hens to be kept.  The list was 
prepared at the Planning Commission’s request after discussion regarding a benchmark for domestic 
animals in residential zones.  Twelve of the seventeen cities either used their smallest lot size as a 
benchmark or simply did not reference minimum lot sizes for the allowance.  In most cases, the lot size 
included bees as well.  West Jordan was considering allowing bees on 10,000 to 12,000 square foot lots. 
Salt Lake allowed hives on any size lot.  Bountiful did not allow them, except in agricultural zones.  Midvale 
allowed bees on one-third or one-half acres lots.  Kaysville only allowed bees in agricultural zones.  Woods 
Cross allowed bees on one-quarter acre lots.  A one-quarter acre lot was 10,000 square feet.  Farmington 
and Clinton did not allow bees on residential lots.  Clinton did allow chickens on 10,000 square foot lots. 
Mr. Hall said 60% to 70% of the lots in Roy City were 8,000 square feet or greater.  Although there were a 
significant number of 6,000 and 7,000 square foot lots, the bulk of the residential lots in Roy City were 
zoned R-1-8.  In the older part of the City there were some 6,000 and 7,000 square foot lots even though 
they were zoned R-1-8.  The only section of the City with significantly larger lots was the southwest corner. 

The Planning Commission reviewed the City’s zoning map and discussed how the City might be impacted 
by different benchmarks. 

Commissioner Kirch stated that she had spoken with a concerned resident who was satisfied to learn that 
the proposed ordinance would require a permit which could be revoked.  Jared Hall stated that the 
ordinances allowing domestic livestock that seemed to succeed required a permit or some type of 
registration. 

Jared Hall felt it would be naive to believe that some residents were not already keeping chickens and 
bees without permits. 

Commissioner Kirch suggested that information about domestic livestock ordinance be included in the 
City’s next newsletter.  Mr. Hall said the information would be placed on the City’s website as well. 

Commissioner Hamilton stated that there were cities like Clinton, Murray, and West Valley that did not 
allow backyard chickens.  He didn’t feel comfortable allowing bees and chickens on 6,000 and 7,000 
square foot lots.  It would be easier to expand the regulations to include those lots if the ordinance was 
successful.  He recommended that the benchmark be set at 8,000 square feet.  Lots with 8,000 to 9,999 
would be given 10 points; lots with 10,000 to 14,999 would be given 20 points.  He asked if the point system 
would apply to RE-20 lots as well.  Mr. Hall said it would not.  The numbers allowed on RE-20 lots were 
much greater than those proposed in residential zones.  If there was a 20,000 square foot lot in a residential 
zone, it would be restricted to the numbers in the proposed ordinance.  If a lot was zoned RE-20, it would 
be governed by the numbers allowed in the RE-20 Zone. 



77 

The Planning Commission asked Mr. Hall to make the changes to the point table based on the benchmark 
of 8,000 square feet and bring it back to the next Commission meeting. 

Commissioner Kirch asked if the Board of Adjustment could grant a variance to the point system.  Mr. Hall 
said it could not. The Board of Adjustment could not grant a variance for a use.  It could only act on 
dimensions and setbacks.  Commissioner Kirch asked if there was any vehicle that could be used to get 
more domestic livestock than was allowed by the proposed draft.  Mr. Hall said the only option was to 
request that the ordinance be amended. 

Commissioner Hamilton stated that the Planning Commission had looked at this issue long and hard.  It 
tried to create something that would work for everyone.  The proposed ordinance could be expanded in 
the future. 

October 9, 2012 

2. CONSIDERATION OF A REQUEST TO AMEND THE TEXT OF THE ZONING ORDINANCE
REGARDING THE KEEPING OF DOMESTIC LIVESTOCK AND FOWL IN RESIDENTIAL ZONES
(CONTINUED FROM 7/25/12, 8/14/12, 8/28/12,  9/11/12, and 9/25/12)

Jared Hall stated during the last meeting the Commission discussed setting a bench mark for domestic 
livestock and fowl.  The table had been modified according to the Commission’s direction.  Lots with 8,000 
to 9,999 square feet would receive 10 points; lots with 10,000 to 14,999 square feet would receive 20 
points; and lots with 15,000 square feet or more would receive 30 points.  No points would be given to lots 
with less than 8,000 square feet.  Everything else was basically the same, but he did clean up some 
language.   

He was working on an application form that would be tied to an information sheet.  It would mirror the 
proposed ordinance. 

Chairman Holt asked if the Planning Commission would be involved in reviewing the application form.  Mr. 
Hall said it would.  Ultimately, the City Council would have to sign off on the application as well. 

Chairman Holt asked if the ordinance would be enforced by the Zoning Administrator or the Code 
Enforcement Officer.  Mr. Hall said that as the Zoning Administrator, he would handle the application, 
administration, and enforcement of this ordinance rather than burdening Code Compliance. 

Chairman Holt asked if Mr. Hall had the authority to issue tickets.  Mr. Hall said enforcement of this 
ordinance would be handled by permit, not tickets.  If a property owner violated the ordinance, his permit 
would be in jeopardy. 

Chairman Holt asked what would happen if a permit was revoked and a property owner continued to keep 
domestic livestock.  Mr. Hall said it would then become a public nuisance and would fall under Code 
Compliance. 

Chairman Holt asked about those who were currently not complying and who would not be eligible for 
domestic livestock.  Mr. Hall said some had been issued tickets.  While this ordinance was under 
consideration, action on their tickets had been suspended.  If the ordinance passed and they were not 
eligible, they would have to comply or face the penalties associated with their ticket. 

Chairman Holt asked about owners and renters.  Jared Hall said that per the Commission’s instructions in 
the last review, in this draft a permit could only be issued to property owners, not tenants. 



78 

Commissioner Kirch asked if the City Council could change the point system proposed by the Planning 
Commission.  Mr. Hall said it could.  Commissioner Kirch was concerned about any changes to the 
proposed ordinance. The Planning Commission had listened to a lot of public input.  It had given a lot of 
thought to the proposed ordinance. The Commission’s decision to not have animals on lots with less than 
8,000 square feet meant some of those who attended the Commission’s hearing would not be able to have 
animals. Some would have to come into compliance. The Planning Commission felt the proposed numbers 
were best for the City.  As Commissioner Hamilton had said, it would be easier to become less restrictive 
than more restrictive.  

Jared Hall said the Planning Commission was Roy City’s land use authority.  The City Council took the 
Planning Commission’s recommendations seriously.  The Council frequently did not spend a lot of time 
considering issues that the Planning Commission had reviewed. When a planning item was forwarded to 
the City Council, the Council was usually then ready to make a final decision. 

Commissioner Hamilton felt the Planning Commission had done its job in considering the desires of some 
of the citizens versus the rights of all the citizens.  It was time for the City Council to consider the requested 
text amendment. 

Commissioner Hamilton moved to forward the request to amend the text of the Zoning Ordinance 
regarding the keeping of domestic livestock and fowl in residential zones and a draft ordinance to 
the City Council for their consideration.  Commissioner Stonehocker seconded the motion. 
Commission members Hamilton, Holt, Kirch, and Stonehocker voted “aye.”  The motion carried. 

Jared Hall said he would forward the original application and the proposed ordinance language 
worked out by the Commission to the City Council for review.  The proposed ordinance would be 
reviewed by the City Attorney before it was forwarded to the City Council.  He felt it would be late 
November before it was placed on a Council agenda. 



79 

EXHIBIT “E” – PROPOSED ORDINANCE NO. 16-3 

Add 

Section 1111 – Supplementary Regulations Allowing for the Keeping of Chickens (Hens) and Rabbits in the 
Single-Family Residential Zones 

The purpose of this section is to provide supplementary regulations for the keeping of Chickens/Rabbits in the 
single family zoning districts of the city. It shall be unlawful to keep Chickens/Rabbits in the R-1-6, R-1-7, R-1-8, R-
1-10 and R-1-15 zones except as provided in this section.

A. Allowance- All single-family residential properties in the R-1-6, R-1-7, R-1-8, R-1-10 and R-1-15 zones that 
have a minimum of 8,000 square feet on their property, shall be allowed to have up to six (6) Chickens
(excluding roosters and crowing hens), or six (6) rabbits, or a combination of Chickens or Rabbits not to 
exceed six (6). This would exclude dependent young.

B. Permit required- A city permit is required for the keeping of any animal or animals under this section. 
Permits may only be issued to the property owner of record.
1. Fee. The permit fee shall be set forth in the adopted Fee Schedule of the City.
2. Renewal. All permits issued under this section are subject to annual inspection and renewal.
3. Inspection. Inspections related to a permit issued under this section must be permitted as deemed 
necessary by the City.
4. Revocation. A permit may be revoked by the City for any violation of this section at any time.
5. Transfer of Permits. Permits under this section are issued to property owners of specific lots and may 
not be transferred or assigned to other persons or properties when ownership or residency changes.
6. Notice to Adjacent Neighbors. Upon receiving an application under this section, the Zoning      
Administrator shall cause notice of the application to be sent by mail to all owners of property 
immediately adjacent to the subject property.
7. Site Plan. An application for a permit under this section must be accompanied by a site plan indicating 
the lot, the primary residence, and the proposed placement of the structures in compliance with the 
requirements of this section.
8. Zoning Administrator. The Zoning Administrator or his or her designee shall be responsible for the 
review of applications, issuance or denial of permits, inspections, renewals, investigation of complaints, and 
revocation of permits when necessary.

C. Regulations for the keeping of Chickens and Rabbits –
1. Chickens: The issuance of a permit for the keeping of non-crowing, egg-laying Hens under this section 

shall be predicated upon compliance with the following.
a.   Roosters. Roosters and crowing hens of all kinds are prohibited
b.   Personal Use Only. The keeping of hens is intended only for pleasure or family food production
      (eggs/meat). No sale of any kind is permitted.
c.   Enclosure Standards. All animals must be contained within an enclosure or fenced area at all times.
     Such an area shall be entirely within the rear yard. No enclosures will be permitted in the front or
     side yards.

2. Rabbits: The issuance of a permit for the keeping of Rabbits under this section shall be predicated upon 
compliance with the following.
a.   Personal Use Only. The keeping of rabbits is intended only for pleasure or family food production
(meat).  No sale of any kind or slaughter is permitted.
b.   Enclosure Standards. All animals must be contained within an enclosure at all times. Such an 
enclosure shall be entirely with the rear yard. No enclosures will be permitted in the front or side 
yards. 



80 

TABLE 11-1 – GENERAL STANDARDS 
Chickens Rabbits 

1. Enclosures 
(Coop/Hutch) 

All animals kept under this section 
shall be housed within a covered, 
predator proof and well ventilated 
coop. Must provide a minimum of two 
(2) square feet per animal, with a
maximum of twelve (12) square feet of
floor area per chicken to allow for free
movement inside the coop. No coop
or hutch may exceed seven (7) feet in
height. Enclosures shall have solid walls
on all sides, except for opening for
access, must have a solid roof, and
built to prevent intrusion, including
burrowing of all types of rodents,
vermin, and predatory animals.

All animals kept under this section shall 
be housed within a covered, predator 
proof and well ventilated hutch.  The 
hutch must have a ½” X ½” OR ½” X 
1” galvanized wire mesh bottom to 
allow droppings to fall through.  
Enclosures need to protect the animals 
from the sun, wind, rain and extreme 
hot & cold temperatures.  Must provide 
a minimum of two & one quarter (2.25) 
square feet per animal with a maximum 
of nine (9) square feet.  Do not put 
Rabbits together after they are 3 
months of age. 

(Runs) Not required, but if one is used, 
maximum size is 150 square-feet 

Rabbits are not allowed to be out of 
their enclosures. 

2. Location All structures provided under this section shall be located a minimum of twenty-
five (25) feet from any dwelling on an adjacent lot, six (6) feet from any property line 
and six (6) feet from any dwelling on the same lot. 

3. Maintenance All Enclosures shall be cleaned and maintained as necessary to prevent detectable 
odor at the property line. All enclosures must be maintained in good repair. 

4. Fencing Hens shall not be permitted to roam 
outside the rear yard.  There must be 
a six (6) foot fence surrounding the 
rear yard.  

Rabbits are not allowed to roam.  
There must be a six (6) foot fence 
surrounding the rear yard. 

5. Feed Feed for animals kept under this section must be stored and dispensed in rodent 
proof, predator-proof containers. 

6. Wastewater Wastewater from the use of the animals or related to the maintenance of the 
structure shall be retained or disposed of entirely on the property. 

7. Disposal of Animals Disposal of Animals should be taken care of in a general sanitary manner. 

Section 1701 – Table of Uses 

Table 17-1 

USE 

R
E-

20
 

R
-1

-1
5

R
-1

-1
0

R
-1

-8

R
-1

-7

R
-1

-6

R
-2

R
-3

R
-4

R
M

H
-1

 

Limited Domestic Livestock and Fowl. Allowing the keeping of Chickens (Hens), 
Rabbits and Bees.  Refer to Sections 1111 and 1112 for Regulations for the 
keeping of these animals. 

X P P P P P X X X X 



ORDINANCE NO. 16-3 
 
An Ordinance Amending Chapters 11 & 17 of the Roy City zoning ordinance by 
establishing Section 1111 – Supplementary Regulations Allowing for the Keeping of 
Chickens (Hens) and Rabbits in the Single-Family Residential Zones and Amending Section 
1701 – Table of Uses 
 
WHEREAS, the Roy City Council finds that it is advisable and beneficial to add to Chapter 11, Section 
111 - Supplementary Regulations Allowing for the Keeping of Chickens (Hens) and Rabbits in the Single-
Family Residential Zones; as well as amending Table 17-1 to include a “USE” of Limited Domestic 
Livestock and Fowl; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Roy City Council finds that additional regulation of the Keeping of Chickens (Hens) and 
Rabbits will be of benefit and use in enhancing and increasing long-term viability of development within 
the Single-Family Residential areas which is important to the City; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Roy City Planning Commission held several public meetings to discuss the issue and held 
a public hearing as required by law and has favorably recommended an amendment to the City Council; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the Roy City Council has received and reviewed the recommendation of the Planning 
Commission, finding it to be consistent with the goals and policies of the Roy City Zoning Ordinance 
and  General Plan, and has reviewed and considered the same in a public meeting and also holding a 
public hearing. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, Be it hereby ordained by the City Council of Roy City, Utah, that Chapter 11, 
Section 1111 and Table 17-1 read as follows: 

 
Add 

Section 1111 – Supplementary Regulations Allowing for the Keeping of Chickens (Hens) and Rabbits in 
the Single-Family Residential Zones 

The purpose of this section is to provide supplementary regulations for the keeping of 
Chickens/Rabbits in the single family zoning districts of the city. It shall be unlawful to keep 
Chickens/Rabbits in the R-1-6, R-1-7, R-1-8, R-1-10 and R-1-15 zones except as provided in this section. 

A. Allowance- All single-family residential properties in the R-1-6, R-1-7, R-1-8, R-1-10 and R-1-15 
zones that have a minimum of 8,000 square feet on their property, shall be allowed to have up to 
six (6) Chickens (excluding roosters and crowing hens), or six (6) rabbits, or a combination of 
Chickens or Rabbits not to exceed six (6). This would exclude dependent young. 
 

B. Permit required- A city permit is required for the keeping of any animal or animals under this 
section. Permits may only be issued to the property owner of record. 
1. Fee. The permit fee shall be set forth in the adopted Fee Schedule of the City. 
2. Renewal. All permits issued under this section are subject to annual inspection and renewal. 
3. Inspection. Inspections related to a permit issued under this section must be permitted as 

deemed necessary by the City.   
4. Revocation. A permit may be revoked by the City for any violation of this section at any 

time. 
5. Transfer of Permits. Permits under this section are issued to property owners of specific lots 

and may not be transferred or assigned to other persons or properties when ownership or 



residency changes. 
6. Notice to Adjacent Neighbors. Upon receiving an application under this section, the Zoning 

Administrator shall cause notice of the application to be sent by mail to all owners of 
property immediately adjacent to the subject property.  

7. Site Plan. An application for a permit under this section must be accompanied by a site plan 
indicating the lot, the primary residence, and the proposed placement of the structures in 
compliance with the requirements of this section.  

8. Zoning Administrator. The Zoning Administrator or his or her designee shall be responsible 
for the review of applications, issuance or denial of permits, inspections, renewals, 
investigation of complaints, and revocation of permits when necessary. 
 

C. Regulations for the keeping of Chickens and Rabbits –  

1. Chickens: The issuance of a permit for the keeping of non-crowing, egg-laying Hens under 
this section shall be predicated upon compliance with the following. 

a. Roosters. Roosters and crowing hens of all kinds are prohibited 
b. Personal Use Only. The keeping of hens is intended only for pleasure or family food 

production (eggs/meat). No sale of any kind is permitted. 
c. Enclosure Standards. All animals must be contained within an enclosure or fenced area at 

all times. Such an area shall be entirely within the rear yard. No enclosures will be 
permitted in the front or side yards. 

2. Rabbits: The issuance of a permit for the keeping of Rabbits under this section shall be 
predicated upon compliance with the following. 

a. Personal Use Only. The keeping of rabbits is intended only for pleasure or family food 
production (meat).  No sale of any kind or slaughter is permitted. 

b. Enclosure Standards. All animals must be contained within an enclosure at all times. Such 
an enclosure shall be entirely with the rear yard. No enclosures will be permitted in the 
front or side yards. 

 

 TABLE 11-1 – GENERAL STANDARDS 

  Chickens Rabbits 
1. Enclosures 

(Coop/Hutch) 
All animals kept under this section 
shall be housed within a covered, 
predator proof and well ventilated 
coop. Must provide a minimum of two 
(2) square feet per animal, with a 
maximum of twelve (12) square feet of 
floor area per chicken to allow for free 
movement inside the coop. No coop 
or hutch may exceed seven (7) feet in 
height. Enclosures shall have solid walls 
on all sides, except for opening for 
access, must have a solid roof, and 
built to prevent intrusion, including 
burrowing of all types of rodents, 
vermin, and predatory animals.   

All animals kept under this section shall 
be housed within a covered, predator 
proof and well ventilated hutch.  The 
hutch must have a ½” X ½” OR ½” X 
1” galvanized wire mesh bottom to 
allow droppings to fall through.  
Enclosures need to protect the animals 
from the sun, wind, rain and extreme 
hot & cold temperatures.  Must provide 
a minimum of two & one quarter (2.25) 
square feet per animal with a maximum 
of nine (9) square feet.  Do not put 
Rabbits together after they are 3 
months of age. 

 (Runs) Not required, but if one is used, 
maximum size is 150 square-feet 

Rabbits are not allowed to be out of 
their enclosures. 

2. Location All structures provided under this section shall be located a minimum of twenty-
five (25) feet from any dwelling on an adjacent lot, six (6) feet from any property line 
and six (6) feet from any dwelling on the same lot. 



3. Maintenance All Enclosures shall be cleaned and maintained as necessary to prevent detectable 
odor at the property line. All enclosures must be maintained in good repair. 

4. Fencing Hens shall not be permitted to roam 
outside the rear yard.  There must be 
a six (6) foot fence surrounding the 
rear yard.  

Rabbits are not allowed to roam.  
There must be a six (6) foot fence 
surrounding the rear yard. 

5. Feed Feed for animals kept under this section must be stored and dispensed in rodent 
proof, predator-proof containers. 

6. Wastewater Wastewater from the use of the animals or related to the maintenance of the 
structure shall be retained or disposed of entirely on the property. 

7. Disposal of Animals Disposal of Animals should be taken care of in a general sanitary manner. 
 

Section 1701 – Table of Uses 

Table 17-1 

USE 

R
E-

20
 

R
-1

-1
5 

R
-1

-1
0 

R
-1

-8
 

R
-1

-7
 

R
-1

-6
 

R
-2

 

R
-3

 

R
-4

 

R
M

H
-1

 

Limited Domestic Livestock and Fowl. Allowing the keeping of Chickens (Hens), 
Rabbits and Bees.  Refer to Sections 1111 and 1112 for Regulations for the 
keeping of these animals. 

X P P P P P X X X X 

 

 
This Ordinance has been approved by the following vote of the Roy City Council:  
 
        AYE   NAY  ABSTAIN 

   Councilman Becraft          

   Councilman Dandoy          

   Councilman Hilton          

   Councilman Tafoya          

   Councilman Yeoman          

 

This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon passage, lawful posting, and recording.  This 
Ordinance has been passed by the Roy City Council this _  _ day of        , 2016. 

 
       
         __________________________ 
         Willard S. Cragun; Mayor 
Attested and Recorded: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Amy Mortenson; City Recorder   













Resolution No. 6-24  
A Resolution of the Roy City Council Announcing Roy City’s Intent to  

Annex Unincorporated Islands and Peninsulas 
 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of Roy City, Utah, hereby desires to adopt a Resolution to 
formally indicate its intent to annex the area described in the attached Exhibit A, and 
 
WHEREAS, Utah Code Section 10-2-418 allows Roy City to annex islands and 
peninsulas without a petition for annexation, and 
 
WHEREAS, the area to be annexed consists of one or more unincorporated islands 
within or unincorporated peninsulas contiguous to the municipality, each of which has 
fewer than _____ residents and the municipality has provided one or more municipal-
type services to the area for at least one year, and 
 
WHEREAS, in adopting this resolution the City has determined that if required annexing 
part of the unincorporated islands or peninsulas is in the municipality's best interest so 
long as the entire island of unincorporated area, of which a portion is being annexed, 
complies with the requirement related to the required number of residents, and 
 
WHEREAS, the city will publish a notice once a week for three consecutive weeks in 
the Standard Examiner, will publish notice for three weeks on the Utah Public Notice 
website, will send written notice to each special district that services the area, and will 
send written notice to the county, pursuant to Utah Code Section 10-2-418, and will hold 
a public hearing no earlier than thirty (30) days after the adoption of this Resolution to 
consider its adoption and the annexation of the areas described in Exhibit A, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, Be It Resolved that the City Council of Roy City, Utah, pursuant 
to Utah Code 10-2-418, intends to annex the area formally described in Exhibit A, subject 
to the requirements set by law. 
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED by the Roy City Council this 7th day of June, 2016 
 
 
 
Councilmember Becraft _____ 
Councilmember Dandoy _____ 
Councilmember Hilton  _____ 
Councilmember Tafoya _____ 
Councilmember Yeoman _____ 
 
 
 
  



 
 
_____________________________ 

      Willard Cragun - Mayor   
    
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_________________________________  
Amy Mortenson - City Recorder 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT A 

























ROY CITY CORPORATION 
Job Description 

 
Title:  Engineer     Code:   ??? 
Division: Operations     Effective Date:  ??/?? 
Department: Fire & Rescue     Last Revised:  ??/?? 

 
 
GENERAL PURPOSE 
 
Performs a variety of full performance firefighting duties related to protecting 
life and property of city residents and the general public. Must be able to drive 
and operate all types of fire department apparatus and performs as an advanced 
level engineer. Performs all duties associated with ambulance operations. 
 
SUPERVISION RECEIVED 
 

              Works under the close supervision of the Fire Chief, Deputy Chiefs and Captains. 
 
            ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS 
 
            

Responds to emergency calls and performs as member of firefighting team; 
responds to emergency calls by driving fire apparatus to scene of fire; 
manipulates various sized appliances, nozzles, hose streams; lays and connects 
water hose, hooks up pump, holds nozzle and directs water stream; raises and 
climbs ladders and utilizes other specialized equipment such as fire extinguishers, 
SCBA's, hazardous materials suits, power saws; operates extension ladders in 
actual rescue situations and in regular training; uses various hand tools such as 
rope, axes, etc. Cleans, inspects and maintains SCBA's. Have a good 
understanding and considerable knowledge of the air monitoring devices. 
 
Drives  heavy fire  apparatus to fire  and emergency  scenes; performs  vehicle 
placement to achieve effective delivery of suppression materials 
(water/chemicals, etc.); operates fire pumps to control various nozzle pressures 
and flows; assures proper procedures are followed to engage, prime  and discharge 
supply lines, connects hydrant  lines and    changes over from tank operations to 
hydrant  operations, has a full performance knowledge   of all fire department 
apparatus, inspects apparatus daily and determines readiness of apparatus, reports 
the condition and operation of apparatus to which they are assigned to   the 
station officer, performs as an advanced Driver/Operator. Conducts driver training 
and assists in certification of department   drivers. 
 
Operates aerial ladder at fire scenes as needed to rescue and remove victims or 
direct aerial ladder streams; calculates hydraulic formulas to determine nozzle 
pressure, gallons per minute, friction loss, elevation loss or gain, pump discharge 
pressure, etc. 



Uses valves and hand tools to make hose connections; adjusts discharge to 
proper pressure rating as determined by hydraulic calculations; monitors pumper 
cooling systems, pressure  relief systems, and discharge pressures; makes 
adjustments as needed. Has full performance knowledge of practices and 
procedures relative to water supply, location of hydrants, fire streams, pump 
capacities, motor and other operations, which will enable them to efficiently 
perform their duties. 
 
 
Searches in adverse conditions at fire scene, natural disasters, auto accidents etc.; 
rescues victims from fire and other danger situations; operates hydraulic  rescue 
tool to achieve forcible entry.; renders first-aid and practices trauma management; 
performs basic life support to accident and fire victims; removes bodies and 
performs salvage operations.  Be able to communicate effectively both verbal and 
written. Have considerable knowledge of state-mandated reports; state medical 
reports, department billing forms, department fire response sheets, department drill 
sheets, etc. Will be responsible for completing and reviewing these for the shift 
officer's review. Well versed in operation, repair, and maintenance of all related 
equipment including; power saws, extrication equipment, fans, lights, generators, 
nozzles, hoses, etc.. 
 
 
Minimum Qualifications 
 

1. Education and Experience 
 

A) Graduation from High School; or equivalent 
B) Current Utah State Advanced-EMT certification; or higher. 
C) Current NFPA/Utah Fire and Rescue Academy Apparatus Driver Operator – Pumper AND 

Aerial certifications. 
D) Firefighter with Roy Fire Department in good standing. 

 
AND 
 

E) Three (3) years of full-time work experience as a Roy City Firefighter  
 

 
2. Special Qualifications 
 

A) Must possess valid Utah Driver’s License. 
B) Must have current AHA BLS for Healthcare Provider and PALS; or equivalent. 
C) Must have Advanced Cardiac Life Support (ACLS) certification within one (1) year of 

initial employment. 
D) Must be able to pass department physical fitness requirements. Policy 900.08. 
 
 

 



Knowledge, skills and Abilities, 
 
Considerable knowledge of all apparatus and the operation of each apparatus, be   
mechanically inclined and have the ability, skill to understand the principles of 
pumps, of firefighting methods, techniques, and procedures; firefighting 
equipment  types and varieties   and their most appropriate and effective use; 
equipment maintenance and care; state and  city codes, laws, and regulations, 
and ordinances related to fire prevention; fire vehicle equipment; emergency 
medical techniques and procedures and first-aid ;communication skills. Working 
knowledge of training methods and techniques. 
 
 
 
Ability to follow detailed verbal or written work instructions; work in 
dangerous emergency situations; perform strenuous physical labor; 
communicate effectively, verbally and in writing; assimilate modern fire 
prevention and firefighting skills; perform under extreme weather conditions; 
work on call and on shift work; develop effective working relationships with 
supervisors, fellow employees, and the public. 
 
 
 
Work Environment 

 
Functions of the position generally performed in a controlled environment, but 
subject to all seasonal and weather extremes. Emergency response travel 
expected in normal course of performing duties. Many functions of the work 
pose high degree of   hazard uncertainty. 
Physical readiness and conditioning may be a condition of job retention. Various 
levels of mental application required, i.e. Memory for details, emotional stability, 
discriminatory thinking, creative problem solving. Continuous use of motor skills. 
 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 16-10 
A Resolution of the Roy City Council Approving a Job Description for Engineer Positions 

in the Fire and Rescue Department  
 
 
WHEREAS, Roy City maintains job descriptions on all employee positions; and 
 
WHEREAS, each job description identifies the supervision received, supervision exercised, 
essential functions, and minimum qualifications for the position; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City uses job descriptions to determine the appropriate pay ranges for position; 
and  
 
WHEREAS, the City uses the job description to advertise for and hire qualified individuals to fill 
open positions; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Roy City Fire and Rescue Department desires to establish an Engineer position 
to enhance operations of the Roy City Fire Department.   
 
 
NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Roy City Council that the Engineer job description 
be created and that the position be created and opened to accept applications, when available. 
 
Approved and adopted this 1st day of March, 2016 
 
 
 
        ___________________________ 
        Willard S. Cragun, Mayor 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Amy Mortenson, Recorder 
 
 

Councilwoman Becraft  

Councilman Dandoy  

Councilman Hilton   

Councilman Tafoya   

Councilwoman Yeoman  

 



1 
 

 

WHITE PAPER ON 

Individual Councilmembers Directing City Employees 

PROBLEM / ISSUE 

When individual City Council members direct / task city employees to perform city requirements 
without working through the Mayor and City Manager, it creates conflicts, confusion, and leads to 
undermining the executive leadership responsibilities.  

BACKGROUND 

Utah Code  

10-3-702 Extent of power exercised by ordinance.  

The governing body may pass any ordinance to regulate, require, prohibit, govern, control 
or supervise any activity, business, conduct or condition authorized by this act or any 
other provision of law. An officer of the municipality may not be convicted of a criminal 
offense where he relied on or enforced an ordinance he reasonably believed to be a valid 
ordinance.  

10-3-717 Purpose of resolutions.  

Unless otherwise required by law, the governing body may:  

(1) Exercise all administrative powers by resolution including:  
(a) Establishing water and sewer rates;  
(b) Establishing charges for garbage collection and fees charged for municipal 
services;  
(c) Establishing personnel policies and guidelines; and  
(d) Regulating the use and operation of municipal property; and  

 
(2) Not impose a punishment, fine, or forfeiture by resolution. 

10-3-706 Revision of ordinances.  

The governing body by resolution may authorize and direct the mayor to appoint, with the 
advice and consent of the governing body, one or more persons to prepare and submit to 
the governing body a compilation, revision or codification of municipal ordinances.  

Roy City Code 
 

Current Roy City Code governs how the City Council is to function, specifically Roy City Code  
Title 1, Chapter 6 Mayor and City Council states: 
 
1-6-1: Governing Body 

The governing body shall be a council of six (6) persons, one of whom shall be the mayor 
and the remaining five (5) shall be council members. (2003 Code) 

1-6-4: Meeting; Procedures and Conduct:  
 
B. Quorum Necessary to Do Business: No action of the city council shall be official or 
of any effect, except when a quorum of the members is present. 



2 
 

 
F. Business Conducted in Open Meeting: Except as otherwise provided by law, all 
meetings of the city council shall be open and public. No ordinance, resolution, rule, 
regulation, contract or other action of the governing body shall have any effect unless 
passed or approved at a properly held open and public meeting. (Ord. 484, 10-10-1978) 

1-6-5: Ordinances and Resolutions:  

A. Legislative Power Exercised by Ordinance: Except as otherwise specifically 
provided, the city council shall exercise its legislative powers through ordinances. 
E. Resolutions: 

1. Unless otherwise required by law, the city council may exercise all administrative 
powers and other designated powers by resolution which shall include, but not be 
limited to: 

c. Establishing personnel policies and guidelines; 
d. Regulating the use and operation of municipal property. 

 

DISCUSSION 

Recent issues have surfaced indicating problems for the city because individual Council 
members may have stepped outside of expected boundaries. The specifics are not important 
that they warrant placing in this paper, however these types of actions often lead to the 
undermining of senior leadership’s ability to manage effectively. It is not assumed that there was 
any malice or malcontent intentions involved, but only individuals wanting to resolve particular 
issues within the city. Yet, these type of unilateral decisions that are not approved by the quorum 
of City Council members or do not follow established policies, sends the wrong message and 
creates confusion within the organization. Situations that are not approved through the Council 
create a conflict with existing ordinance, specifically;      

1-6-4: Meeting; Procedures and Conduct:  
 

B. Quorum Necessary to Do Business: No action of the city council shall be official or of 
any effect, except when a quorum of the members is present. 
 
F. Business Conducted in Open Meeting: Except as otherwise provided by law, all 
meetings of the city council shall be open and public. No ordinance, resolution, rule, 
regulation, contract or other action of the governing body shall have any effect unless 
passed or approved at a properly held open and public meeting. (Ord. 484, 10-10-1978) 

 
In addition, when a decision is not coordinated with City leaders it creates anxiety for individuals 
who are expected to answer to the Roy residents, yet they have no knowledge and no 
involvement. Side stepping the chain of command, destabilizes our leaders ability to manage and 
control. If directives or tasks are issued outside of open meetings, there may not be proper 
documentation establish that shows the decision was approved by the Council.      
 
In some cases a requirement could have been discussed during a City Council meeting, 
however, the execution of that requirement was accomplished outside the city’s existing policies. 
When leaders don’t follow written policies it creates inconsistencies, introduces risks, establishes 
a precedence for other not to follow policy, and could leave others out of the process. It is the 
responsibility of the City Council to not only exercise all administrative powers by resolution and 
establish policies and guidelines, but in addition we should operate in accordance with those 
approved policies.     



3 
 

1-6-5: Ordinances and Resolutions:  

E. Resolutions: 
1. Unless otherwise required by law, the city council may exercise all administrative 
powers and other designated powers by resolution which shall include, but not be 
limited to: 

c. Establishing personnel policies and guidelines; 
d. Regulating the use and operation of municipal property. 

 
Again, there appears no malice intent, but allowing the process to continue without corrective 
action will create problems for the City as well as the Council itself. It should be mentioned that 
the Utah Code of Ethics does not have language specifically stating that a City Council member 
cannot direct City employees. However, because of ongoing problems in this area, many cities 
have place language within their local ordinance to control it.    
 
There is no question that the Roy City Council has appointing authority over the city’s highest 
officials, such as the city manager, city attorney, and department heads. But the real problem 
surfaces when individual council members deals openly with individual city employees. What is 
directed or tasked by a Council member, the city employee will do, regardless of where the 
individual resides in the organizational structure. The problem might be, the City council 
members may well not have legislative immunity with regard to actions toward these individuals. 
This is particularly true if the Council member acts unilaterally. Typically, when a City Council 
member acts as a legislator, he or she has absolute immunity. But that immunity can be lost 
when the legislator takes actions outside the “sphere of legitimate legislative activity.” 
 
In some cities with a city manager form of government, the typical ordinance provides that 
elected official inquiries and information exchanges with staff are OK, but "directives" are not. 
Typically this means that an elected official can share information with staff members and seek 
facts from them but cannot tell them to do anything. The lines can become fuzzy, however, when 
an elected official is inquiring about a problem situation, because there usually is a strong and 
natural correlation between an elected official’s being aware of a problem and wanting that 
problem addressed. If what we want is action on a problem, we should talk with the city manager 
and/or Mayor.  
 
This distinction between providing information to staff and providing direction is key in cities with 
a council-manager form of government. In such cities, the Council provides direction to the city 
manager, who then relays that direction to staff. The general role of the city manager is to 
“promote partnerships among Council, staff and the public in developing public policy and 
building a sense of community.” This enables the manager to hold staff accountable on the 
Council’s behalf for implementing the Council’s policies and directives. The entire Council, in 
turn, holds the manager accountable for staff’s overall performance. If a Council member 
intervenes or circumvents the responsibilities of the manager, it make it difficult for the Council to 
hold him or her accountable.  

This "chain of command" feature of the Council-Manager form of government is typically 
embodied in the city’s charter or ordinances. As we prepare to hire a new City Manager, it would 
be wise for us to allow him or her the opportunity to function within a traditional “chain of 
command” structure.   

This understanding and approach by each City Council member is very important considering 
that if a staff member does not perform to City leader’s expectations and disciplinary action is 
taken, the City Council member could be asked to be on the Appeal Board. The Roy City 
Personnel policy specifically states:  



4 
 

1802 Appeals / Grievance Procedures 

Appeal Procedure  
 
All appeals shall be processed according to the following procedure:  

1. The appeal shall be taken by filing a written notice of such appeal with the City 
Manager within ten days after discharge, transfer, or suspension without pay for more 
than two days. Upon filing of such appeal, the City Manager shall forthwith refer a copy of 
the same to the City appeal board. Upon receipt of the referral from the City Manager, the 
appeal board shall forthwith commence its investigation, take and receive evidence, and 
fully hear and determine the matter which relates to the cause for such discharge, 
transfer, or suspension without pay for more than two days.  
 
2. The officer or employee shall be entitled to appear in person and to be represented by 
counsel, to have a public hearing, to confront any witness whose testimony is to be 
considered, to call witnesses, and to examine the evidence to be considered by 
the appeal board.  

 
Appeal Board (4 year term)  
 

There is hereby created an appeal board to consist of five members, two of whom shall 
be members of the City Council and three of whom shall be chosen by and from the 
appointive officers and employees of the City. All members shall serve a four year term 
unless they leave employment or no longer serve on the City Council. 

It would be difficult for a City Council member to fulfill his or her responsibilities and not have a 
conflict of interest, if they stepped outside of current policies / directives and find themselves part 
of or culpable to the problem.  

David L. Church, Legal Counsel for the Utah League of Cities and Towns (ULCT) made this 
comment, in his paper “Why Can’t We All Just Get Along”, which states; 

“Disputes are created when elected officials begin to assume authority that they do not have. 
There are many examples of this including mayors who refuse to carry out policies with which 
they disagree; council members who try to direct employees in their day to day duties; mayor 
trying to be the City manager; and council members who try to act like they are mayors.” 

“A council member is a member of a committee. He or she has a vote as an individual, but 
only has power when part of a majority of the group.”   

In a recent email I sent to David L. Church, he responded to me with this comment;    

“Some cities have ordinances that prohibit any direct contact (by City Council members) with 
employees other than through the manager.  Other cities do not have these ordinances and 
allow limited direction from council members. The best practice is to only work through the 
manager as that avoids confusion.” 

CONCLUSION 

It should be assumed that Roy City Council members have in the past, found themselves in 
many different situations associated with directing or tasking city employees. In no way does this 
White Paper suggest that the City Council stop communicating with staff. In fact, we should 
encourage it. This conclusion / recommendation only points to unique situations of directing / 
tasking staff, that the Council needs to avoid. With the exception of a City Manager, no individual 
can answer to two masters, let alone six.  



5 
 

If we are serious about wanting to make Roy City the best it can be, it starts with the City 
Council. We, above everyone else, must live and operate within the rules! We must allow our 
appointed City leaders to do their job and they provide clear direction to their employees! We 
must use the ordinances and resolutions as City Council tools, to direct and task leaders to move 
the City in the right direction! To ensure that this happens now and in the future, we need to write 
it into our governing policies.   

RECOMMENDATION 

Change to READ: 

Roy City Code Title 1 Chap. 6 

1-6-4 Meetings; Procedures and Conduct  

K. Rules of Conduct For Members Of City Council:  

a. The city council may fine or expel any member for disorderly conduct on a two-
thirds (2/3) vote of the members of the city council. (Ord. 484, 10-10-1978) 

b. Individual City Council members will refrain from directing action or tasking City 
employees. All tasking’s, directives, and requests to perform city requirements 
shall be, first approved through appropriate City Council meetings and then, 
forwarded to the Mayor and City Manager for execution and completion.    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(Robert Dandoy, Roy City Council Member, rdandoy@royutah.org) 



WHITE PAPER ON 

Roy City Zoning Ordinance Title 10 

NONCONFORMING USES, NONCOMPLYING STRUCUTRES, AND OTHER NONCONFORMITIES 
Chapter 23 

 

PROBLEM / ISSUE: 

Roy City Zoning Ordinance Title 10, Chapter 23, Non-Conforming Uses, Non-
Complying Structures, and Other Non-Conformities requires the Board of 
Adjustments (BOA) to decide on the existence of any legal nonconforming use, a 
legal noncomplying structure, or other legal nonconformity. The City does not have a 
BOA established thereby, not providing an avenue for landowners to resolve issues.   

BACKGROUND: 

Roy City Zoning Ordinance, Title 10, Chapter 23 states:   

Section 2301 – Purpose: 

This Chapter is provided to establish procedures for determining the 
existence, expansion, or modification of a legal nonconforming use, a legal 
noncomplying structure, or other legal nonconformity, including noncomplying 
lots and signs. 

Section 2302 – Approval Authority: 

As provided for by the Act, the BOA is authorized by the Council as the Land 
Use Authority with the responsibility to determine the existence of any legal 
nonconforming use, a legal noncomplying structure, or other legal 
nonconformity, 

Section 2303—Application Initiation and Application Completeness: 

1) Requests for a determination by the BOA of the existence of a legal 
nonconforming use, legal noncomplying structure, or other legal 
nonconformity shall be made on the applicable form. 

Section 2304—Determination of a Legal Nonconforming Use/Legal 
Noncomplying Structure/Other Legal Nonconformity Application Review 
Procedures and Approval Standards: 

1) The procedures for the approval or denial of the Application for a 
Determination of a Legal Nonconforming Use/Legal Noncomplying 
Structure/Other Legal Nonconformity are identified by Figure 23-1, herein. 

2) The BOA shall review the Application for a Determination of a Legal 
Nonconforming Use/Legal Noncomplying Structure/Other Legal 
Nonconformity and determine if the application: 

DISCUSSION: 



The Roy City Zoning Ordinance is absolutely clear in defining the responsibilities of 
the Board of Adjustments (BOA) as it relates to any legal nonconforming use, a legal 
noncomplying structure, or other legal nonconformity. Since the City has not 
established a BOA in over 13 years, any decisions associated with this specific 
portion of the ordinance have not been made in accordance with established 
policies.  

The City is considering changing from a BOA to an Appeal Authority but the full 
implementation of this function may not be available or enforced for a few months.    

The City is aware of at least one situation at this time that warrants the consideration 
of following the Zoning Ordinance. 

CONCLUSION: 

Because of the City’s has not established a BOA, this client and possibly others 
have not been afforded their rights to have their situation reviewed.   

RECOMMENDATION: 

Since the City Council is responsible to establish a BOA as the Land Use Authority, 
then it seems reasonable for the Council to remedy this situation one of two ways by 
Resolution.  

1. The City Council can suspend enforcement of Chapter 23 of the Zoning 
Ordinance until such time the City can establish a BOA or an Appeal 
Authority.  

2. The City Council can assume the responsibility of the BOA and address each 
request for a determination of a legal non-conforming use, legal non-
complying structure, or other legal non-conformity until such time the City 
establishes the BOA or Appeal Authority.     

 

 

 

 (Robert Dandoy, Roy City Council, rdandoy@royutah.org) 





MINUTES OF THE MAY 3, 2016, REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY MEETING 

 

1. Motion to Convene 
 

2. Approval of the June 2, 2016, minutes 
 

3. Presentation of Fiscal Year 2017 Preliminary Redevelopment Agency Budget 
 

4. Adjourn 



Minutes of the Roy City Redevelopment Agency Meeting held May 3, 2016, at 6:53 p.m. 
in the City Council Room of the Roy City Municipal Building. 
 
The meeting was a regularly scheduled meeting designated by resolution.  Notice of the 
meeting was provided to the Standard Examiner at least 24 hours in advance.  A copy 
of the agenda was posted. 
 
The following members were in attendance: 
 
Chairman Willard Cragun   City Manager Andy Blackburn 
Board Member Marge Becraft    
Board Member Bob Dandoy 
Board Member Brad Hilton 
Board Member Dave Tafoya 
Board Member Karlene Yeoman 
 
Also present were: Cathy Spencer, Management Services Director; and Michelle Drago. 
 

1. MOTION TO CONVENE 
 
Board Member Becraft moved to convene a Redevelopment Agency Meeting at 
6:53 p.m. Board Member Tafoya seconded the motion. Board Members Becraft, 
Dandoy, Hilton, Tafoya, and Yeoman voted “aye.” The motion carried. 
 

2. APPROVAL OF JUNE 2, 2015, MINUTES 

Board Member Tafoya moved to approve the minutes of June 2, 2015, as written.  
Board Member Hilton seconded the motion.  Board Members Becraft, Dandoy, 
Hilton, Tafoya, and Yeoman voted “aye.”  The motion carried 

3. PRESENTATION OF FISCAL YEAR 2017 PRELIMNARY REDEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY BUDGET 

Cathy Spencer, Management Services Director, stated the preliminary Redevelopment 
Agency Budget for Fiscal Year 2017 totaled $1,725,837. The budget included 100% of 
all of the funds available. The funds could be moved around if needed. The budget 
included a description of the expenditures for administration, activities, and repayment 
of an advance. The RDA was continuing to repay Roy City for improvements made in 
the Albertson’s district in the 1990’s. The RDA would continue to repay the City as long 
as there was money in the City Centre Project Area. The 1900 West Area expenditures 
were restricted to the way the budget was set up. Some expenditures were for 
beautification; some were for loans. She asked that the Board accept the 2017 
Preliminary Budget as a working document and schedule a public hearing for accept the 
final budget. 

Board Member Dandoy asked if the RDA was assigned to a particular department that 
developed the RDA budget and oversaw expenditures. Ms. Spencer said it was not. 
Administration managed the RDA because they knew and understood the 



Redevelopment Agency Minutes 
May 3, 2016 
Page 2 
 
 
redevelopment and economic development activities. The RDA budget included funding 
for economic development, which could be used to pay for travel expenses to seminars 
to promote the City. Other economic expenditures included new street lights to beautify 
1900 West in front of Albertson’s and Common Cents. There was funding available for 
the RDA to use to help developments with things like relocating businesses and 
demolition. The money was restricted to the particular RDA area it was collected from. 
The only redevelopment areas in Roy were along 1900 West and the Iomega area at 
4000 South 1900 West. 

Board Member Dandoy asked if money would be moved if an expenditure was made for 
a particular area. Ms. Spencer said it would. The RDA would reimburse the City for any 
time the City Manager, City Attorney, or Community and Economic Development spent 
on an RDA project, as well as administrative costs. 

Board Member Dandoy stated that the RDA approved a $315,000 contract for the 4000 
South Roundabout at its last meeting on June 2, 2015. A few weeks ago the City 
Manager indicated the City would be receiving $90,000 from the Weber School District 
for their portion of the 4000 South Roundabout. Andy Blackburn said the City had not 
received the money from the school district yet. At its next Board meeting, the Board 
would approve the payment of about $95,000 less what the City owed them for a small 
piece of property used to construct the roundabout. The property was about 166 square 
feet in size. He sent them a letter indicating that the City believed the value of the 166 
square feet to be about $645. 

Board Member Dandoy clarified that RDA spent $315,000 to complete the 4000 South 
Roundabout project. The agreement was for the Weber School District to offset some of 
the cost because it had a vested interest in it. Where would the money from the Weber 
School District go? Cathy Spencer said it would to back into the RDA if the RDA paid for 
the roundabout. 

Board Member Dandoy asked how the money would be accounted for if it was received 
after the end of the current fiscal year on June 30th. Mr. Blackburn felt the RDA would 
receive the money before the end of the fiscal year. Cathy Spencer said even if it was 
received after the end of the fiscal year, the budget would be adjusted to include the 
revenue. 

Board Member Dandoy asked if there were any planned expenditures for the $1.7 
million in the RDA. Cathy Spencer said the only expenditure planned right now was a 
few decorative lights from 4000 South to the end of North Park. The lights would add 
some beautification to the City for people traveling up the hill into Roy. 

Board Member Dandoy stated that the RDA’s $1.7 million was roughly 10% of the City’s 
budget. He felt there should be plan to spend the money to support the blighted areas 
the City had identified. 



Redevelopment Agency Minutes 
May 3, 2016 
Page 3 
 
 
Cathy Spencer said there was only $1.7 million because it had been carried forward 
from previous budgets. The $1.7 million was in the RDA’s fund balance. When it was 
spent, the RDA would not have it again. It would only have the ongoing revenue, which 
was about $300,000 per year. In two years, the City Centre Project would end. The 
$41,000 received a year from the City Centre Project would go away. The Wasatch 
Executive Park would end in 2020. 

Board Member Tafoya explained that revenue collected from a project area could only 
be spent in the project area. It could not be used in a different area of the City or for a 
different RDA project. 

Cathy Spencer stated that when the 1900 West Project Area was set up, the 
Redevelopment Agency had to specify what the money would be used for.  The tax 
increment collected in the 1900 West area could only be used for business loans, 
beautification, and demolition. If the RDA wanted to change those parameters, it had to 
go back to a committee of taxing agencies to receive approval. 

Board Member Dandoy stated that the RDA had been accumulating a lot of money and 
not spending it. Why were citizens being asked to pay for something the RDA did not 
have a plan to spend? He felt the City would be better served to reduce the property tax 
and take it off the books. Cathy Spencer explained that when the RDA closed a district., 
it would no longer receive the tax increment. The City would receive it as regular 
property tax. Board Member Dandoy said the citizens paid either way. Cathy Spencer 
said that was true for Roy citizens. However, the Project Area allowed the RDA to also 
receive the taxes that would have gone to other taxing entities. An RDA took 
everybody’s property taxes for a project area. When a project area closed the taxes 
went back to the taxing entities. 

Board Member Dandoy asked what would happen if the RDA had not spent the $1.7 
million when a project area closed. Cathy Spencer said the RDA would not close the 
area until the funds were spent. Board Member Dandoy felt the RDA needed to develop 
a plan to spend the money. It bothered him that there weren’t any planned expenditures 
except for money owed to Roy City for the City Centre Project. Cathy Spencer said the 
funds were available to help promote economic development. 

Board Member Tafoya stated that RDA’s were established to help blighted areas. They 
had worked in some areas. For example, the RDA was able to help with the 
redevelopment of the northeast corner of 5600 South 1900 West.  

Cathy Spencer stated that the life of an RDA project area was 30 years. When a project 
area was originally set up there was a plan for expenditure of the money. As time 
continued on, the RDA Board might need to say a project area was finished. There 
wasn’t anything else that could be accomplished.  



Redevelopment Agency Minutes 
May 3, 2016 
Page 4 
 
 
Andy Blackburn stated that the RDA needed to have some flexibility. It did not know 
what economic development might come in or what the needs of that development 
might be.  

Board Member Dandoy asked if the RDA money could be used as an incentive to bring 
business in. Mr. Blackburn said it could. Board Member Dandoy felt the RDA should put 
the notice out that the money was available so the City would leverage on it. The RDA 
owed it to the City to entice businesses to come to Roy. 

Cathy Spencer stated that because money was available in the RDA, the City was able 
to help the new Weber County Library put a road in the Wasatch Executive Park. The 
City did not have to cover the funds for that road.  

Board Member moved to accept the Fiscal Year 2017 Preliminary Budget as a 
working document and to schedule a public hearing on June 7, 2016, to accept 
the final budget. Board Member Becraft seconded the motion. Board Members 
Becraft, Dandoy, Hilton, Tafoya, and Yeoman voted “aye.” The motion carried. 

4. ADJOURN 

Board Member Hilton moved to adjourn at 7:14 p.m. Board Member Dandoy 
seconded the motion. Board Members Becraft, Cordova, Hilton, and Tafoya voted 
“aye.” The motion carried. 

 

       ________________________________ 
       Willard Cragun 
       Chairman 

Attest: 

 

__________________________________ 
Amy Mortenson 
Recorder  



   

FY 2017 Preliminary Budget

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF ROY UTAH

Presented by: Cathy A. Spencer 
Management Services Director



REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF ROY UTAH BUDGET 
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2017 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Board of Directors  .......................................................................................................................................  2 
Budget Calendar  ..........................................................................................................................................  3 
Budget Message  ..........................................................................................................................................  4 
General Fund: 

Revenue  ................................................................................................................................................  6 
Expenditures  .......................................................................................................................................... 8 
Area Allocation  ...................................................................................................................................  10 

1



REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF ROY UTAH 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

  Willard S. Cragun, Chairman 
   2014-2018 

Board Members 

 Margie Becraft   Robert Dandoy     Bradley R. Hilton    David E. Tafoya    Karlene Yeoman 
  2014-2018         2016-2020               2010-2018             Mayor Pro-Tem          2014-2020 

        2000-2020 

Administrative Personnel 

Andrew H. Blackburn, Roy City Manager 
Andrew H. Blackburn, Agency Director 

Cathy A. Spencer, Budget Officer 

2



BUDGET CALENDAR

The Office of the City Manager and the Community & Economic Development Department are responsible 
for the development of the annual budget.  As the schedule below details, the budget process began in 
early March.  The RDA Director and staff are responsible for compiling budget figures, which are then 
reviewed and adjusted by the City Manager. 

Date Activity 

  February 12, 2016 Distribute budget request forms and instructions to Director 
 March 23, 2015 Deadline for submitting budget request – review and compile request 

April 1, 2016 City Manager reviews budget – budget meeting with RDA Director 
 Ongoing Review and revise budget requests for inclusion in Tentative FY 2017 Budget 
 May 3, 2016 Presentation of Tentative FY 2017 Budget to the Board of Directors 

June 7, 2016 Public hearing on FY 2017 Budget 
Board of Directors adoption of FY 2017 Budget if no changes recommended 

  June 21, 2016 Board of Directors adoption of FY 2017 Budget if changes recommended at 
June 7, 2016 meeting 

3



BUDGET MESSAGE 
 

 
 
To the Board of Directors of the Redevelopment Agency of Roy Utah: 
 
The Agency Administration is pleased to once again present a balanced budget for your consideration. 
The budget covers Fiscal Year 2017 which begins July 1, 2016 and ends June 30, 2017.   
 
The total budget for the Agency is $1,725,837 and includes using funds accumulated in prior years for 
projects and general redevelopment activities.   
 
Revenue 
 
The Redevelopment Agency intends to request the full amount of property tax increment available for 
each area, which amounts to $51,000. Property tax increment is estimated to be equal to the prior year.  
Property tax increment withheld from other agencies and submitted to Roy City under the redevelopment 
code totals $260,000.   
 
Although the 1900 West District has received all increment it is due, it will continue to improve the area 
with the increment received. 
 
The budget includes interest income of $12,000 and using $1,402,837 of fund balance reserves.   
 
The following is a summary of revenue for the various RDA Areas: 
 

 
Redevelopment Agency Funds 

 #2 
Wasatch 

Executive Park 

 
#3 

City Centre 

 
#4 

1900 West 

 
 

General 
Revenue sources:     
  Property tax increment  $  45,000 $  6,000 $             -   $             - 
  Contribution  from other gvts 225,000 35,000 - 12,000 
  Interest - - - - 
  Use of fund balance 385,756 28,805 823,079 165,197 

    Total financing sources $655,756 $69,805 $823,079 $177,197 

 
 
Expenditures 
 
Because RDA Area #2 (Wasatch Executive Park) is pre-1993, use of funds can be set each year as projects 
become known.  Much of the Agency’s operating costs will be funded from this area.  The remaining funds 
will be used to assist with land acquisition, land write-down, and the installation of on and off-site 
improvements.  
 

4



The use of funds in RDA Area #4 was determined by the taxing entity committee upon its creation in 2002. 
The FY 2017 budget reflects the allocation of available tax increment as originally adopted by the 
committee. 

The following table summarizes the budgeted expenditures of the Agency: 

Redevelopment Agency Funds 

#2 
Wasatch 

Executive Park 
#3 

City Centre 
#4 

1900 West General 
Expenditures: 
  Administration $211,525  $12,585   $              -   $ 55,290 
  Redevelopment activities 444,231 27,220 823,079 121,907 
  Repay advance to Roy City - 30,000 - - 

    Total financing sources $655,756 $69,805 $823,079 $177,197 

A detail of expenditures for redevelopment follows this memo.  With all bonded debt repaid in RDA Area 
#3, tax increment will be used to repay an advance from Roy City for on-sight improvements to the City 
Centre project area.  The advance was made in the early 1990’s and totaled $550,000.    

Monies received from investments and accumulated fund balance in the general redevelopment fund will 
be used to assist with land acquisition, land write-down, demolition, and the installation of on and off-site 
improvements.   

In Summary 

The use of funds shown above is the best estimate of the administration based upon current and proposed 
redevelopment activities.  Economic changes and new redevelopment opportunities could alter the 
specific allocations.  

Respectfully submitted, 

Andrew H. Blackburn 
Agency Director 

Cathy A. Spencer 
Budget Officer 

5



Redevelopment Agency of Roy Utah FY 2017 Tentative Budget 

Tab 1 – Revenues 

Revenues  
 
 

 

 

 

 

IN THIS SECTION: 

 Tax 

 Miscellaneous 

 Contributions and Transfers

6



ROY CITY CORPORATION ROY CITY CORPORATION FY 2017 PRELIMINARY BUDGET

Period: 00/16

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 Adjustments 2016-17 FY 2017

Prior Year Current Year Requested To Requested Recommended Budget vs.

Acct No Acct Title Actual Modified Budget Budget Budget Budget FY 2016

71-31-100 PROPERTY TAX INCREMENT .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

71-31-105 PROPERTY TAXES - #271 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

71-31-106 DELINQUENT TAXES - #271 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

71-31-110 PROPERTY TAXES - RDA #1 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

71-31-111 DELINQUENT TAXES - RDA #1 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

71-31-115 PROPERTY TAXES - RDA #3 6,580.19 7,000.00 6,000.00 .00 6,000.00 (          1,000.00)

71-31-116 DELINQUENT TAXES - RDA #3 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

71-31-120 PROPERTY TAXES - RDA #2 43,161.08 40,000.00 45,000.00 .00 45,000.00 5,000.00

71-31-121 DELINQUENT TAXES - RDA #2 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

71-31-125 PROPERTY TAXES - RDA #4 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

71-31-126 DELINQUENT TAXES - RDA #4 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

Total TAXES: 49,741.27 47,000.00 51,000.00 .00 51,000.00 4,000.00

71-36-100 INTEREST EARNINGS - GENERAL 10,382.98 8,000.00 12,000.00 .00 12,000.00 4,000.00

71-36-105 INTEREST EARNINGS - #271 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

71-36-110 INTEREST EARNINGS - RDA #1 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

71-36-115 INTEREST EARNINGS - RDA #3 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

71-36-120 INTEREST EARNINGS - RDA #2 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

71-36-410 INVESTMENT EARNINGS 729,705.71 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

71-36-420 SALE OF LAND .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

71-36-800 PROCEEDS FROM ISSUANCE OF G .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

71-36-810 PROCEEDS FROM REFUNDING BO .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

71-36-900 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

71-36-901 REPAY - ADV FROM OTHER FUND .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

Total MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE: 740,088.69 8,000.00 12,000.00 .00 12,000.00 4,000.00

71-38-000 TRANSFER FROM GENERAL FUND .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

71-38-220 TRANSFER FROM UTILITY E. FUND .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

71-38-330 CONTRIBUTION - GENERAL FUND .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

71-38-401 CONTR FROM OTHER GOVT UNITS  226,372.92 220,000.00 225,000.00 .00 225,000.00 5,000.00

71-38-402 CONTR FROM OTHER GOVT UNITS  34,533.81 35,000.00 35,000.00 .00 35,000.00 .00

71-38-403 CONTR FROM OTHER GOVT UNITS  .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

71-38-530 LOAN FROM GENERAL FUND .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

71-38-550 LOAN FROM UTILITY E. FUND .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

71-38-700 CONTRIBUTION FROM FUND BALA .00 2,102,646.00 1,402,837.00 .00 1,402,837.00 (     699,809.00)

Total CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS: 260,906.73 2,357,646.00 1,662,837.00 .00 1,662,837.00 (     694,809.00)

Net Total REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY: 1,050,736.69 2,412,646.00 1,725,837.00 .00 1,725,837.00 (     686,809.00)

Net Grand Totals: 1,050,736.69 2,412,646.00 1,725,837.00 .00 1,725,837.00 (     686,809.00)

7



Expenditures 

Redevelopment Agency of Roy Utah FY 2017 Tentative Budget 

Tab 2 – G
overnm

ent 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

IN THIS SECTION: 

 Expenditures 

 District Budgets 

o Area #2 – Wasatch Executive Park 

o Area #3 – City Centre 

o Area #4 – 1900 West 

o General 

8



ROY CITY CORPORATION ROY CITY CORPORATION FY 2017 PRELIMINARY BUDGET

Period: 00/16

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 Adjustments 2016-17 FY 2017

Prior Year Current Year Requested To Requested Recommended Budget vs.

Acct No Acct Title Actual Modified Budget Budget Budget Budget FY 2016

71-40-210 BOOKS, SUBSCRIP., MEMBERSHI 1,000.00 6,300.00 6,300.00 .00 6,300.00 .00

71-40-220 PUBLIC NOTICES 72.25 1,500.00 1,500.00 .00 1,500.00 .00

71-40-230 TRAVEL/TRAINING EXPENSE 3.40 12,800.00 12,800.00 .00 12,800.00 .00

71-40-240 OFFICE SUPPLIES AND EQUIPMEN .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .00 1,000.00 .00

71-40-290 REVOLVING LOAN FUND .00 300,000.00 300,000.00 .00 300,000.00 .00

71-40-295 HOUSING .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

71-40-310 PROFESSIONAL & TECHNICAL SVC 20,048.53 142,000.00 119,500.00 .00 119,500.00 (        22,500.00)

71-40-400 DEMOLITION .00 83,305.00 83,305.00 .00 83,305.00 .00

71-40-410 LAND, RELOCATION, & IMPROVEM 388,874.33 1,270,021.00 576,192.00 .00 576,192.00 (     693,829.00)

71-40-500 JOHNSON/SACKETT - PRINCIPAL .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

71-40-510 JOHNSON/SACKETT - INTEREST .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

71-40-600 PROMOTIONS .00 6,000.00 6,000.00 .00 6,000.00 .00

71-40-610 ROY CITY ADMINISTRATION FEE 132,000.00 130,000.00 132,300.00 .00 132,300.00 2,300.00

71-40-620 ROY CITY CENTRE PMT (#272) .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

71-40-640 DOWNTOWN BEAUTIFICATION .00 459,720.00 486,940.00 .00 486,940.00 27,220.00

71-40-650 RECREATIONAL/CULTURAL FACILI .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

71-40-710 LAND .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

71-40-720 FURNITURE, FIXTURES & EQUIPM .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

71-40-730 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PROGRA .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

71-40-820 PRIN PAYMNET - ROY CITY NOTE 1 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

71-40-830 INT PAYMENT - ROY CITY NOTE 1 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

71-40-840 PRIN PAYMENT - ROY CITY NOTE 2 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

71-40-850 INT PAYMENT - ROY CITY NOTE 2 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

71-40-851 BOND PRINCIPAL PAYMENT (#272 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

71-40-860 BOND INTEREST PAYMENT (#272) .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

71-40-881 BOND PRINCIPAL PMT - (#271) .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

71-40-882 BOND INTEREST PMT - (#271) .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

71-40-883 BOND FEES - (#272) .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

71-40-884 FINANCING COSTS .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

Total OPERATING EXPENDITURES: 541,998.51 2,412,646.00 1,725,837.00 .00 1,725,837.00 (     686,809.00)

71-48-330 CONTRIBUTION TO GENERAL FUN .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

71-48-400 CONTRIBUTION TO OTHER GOVRN 1,164,032.06 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

71-48-800 APPROPR. INCREASE IN FUND BA .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

71-48-810 DEBT SERVICE RESERVE - CONTRI .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

Total TRANSFERS & OTHER USES: 1,164,032.06 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

Net Total REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY: (1,706,030.57) (  2,412,646.00) (  1,725,837.00) .00 (  1,725,837.00) 686,809.00

Net Grand Totals: (1,706,030.57) (  2,412,646.00) (  1,725,837.00) .00 (  1,725,837.00) 686,809.00

9



REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF ROY CITY
FY 2017 Budget

RDA Area #2 RDA Area #3 RDA Area #4
#254 #272 #383 General RDA TOTAL

Estimated Fund Balance March 31, 2016 385,756.00 28,805.00 823,079.00 165,197.00 1,402,837.00

(does not include land values) Base Year 1997? Base Year 1989

TAXES
Property tax increment 270,000.00 41,000.00 0.00 0.00 311,000.00
Property tax increment delinquent 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

  Sub-total 270,000.00 41,000.00 0.00 0.00 311,000.00

MISCELLANEOUS
Interest earnings 0.00 0.00 0.00 12,000.00 12,000.00
Miscellaneous revenue 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

  Sub-total 0.00 0.00 0.00 12,000.00 12,000.00

CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS
Transfer LRI from #4 to General RDA 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Contribution from fund balance 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

  Sub-total 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

  Total revenues 270,000.00 41,000.00 0.00 12,000.00 323,000.00

EXPENDITURES
Books, subscriptions, membership 6,300.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 6,300.00
Public notices 1,500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,500.00
Travel/training expense 12,800.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 12,800.00
Office supplies and equip 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00
Prof and technical fees 67,500.00 2,000.00 0.00 50,000.00 119,500.00
Promotion 6,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 6,000.00
Administration 116,425.00 10,585.00 0.00 5,290.00 132,300.00
Repay Water Fund advance 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Downtown beautification 0.00 27,220.00 459,720.00 0.00 486,940.00
Revolving Loan 0.00 0.00 300,000.00 0.00 300,000.00
Demolition 0.00 0.00 63,305.00 20,000.00 83,305.00
Land, relocation & improvements 444,231.00 30,000.00 54.00 101,907.00 576,192.00
Housing 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Debt Service Reserve 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

  Total expenditures 655,756.00 69,805.00 823,079.00 177,197.00 1,725,837.00

  Revenues over expenditures (385,756.00) (28,805.00) (823,079.00) (165,197.00) (1,402,837.00)

Budgeted fund balance June 30, 2014 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

10



RESOLUTION NO. RDA 16-1 
A Resolution of the Redevelopment Agency of Roy, Utah 

Adopting the 2016-2017 Fiscal Budget 
Beginning July 1, 2016 and Ending June 30, 2017 

 
 
Whereas, the Redevelopment Agency of Roy, Utah on June 7, 2016, held the appropriate public 

hearing to determine the revenue and expenditure budgets for all budgetary funds in the 
amount of $1,725,837 and the budget having been determined to be in the best interest of 
the community; and 

 
Whereas, in order to accomplish these objectives the following budget is hereby recommended for 

fiscal year 2017; 
 

Revenue:  
  Property tax increment $     51,000 
  Interest and miscellaneous 12,000 
  Contributions from other governments 260,000 
  Fund balance appropriated 1,402,837 
     Total revenue $1,725,837 
  
Expenditures:  
  Administration $   147,100 
  Redevelopment activities 1,578,737 
     Total expenditures $1,725,837 

 
  
Now, Therefore Be It Hereby Resolved that the budget for the Redevelopment Agency of Roy, Utah be 

and is hereby adopted for the fiscal year commencing July 1, 2016, and ending June 30, 2017, 
pursuant to law; and 

 
Be It Further Resolved that a copy of said budget be attached hereto and that a copy of the budget 

and this resolution be certified and filed by the Executive Director with the State Auditor and 
other taxing districts as required by law and that an additional copy of the budget and this 
resolution be filed in the office of the Roy City Recorder and that same shall be available to the 
public at all times. 

 
Approved and adopted by the Redevelopment Agency of Roy, Utah on the 7th day of June, 2016.
 
 
 

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF ROY, UTAH 
 
 

 
____________________________________ 
Willard S. Cragun, Chairman 

  



Attested and Recorded: 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Amy Mortenson, Secretary 
 
 
 Agency Members Voting “Aye”          Agency Members Voting “Nay” 
 
_____________________________________ ____________________________________ 
 
_____________________________________ ____________________________________ 
 
_____________________________________ ____________________________________ 
 
_____________________________________ ____________________________________ 
 
_____________________________________ ____________________________________ 
 
 
 

CERTIFICATION 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is the budget adopted by the Redevelopment Agency of Roy, Utah by 
resolution on June 7, 2016, at a Redevelopment Agency meeting and that the same shall be in effect 
for the budget year commencing on July 1, 2016. 
 
 
 

________________________________ 
Andrew H. Blackburn 
Executive Director 


	June 7, 2016 City Council Agenda
	May 17, 2016 City Council Minutes
	RoyCityFY2017PreliminaryBudgetJune2016
	ROY CITY CORPORATION FY 2017 PRELIMINARY BUDGET
	Table of Contents
	Roy City Government
	Organizational Chart
	Budget Calendar
	Budget Message


	Res16-23_AdoptFY2017Budget
	SR - Ord No 16-3 - Chickens-Rabbits
	ROY CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES
	Regarding Chicken/Rabbit and Bee’s
	Chairman Stonehocker opened the floor for public comments.
	Chairman Stonehocker closed the floor to public comments.
	Jared Hall reviewed the points by lot size in the proposed draft
	Allowance by points
	Jared Hall reviewed Item 2 - Permit Required.
	Commissioner Kirch liked the way the draft was written.
	Chairman Holt felt the conditional use permit process was too arduous.
	Chairman Holt felt the benchmark should start at 8,000 square feet.

	Ordinance No 16-3
	Employee of the Month April 2016
	Roy island resolution
	resolution attachment
	Engineer (f-t)
	Resolution 16-10 Fire Department Engineer
	White Paper on Changes to Roy City Code Title 1 Chap  6
	White Paper of Roy City Zoning Ordinance Chapter 23  Proposal 1
	Roy-Flag
	May 3, 2016 RDA Minutes
	RedevelopmentAgency2017PreliminaryBudget
	REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF ROY UTAH FY 2017
	Table of Contents
	Board of Directors
	Budget Calendar
	Budget Message
	Revenues
	Expenditures
	Agency Budgets


	ResRDA16-1_AdoptFY2017Budget



